
           

NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC
WILLIAMSON COUNTY COMMISSIONER’S COURT

JULY 28TH, 2016 
3:00 P.M.

             

The Commissioner’s Court of Williamson County, Texas will meet in special
session in the Commissioner's Courtroom, 710 Main Street, in Georgetown,
Texas to consider the following items:

 

1. Review and approval of minutes.
 

2. Consider noting in minutes any off right-of-way work on any County road done by Road & Bridge Division.
 

3. Hear County Auditor concerning invoices, bills, Quick Check Report, wire transfers and electronic
payments submitted for payment and take appropriate action including, but not limited to approval for
payment provided said items are found by the County Auditor to be legal obligations of the county. 

 

4. Citizen comments. Except when public hearings are scheduled for later in the meeting, this will be the
only opportunity for citizen input. The Court invites comments on any matter affecting the county, whether
on the Agenda or not. Speakers should limit their comments to three minutes. Note that the members of
the Court may not comment at the meeting about matters that are not on the agenda.

 

CONSENT AGENDA 
The Consent Agenda includes non-controversial and routine items that the Court may act on with one
single vote. The Judge or a Commissioner may pull any item from the consent agenda in order that the
court discuss and act upon it individually as part of the Regular Agenda.
( Items 5 – 26 )

 

5.   Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on a line item transfer for All County Courts at Law.
 

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount
From 0100-0425-004125 All Cty Cts/Transcripts $5,000

From 0100-0425-004131 All Cty Cts/Family Ct Aptd Aty $23,000

To 0100-0425-004136 All Cty Cts/MH Ct Aptd Atty $15,000

To 0100-0425-004141 All Cty Cts/Interpretors $13,000

 

6.   Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on a line item transfer for the County Clerk's office.
 

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount
From 0100-0403-004410 Bond Premiums 269.54

To 0100-0403-004212 Postage 269.54

From 0100-0404-004410 Bond Premiums 284.54



From 0100-0404-004350 Printed Materials & Binding 3400.00

To 0100-0404-004212 Postage 3684.54

 

7.   Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on a line item transfer for EMS. 
 

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount
From 0100.0540.004210 Internet/email svs $1041.67

From 0100.0540.003002 Vehicle Equipment < $5000 $839.90

To 0100.0540.004234 Training Supplies $1881.57

 

8.   Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on a line item transfer for Adult Probation.
 

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount
From 0100-0572-003005 Furniture 2000.00

To 0100-0572-003006 Equipment 2000.00

 

9.   Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on a line item transfer for EMS. 
 

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount
From 0100.0540.003200 Medical Supplies $5000.00

To 0100.0540.003307 Pharmaceuticals $5000.00

 

10.   Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on a line item transfer for the County Sheriff.
 

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount
From 0100.0570.003318 Janitorial Supplies $1,500.00

From 0100.0570.003305 Clothing $500.00

From 0100.0570.003005 Radio Equipment $4,000.00

From 0100.0570.004992 CSR Program $435.00

From 0100.0570.005107 Medical Equipment >$5000 $263.00

To 0100.0570.003009 Linens and Toiletries $6,698.00

 

11.   Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on a line item transfer for the Office of Emergency
Management.

 

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount
From 0100.0541.004100 Professional Services 5500

To 0100.0541.005700 Vehicles >5000 5500



From 0100.0541.005000 Capital Outlay 4500

To 0100.0541.005700 Vehicles >5000 4500

From 0100.0541.004505 Software Maintenance 3850

To 0100.0541.005700 Vehicles >5000 3850

From 0100.0541.004414 Vehicle Insurance 2000

To 0100.0541.005700 Vehicles >5000 2000

From 0100.0541.004211 Telephone Services 750

To 0100.0541.005700 Vehicles >5000 750

From 0100.0541.003011 Computer Software 400

To 0100.0541.005700 Vehicles >5000 400

 

12.   Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on a line item transfer for the Office of Emergency
Management.

 

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount
From 0100.0541.004414 Vehicle Insurance 2500

To 0100.0541.004541 Vehicle Maintenance and Repair 2500

 

13.   Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on a line item transfer for Technology Services.
 

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount
From 0100-0503-005700 Vehicles > $5,000 $3,308.50

To 0100-0503-003001 Small Equip & Tools < $5,000 $3,308.50

 

14.   Discuss consider and take appropriate action on authorizing the disposal of various county assets
through auction including (4) Desks, (2) Boxes of binders, (4) Phones, (1) Phone Headset, (1)
Microwave, (2) Cork Boards, (3) Landscape pictures, (1) White board, (1) Misc. Office Supplies, (11)
Chairs, (1) VHS/DVD Player, (18) Monitors, (1) Monitor stand, (16) Computers, (3) Boxes of Misc.
Kerboards and Mice, (1) Stamp Machine (complete list attached) pursuant to Tx. Local Gov't code
263.152.

 

15.   Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on authorizing the inter-departmental transfer of (1)
2-drawer metal cabinet, (List attached) pursuant to Tx. Local Gov't Code 263.152.

 

16.   To discuss and consider confirming the appointment of Ryan Patrick Lloyd as Deputy Constable
Reserve for Precinct 1

 

17.   Discuss, consider and take any appropriate action regarding approval or ratification of the Treasurer's
Report on Williamson County Finances for June 2016 pursuant to Tex. Loc. Gov't Code

 

18.   Discuss, consider and take appropriate action to approve Justice of the Peace, Pct. 4, June 2016
Monthly Report in compliance with Code of Crim. Proc. § 103.005.

 

19.   Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action to recognize completion of the required continuing
education hours for the Williamson County Tax Assessor Collector.



 

20.   Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving property tax collections for the month of
June 2016 for the Williamson County Tax Assessor/Collector.

 

21.   Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving property tax refunds over $2,500.00 for the
month of June 2016 for the Williamson County Tax Assessor/Collector.

 

22.   Discuss, consider and take appropriate action regarding acceptance of donation(s) from the G21
("Giving in the 21st century") car and Bike Show Williamson County Sheriff's Office Victim Assistance
Unit pursuant to Tx. Loc. Gov't Code 81.032.

 

23.   Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on approval of the final plat for the Paloma Lake Section
8 subdivision - Pct 4.

 

24.   Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on approval of the revised plat for Lot 30 Block P of
Rancho Sienna Section 14 Phase 1 subdivision - Pct 3

 

25.   Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on approval of the revised plat for Lot 30 Block P of
Rancho Sienna Section 15 subdivision - Pct 3.

 

26.   Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on approval of the final plat for the Sonterra West
Section 8J Phase 4 subdivision - Pct 3

 

REGULAR AGENDA
 

27.   Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on the implementation of a County Burn Ban for a
period not to exceed 90 days and to authorize the County Judge to lift the ban when conditions
improve.

 

28.   Discuss,consider and take appropriate action on the Department of Infrastructure projects and issues
update.

 

29.   Discuss, consider and take any necessary action regarding Architectural and Engineering Services
Contract with RHad Enterprises, Inc. dba Mode Design Company for the Cedar Park Tax Office
remodel and expansion project (350 Discovery Blvd, Cedar Park, Texas) pursuant to the Professional
Services Procurement Act (Tex. Gov’t Code § 2254.004).

 

30.   Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on the transfer of 2013 Road Bond funds per
recommendations of Mike Weaver, Road Bond Manager in the amount of $775,000.00 from Non
Departmental (P290) to Kauffman Loop Phase I (P293)

 

31.   Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on the transfers to of 2006 Road Bond funds per
recommendations of Mike Weaver, Road Bond Manager from RM 620 Interim Improvement (P167)
$81,319.00, Lakecreek Trail (P208) $8,745.00, Bagdad Road-CR 280 thru SH 29 (P272) $143,596.00,
Williams Drive (P183) $15,362.00, Reagan Blvd. Phase IV (P196) $10,435.00, Madrid Drive (P290)
$9,699.00 and CR 108 (P240) $54,976.00 to Non Departmental (P156) in the total amount of
$324,132.00. Once transfers are complete these projects will be closed.

 

32.   Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on a Temporary Right of Entry Agreement with WC
Round Rock Land Partners, LP for the N. Mays Extension project. 

 



33.   Discuss, consider, and take any appropriate action regarding the approval of the early voting by
personal appearance full time polling locations and voting hours for the General Election to be held
November 8, 2016.

 

34.   Discuss and take appropriate action on the approval of the Vote Centers to be used for the General
Election to be held November 8, 2016.

 

35. Discuss Lone Star Rail.
 

36.   Discuss and take action to approve the attached budget transfers for the 2015 Certificates of Obligation.
 

37.   Discuss and take appropriate action to approve the attached budget transfers for the 2014 Capital
Improvement Program.

 

38.   Discuss and take appropriate action to approve the attached transfers for the 2015 Capital
Improvement Program.

 

39.   Discuss and take action to allocate funds from cash ending for the Fiscal Year 2017 Capital
Improvement Program. 

 

40.   Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on a resolution supporting the grant application for
funding for the Williamson County DWI/Drug Court from the Office of the Governor's Criminal Justice
Division.

 

41.   Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on resolution for the Williamson County Veterans
Treatment Court grant. 

 

42.   Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on appointment of Greg Boatright to the Capital Area
Housing Finance Corporation Board of Directors for a four-year term beginning October 22, 2015 and
ending October 21, 2019. 

 

43.   Discuss, consider and take appropriate action regarding employment of the law firm of Lewis Brisbois
Bisgaard & Smith LLP to represent Williamson County and the Williamson County Sheriff's Office in
relation to Civil Action No. 1:15-cv-431; Herman Crisp v. Williamson County, et al; in the United States
District Court for the Western District of Texas, Austin Division; and exemption of those attorney
services from the competitive bid/proposal requirements of the County Purchasing Act pursuant to the
discretionary exemption for personal or professional services, as set forth under Section 262.024(a)(4)
of the Texas Local Government Code.

 

44.   Discuss, consider and take appropriate action regarding employment of the law firm of Lewis Brisbois
Bisgaard & Smith LLP to represent Williamson County and the Williamson County Sheriff's Office in
relation to in relation to the claims of Royce Belcher; and exemption of those attorney services from the
competitive bid/proposal requirements of the County Purchasing Act pursuant to the discretionary
exemption for personal or professional services, as set forth under Section 262.024(a)(4) of the Texas
Local Government Code.

 

45.   Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving and granting an Abutting Easement to
Bluebonnet Electric Cooperative, Inc. in relation to a 1.144 acre tract of land in Precinct 4 that is
situated adjacent to the First Shiloh Baptist Church.

 

46.   Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on a Fiscal Agreement between the Capital Area



46.   Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on a Fiscal Agreement between the Capital Area
Metropolitan Organization (CAMPO) and Williamson County, Texas (Williamson County), which sets
out the management roles and responsibilities between CAMPO and Williamson County required in
rendering fiscal management and payroll processing for CAMPO. 

 

47.   Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on an agreement regarding Terms of Use with Google
for participation in pilot beta program for GIS Base Map Data Upload service in order to support
operations of the Williamson County Geographic Information Systems ("GIS") Division.

 

48.   Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on the acceptance of FEMA DR-4223 disaster recovery
grant funding. Project Title: WIL036C Driveway Repairs.

 

49.   Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on the acceptance of FEMA DR-4223 disaster recovery
grant funding. Project Title: WIL035C Driveways

 

50.   Discuss and take action on the acceptance of FY16 Emergency Management Performance Grant
funding and to authorize the County Judge to sign associated documentation.

 

51.   Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on the acceptance of FEMA DR-4223 disaster
recovery grant funding. Project Title: WIL010C Damage Roads (Correcting Project Title Error
in Item #27 of the May 24, 2016 Williamson County Commissioners Court’s Session).

 

52.   Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on authorizing the extension of Pecan Harvest Lease for
the term of October 1, 2016 - September 30, 2017, with Rob Stewart, Owner of Stewart Pecan Farm.

 

53.   Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on awarding the proposal received for RFP #1605-081
Food Services for Williamson County Jail to the best proposer, Aramark Correctional Services, LLC

 

54.   Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on authorizing Purchasing Agent to advertise and
receive proposals for RFP#1605-083, Specific & Aggregate Stop Loss Insurance for Williamson
County.

 

55.   Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on authorizing Purchasing Agent to advertise and
receive proposals for RFP#1606-093, Payroll Services for Existing Temporary Labor for the Election
Administration.

 

56.   Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving an Agreement between Automated
Merchant Systems, Inc. and Williamson County, for Merchant Processing Services and authorizing the
County Judge to sign any related documents.

 

57.   Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on an order declaring an emergency and a grave
necessity due to unforeseeable circumstances and approve a budget amendment acknowledging
additional revenues for Animal Shelter Donations:

 

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount
0546.0000.367404 Animal Shelter Donations $20,185.95

0546.0000.367440 Jane's Fund Donations $19,734.53

0546.0000.367441 ASPCA Donations $0.00



0546.0000.367442 Play Yard Donation $7,416.30

0546.0000.367443 Heart Worm Trmt Donations $6,510.61

0546.0000.367445 Sit Team Donations $0.00

0546.0000.370150 Sale of Pet Care Products $453.77

 

58.   Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on an order declaring an emergency and a grave
necessity due to unforeseeable circumstances and approve a budget amendment acknowledging
additional expenditures for the use of Animal Shelter Donations:

 

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount
0546.0546.003510 Purchases for Resale $453.77

0546.0546.003670 Use of Donations $20,185.95

0546.0546.004100 Professional Services $19,734.53

0546.0546.004109 Special Needs $0.00

0546.0546.004232 Training $0.00

0546.0546.004509 Facility Enhancements $7,416.30

0546.0546.004975 Animal Medical Care $6,510.61

 

59.   Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on an order declaring an emergency and a grave
necessity due to unforeseeable circumstances and approve a budget amendment to acknowledge
additional revenues for Park Donations.

 

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount
0100.0000.367403 Park Donations $111.00

 

60.   Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on an order declaring an emergency and a grave
necessity due to unforeseeable circumstances and approve a budget amendment to acknowledge
additional expenditures for Park Donations:

 

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount
0100.0510.003670 Park Donations $111.00

 

EXECUTIVE SESSION
"The Commissioners Court for Williamson County reserves the right to
adjourn into executive session at any time during the course of this
meeting to discuss any of the matters listed above, as authorized by Texas
Government Code Sections 551.071 (Consultations with Attorney), 551.072
(Deliberations regarding Real Property), 551.073 (Deliberations regarding
Gifts and Donations), 551.074 (Personnel Matters), 551.076 (Deliberations
regarding Security Devices) and 551.087 (Deliberations regarding
Economic Development Negotiations)."

 

61.   Discussion regarding economic development negotiations pursuant to Texas Government Code,



61.   Discussion regarding economic development negotiations pursuant to Texas Government Code,
Section 551.087:
a) Business prospect(s) that may locate or expand within Williamson County.
b) Discuss Pearson Road District.
c) Discuss North Woods Road District.
d) Discuss Kaufman Loop.
e) Discuss Project Deliver
f) Project Fiji
g) Leander Medical Center
h) Leander/Reagan TIRZ

 

62.   Discuss real estate matters (EXECUTIVE SESSION as per VTCA Govt. Code sec. 551.072
Deliberation Regarding Real Estate Property if deliberation in an open meeting would have a
detrimental effect on the position of the governmental body in negotiations with third person.
A. Real Estate Owned by Third Parties
1. Preliminary discussions relating to proposed or potential purchase or lease of property owned by
third parties
a) Discuss proposed acquisition of property for right-of-way for SH 195 
b) Discuss proposed acquisition of property for proposed SH 29 project.
c) Discuss proposed acquisition of property for SW 183 and SH 29 Loop. 
d) Discuss possible acquisition of property with endangered species for mitigation purposes.
e) Discuss the acquisition of real property: SW Bypass
f) Discuss the acquisition of real property: Neenah Blvd.
g) Discuss the acquisition of real property: CR 111
h) Discuss the acquisition of real property: Tradesman Park.
i) Discuss the acquisition of real property for proposed CR 110 project. (All sections)
j) Discuss the acquisition of real property: CR 258
k) Discuss the acquisition of real property: Inner Loop.
l) Discuss the acquisition of real property for County Facilities.
m) Discuss the acquisition of real property for DB Wood Rd. (Sneed Loop)
n) Discuss the acquisition of Easement interests on CR 240. 
o) Discuss the acquisition of Easement interests for the Brushy Creek Trail Project. 
p) Discuss the acquisition of real property for Bill Pickett Trail.
q) Discuss the acquisition of real property: Arterial H
r) Discuss the acquisition of easements on the Forest North project.
s) Discuss potential acquisition of property located at NEC of Toll 130 and Gattis School Rd. 
t) Discuss utilities for CR 305 at IH 35 and Reagan at IH35 projects.
u) Discuss easement acquisitions from San Gabriel River Ranch Subdivision.

B. Property or Real Estate owned by Williamson County
1). Preliminary discussions relating to proposed or potential sale or lease of property owned by the
County
a) Discuss County owned real estate containing underground water rights and interests.
b) Discuss the proposed sale of portion of county property on Inner Loop opposite Maintenance
Building.
c) Discuss possible sale of 183 A excess right of way
d) Discuss proposed sale of real estate of Blue Springs Blvd
e) Discuss abandonment of CR359. 
f) Discuss proposed sale of an easement to Enterprise Crude Pipeline LLC. 

C. Consider intervention in lawsuit regarding de-listing of Bone Cave harvestman. 
 

63. Discuss pending or contemplated litigation, settlement matters and other confidential attorney-client legal



63. Discuss pending or contemplated litigation, settlement matters and other confidential attorney-client legal
matters (EXECUTIVE SESSION as per VTCA Govt. Code sec. 551.071 consultation with attorney.),
including the following:

a) Litigation or claims or potential litigation or claims against the County or by the County
b) Status Update-Pending Cases or Claims;
c) Civil Action No.1:13- CV- 505, Robert Lloyd v. Lisa Birkman, et al, In The United States District Court
for the Western District of Texas, Austin Division
d) Employee/personnel related matters
e) Other confidential attorney-client matters, including contracts and certain matters related to county
defense issues in which the duty of the attorney to the governmental body within the attorney/client
relationship clearly conflicts with Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code.
f) Civil Action No. 1:11-cv-907, Sarah Doe et al. v. Jerald Neveleff et al., In the United States District
Court for the Western District of Texas Austin Division
g) Cause No. 15-0064-C277, Gordon v. Dollahite et al, In The District Court of Williamson County, Texas,
277th District
h) County Road 241 utility and Right-of-Way Issues and matters;
i) Civil Action No. 1:15-cv-431; Herman Crisp v. Williamson County, et al; In the USDC-WD-Austin
Division
j) Carolyn Barnes, et al v. Texas Attorney General, et al; Cause # D-1-GN-15-000877, in the 419th
Judicial District Court of Travis County
k) Appeal of IRS Proposed Worker Classification Changes and Proposed Tax Adjustments 2011 -2013;
and Payment of Disputed Employment Taxes Pending Appeal
l) Potential claims and litigation against Volkswagen and Audi related to Volkswagen and Audi emission
control systems on diesel engine vehicles in the period 2009 – 2015
m) Discuss proposed acquisition of property for SW 183 and SH 29 Loop
n) Claims of Texas Association for Children and Families
o) Civil Action; American Stewards of Liberty, et al. v. Sally Jewell, et al., In the Western District Court,
Western District of Texas, Austin Division
p) Legislative changes to firearms laws and possession of firearms on county property
q) Law relating requests for the closure, abandonment or vacation of Robles Roja and Oak Branch Roads
in the Shady Oaks Subdivision.
r) Civil Action No. A-14-CV-986-DAE, Walter Chad Troutman v. Williamson County and its Sheriff’s
Department, In The United States District Court For The Western District Of Texas, Austin Division
s) LCRA’s proposed Leander to Round Rock 138k-V Transmission Line Project including but not limited
to filing as an intervenor.
t) Notice of claim and demand of Morgan Lee Roach.
u) Fiscal agent services for the Capital Area Metropolitan Planning Organization (CAMPO).
v) Hunter Industries, Ltd.’s claims relating to the IH-35 Northbound Frontage Road (Westinghouse Road
to SH-29) Project
w) Labor and employment law review of Employee Policy Manual provisions and amendments.
x) Berry Springs Park and Preserve pipeline
z) Discuss subrogation claims related to medical claims incurred during the County’s contract with
Allegiance Benefit Plan Management (TPA).
aa) Discuss requirements related to health benefit plan.
bb) Case No. 1:16-cv-00505-LY, Saturn v. Barnett et al, In The United States District Court For The
Western District of Texas-Austin Division
cc) Cause No. 3SC-15-0150, Saturn v. Estate of Billy Maddox et al et al, In The Justice Court, Precinct 3,
Williamson County, Texas
dd) Discuss damage claim from Southwest Milam Water Supply Corporation.

 

64. Deliberate the appointment, employment, evaluation, reassignment, duties, discipline and/or dismissal of
Williamson County officers, directors, employees and/or positions, including but not limited to conducting
deliberation and discussion pertaining to annual reviews of department heads and appointed officials
(Executive Session as per Tex. Gov. Code Section 551.074 – Personnel Matters).

 

65. Discuss the deployment or specific occasions for implementation of security personnel or devices in
relation to the Williamson County Justice Center (Executive Session as per Texas Gov’t. Code § 551.076).

 



 

REGULAR AGENDA (continued)
 

66. Discuss and take appropriate action concerning economic development matters.
 

67. Discuss and take appropriate action concerning real estate.
 

68. Discuss and take appropriate action on pending or contemplated litigation, settlement matters and other
confidential attorney-client legal matters, including the following:

a) Litigation or claims or potential litigation or claims against the County or by the County
b) Status Update-Pending Cases or Claims;
c) Civil Action No.1:13- CV- 505, Robert Lloyd v. Lisa Birkman, et al, In The United States District Court
for the Western District of Texas, Austin Division
d) Employee/personnel related matters
e) Other confidential attorney-client matters, including contracts and certain matters related to county
defense issues in which the duty of the attorney to the governmental body within the attorney/client
relationship clearly conflicts with Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code.
f) Civil Action No. 1:11-cv-907, Sarah Doe et al. v. Jerald Neveleff et al., In the United States District
Court for the Western District of Texas Austin Division
g) Cause No. 15-0064-C277, Gordon v. Dollahite et al, In The District Court of Williamson County, Texas,
277th District
h) County Road 241 utility and Right-of-Way Issues and matters;
i) Civil Action No. 1:15-cv-431; Herman Crisp v. Williamson County, et al; In the USDC-WD-Austin
Division
j) Carolyn Barnes, et al v. Texas Attorney General, et al; Cause # D-1-GN-15-000877, in the 419th
Judicial District Court of Travis County
k) Discuss, consider and take appropriate action regarding possible appeal of IRS Proposed Worker
Classification Changes and Proposed Tax Adjustments 2011 -2013; and approval of payment of disputed
employment taxes pending appeal
l) Potential claims and litigation against Volkswagen and Audi related to Volkswagen and Audi emission
control systems on diesel engine vehicles in the period 2009 – 2015
m) Discuss proposed acquisition of property for SW 183 and SH 29 Loop
n) Claims of Texas Association for Children and Families
o) Civil Action; American Stewards of Liberty, et al. v. Sally Jewell, et al., In the Western District Court,
Western District of Texas, Austin Division
p) Action regarding legislative changes to firearms laws, to include but not be limited to the adoption and
implementation of regulations and policies relating to the possession of firearms on and within Williamson
County property and facilities.
q) Civil Action No. A-14-CV-986-DAE, Walter Chad Troutman v. Williamson County and its Sheriff’s
Department, In The United States District Court For The Western District Of Texas, Austin Division
r) LCRA’s proposed Leander to Round Rock 138k-V Transmission Line Project including but not limited to
filing as an intervenor.
s) Notice of claim and demand of Morgan Lee Roach.
t) Fiscal agent services for the Capital Area Metropolitan Planning Organization (CAMPO).
u) Hunter Industries, Ltd.’s claims relating to the IH-35 Northbound Frontage Road (Westinghouse Road
to SH-29) Project
v) Berry Springs Park and Preserve pipeline
w) Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action regarding the handling, including but not limited to, the
negotiating and approval of settlement offers, of subrogation claims related to medical claims incurred
during the County’s contract with Allegiance Benefit Plan Management (TPA).
x) Discuss requirements related to health benefit plan.
y) Case No. 1:16-cv-00505-LY, Saturn v. Barnett et al, In The United States District Court For The
Western District of Texas-Austin Division
z) Cause No. 3SC-15-0150, Saturn v. Estate of Billy Maddox et al et al, In The Justice Court, Precinct 3,
Williamson County, Texas
aa) Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action regarding damage claim from Southwest Milam Water
Supply Corporation.



Supply Corporation.
 

69. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action regarding the appointment, employment, evaluation,
reassignment, duties, discipline and/or dismissal of Williamson County officers, directors or employees,
including but not limited to any necessary action pertaining to conducting annual reviews of department
heads and appointed officials.

 

70. Comments from Commissioners.
 

_________________________ 
Dan A. Gattis, County Judge 

This notice of meeting was posted in the locked box located on the south side of the Williamson County Courthouse,
a place readily accessible to the general public at all times, on the ______ day of ________, 2016 at ________ and
remained posted for at least 72 continuous hours preceding the scheduled time of said meeting.



   

Commissioners Court - Special Session   5.           
Meeting Date: 07/28/2016  

Line Item Transfer
Submitted By: Ashlie Koenig, Budget Office
Department: Budget Office
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on a line item transfer for All County Courts at Law.

Background
A higher number of interpretors have been needed during trial and funds have been depleted. In addition we are
seeing a more appointments in our mental health caseload and have exhausted funding in the court appointed
attorney line.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount
From  0100-0425-004125 All Cty Cts/Transcripts $5,000

From 0100-0425-004131 All Cty Cts/Family Ct Aptd Aty $23,000

To 0100-0425-004136 All Cty Cts/MH Ct Aptd Atty $15,000

To 0100-0425-004141 All Cty Cts/Interpretors $13,000

Attachments
No file(s) attached.

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Rebecca Clemons 07/13/2016 03:39 PM
Form Started By: Ashlie Koenig Started On: 07/09/2016 08:05 AM
Final Approval Date: 07/13/2016 



   

Commissioners Court - Special Session   6.           
Meeting Date: 07/28/2016  

LIT for postage
Submitted For: Nancy Rister  Submitted By: Nancy Rister, County Clerk
Department: County Clerk
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on a line item transfer for the County Clerk's office.

Background
Running low on postage until the end of the fiscal year. We will be changing machines in October if approved in
the budget so we don't want to put but enough that will carry us into October on the current machine.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount
From 0100-0403-004410 Bond Premiums 269.54

To 0100-0403-004212 Postage 269.54

From 0100-0404-004410 Bond Premiums 284.54

From 0100-0404-004350 Printed Materials & Binding 3400.00

To 0100-0404-004212 Postage 3684.54

Attachments
No file(s) attached.

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Wendy Coco 07/15/2016 08:38 AM
Budget Office Ashlie Koenig 07/18/2016 02:09 PM
Form Started By: Nancy Rister Started On: 07/14/2016 03:43 PM
Final Approval Date: 07/18/2016 



   

Commissioners Court - Special Session   7.           
Meeting Date: 07/28/2016  

WCEMS LIT for movement of grant funds to corrected line item
Submitted For: Kenny Schnell  Submitted By: Kenny Schnell, EMS
Department: EMS
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on a line item transfer for EMS. 

Background
This request is for a line item transfer of trauma distribution grant funds for the purchase of training supplies. The
funds are in the wrong line item in order to complete final purchases per grant requirement. 

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount
From 0100.0540.004210 Internet/email svs $1041.67

From 0100.0540.003002 Vehicle Equipment < $5000 $839.90

To 0100.0540.004234 Training Supplies $1881.57

Attachments
No file(s) attached.

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Wendy Coco 07/15/2016 08:38 AM
Budget Office Ashlie Koenig 07/18/2016 03:18 PM
Form Started By: Kenny Schnell Started On: 07/14/2016 04:11 PM
Final Approval Date: 07/18/2016 



   

Commissioners Court - Special Session   8.           
Meeting Date: 07/28/2016  

LIne Item transfer for Adult Probation
Submitted For: Melissa Ramos  Submitted By: Melissa Ramos, Adult Probation
Department: Adult Probation
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on a line item transfer for Adult Probation.

Background
To purchase two heavy duty shredders at our Justice Center location and the RR Satellite office.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount
From 0100-0572-003005 Furniture 2000.00

To 0100-0572-003006 Equipment 2000.00

Attachments
No file(s) attached.

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Wendy Coco 07/18/2016 08:41 AM
Budget Office Ashlie Koenig 07/19/2016 12:36 PM
Form Started By: Melissa Ramos Started On: 07/15/2016 01:41 PM
Final Approval Date: 07/19/2016 



   

Commissioners Court - Special Session   9.           
Meeting Date: 07/28/2016  

WCEMS LIT for pharmaceuticals
Submitted For: Kenny Schnell  Submitted By: Kenny Schnell, EMS
Department: EMS
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on a line item transfer for EMS. 

Background
This is a line item transfer request to provide additional funds for the remainder of FY'16 for projected
pharmaceuticals supply needs in EMS system. Cyanokits were added to the scope of care after the submittal of
budget which resulted in a shortage of funding for FY16.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount
From 0100.0540.003200 Medical Supplies $5000.00

To 0100.0540.003307 Pharmaceuticals $5000.00

Attachments
No file(s) attached.

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Wendy Coco 07/19/2016 03:46 PM
Budget Office Ashlie Koenig 07/19/2016 07:57 PM
Form Started By: Kenny Schnell Started On: 07/19/2016 03:21 PM
Final Approval Date: 07/19/2016 



   

Commissioners Court - Special Session   10.           
Meeting Date: 07/28/2016  

Line Item transfer
Submitted By: Peggy Braun, Sheriff
Department: Sheriff
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on a line item transfer for the County Sheriff.

Background
This transfer is to provide funding for inmate toilet paper and inmate mattresses. The average daily jail population
in October of 2015 was 624 inmates; for June of 2016 the average daily population was 714 inmates.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount
From 0100.0570.003318 Janitorial Supplies $1,500.00

From 0100.0570.003305 Clothing $500.00

From 0100.0570.003005 Radio Equipment  $4,000.00

From 0100.0570.004992 CSR Program $435.00

From 0100.0570.005107 Medical Equipment >$5000 $263.00

To 0100.0570.003009 Linens and Toiletries $6,698.00

Attachments
No file(s) attached.

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Wendy Coco 07/20/2016 12:18 PM
Budget Office Ashlie Koenig 07/21/2016 12:01 PM
Form Started By: Peggy Braun Started On: 07/20/2016 09:17 AM
Final Approval Date: 07/21/2016 



   

Commissioners Court - Special Session   11.           
Meeting Date: 07/28/2016  

Line Item Transfer
Submitted For: Jarred Thomas  Submitted By: Jarred Thomas, Emergency

Management
Department: Emergency Management
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on a line item transfer for the Office of Emergency Management.

Background
Williamson County OEM is requesting the reallocation of funds for the purchase of an UTV, off-road vehicle, for the
use during All-Hazards Incidents, training and exercises, and special events. FY16 has reinforced the need for
such a vehicle due the increased responses requiring the movement of personnel and equipment into and out of
the scenes not readily accessible by full size vehicles. This will increase response capabilities and limit the wear
and tear on standard response vehicles.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount
From 0100.0541.004100 Professional Services 5500

To 0100.0541.005700 Vehicles >5000 5500

From 0100.0541.005000 Capital Outlay 4500

To 0100.0541.005700 Vehicles >5000 4500

From 0100.0541.004505 Software Maintenance 3850

To 0100.0541.005700 Vehicles >5000 3850

From 0100.0541.004414 Vehicle Insurance 2000

To 0100.0541.005700 Vehicles >5000 2000

From 0100.0541.004211 Telephone Services 750

To 0100.0541.005700 Vehicles >5000 750

From 0100.0541.003011 Computer Software 400

To 0100.0541.005700 Vehicles >5000 400

Attachments
No file(s) attached.

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Wendy Coco 07/20/2016 12:18 PM
Budget Office Ashlie Koenig 07/21/2016 12:01 PM
Form Started By: Jarred Thomas Started On: 07/20/2016 10:48 AM
Final Approval Date: 07/21/2016 



   

Commissioners Court - Special Session   12.           
Meeting Date: 07/28/2016  

Line Item Transfer
Submitted For: Jarred Thomas  Submitted By: Jarred Thomas, Emergency

Management
Department: Emergency Management
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on a line item transfer for the Office of Emergency Management.

Background
Vehicle maintenance and repairs have exceeded the budgeted amount for FY16.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount
From 0100.0541.004414 Vehicle Insurance 2500

To 0100.0541.004541 Vehicle Maintenance and Repair 2500

Attachments
No file(s) attached.

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Wendy Coco 07/20/2016 12:18 PM
Budget Office Ashlie Koenig 07/21/2016 12:01 PM
Form Started By: Jarred Thomas Started On: 07/20/2016 11:13 AM
Final Approval Date: 07/21/2016 



   

Commissioners Court - Special Session   13.           
Meeting Date: 07/28/2016  

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on a line item transfer for Technology Services
Submitted For: Jay Schade  Submitted By: Tammy McCulley, Information

Technology
Department: Information Technology
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on a line item transfer for Technology Services.

Background
The warehouse is constantly moving furniture, and other large items from departments to auction, or auction to the
recycle center. IT needs to purchase a utility trailer and we have leftover funds from our vehicle line item. 

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount
From 0100-0503-005700 Vehicles > $5,000 $3,308.50

To 0100-0503-003001 Small Equip & Tools < $5,000 $3,308.50

Attachments
No file(s) attached.

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Wendy Coco 07/21/2016 11:52 AM
Budget Office Ashlie Koenig 07/21/2016 12:01 PM
Form Started By: Tammy McCulley Started On: 07/21/2016 11:23 AM
Final Approval Date: 07/21/2016 



   

Commissioners Court - Special Session   14.           
Meeting Date: 07/28/2016  

Asset Transfer
Submitted For: Max Bricka  Submitted By: Jayme Jasso, Purchasing
Department: Purchasing
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss consider and take appropriate action on authorizing the disposal of various county assets through auction
including (4) Desks, (2) Boxes of binders, (4) Phones, (1) Phone Headset, (1) Microwave, (2) Cork Boards, (3)
Landscape pictures, (1) White board, (1) Misc. Office Supplies, (11) Chairs, (1) VHS/DVD Player, (18) Monitors, (1)
Monitor stand, (16) Computers, (3) Boxes of Misc. Kerboards and Mice, (1) Stamp Machine (complete list
attached) pursuant to Tx. Local Gov't code 263.152.

Background

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Asset Transfer

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Wendy Coco 07/21/2016 10:28 AM
Form Started By: Jayme Jasso Started On: 07/21/2016 10:17 AM
Final Approval Date: 07/21/2016 

























   

Commissioners Court - Special Session   15.           
Meeting Date: 07/28/2016  

Asset Transfer
Submitted For: Max Bricka  Submitted By: Jayme Jasso, Purchasing
Department: Purchasing
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on authorizing the inter-departmental transfer of (1) 2-drawer metal
cabinet, (List attached) pursuant to Tx. Local Gov't Code 263.152.

Background

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Asset Transfer

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Wendy Coco 07/21/2016 11:28 AM
Form Started By: Jayme Jasso Started On: 07/21/2016 10:27 AM
Final Approval Date: 07/21/2016 





   

Commissioners Court - Special Session   16.           
Meeting Date: 07/28/2016  

Constable
Submitted For: Robert Chody  Submitted By: Roy Fikac, Constable Pct. #1
Department: Constable Pct. #1
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
To discuss and consider confirming the appointment of Ryan Patrick Lloyd as Deputy Constable Reserve for
Precinct 1

Background

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Ryan P. Lloyd Bio

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Wendy Coco 07/05/2016 10:21 AM
Form Started By: Roy Fikac Started On: 07/05/2016 09:01 AM
Final Approval Date: 07/05/2016 





   

Commissioners Court - Special Session   17.           
Meeting Date: 07/28/2016  

Treasurer's Report June 2016
Submitted For: Jerri Jones  Submitted By: Jerri Jones, County Treasurer
Department: County Treasurer
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take any appropriate action regarding approval or ratification of the Treasurer's Report on
Williamson County Finances for June 2016 pursuant to Tex. Loc. Gov't Code

Background

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Treasurer Report June 2016

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Wendy Coco 07/19/2016 03:46 PM
Form Started By: Jerri Jones Started On: 07/19/2016 11:15 AM
Final Approval Date: 07/19/2016 













   

Commissioners Court - Special Session   18.           
Meeting Date: 07/28/2016  

Justice of the Peace 4 JUNE 2016 Monthly Report
Submitted By: Veronica Bolander, J.P. Pct. #4
Department: J.P. Pct. #4
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action to approve Justice of the Peace, Pct. 4, June 2016 Monthly Report
in compliance with Code of Crim. Proc. § 103.005.

Background

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
JP4 EOM JUNE 2016

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Wendy Coco 07/15/2016 08:38 AM
Form Started By: Veronica Bolander Started On: 07/14/2016 11:34 AM
Final Approval Date: 07/15/2016 



IN COMPLIANCE WITH ARTICLE 103 
CODE OF CRIMINAL PROCEDURE 

THE STATE OF TEXAS 
COUNTY OF WILLIAMSON 

Before me, the undersigned authority, on this day personally appeared Judy Schier 
Hobbs, Justice of the Peace, Precinct 4, Williamson County, who, on her oath, stated that 
the attached report of money collected is a true and correct report for the month of 
June, 2016. 

11th day of_=Ju~IYI-"c..=2=O"",-,16~__to certify which witness my hand and 
seal of office. 

VERCWICA B<l.ANDER 
My Notary ID'2676312 
ExpIIs 0cilber7, 2019 

~~J
NOTARY PUBLI in and for the State of Texas 



211 W. 6th St. 
P.O. Box 588 
Taylor, Texas 76574 

Payment Register: Summary Section 
Williamson County Justice of the Peace, Pet. 4 

By Date 06/01/2016-06/30/2016 
Date Printed: 
Time Printed: 

711 112016 
1 :53:48PM 

I FEE CODE FEE DESC ITEMS TOT PAID TOT MONEY CASH CHECKS MO H82398 CC JT CSR OTHER GLCODE 

ABSTRACT ABSTRACT OF JUDGMENT 2 20.00 20.00 0.00 20.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0100-0000-341804 

EVICTION EVICTION FILING FEE 49 1,225.00 1,225.00 200.00 750.00 0.00 0.00 275.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0100-0000-341804 

INDIGENT CIVIL INDIGENT FEE 75 438.00 438.00 48.00 318.00 0.00 0.00 72.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0399-0000-208822 

SERVE 4 CONSTABLE PRECINCT 4 SEF 70 4,760.00 4,760.00 700.00 2,940.00 0.00 0.00 I,I 20.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0100-0000-341904 

SMALLCLAM SMALL CLAIMS FILING FEE 2 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0100-0000-341804 

WRIT POSS WRIT OF POSSESSION 7 35.00 35.00 20.00 15.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0100-0000-341804 

WSERVE 4 CONSTABLE PRECINCT 4 - W 7 1,050.00 1,050.00 600.00 450.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 01 00-0000-34 1904 

*** The Following Fees Do Not Match Any Of The Column Definitions, Therefore Are Included In The" All Other" Column*** 

I FEE CODE FEE DESC ITEMS TOT PAID TOT MONEY CASH CHECKS MO H82398 CC JAIL TIME CSR OTHER GLCODE 

AUTOPSY COPIES OF AUTOPSIES 5 25.00 25.00 15.00 10.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0100-0000-341804 

DEBTCLAIM DEBTCLAIM 23 575.00 575.00 0.00 575.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0100.0000.341804 

DTO DUE TO OTHERS 250.00 250.00 0.00 250.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 01-0 I 00-0000-20700 
................ ..--.,....-,,-.. 

EF E-FILING STATE FEE 75 730.00 730.00 80.00 530.00 0.00 0.00 120.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 01-0399-0000-20802 
...... .--.. '--'''y n' ............ .-r>. 'T"r" 

JURY FEE JURY TRIAL FEE 22.00 22.00 0.00 22.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0100-0000-341804 

OCC L1CENS[)CCUPATIONAL L1CENSI 25.00 25.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 25.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0100.0000.341804 

TCF TRUANT CONDUCT FEE 5 150.00 150.00 50.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 100.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 01-0369-0000-34191 _ ............................ 
TRUANCY CITRUANCY CONTEMPT FII 4 200.00 200.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 200.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0100-0000-351304 

TOTALS SUMMAR\, 327 9,505.00 9,505.00 1.713.00 5,880.00 0.00 0.00 1.912.00 $0.00 0.00 0.00 

Direct Deposit $0.00 HB2398 $0.00 

Cash $1,713.00 CSR Credit $0.00 
Checks 
Money Orders 
Credit Cards: 

$5,880.00 
$0.00 

$1,912.00 Escrow Payments $0.00 Transaction Fee $0.00 
Jail Credit 

Non-Monetar) 

$0.00 

$0.00 

Post for Refund 

Over Payments 

$0.00 

$0.00 

I TOTAL CURRENCY $9,505.00 ESCROW PAID $0.00 II TRAN. FEES $0.0011 TOTAL $0.00 II TOTAL PAID $0.00 

Detailed report has been sent to Auditor's Office. CIVIL 



--------------------------------~~~~~'~--------------'---------------------------------" 

211 W. 6th St. Payment Register: GL Code Recap 
P.O. Box 588 Williamson County Justice of the Peace, Pet. 4 Date Printed: 7/1 V2016 
Taylor, Texas 76574 By Date 06/01/2016-06/30/2016 Time Printed: 1 :53:48PM 

GL CODE GL CODE DESCRIPTION CURRENCY CREDIT CARD OTHERS[)IRECT DEPOSIT HB 2398 TOTALSI 
0100-0000-341804 1,052.00 275.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,327.00 
0100-0000-341904 4,690.00 1,120.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 5,810.00 
0100-0000-351304 0.00 200.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 200.00 
0100.0000.341804 575.00 25.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 600.00 
0399-0000-208822 366.00 72.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 438.00 
01-0399-0000-208022 E-FILING STATE FEE FOR CIVIL 610.00 120.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 730.00 
01-0100-0000-207009 DUE TO OTHERS 250.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 250.00 
01-0369-0000-341917 TRUANT CONDUCT FEE 50.00 100.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 150.00 

I TOTALS: 7,593.00 1,912.00 0.00 0,00 0.00 9,505.00 I 

Detailed report has been sent to Auditor's Office, CIVIL 

http:9,505.00
http:1,912.00
http:7,593.00


~ "lit ~ 

211 W. 6th St. 
P.O. Box 588 
Taylor, Texas 76574 

Payment Register: Summary Section 
Williamson County Justice of the Peace, Pct. 4 

By Date 06/0112016-06/30/2016 
Date Printed: 
Time Printed: 

7/6/2016 
11:16:58AM 

I FEE CODE FEEDESC ITEMS TOT PAID TOT MONEY CASH CHECKS MO HB 2398 CC JT CSR OTHER GLCODE 

AFCAF COUNTY ARREST FEE 129 569.44 549.44 144.53 0.00 89.70 0.00 315.21 20.00 0.00 0.00 0100-0000-341804 

AFDPS DPS ARREST FEE 109 477.49 465.69 64.80 0.00 118.05 0.00 282.84 11.80 0.00 0.00 0399-0000-208400 

AFPWA PARKS & WILDLIFE ARREST 12 60.00 60.00 30.00 0.00 5.00 0.00 25.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0399-0000-208400 

CAF COUNTY ARREST FEE 3 15.00 15.00 5.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 10.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0100-0000-341804 

CS CHILD SAFETY 4 80.00 80.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 80.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0100-0000-341804 

CVC CRIME VICTIMS FUND 0.28 0.28 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.28 0.00 0.00 0.00 0399-0000-208300 

DIS DISMISSAL FEE 12 120.00 120.00 50.00 0.00 30.00 0.00 40.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0100-0000-341804 

DLQ DELINQUENT COLLECTIONS 70 3,543.94 3,525.82 1,306.62 0.00 305.25 0.00 1,913.95 18.12 0.00 0.00 01.0 I 00.0000.2070 I 

DSC DEFENSIVE DRIVING 47 465.30 465.30 29.70 0.00 297.00 0.00 138.60 0.00 0.00 0.00 0100-0000-341804 

FINE FINE 531 51,164.27 45,592.27 9,449.64 0.00 6,247.90 0.00 29,894.73 4,575.00 997.00 0.00 0100-0000-351304 

JCPT JUDICIAL COURT PERSONNE 0.04 0.04 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.04 0.00 0.00 0.00 0399-0000-208500 

PWF PARKS AND WILDLIFE FINE II 1,955.00 1,955.00 1,020.00 0.00 85.00 0.00 850.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0100-0000-209600 

TFC TRAFFIC 177 459.91 452.83 69.72 0.00 114.33 0.00 268.78 7.08 0.00 0.00 0100-0000-341804 

*** The Following Fees Do Not Match Any Of The Column Definitions, Therefore Are Included In The"All Other" Column*** 

Detailed report has been sent to Auditor's Office. CRIMINAL 



~""~'\'~""~-~'''=''''---~--------------' 

I FEECODE FEEDESC ITEMS TOT PAID TOT MONEY CASH CHECKS MO H82398 CC JAIL TIME CSR OTHER GLCODE 

AFC4. CONTABLE ARREST FEE 9 25.31 25.31 5.31 0.00 5.00 0.00 15.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0100-0000-341914 

BOND CASH BOND 4 850.00 850.00 0.00 850.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 01-0100-0000-20700 

C1W. CONSTABLE I WARRAN" 50.00 50.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 50.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0100-0000-341911 

C4W CONSTABLE4WARRAN1 0.93 0.93 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.93 0.00 0.00 0.00 0100-0000-341914 

C4W. CONSTABLE 4 WARRAN1 48 1,470.54 1370.54 245.70 0.00 145.06 0.00 979.78 100.00 0.00 0.00 0100-0000-341914 

CCC CONSOLIDATED COURT C 403 13,442.79 13,068.39 2,625.26 0.00 1,949.09 0.00 8,494.04 374.40 0.00 0.00 0399-0000-208160 

CBS COURTHOUSE SECURITY 403 1,008.24 980.16 196.91 0.00 146.18 0.00637.07 28.08 0.00 0.00 0360-0000-341150 

CHS2 COURTHOUSE SECURITY 0.80 0.80 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.80 0.00 0.00 0.00 0361-0000-341154 

CHS2A COURTHOUSE SECURITY 401 335.26 325.90 65.63 0.00 48.73 0.00 211.54 9.36 0.00 0.00 0361-0000-341154 

COM COMMITMENT 59 128.14 71.34 33.72 0.00 13.22 0.00 24.40 56.80 0.00 0.00 0100-0000-341804 

CWF WILLIAMSON COUNTY \\ 19 408.43 308.43 193.80 0.00 73.50 0.00 4L13 100.00 0.00 0.00 0100-0000-341804 

FA FUGITIVE APPREHENSIOI 0.09 0.09 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.09 0.00 0.00 0.00 0399-0000-208170 

GWF GRANGER POLICE DEPAf I 50.00 50.00 50.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0100-0000-341804 

HWF HUTTO POLlCE DEPARTf\ 8 146.22 46.22 46.22 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 100.00 0.00 0.00 0100-0000-341804 

IOF INDIGENT DEFENSE FEE 401 670.50 651.78 131.27 0.00 97.45 0.00 423.06 18.72 0.00 0.00 0399.0000.208703 

JCM JUVENILE CASE MANAGI 383 1,624.36 1,579.36 308.80 0.00 238.08 0.00 1,032.48 45.00 0.00 0.00 0103690000370000 

JCTF JUSTICE COURT TECHNO 402 1,344.23 1,306.79 262.55 0.00 194.90 0.00 849.34 37.44 0.00 0.00 0372-0000-341 144 

JRF STATE JURY REIMBURSE 402 1,34423 1,306.79 262.55 0.00 194.90 0.00 849.34 3744 0.00 0.00 0399-0000-208235 

JSF JUDICIAL SUPPORT FEE 402 2,014.74 1,958.58 393.82 0.00 292.35 0.00 1,272.41 56.16 0.00 0.00 0399-0000-208352 

JURY JURY FEE 2 236.00 6.00 000 0.00 0.00 0.00 6.00 230.00 0.00 0.00 01 00-0000-341804 

LHWF LIBERTY HILL POLICE or 4 76.72 58.72 0.00 0.00 58.72 0.00 0.00 18.00 0.00 0.00 0100-0000-341804 

LPDWF LEANDER POLICE DEPAR 2 30.00 30.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 30.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0100-0000-341804 

MISCREV MISCELLANIOUS REVENI 4 2.90 2.90 0.00 0.00 2.90 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0100-0000·370500 

MV STATE CIVIL JUSTICE DA 176 15.85 15.65 2.73 0.00 3.90 0.00 9.02 0.20 000 0.00 0399-0000·208415 

OGW OVER GROSS WEIGIIT 10 3,222.00 3,222.00 0.00 0.00 722.00 0.00 2.500.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0399-0000-208850 

REL RELEASE 59 128.14 71.34 33.72 0.00 13.22 000 24.40 56.80 000 0.00 0100-0000-341804 

RRWF ROUND ROCK POLICE DL 3 127.50 27.50 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 27.50 100.00 0.00 0.00 0100·0000·341804 

SPF SPECIAL PROCESSING FE 14 3,261.41 3,261.41 150.00 0.00 11.41 0.00 3,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0100-0000-341804 

STF STATE TRAFFIC FEE 77 4599.00 4.528.20 697.14 0.00 Ll4330 0.00 2,687.76 70.80 0.00 0.00 0399-0000-208425 

SUB SUBPOENA FEE 6 25.20 20.20 10.00 0.00 10.00 0.00 0.20 5.00 0.00 0.00 0100-0000-341914 

SUM SUMMONS FEE 65 287.05 287.05 59.35 0.00 0.00 0.00 227.70 0.00 0.00 0.00 0100-0000-341914 

THWF THRALl. POLICE DEPART 6 64.88 14.88 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 14.88 5000 0.00 0.00 0100·0000-341804 

TP TIME PA YMENT 93 1,507.40 1.282.40 299.66 0.00 109.39 0.00 873.35 200.00 25.00 0.00 0399·0000-208860 

TPDF TRUANCY PREVENTION 268 477.20 463.20 96.10 0.00 86.88 0.00 280.22 14.00 0.00 0.00 01·0399·0000-20803 

TWF TA YLOR POLICE DEPAR'I 16 241.00 141.00 91.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 50.00 100.00 0.00 0.00 

TWFIN TOLlWAY ADMINISTRA'I 108 9,066.91 9,066.91 1,363.69 0.00 326.05 0.00 7,377.17 0.00 0.00 0.00 0100-0000-207027 

Detailed report has been sent to Auditor's Office, CRIMINAL 



-"-~~""'"......"._----------­

TOTALS SUMMAR\, 

Direct Deposit 

Cash 
Checks 

Money Orders 
Credit Cards: 

5469 

$0.00 

$19,794.94 
$850.00 

$13,278.46 
$65,809.04 

107,194.64 99,732.44 

Escrow Payments 

19,794.94 

$0.00 

850.00 13,278.46 

Transaction Fee 

0.00 65,809.04 $6,440.20 

H82398 

CSR Credit 

Jail Credit 

$0.00 Non-Monetal"} 

1,022.00 

$0.00 

$1,022.00 

$6,440.20 

$0.00 

0.00 

Post for Refund 

Over Payments 

$0.00 

$0.00 

I TOTAL CURRENCY $99,732.44 ESCROW PAID $0.00 ] [fRAN. FEES $0.0011 TOTAL $7,462.20 II TOTAL PAID $0.00 

Detailed report has been sent to Auditor's Office. CRIMINAL 



~~~~~~d~"~"~ ____ ----------__________________________________________ ' 

211 W. 6th St. Payment Register: GL Code Recap 
P.O. Box 588 Williamson County Justice of the Peace, Pct. 4 Date Printed: 7/6/2016 
Taylor, Texas 76574 By Date 06/01/2016-06/30/2016 Time Printed: II: 16:58AM 

GL CODE GL CODE DESCRIPTION CURRENCY CREDIT CARD OTHERS[)IRECT DEPOSIT HB 2398 TOTALSI 
01-0 I 00-0000-207008 850.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 850.00 
0100-0000-209600 I, I 05.00 850.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,955.00 
0100-0000-341804 1,698.51 4,070.90 838.68 0.00 0.00 6,608.09 
0100-0000-341911 0.00 50.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 50.00 
0100-0000-341914 480.42 1,223.61 105.00 0.00 0.00 1,809.03 
0100-0000-351304 15,697.54 29,894.73 5,572.00 0.00 0.00 51,164.27 
0100-0000-370500 2.90 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2.90 
0360-0000-341150 343.09 637.07 28.08 0.00 0.00 1,008.24 
0361-0000-341154 114.36 212.34 9.36 0.00 0.00 336.06 
0372-0000-341144 457.45 849.34 37.44 0.00 0.00 1,344.23 
0399-0000-208160 4,574.35 8,494.04 374.40 0.00 0.00 13,442.79 
0399-0000-208170 0.00 0.09 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.09 
0399-0000-208235 457.45 849.34 37.44 0.00 0.00 1,344.23 
0399-0000-208300 0.00 0.28 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.28 
0399-0000-208352 686.17 1,272.41 56.16 0.00 0.00 2,014.74 
0399-0000-208400 217.85 307.84 11.80 0.00 0.00 537.49 
0399-0000-208425 1,840.44 2,687.76 70.80 0.00 0.00 4,599.00 
0399-0000-208500 0.00 0.04 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.04 
0399-0000-208850 722.00 2,500.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3,222.00 
0399-0000-208860 409.05 873.35 225.00 0.00 0.00 1,507.40 
0399.0000.208703 228.72 423.06 18.72 0.00 0.00 670.50 
0399-0000-208415 6.63 9.02 0.20 0.00 0.00 15.85 
0100-0000-207027 1,689.74 7,377.17 0.00 0.00 0.00 9,066.91 
01.0100.0000.207017 DLQ FEE 1,611.87 1,913.95 18.12 0.00 0.00 3,543.94 
0103690000370000 JUVENILE CASE MANAGER FUND 546.88 1,032.48 45.00 0.00 0.00 1,624.36 
01-0399-0000-208034 TRUANCY PREVENTION AND DIVEI 182.98 280.22 14.00 0.00 0.00 477.20 

I TOTALS: 33,923.40 65,809.04 7,462.20 0.00 0.00 107,194.641 

Detailed report has been sent to Auditor's Office. CRIMINAL 



   

Commissioners Court - Special Session   19.           
Meeting Date: 07/28/2016  

Recognize completion of required continuing education hours for the Tax Assessor Collector
Submitted For: Deborah Hunt  Submitted By: Judy Kocian, County Tax Assessor

Collector
Department: County Tax Assessor Collector
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action to recognize completion of the required continuing education hours
for the Williamson County Tax Assessor Collector.

Background
Receipt of certificate regarding completion of continuing education hours as required by the Texas Property Tax
Code for Deborah M. Hunt, Williamson County Tax Assessor Collector.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
CE Hours

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Rebecca Clemons 07/13/2016 03:39 PM
Form Started By: Judy Kocian Started On: 07/08/2016 12:25 PM
Final Approval Date: 07/13/2016 



TAX ASSESSOR-COLLECTOR

CONTINUING EDUCATION TRANSCRIPT

Reporting Period:  01/01/2016 - 12/31/2016

Hon. Deborah M. Hunt

Tax Assessor Collector Phone: (512) 943-1954

ID: 25172

Williamson County (512) 943-3578Fax: 

904 S Main St

Georgetown, TX 78626-5829

Enrollment Date: 01/01/2016

UnitsDate Course

10.00Excess hours carried from 201501/01/2016

2.00Customer Service to Build the Public Trust02/11/2016

13.75TAAD Annual Conference - Dallas02/21/2016

4.00Bluebonnet Regional Meeting03/24/2016

16.0082nd Annual TACA Conference - Waco06/12/2016

0.00Advanced Leadership06/16/2016

Total Hours for year: 45.75       

You have met your continuing education requirements for the 

period 01/01/2016 - 12/31/2016.

You may carry forward 10.00 hours to the next reporting period.

SB546 of the 83rd Regular Legislative Session requires a County Tax Assessor-Collector to successfully complete 

20 hours of continuing education annually.  Up to 10 additional hours, over the required 20, will be carried forward 

into the next reporting period.  This transcript/certificate is evidence of compliance with Texas Property Tax Code 

Section 6.231(d,) and must be filed for record with Commissioners Court.

07/08/2016 Please contact the Tax Assessor-Collectors Association Director of 

Education by email @ roving@brazoria-county.com with any questions.



   

Commissioners Court - Special Session   20.           
Meeting Date: 07/28/2016  

Property Tax Collections – June 2016
Submitted For: Deborah Hunt 
Submitted By: Sandra Surratt, County Tax Assessor Collector
Department: County Tax Assessor Collector
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving property tax collections for the month of June 2016 for
the Williamson County Tax Assessor/Collector.

Background

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
060116-063016 GWI-RFM
060116-063016 GWI-RFM Graph

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Wendy Coco 07/15/2016 08:38 AM
Form Started By: Sandra Surratt Started On: 07/14/2016 09:16 AM
Final Approval Date: 07/15/2016 



Williamson 
County 

General Fund Tax Roll Adjustments Adjusted Tax Roll
Current Tax 

Collected
Penalty & Interest 

Collected Variance
Uncollected 

Balance YTD Collected

YTD 
Percent 

Collected

YTD 
Percent 

Collected 
w/P & I

YTD 
Percent 

Collected 
w/P & I & 

Prior 
Years

2015 $204,163,924.30 $931,161.26 $205,095,085.56 $450,775.53 $60,444.77 $53.41 $1,803,213.36 $203,291,872.20 99.12% 99.33% 100.16%
2014 & Prior $2,213,448.47 ($37,366.80) $2,176,081.67 $18,234.25 $7,571.06 $993.16 $1,441,140.91 $734,940.76 33.77% 40.12%  

Rollbacks $467,800.60 $841,206.92 $1,309,007.52 $41,856.18 $0.00 $0.00 $492,344.69 $816,662.83 62.39% 62.47%
     

Total All $206,845,173.37 $1,735,001.38 $208,580,174.75 $510,865.96 $68,015.83 $1,046.57 $3,736,698.96 $204,843,475.79 98.21% 98.48%  

Williamson 
County RFM Tax Roll Adjustments Adjusted Tax Roll

Current Tax 
Collected

Penalty & Interest 
Collected Variance

Uncollected 
Balance YTD Collected

YTD 
Percent 

Collected

YTD 
Percent 

Collected 
w/P & I

YTD 
Percent 

Collected 
w/P & I & 

Prior 
Years

2015 $18,321,214.20 $90,606.72 $18,411,820.92 $41,070.94 $5,431.90 $4.95 $157,992.04 $18,253,828.88 99.14% 99.35% 100.13%
2014 & Prior $185,747.51 ($2,216.90) $183,530.61 $1,624.89 $668.42 $85.85 $118,252.03 $65,278.58 35.57% 42.16%  

Rollbacks $36,714.70 $68,050.36 $104,765.06 $3,316.60 $0.00 $0.00 $39,588.44 $65,176.62 62.21% 62.28%
    

Total All $18,543,676.41 $156,440.18 $18,700,116.59 $46,012.43 $6,100.32 $90.80 $315,832.51 $18,384,284.08 98.31% 98.58%  

$225,388,849.78 $1,891,441.56 $227,280,291.34 $556,878.39 $74,116.15 $1,137.37 $4,052,531.47 $223,227,759.87

Oct-15 $225,388,849.78 $80,717.03 $225,469,566.81 $7,127,961.53 $34,984.09 $2,027.23 $218,339,578.05 $7,129,988.76    
Nov-15 $225,469,566.81 $506,292.34 $225,975,859.15 $10,195,251.19 $14,090.86 ($4.83) $208,650,624.03 $17,325,235.12
Dec-15 $225,975,859.15 $620,621.99 $226,596,481.14 $123,598,479.10 $14,658.66 $386.50 $85,672,380.42 $140,924,100.72
Jan-16 $226,596,481.14 $128,523.19 $226,725,004.33 $73,883,081.68 $30,440.42 ($72,206.75) $11,990,028.68 $214,734,975.65
Feb-16 $226,725,004.33 $123,530.29 $226,848,534.62 $3,864,857.47 $188,159.85 $2,862.11 $8,245,839.39 $218,602,695.23
Mar-16 $226,848,534.62 $205,775.29 $227,054,309.91 $2,176,065.27 $134,624.72 $56,133.93 $6,219,415.48 $220,834,894.43
Apr-16 $227,054,309.91 $93,451.38 $227,147,761.29 $654,001.07 $67,106.72 $109.13 $5,658,756.66 $221,489,004.63
May-16 $227,147,761.29 $18,854.49 $227,166,615.78 $1,180,450.04 $64,173.80 $289.44 $4,496,871.67 $222,669,744.11
Jun-16 $227,166,615.78 $113,675.56 $227,280,291.34 $556,878.39 $74,116.15 $1,137.37 $4,052,531.47 $223,227,759.87

2015 COMBINED MONTHLY BREAKDOWN

YEAR TO DATE - COLLECTION REPORT
Williamson County - GWI/RFM Property Taxes

June 30, 2016

07/13/16 YTD Monthly Rpt 10:10 AM



98.89%

1.11%

Year to Date Collection Report
October 1, 2015 ‐ June 30, 2016

YTD Collected YTD Uncollected

98.91%

1.09%

Year to Date Collection Report
October 1, 2015 ‐ June 30, 2016

YTD Collected YTD Uncollected

RFMGWI

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Percent of Roll Collected Comparison
June 2012‐2016

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Percent of Roll Collected Comparison
June 2012‐2016

Tax Year Tax Year



   

Commissioners Court - Special Session   21.           
Meeting Date: 07/28/2016  

Property Tax Refunds – Over 2500 – June 2016
Submitted For: Deborah Hunt 
Submitted By: Sandra Surratt, County Tax Assessor Collector
Department: County Tax Assessor Collector
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving property tax refunds over $2,500.00 for the month of
June 2016 for the Williamson County Tax Assessor/Collector.

Background

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
060116-063016 Refunds Over 2500

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Wendy Coco 07/15/2016 08:38 AM
Form Started By: Sandra Surratt Started On: 07/14/2016 09:25 AM
Final Approval Date: 07/15/2016 







   

Commissioners Court - Special Session   22.           
Meeting Date: 07/28/2016  

G21 Car and Bike Show
Submitted By: Mary Sturgeon, Sheriff
Department: Sheriff
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action regarding acceptance of donation(s) from the G21 ("Giving in the
21st century") car and Bike Show Williamson County Sheriff's Office Victim Assistance Unit pursuant to Tx. Loc.
Gov't Code 81.032.

Background

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
\\sheriff\CID\Victims Assistance\G21carshowfundraiser.pdf

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Wendy Coco 07/21/2016 11:28 AM
Form Started By: Mary Sturgeon Started On: 07/21/2016 11:13 AM
Final Approval Date: 07/21/2016 



 
 
         

 

 

 

JAMES R. WILSON 
WILLIAMSON COUNTY SHERIFF 

508 South Rock Street 
Georgetown, Texas 78626-5604 

Phone (512) 943-1300 *   Fax (512) 943-1393 

 

 

 

 

L.C. “TONY” MARSHALL 
Chief Deputy 

 

MIKE GLEASON 

Asst Chief Deputy - Corrections 

         

 

 
 

MEDIA RELEASE 
 

Williamson County Sheriff’s Office Victim Assistance Unit to benefit from 

G21 Car and Bike Show Fundraiser  

 

The Williamson County Sheriff’s Office Victim Assistance Unit has been chosen by the G21 Car 

and Bike Show to receive donations raised at their July Car and Bike Show in downtown Taylor.  

“G21” stands for “Giving in the 21st century”. Every month, this organization donates funds to 

worthy charities or causes in Williamson County. G21 would like to contribute to the Victim 

Assistance Unit and highlight our services and resources to the community of Taylor.  

 

The Victim Assistance Unit provides support and resources to crime victims and survivors of 

traumatic events. The unit consists of three full time staff members and 40 volunteers who 

respond to emergencies 24 hours a day. All donations will be used to provide for the immediate 

needs of the people we serve in Williamson County. Some of these needs may include 

emergency hotel rooms, food, clothing, gas and transportation. The Victim Assistance Unit 

supports every law enforcement agency within Williamson County. Williamson County’s 

dramatic population growth brings increased demands upon our resources. The proceeds from 

this event will allow us to continue to serve our citizens in need. 

 

Members of the Victim Assistance Unit will be present with information about resources and 

services as well as information on joining our volunteer unit.  

 

Please help make this event successful by joining us on East 2nd street in downtown Taylor, TX 

on Sunday, July 24, 2016 from 9:00 am until 12:00 pm. 

 

For information on showing a vehicle in the car show, please contact Robert Garcia with G21 at 

g21carbikeshow@gmail.com or 512-968-4660.  

 

For more information on the Victim Assistance Unit, please contact Julie Hobbs at 512-943-1374 

or juliehobbs@wilco.org.   
 

 

 

mailto:g21carbikeshow@gmail.com
mailto:juliehobbs@wilco.org


   

Commissioners Court - Special Session   23.           
Meeting Date: 07/28/2016  

Discuss consider and take appropriate action on approval of the final plat for the Paloma Lake Section 8 subdivision -
Pct 4 
Submitted For: Joe England  Submitted By: Katheryn Cromwell, Unified Road

System
Department: Unified Road System
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on approval of the final plat for the Paloma Lake Section 8
subdivision - Pct 4.

Background
This is the next section of the Paloma Lake development. It consists of 84 single family lots and 3,133 feet of new
public roads. Roadway and drainage construction has been completed. 

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Paloma Lake Section 8

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Rebecca Clemons 07/13/2016 03:39 PM
Form Started By: Katheryn Cromwell Started On: 07/12/2016 02:27 PM
Final Approval Date: 07/13/2016 









   

Commissioners Court - Special Session   24.           
Meeting Date: 07/28/2016  

Discuss consider and take appropriate action on approval of the revised plat for Lot 30 Block P of Rancho Sienna Sec14
Phase 1 subdivision - Pct 3
Submitted For: Joe England  Submitted By: Katheryn Cromwell, Unified Road

System
Department: Unified Road System
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on approval of the revised plat for Lot 30 Block P of Rancho Sienna
Section 14 Phase 1 subdivision - Pct 3

Background
This is the next section of the Rancho Sienna Subdivision. This plat contains no single family lots or new roads. 

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Revised Plat - Rancho Sienna Lot 30 Block P Sec 14

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Wendy Coco 07/18/2016 08:41 AM
Form Started By: Katheryn Cromwell Started On: 07/15/2016 12:53 PM
Final Approval Date: 07/18/2016 









   

Commissioners Court - Special Session   25.           
Meeting Date: 07/28/2016  

Discuss consider and take appropriate action on approval of the revised plat for Lot 30 Block P of Rancho Sienna
Section 15 subdivision - Pct 3
Submitted For: Joe England  Submitted By: Katheryn Cromwell, Unified Road

System
Department: Unified Road System
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on approval of the revised plat for Lot 30 Block P of Rancho Sienna
Section 15 subdivision - Pct 3.

Background
This is the next section of the Rancho Sienna Subdivision. This plat contains no single family lots or new roads.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Amended Final Plat - Rancho Sienna Sec 15 Blk P Lot 30

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Wendy Coco 07/18/2016 08:41 AM
Form Started By: Katheryn Cromwell Started On: 07/15/2016 12:58 PM
Final Approval Date: 07/18/2016 









   

Commissioners Court - Special Session   26.           
Meeting Date: 07/28/2016  

Discuss consider and take appropriate action on approval of the final plat for the Sonterra West Section 8J Phase 4
subdivision - Pct 3
Submitted For: Joe England  Submitted By: Katheryn Cromwell, Unified Road

System
Department: Unified Road System
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on approval of the final plat for the Sonterra West Section 8J Phase
4 subdivision - Pct 3

Background
This is the next section of the Sonterra West development. It consists of 42 single family lots and 1,367 feet of new
public roads. Roadway and drainage construction has been completed. 

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Sonterra West Sec 8-J Ph 4

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Wendy Coco 07/20/2016 03:47 PM
Form Started By: Katheryn Cromwell Started On: 07/20/2016 03:08 PM
Final Approval Date: 07/20/2016 









   

Commissioners Court - Special Session   27.           
Meeting Date: 07/28/2016  

County Burn Ban
Submitted For: Jarred Thomas  Submitted By: Jarred Thomas, Emergency

Management
Department: Emergency Management
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on the implementation of a County Burn Ban for a period not to
exceed 90 days and to authorize the County Judge to lift the ban when conditions improve.

Background
Williamson County, along with other Central Texas counties, have experienced a prolonged period of extreme heat
and a lack of adequate rainfall. These conditions, along with the heavy fuels, have created an environment
favorable for the ignition and rapid spread of a wildfire. The following counties adjacent to Williamson County have
issued burn bans: Bastrop, Bell, Burnet, Lee, and Travis. The Williamson County Fire Chief's Association is in
support of the burn ban. 

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
No file(s) attached.

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Wendy Coco 07/20/2016 12:18 PM
Form Started By: Jarred Thomas Started On: 07/20/2016 09:55 AM
Final Approval Date: 07/20/2016 



   

Commissioners Court - Special Session   28.           
Meeting Date: 07/28/2016  

Discuss consider and take appropriate action on the Department of Infrastructure projects and issues update
Submitted For: Robert Daigh  Submitted By: Lydia Linden, Unified Road System
Department: Unified Road System
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss,consider and take appropriate action on the Department of Infrastructure projects and issues update.

Background

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
No file(s) attached.

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Wendy Coco 06/21/2016 03:09 PM
Form Started By: Lydia Linden Started On: 06/21/2016 08:56 AM
Final Approval Date: 06/21/2016 



   

Commissioners Court - Special Session   29.           
Meeting Date: 07/28/2016  

Agreement for Architectural and Engineering Services Cedar Park Tax Office Expansion
Submitted By: Shirley Taylor, Facilities Maintenance
Department: Facilities Maintenance
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take any necessary action regarding Architectural and Engineering Services Contract with
RHad Enterprises, Inc. dba Mode Design Company for the Cedar Park Tax Office remodel and expansion project
(350 Discovery Blvd, Cedar Park, Texas) pursuant to the Professional Services Procurement Act (Tex. Gov’t Code
§ 2254.004).

Background
These services are to obtain plans to estimate the cost of the job. The basic fee is $24,700.00 and will be funded
out of 0100-0509-005300.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Mode Design A&E Agreement

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Hal Hawes Hal Hawes 07/20/2016 02:46 PM
County Judge Exec Asst. Wendy Coco 07/21/2016 10:08 AM
Form Started By: Shirley Taylor Started On: 07/20/2016 02:02 PM
Final Approval Date: 07/21/2016 































































   

Commissioners Court - Special Session   30.           
Meeting Date: 07/28/2016  

2013 Road Bond Transfer 
Submitted By: Jaime Aleman, County Auditor
Department: County Auditor
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on the transfer of 2013 Road Bond funds per recommendations of
Mike Weaver, Road Bond Manager in the amount of $775,000.00 from Non Departmental (P290) to Kauffman
Loop Phase I (P293)

Background

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Memo-Mike Weaver

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Wendy Coco 07/08/2016 09:38 AM
Form Started By: Jaime Aleman Started On: 07/07/2016 02:15 PM
Final Approval Date: 07/08/2016 





   

Commissioners Court - Special Session   31.           
Meeting Date: 07/28/2016  

2006 Road Bond Transfers 
Submitted By: Jaime Aleman, County Auditor
Department: County Auditor
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on the transfers to of 2006 Road Bond funds per recommendations
of Mike Weaver, Road Bond Manager from RM 620 Interim Improvement (P167) $81,319.00, Lakecreek Trail
(P208) $8,745.00, Bagdad Road-CR 280 thru SH 29 (P272) $143,596.00, Williams Drive (P183) $15,362.00,
Reagan Blvd. Phase IV (P196) $10,435.00, Madrid Drive (P290) $9,699.00 and CR 108 (P240) $54,976.00 to Non
Departmental (P156) in the total amount of $324,132.00. Once transfers are complete these projects will be closed.

Background

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
2006 Rd Bond Memo

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Wendy Coco 07/08/2016 09:38 AM
Form Started By: Jaime Aleman Started On: 07/07/2016 02:48 PM
Final Approval Date: 07/08/2016 



1508 S. Lamar Blvd. 

Austin, Texas 78704 

(512) 445-7074 voice 

(512) 445-7064 fax 

Prime Strategies, Inc. 

Memo 

To: Jaime Aleman, Williamson County Auditor’s Office 

 Pam, Navarrette, Williamson County Auditor’s Office 

From: Michael J. Weaver 

Date: 7/5/2016 

Re: 2006 Road Bond Project Budget Adjustments/Transfers 

Please close the following 2006 Road Bond projects and make the necessary transfers: 

 Close P-167 RM 620 Interim Improvements and transfer $81,319.00 to P-156 Non-
Departmental/Unallocated Interest 

 Close P-208 Lakecreek Trail and transfer $8,745.00 to P-156 Non-
Departmental/Unallocated Interest 

 Close P-272 Bagdad Road (CR 280 – SH 29) and transfer $143,596.00 to P-156 
Non-Departmental/Unallocated Interest 

 Close P-183 Williams Drive (FM2338) and transfer $15,362.00 to P-156 Non-
Departmental/Unallocated Interest 

 Close P-196 Reagan Blvd. Phase IV and transfer $10,435.00 to P-156 Non-
Departmental/Unallocated Interest 

 Close P-280 Madrid and transfer $9,699.00 to P-156 Non-Departmental/Unallocated 
Interest 

 Close P-240 CR 108 and transfer $54,976.00 to P-156 Non-
Departmental/Unallocated Interest 

If you have any questions regarding these projects and the transfer of $324,132.00 to P-156, 
please let me know. 

 

Cc: Robert B. Daigh, P.E., Senior Director of Infrastructure 
 Christen Eschberger, P.E., HNTB 
 Marie Walters, PSI 

 



   

Commissioners Court - Special Session   32.           
Meeting Date: 07/28/2016  

Mays St. Right of Entry
Submitted For: Charlie Crossfield  Submitted By: Charlie Crossfield, Road Bond
Department: Road Bond
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on a Temporary Right of Entry Agreement with WC Round Rock
Land Partners, LP for the N. Mays Extension project. 

Background

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Temporary Right of Entry Agreement

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Wendy Coco 07/21/2016 10:08 AM
Form Started By: Charlie Crossfield Started On: 07/21/2016 09:20 AM
Final Approval Date: 07/21/2016 









   

Commissioners Court - Special Session   33.           
Meeting Date: 07/28/2016  

Early Voting polling locations and schedule for the uniform election date of 11/8/2016.
Submitted For: Chris Davis  Submitted By: Julie Seippel, Elections
Department: Elections
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider, and take any appropriate action regarding the approval of the early voting by personal
appearance full time polling locations and voting hours for the General Election to be held November 8, 2016.

Background

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Full Time Early Voting

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Wendy Coco 07/19/2016 03:46 PM
Form Started By: Julie Seippel Started On: 07/18/2016 01:00 PM
Final Approval Date: 07/19/2016 



Williamson County Early Voting Schedule 
Horario de la Votación Adelantada del  Condado de Williamson 

 
Joint General and Special Elections - November 8, 2016 

Elecciones Generales y Especiales Conjuntas – 8 de noviembre del 2016 
 
Dates and Times for Full-Time Locations- Fechas y horarios para localidades de tiempo completo: 
 
 
Monday, October 24 through Friday, November 4  Del Lunes 24 de octubre al Viernes 4 de noviembre 
7:00 am to 7:00 pm       7:00 am – 7:00 pm                                                
Sunday, October 30          Domingo, 30 de octubre    
12:00 pm to 6:00 pm      12:00 pm – 6:00 pm 
                       
        
Main Location- Localidad Central:   
 
Williamson County Inner Loop Annex, 301 SE Inner Loop, Georgetown  
 
Branch Locations - Otras localidades: 
 
Georgetown ISD Administration Building, 603 Lakeway Drive, Georgetown 
Parks & Recreation Administration Building, 1101 N. College Street, Georgetown  
Cowan Creek Amenity Center, 1433 Cool Spring Way, Georgetown 
Baca Senior Center, 301 W. Bagdad Street, Building 2, Round Rock 
Round Rock Randalls, 2051 Gattis School Road, Round Rock 
Brushy Creek Community Center, 16318 Great Oaks Drive, Round Rock 
J.B. and Hallie Jester Annex, 1801 E. Old Settlers Boulevard, Round Rock 
Anderson Mill Limited District, 11500 El Salido Parkway, Austin 
McNeil High School Performing Arts Center, 5720 McNeil Drive, Austin 
Cedar Park Public Library, 550 Discovery Boulevard, Cedar Park 
Cedar Park Randalls, 1400 Cypress Creek Road, Cedar Park 
Pat Bryson Municipal Hall, 201 N. Brushy Street, Leander 
Hutto ISD Administration Building, 200 College Street- Back entrance, Hutto 
Taylor City Hall, 400 Porter Street, Taylor 
    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Subject to change   Sujeto a cambio 
 



   

Commissioners Court - Special Session   34.           
Meeting Date: 07/28/2016  

Election Day Vote Centers for the uniform election date of 11/8/2016.
Submitted For: Chris Davis  Submitted By: Julie Seippel, Elections
Department: Elections
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss and take appropriate action on the approval of the Vote Centers to be used for the General Election to be
held November 8, 2016.

Background
Sixty-one Vote Centers are being recommended for November 8, 2016. With the following exceptions, these are
the same Election Day polling locations as those used for the 2016 Primary Election:

St. Peter's Church of Coupland to replace Coupland School.
Jarrell Fire Station #2 to replace Jarrell Memorial Park. 

Addition of RRISD Performing Arts Center at McNeil High School. 
Georgetown Airport and Bluebonnet Trail Community Center will not be Vote Centers for this election.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Election Day Vote Centers

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Wendy Coco 07/19/2016 03:46 PM
Form Started By: Julie Seippel Started On: 07/18/2016 01:04 PM
Final Approval Date: 07/19/2016 



subject to change

sujeto a cambio
Williamson County

Joint General and Special Elections  

 Tuesday, November 8, 2016

Los votantes registrados podrán votar en cualquiera de los lugares de votación listados abajo

Locaciones de Centros de Votós

City Location Address Zip

AUSTIN Anderson Mill Limited District 11500 El Salido Parkway 78750

Bethany United Methodist Church 10010 Anderson Mill Road 78750

Gateway Church 7104 McNeil Drive 78729

Kelly Reeves Athletic Complex 10211 W Parmer Lane 78717

La Quinta Inn & Suites 10701 Lakeline Mall Drive 78717

Lord of Life Lutheran Church 9700 Neenah Avenue 78717

McNeil High School  Performing Arts Center 5800 McNeil Drive 78729

Northwest Fellowship Church 13427 Pond Springs Road 78729

Rattan Creek Park Community Center 7617 Elkhorn Mountain Trail 78729

BARTLETT Bartlett Town Hall 140 W Clark Street 76511

CEDAR PARK Cedar Park City Hall 450 Cypress Creek Road  Building 3   78613

Cedar Park High School 2150 Cypress Creek Road 78613

Cedar Park Library 550 Discovery Boulevard 78613

Cedar Park Randalls 1400 Cypress Creek Road 78613

Cedar Park Recreation Center 1435 Main St- Town Center 78613

Highland Estates Independent Retirement Living 1500 N Lakeline Boulevard 78613

Vista Ridge High School 200 S Vista Ridge Boulevard 78613

COUPLAND St Peter's Church of Coupland 108 Wathen Street 78615

FLORENCE Andice Community Center 6600 FM 970 76527

Florence High School 401 FM 970 76527

GEORGETOWN County Central Maintenance Facility 3151 SE Inner Loop 78626

Cowan Creek Amenity Center 1433 Cool Spring Way 78633

Estrella Oaks Rehabilitation & Care 4011 Williams Drive 78628

First Baptist Church-Georgetown 1333 W University Avenue 78628

GISD Administration Bldg 603 Lakeway Drive 78628

Parks and Recreation Administration Building 1101 N College Street 78626

Main Street Baptist- Ministry Center 111 W 10th Street 78626

San Gabriel Presbyterian Church 5404 Williams Drive 78633

Sun City Social Center 2 Texas Drive 78633

The Caring Place Annex 2001 Railroad Street 78626

Williamson County Inner Loop Annex 301 SE Inner Loop 78626

GRANGER SPJST Hall 114 W Davilla Street 76530

HUTTO Hutto City Hall 401 Front Street 78634

Hutto ISD Administration Building 200 College Street 78634

JARRELL Jarrell Fire Station #2 155 CR 313 E 76537

LEANDER Leander Church of Christ 300 Crystal Falls Parkway 78641

Leander High School 3301 S Bagdad Road 78641

Leander Public Library 1011 S Bagdad Road 78641

Pat Bryson Municipal Hall 201 N Brushy Street 78641

Rouse High School 1222 Raider Way 78641

Registered voters may vote at any location listed below

Vote Center Locations                                                                  7:00 am - 7:00 pm



subject to change

sujeto a cambio
Williamson County

Joint General and Special Elections  

 Tuesday, November 8, 2016

City Location Address Zip

LIBERTY HILL Liberty Hill High School 16500 W SH 29 78642

ROUND ROCK Baca Senior Center 301 W Bagdad Avenue   Building 2 78664

Brushy Creek Community Center 16318 Great Oaks Drive 78681

Cedar Ridge High School 2801 Gattis School Road 78664

Dell Diamond 3400 E Palm Valley Boulevard 78664

Fern Bluff MUD Community Center 7320 Wyoming Springs Drive 78681

Forest Creek Elementary School 3505 Forest Creek Drive 78664

JB & Hallie Jester Annex                    1801 E Old Settlers Boulevard 78664

Round Rock High School 300 N Lake Creek Drive 78681

Round Rock Presbyterian Church 4010 Sam Bass Road 78681

Round Rock Randalls 2051 Gattis School Road 78664

Round Rock Sports Center 2400 Chisholm Trail 78681

San Gabriel Rehabilitation & Care 4100 College Park Drive 78665

Sleep Inn & Suites 1980 South IH 35 78681

Teravista Community Center 4211 Teravista Club Drive 78665

The Fellowship Church of Round Rock 3379 Gattis School Road 78664

TAYLOR Main Street Events Center 3101 North Main Street 76574

Taylor City Hall 400 Porter Street 76574

Taylor Public Library 801 Vance Street 76574

THRALL St John Lutheran Church 409 S Main Street 76578

WEIR First Baptist Church of Weir 315 FM 1105 78674



   

Commissioners Court - Special Session   36.           
Meeting Date: 07/28/2016  

2015 Certificates of Obligations Budget Transfers
Submitted For: Julie Kiley  Submitted By: Julie Kiley, County Auditor
Department: County Auditor
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss and take action to approve the attached budget transfers for the 2015 Certificates of Obligation.

Background
These transfers create the budgets that were discussed and approved on July 12, 2016.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
2015 Certificates of Obligation Project Transfers

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Wendy Coco 07/21/2016 11:28 AM
Form Started By: Julie Kiley Started On: 07/21/2016 11:11 AM
Final Approval Date: 07/21/2016 





   

Commissioners Court - Special Session   37.           
Meeting Date: 07/28/2016  

2014 Capital Improvement Program Budget Transfers
Submitted For: Julie Kiley  Submitted By: Julie Kiley, County Auditor
Department: County Auditor
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss and take appropriate action to approve the attached budget transfers for the 2014 Capital Improvement
Program.

Background
These transfers will make the funds available per the July 12, 2016 discussion and approval of project budgets.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
2014 Capital Improvement Program Transfers

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Wendy Coco 07/21/2016 11:28 AM
Form Started By: Julie Kiley Started On: 07/21/2016 11:24 AM
Final Approval Date: 07/21/2016 





   

Commissioners Court - Special Session   38.           
Meeting Date: 07/28/2016  

2015 Capital Improvement Program Budget Transfers
Submitted For: Julie Kiley  Submitted By: Julie Kiley, County Auditor
Department: County Auditor
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss and take appropriate action to approve the attached transfers for the 2015 Capital Improvement Program.

Background
These transfers will place the funds in appropriate budgets per the discussion and approval of project budgets on
the July 12, 2016 agenda.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
2015 Capital Improvement Program Transfers

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Wendy Coco 07/21/2016 11:32 AM
Form Started By: Julie Kiley Started On: 07/21/2016 11:27 AM
Final Approval Date: 07/21/2016 





   

Commissioners Court - Special Session   39.           
Meeting Date: 07/28/2016  

2017 Capital Improvement Program Budget Allocations
Submitted For: Julie Kiley  Submitted By: Julie Kiley, County Auditor
Department: County Auditor
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss and take action to allocate funds from cash ending for the Fiscal Year 2017 Capital Improvement Program. 

Background
The court has been allocating a portion of cash ending above that amount retained by policy for Capital
Improvement Items. This item allocates a total of $8.8 million from cash ending which represents the annual
allocation of $6 million along with $2.8 million that was deposited in Fiscal Year 2015 related to a settlement
regarding repairs at the County Jail. Attached is a list that reflects the discussion on July 12, 2016. There is one
new project added which is the Cedar Park Annex highlighted in red.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
2017 Capital Improvement Program Budgets

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Wendy Coco 07/21/2016 11:52 AM
Form Started By: Julie Kiley Started On: 07/21/2016 11:32 AM
Final Approval Date: 07/21/2016 





   

Commissioners Court - Special Session   40.           
Meeting Date: 07/28/2016  

DWI/Drug Court Resolution for FY17
Submitted By: Melissa Ramos, Adult Probation
Department: Adult Probation
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on a resolution supporting the grant application for funding for the
Williamson County DWI/Drug Court from the Office of the Governor's Criminal Justice Division.

Background
The Williamson County DWI/Drug Court began in 2006 with a grant through the Office of the Governor,Criminal
Justice Division. The DWI/Drug Court was established to handle offenders charged with misdemeanor arrests
involving drugs and impaired driving. The court is operated by the Williamson County CSCD (Adult Probation) in
County Court at Law 2. Adult Probation provides any needed match for the program and no funds are requested
from the Williamson County budget. 

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
DWI/Drug Court Resolution

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Wendy Coco 07/18/2016 08:41 AM
Form Started By: Melissa Ramos Started On: 07/15/2016 01:32 PM
Final Approval Date: 07/18/2016 



OOG Sample Resolution  Page 1 of 1 

STATE OF TEXAS 
 

County of Williamson 
 

Know all men by these presents: 
 
That on the 26th day of July, 2016 the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas met in 
duly called session at the Williamson County Courthouse, 710 Main Street, Georgetown, Texas, 
with the following members present. 
 

Dan A. Gattis, County Judge 
Lisa L. Birkman, Commissioner Precinct One 
Cynthia P. Long, Commissioner Precinct Two 
Valarie Covey, Commissioner Precinct Three 
Ron Morrison, Commissioner Precinct Four 

 
And at said meeting, among other business, the Court considered the following: 
 
 

RESOLUTION 
 

WHEREAS, The Williamson County Commissioner’s Court finds it in the best interest of the citizens of 

Williamson County, that the Williamson County DWI/Drug Court be operated for the fiscal year 2017; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, Williamson County Commissioner’s Court agrees to provide applicable matching funds for 

the said project as required by the Office of the Governor, Criminal Justice Division grant application; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, Williamson County Commissioner’s Court agrees that in the event of loss or misuse of the 

Office of the Governor funds, Williamson County assures that the funds will be returned to the Office of 
the Governor in full. 

 
WHEREAS, Williamson County Commissioner’s Court designates the Director of Williamson County 

CSCD (Adult Probation Department) as the grantee’s authorized official.  The authorized official is given 
the power to apply for, accept, reject, alter or terminate the grant on behalf of the applicant agency. 

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that Williamson County Commissioner’s Court approves 

submission of the grant application for the Williamson County DWI/Drug Court to the Office of the 
Governor. 

 
 

Signed by: 
 
 

____________________________ 
 
Dan A. Gattis, County Judge 
Williamson County, Texas 

 
 

Passed and Approved this   26   of  July  ,  2016. 
 
 
 
Grant Number: ___1869511_____ 

 



   

Commissioners Court - Special Session   41.           
Meeting Date: 07/28/2016  

Veterans Court Resolution 
Submitted For: Cynthia Long  Submitted By: Kathy Pierce, Commissioner Pct. #2
Department: Commissioner Pct. #2
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on resolution for the Williamson County Veterans Treatment Court
grant. 

Background

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Veterans Court Resolution 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Rebecca Clemons 07/13/2016 03:39 PM
Form Started By: Kathy Pierce Started On: 07/13/2016 10:45 AM
Final Approval Date: 07/13/2016 





   

Commissioners Court - Special Session   42.           
Meeting Date: 07/28/2016  

Capital Area Housing Finance Corporation Resolution 
Submitted For: Cynthia Long  Submitted By: Kathy Pierce, Commissioner Pct. #2
Department: Commissioner Pct. #2
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on appointment of Greg Boatright to the Capital Area Housing
Finance Corporation Board of Directors for a four-year term beginning October 22, 2015 and ending October 21,
2019. 

Background

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Resolution of Appointment

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Wendy Coco 07/15/2016 08:38 AM
Form Started By: Kathy Pierce Started On: 07/14/2016 04:13 PM
Final Approval Date: 07/15/2016 



State of Texas 
County of Williamson  

Know all men by these presents: 
 

That on the 26th day of July, 2016 the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas met in 
duly called session at the Williamson County Courthouse, 710 Main Street, Georgetown, Texas, 
with the following members present:  

Dan A. Gattis, County Judge 
Lisa L. Birkman, Commissioner Precinct One 
Cynthia P. Long, Commissioner Precinct Two 
Valerie Covey, Commissioner Precinct Three 
Ron Morrison, Commissioner Precinct Four 

 
And at said meeting, among other business, the Court considered the following:  
 

RESOLUTION 

 
MAKING AN APPOINTMENT TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 

CAPITAL AREA HOUSING FINANCE CORPORATION 
 
WHEREAS, The Articles of Incorporation of the Capital Area Housing Finance 
Corporation authorize the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, to appoint 
one director of the Corporation; and  
 
WHEREAS, The term of the current director from Williamson County, Greg Boatright, 
expires October 21, 2015. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Commissioners Court of Williamson 
County, Texas, that: 

 
___________________________ is appointed to the Board of Directors of the 
Capital Area Housing Finance Corporation to serve a four-year term beginning 
October 22, 2015 and ending October 21, 2019, or until his successor is duly 
appointed and qualified. 
  

RESOLVED THIS _____ DAY OF ___________________, 2016. 
 

     
______________________________ 

     Dan A. Gattis – County Judge  
 
Attest: 
 
______________________ 
Nancy Rister - County Clerk 



   

Commissioners Court - Special Session   43.           
Meeting Date: 07/28/2016  

Helfand - Crisp
Submitted For: Dan Gattis  Submitted By: Hal Hawes, County Judge
Department: County Judge
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action regarding employment of the law firm of Lewis Brisbois Bisgaard &
Smith LLP to represent Williamson County and the Williamson County Sheriff's Office in relation to Civil Action No.
1:15-cv-431; Herman Crisp v. Williamson County, et al; in the United States District Court for the Western District of
Texas, Austin Division; and exemption of those attorney services from the competitive bid/proposal requirements of
the County Purchasing Act pursuant to the discretionary exemption for personal or professional services, as set
forth under Section 262.024(a)(4) of the Texas Local Government Code.

Background
Williamson County had originally retained the firm of Chamberlain Hrdlicka for representation in this lawsuit. The
attorney that was lead counsel for Williamson County, William “Bill” Helfand, has since changed firms and has
moved to the firm of Lewis Brisbois Bisgaard & Smith LLP. Thus, a new engagement letter is necessary in order to
continue to receive representation in this matter from Mr. Helfand. 

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Eng Letter Helfand Crisp

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Wendy Coco 07/15/2016 09:59 AM
Form Started By: Hal Hawes Started On: 07/15/2016 09:06 AM
Final Approval Date: 07/15/2016 



4839-0247-3268.1

Weslayan Tower, Suite 1400

24 Greenway Plaza

Houston, Texas 77046

Telephone: 713.659.6767

Fax: 713.759.6830

www.lewisbrisbois.com

WILLIAM S. HELFAND

DIRECT DIAL: 832.460.4614
BILL.HELFAND@LEWISBRISBOIS.COM

July 14, 2016

ATLANTA • BEAUMONT • BOSTON • CHARLESTON • CHICAGO • DALLAS • DENVER • FORT LAUDERDALE • HOUSTON • LA QUINTA • LAFAYETTE • LAS VEGAS • LOS ANGELES • MADISON COUNTY

NEW ORLEANS • NEW YORK • NEWARK • ORANGE COUNTY • PHOENIX • SACRAMENTO • SAN BERNARDINO • SAN DIEGO • SAN FRANCISCO • SEATTLE • TAMPA • TEMECULA • TUCSON

Judge Dan A. Gattis
Williamson County Courthouse
710 S. Main Street, Ste. 101
Georgetown, Texas 78626

Re: Representation of Williamson County in Civil Action No. 1:15-cv-431; Herman
Crisp v. Williamson County, et al; in the USDC-WD-Austin Division.

Dear Judge Gattis:

The purpose of this correspondence is to, upon execution: 1) establish an attorney
client relationship between Lewis Brisbois Bisgaard & Smith LLP (“LBBS” or “the Firm”)
and Williamson County, Texas (“County”); 2) define the scope of the Firm’s representation
of the County; and 3) establish other material terms and conditions of the representation,
including but not limited to the financial terms. This correspondence may be referred to as
“Engagement Letter” or the “Agreement.”

Please read the Engagement Letter with care. By executing this Engagement
Letter, You are entering into a contract that is binding on both the Firm and the County, on
the following terms and conditions.

1. PARTIES TO ENGAGEMENT LETTER

The parties to the Agreement are LBBS and Williamson County, Texas. No other person
or entity shall be entitled to claim an attorney client relationship with the Firm with respect
to the legal services to be provided pursuant to the Engagement Letter.

2. INCEPTION OF ATTORNEY CLIENT RELATIONSHIP

No attorney client relationship will exist between LBBS and Williamson County,
Texas until an authorized representative of the County has executed and returned the
Agreement.



Judge Gattis
Page 2

4839-0247-3268.1

LEWIS BRISBOIS BISGAARD & SMITH LLP • www.lewisbrisbois.com

3. SCOPE OF REPRESENTATION:

LBBS will perform only those legal services you assign to us. The general scope of
our representation will be to provide advice and counsel on legal matters addressed by the
County as well as representation in arbitrations and litigation as you may request in writing.
The County shall have no expectation the Firm will provide legal services beyond those set
forth herein, unless LBBS and the County amend the Engagement Letter in writing or
execute a separate agreement with respect to any such additional legal services.

4. DUTIES OF CLIENT/THE COUNTY

The County agrees to provide LBBS with complete and accurate information and
documents, cooperate, keep us informed of relevant developments, abide by this
Agreement, and pay our statements on time.

5. LEGAL FEES

We will charge the County for the services we provide under the Agreement based
on the amount of time we devote to the matter at the hourly rates for the particular
professionals as set forth on Exhibit B. We bill in minimum units of 6 minutes, or .1 hour.
We will staff the handling of the matter with the partners, associates, paralegals and/or
other personnel we believe appropriate, at the rate we establish for each such timekeeper,
although we will discuss the staffing of any matter with the County at any time, and will
accept the County’s input on staffing decisions.

6. COSTS, EXPENSES, AND OTHER CHARGES

We will incur on the County’s behalf various costs and expenses in performing legal
services under the Agreement. You agree to pay for those costs and expenses, in addition
to the hourly fees. In addition, it may become necessary to hire persons or entities outside
LBBS, including but not limited to consultants, experts, investigators, co-counsel, or other
professionals. We will select any consultants or investigators to be hired after consultation
with the County, and the County agrees to honor the terms and conditions of any
agreement that we enter into on the County’s behalf, including any requirement that the
County pay such third-parties directly for their work, with any such outside person or entity.



Judge Gattis
Page 3

4839-0247-3268.1

LEWIS BRISBOIS BISGAARD & SMITH LLP • www.lewisbrisbois.com

7. PERIODIC STATEMENTS AND BILLING TERMS

Our practice is to send periodic statements for services rendered and for costs
incurred during the previous month or months on the County’s behalf. The detail in the
periodic statement will inform the County of both the nature and progress of work and of
the fees and costs billed for such services.

The reduced rates we have provided are based upon the County’s promise to
promptly pay all statements, no later than 30 days after receipt. Delays in payment may
cause the County to lose this preferred rate structure.

We do our best to see that our clients are satisfied not only with our services, but
also with the reasonableness of the fees and costs. Therefore, while we urge the County
to raise any question about or objection to a fee statement, the County should do so
promptly, in writing, within thirty (30) days receipt of the invoice. If the timely objects in
writing to a portion of a statement, the County will pay the remainder of the statement
which is not in dispute. We agree to accept such partial payment without claiming the
County has waived its right to contest the unpaid portion of the bill. Failure to pay the
undisputed amount of any invoice in full promptly shall constitute grounds for termination of
this Engagement Letter and withdrawal of the Firm from representation, as more fully
discussed in Paragraph 11 ahead. Unpaid, uncontested statements may be subject to an
interest charge, may subject the County payment of our attorney’s fees and costs to
collect, and may lead to our withdrawal from the County’s representation.

8. WAIVER OF GOVERNMENTAL IMMUNITY

To the extent necessary to allow LBBS to collect on its statements, including any
interest and/or attorney’s fees and costs related to such collection efforts, the County
waives any claim of immunity from suit and/or immunity from liability that might otherwise
apply to a claim for collection of a sworn account, quantum meruit, or breach of contract
and the County further consents to all remedies that may be available under Texas law
including reasonable and necessary attorney’s fees related to any collection efforts LBBS
reasonably incurs.

9. TERMINATION OF THE FIRM BY YOU

You shall have the right to terminate this Engagement Letter and discharge the Firm
at any time. However, to be effective, termination or discharge of the Firm must be in
writing. In such event, the County authorizes the Firm to make and retain a duplicate of
any file materials we may have.

The County shall bear all reasonable costs of transferring the new matter to counsel
chosen by it.



Judge Gattis
Page 4

4839-0247-3268.1

LEWIS BRISBOIS BISGAARD & SMITH LLP • www.lewisbrisbois.com

The attorney client relationship between the Firm and the County shall end upon
discharge of the Firm by the County pursuant to this paragraph. However, such discharge
shall not relieve the County of any obligation to pay fees and costs incurred prior to the
discharge, as well as any fees and costs expended after the discharge to the extent
reasonably required, in the Firm’s sole discretion, to protect the County’s interests,
including those incurred prior to a court order substituting new counsel or permitting
withdrawal of the Firm from any litigation.

10.WITHDRAWAL FROM REPRESENTATION BY THE FIRM

The Firm shall be, in the exercise of its discretion, permitted to withdraw from
representation whenever required or not prohibited from doing so by law or court order. In
addition, the Firm may withdraw as counsel at any time if withdrawal can be accomplished
without material adverse effects on the interests of the County.

11.DOCUMENT STORAGE POLICY

On termination of a matter, the Firm will maintain file documents for 5 years, or any
alternate period as determined by Texas law. Upon termination of any matter, the County
has the right to take possession of the file. If the County chooses to take possession of the
file materials, the firm may copy all or any part of the file as the County may direct, at the
County’s cost.

12.CHOICE OF LAW/FORUM SELECTION

This Agreement is deemed to have been executed, and is intended to be performed
in the state of Texas, subject to its laws, regardless of whether services are actually
rendered outside of the State. Any dispute arising from this agreement shall be governed
by the laws of the state of Texas. The venue for the judicial resolution of such dispute shall
be proper only within the state of Texas.

13.NO PROMISES OR GUARANTEES

You understand that LBBS has made no representation or guarantee concerning
the outcome of any matter on which we may work on behalf of the County.

14.LEGAL MALPRACTICE INSURANCE

As of the date of this letter, Lewis Brisbois Bisgaard & Smith LLP has errors and
omissions (legal malpractice) insurance applicable to the services to be rendered pursuant
to this Agreement, subject to any applicable deductible or self-insured retention.



Judge Gattis
Page 5

4839-0247-3268.1

LEWIS BRISBOIS BISGAARD & SMITH LLP • www.lewisbrisbois.com

15.MODIFICATION IN WRITING ONLY

While LBBS may, with prior written authorization notice to the client, change the
rates on Exhibit B, no change to this Agreement shall be effective unless and until
confirmed in writing and signed and acknowledged by the Firm and the County with
express reference to this Agreement. This Engagement Letter embodies the whole
agreement of the parties. There are no promises, terms, conditions or obligations other
than those contained herein, and this contract shall supersede all previous
communications, representations, or other agreements, either oral or written, between the
Firm and You.

16.TEXAS STATE BAR STATEMENT

The State Bar of Texas investigates and prosecutes professional misconduct
committed by Texas attorneys. Although not every complaint against or dispute with a
lawyer involves professional misconduct, the State Bar Office of General Counsel will
provide you with information about how to file complaint. For more information, please call
1-800-932-1900. This is a toll free call.

17.COUNTERPARTS AND FACSIMILES EFFECTIVE

This Agreement may be signed in counterpart. Facsimile or imaged signature
pages executed by the Firm or You shall be effective as original signatures.

Thank you for choosing Lewis Brisbois Bisgaard & Smith LLP as counsel for the
County. We look forward to working with the County and thank you once again for the
opportunity to serve the County.

Accepted and agreed by
Williamson County, Texas
through its authorized representative:

_____________________________
Judge Dan Gattis

Dated:

Best regards,

William S. Helfand
LEWIS BRISBOIS BISGAARD & SMITH LLP



Judge Gattis
Page 6

4839-0247-3268.1

LEWIS BRISBOIS BISGAARD & SMITH LLP • www.lewisbrisbois.com

SCHEDULE “B”:

RATE SCHEDULE AND COST/EXPENSE ITEMS SCHEDULE

A. Identification

Client(s): Williamson County, Texas

Matter: Civil Action No. 1:15-cv-431; Herman Crisp v. Williamson County, et al; in the
USDC-WD-Austin Division.

B. Hourly rates for legal personnel

$340 to $390 Partners, depending upon experience

$230 to $275 Associates, depending upon experience

$190 Paralegals

C. Standard charges

We charge for our time in minimum units of .1 hours (6 minutes).

D. Costs and expenses incurred on Your behalf may include but are not limited to:

Process server fees At cost
Filing fees or other fees fixed by law or
assessed by public agencies

At cost

Meals At cost
Parking At cost

Travel expenses including e.g., lodging,
air fare, taxis, public transportation, car
rental, and meals

At cost

Facsimiles $.25 per page
Deposition costs At cost
Experts, consultants or investigators At cost
Computer Research At cost, plus facilities surcharge

(approximately $5.00/minute)
Word processing support $35.00 per hour
Mileage At the Internal Revenue Service’s

business mileage reimbursement
guidelines



Judge Gattis
Page 7

4839-0247-3268.1

LEWIS BRISBOIS BISGAARD & SMITH LLP • www.lewisbrisbois.com

Messenger and other delivery fees At cost
Photocopying and other reproduction
costs

In-house - $0.10 per page
Outside service-At cost

After hours building services (when
dictated by special client need)

At cost



   

Commissioners Court - Special Session   44.           
Meeting Date: 07/28/2016  

Helfand Belcher
Submitted For: Dan Gattis  Submitted By: Hal Hawes, County Judge
Department: County Judge
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action regarding employment of the law firm of Lewis Brisbois Bisgaard &
Smith LLP to represent Williamson County and the Williamson County Sheriff's Office in relation to in relation to the
claims of Royce Belcher; and exemption of those attorney services from the competitive bid/proposal requirements
of the County Purchasing Act pursuant to the discretionary exemption for personal or professional services, as set
forth under Section 262.024(a)(4) of the Texas Local Government Code.

Background

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Eng Letter Helfand Belcher

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Wendy Coco 07/15/2016 09:59 AM
Form Started By: Hal Hawes Started On: 07/15/2016 09:58 AM
Final Approval Date: 07/15/2016 



4822-3951-3397.1

Weslayan Tower, Suite 1400

24 Greenway Plaza

Houston, Texas 77046

Telephone: 713.659.6767

Fax: 713.759.6830

www.lewisbrisbois.com

WILLIAM S. HELFAND

DIRECT DIAL: 832.460.4614
BILL.HELFAND@LEWISBRISBOIS.COM

July 14, 2016

ATLANTA • BEAUMONT • BOSTON • CHARLESTON • CHICAGO • DALLAS • DENVER • FORT LAUDERDALE • HOUSTON • LA QUINTA • LAFAYETTE • LAS VEGAS • LOS ANGELES • MADISON COUNTY

NEW ORLEANS • NEW YORK • NEWARK • ORANGE COUNTY • PHOENIX • SACRAMENTO • SAN BERNARDINO • SAN DIEGO • SAN FRANCISCO • SEATTLE • TAMPA • TEMECULA • TUCSON

Judge Dan A. Gattis
Williamson County Courthouse
710 S. Main Street, Ste. 101
Georgetown, Texas 78626

Re: Representation of Williamson County in relation to the claims of Royce
Belcher.

Dear Judge Gattis:

The purpose of this correspondence is to, upon execution: 1) establish an attorney
client relationship between Lewis Brisbois Bisgaard & Smith LLP (“LBBS” or “the Firm”)
and Williamson County, Texas (“County”); 2) define the scope of the Firm’s representation
of the County; and 3) establish other material terms and conditions of the representation,
including but not limited to the financial terms. This correspondence may be referred to as
“Engagement Letter” or the “Agreement.”

Please read the Engagement Letter with care. By executing this Engagement
Letter, You are entering into a contract that is binding on both the Firm and the County, on
the following terms and conditions.

1. PARTIES TO ENGAGEMENT LETTER

The parties to the Agreement are LBBS and Williamson County, Texas. No other person
or entity shall be entitled to claim an attorney client relationship with the Firm with respect
to the legal services to be provided pursuant to the Engagement Letter.

2. INCEPTION OF ATTORNEY CLIENT RELATIONSHIP

No attorney client relationship will exist between LBBS and Williamson County,
Texas until an authorized representative of the County has executed and returned the
Agreement.



Judge Gattis
Page 2

4822-3951-3397.1

LEWIS BRISBOIS BISGAARD & SMITH LLP • www.lewisbrisbois.com

3. SCOPE OF REPRESENTATION:

LBBS will perform only those legal services you assign to us. The general scope of
our representation will be to provide advice and counsel on legal matters addressed by the
County as well as representation in arbitrations and litigation as you may request in writing.
The County shall have no expectation the Firm will provide legal services beyond those set
forth herein, unless LBBS and the County amend the Engagement Letter in writing or
execute a separate agreement with respect to any such additional legal services.

4. DUTIES OF CLIENT/THE COUNTY

The County agrees to provide LBBS with complete and accurate information and
documents, cooperate, keep us informed of relevant developments, abide by this
Agreement, and pay our statements on time.

5. LEGAL FEES

We will charge the County for the services we provide under the Agreement based
on the amount of time we devote to the matter at the hourly rates for the particular
professionals as set forth on Exhibit B. We bill in minimum units of 6 minutes, or .1 hour.
We will staff the handling of the matter with the partners, associates, paralegals and/or
other personnel we believe appropriate, at the rate we establish for each such timekeeper,
although we will discuss the staffing of any matter with the County at any time, and will
accept the County’s input on staffing decisions.

6. COSTS, EXPENSES, AND OTHER CHARGES

We will incur on the County’s behalf various costs and expenses in performing legal
services under the Agreement. You agree to pay for those costs and expenses, in addition
to the hourly fees. In addition, it may become necessary to hire persons or entities outside
LBBS, including but not limited to consultants, experts, investigators, co-counsel, or other
professionals. We will select any consultants or investigators to be hired after consultation
with the County, and the County agrees to honor the terms and conditions of any
agreement that we enter into on the County’s behalf, including any requirement that the
County pay such third-parties directly for their work, with any such outside person or entity.



Judge Gattis
Page 3

4822-3951-3397.1

LEWIS BRISBOIS BISGAARD & SMITH LLP • www.lewisbrisbois.com

7. PERIODIC STATEMENTS AND BILLING TERMS

Our practice is to send periodic statements for services rendered and for costs
incurred during the previous month or months on the County’s behalf. The detail in the
periodic statement will inform the County of both the nature and progress of work and of
the fees and costs billed for such services.

The reduced rates we have provided are based upon the County’s promise to
promptly pay all statements, no later than 30 days after receipt. Delays in payment may
cause the County to lose this preferred rate structure.

We do our best to see that our clients are satisfied not only with our services, but
also with the reasonableness of the fees and costs. Therefore, while we urge the County
to raise any question about or objection to a fee statement, the County should do so
promptly, in writing, within thirty (30) days receipt of the invoice. If the timely objects in
writing to a portion of a statement, the County will pay the remainder of the statement
which is not in dispute. We agree to accept such partial payment without claiming the
County has waived its right to contest the unpaid portion of the bill. Failure to pay the
undisputed amount of any invoice in full promptly shall constitute grounds for termination of
this Engagement Letter and withdrawal of the Firm from representation, as more fully
discussed in Paragraph 11 ahead. Unpaid, uncontested statements may be subject to an
interest charge, may subject the County payment of our attorney’s fees and costs to
collect, and may lead to our withdrawal from the County’s representation.

8. WAIVER OF GOVERNMENTAL IMMUNITY

To the extent necessary to allow LBBS to collect on its statements, including any
interest and/or attorney’s fees and costs related to such collection efforts, the County
waives any claim of immunity from suit and/or immunity from liability that might otherwise
apply to a claim for collection of a sworn account, quantum meruit, or breach of contract
and the County further consents to all remedies that may be available under Texas law
including reasonable and necessary attorney’s fees related to any collection efforts LBBS
reasonably incurs.

9. TERMINATION OF THE FIRM BY YOU

You shall have the right to terminate this Engagement Letter and discharge the Firm
at any time. However, to be effective, termination or discharge of the Firm must be in
writing. In such event, the County authorizes the Firm to make and retain a duplicate of
any file materials we may have.

The County shall bear all reasonable costs of transferring the new matter to counsel
chosen by it.



Judge Gattis
Page 4

4822-3951-3397.1

LEWIS BRISBOIS BISGAARD & SMITH LLP • www.lewisbrisbois.com

The attorney client relationship between the Firm and the County shall end upon
discharge of the Firm by the County pursuant to this paragraph. However, such discharge
shall not relieve the County of any obligation to pay fees and costs incurred prior to the
discharge, as well as any fees and costs expended after the discharge to the extent
reasonably required, in the Firm’s sole discretion, to protect the County’s interests,
including those incurred prior to a court order substituting new counsel or permitting
withdrawal of the Firm from any litigation.

10.WITHDRAWAL FROM REPRESENTATION BY THE FIRM

The Firm shall be, in the exercise of its discretion, permitted to withdraw from
representation whenever required or not prohibited from doing so by law or court order. In
addition, the Firm may withdraw as counsel at any time if withdrawal can be accomplished
without material adverse effects on the interests of the County.

11.DOCUMENT STORAGE POLICY

On termination of a matter, the Firm will maintain file documents for 5 years, or any
alternate period as determined by Texas law. Upon termination of any matter, the County
has the right to take possession of the file. If the County chooses to take possession of the
file materials, the firm may copy all or any part of the file as the County may direct, at the
County’s cost.

12.CHOICE OF LAW/FORUM SELECTION

This Agreement is deemed to have been executed, and is intended to be performed
in the state of Texas, subject to its laws, regardless of whether services are actually
rendered outside of the State. Any dispute arising from this agreement shall be governed
by the laws of the state of Texas. The venue for the judicial resolution of such dispute shall
be proper only within the state of Texas.

13.NO PROMISES OR GUARANTEES

You understand that LBBS has made no representation or guarantee concerning
the outcome of any matter on which we may work on behalf of the County.

14.LEGAL MALPRACTICE INSURANCE

As of the date of this letter, Lewis Brisbois Bisgaard & Smith LLP has errors and
omissions (legal malpractice) insurance applicable to the services to be rendered pursuant
to this Agreement, subject to any applicable deductible or self-insured retention.



Judge Gattis
Page 5

4822-3951-3397.1

LEWIS BRISBOIS BISGAARD & SMITH LLP • www.lewisbrisbois.com

15.MODIFICATION IN WRITING ONLY

While LBBS may, with prior written authorization notice to the client, change the
rates on Exhibit B, no change to this Agreement shall be effective unless and until
confirmed in writing and signed and acknowledged by the Firm and the County with
express reference to this Agreement. This Engagement Letter embodies the whole
agreement of the parties. There are no promises, terms, conditions or obligations other
than those contained herein, and this contract shall supersede all previous
communications, representations, or other agreements, either oral or written, between the
Firm and You.

16.TEXAS STATE BAR STATEMENT

The State Bar of Texas investigates and prosecutes professional misconduct
committed by Texas attorneys. Although not every complaint against or dispute with a
lawyer involves professional misconduct, the State Bar Office of General Counsel will
provide you with information about how to file complaint. For more information, please call
1-800-932-1900. This is a toll free call.

17.COUNTERPARTS AND FACSIMILES EFFECTIVE

This Agreement may be signed in counterpart. Facsimile or imaged signature
pages executed by the Firm or You shall be effective as original signatures.

Thank you for choosing Lewis Brisbois Bisgaard & Smith LLP as counsel for the
County. We look forward to working with the County and thank you once again for the
opportunity to serve the County.

Accepted and agreed by
Williamson County, Texas
through its authorized representative:

_____________________________
Judge Dan Gattis

Dated:

Best regards,

William S. Helfand
LEWIS BRISBOIS BISGAARD & SMITH LLP



Judge Gattis
Page 6

4822-3951-3397.1

LEWIS BRISBOIS BISGAARD & SMITH LLP • www.lewisbrisbois.com

SCHEDULE “B”:

RATE SCHEDULE AND COST/EXPENSE ITEMS SCHEDULE

A. Identification

Client(s): Williamson County, Texas

Matter: Representation of Williamson County in relation to the claims of Royce
Belcher.

B. Hourly rates for legal personnel

$340 to $390 Partners, depending upon experience

$230 to $275 Associates, depending upon experience

$190 Paralegals

C. Standard charges

We charge for our time in minimum units of .1 hours (6 minutes).

D. Costs and expenses incurred on Your behalf may include but are not limited to:

Process server fees At cost
Filing fees or other fees fixed by law or
assessed by public agencies

At cost

Meals At cost
Parking At cost
Travel expenses including e.g., lodging,
air fare, taxis, public transportation, car
rental, and meals

At cost

Facsimiles $.25 per page
Deposition costs At cost
Experts, consultants or investigators At cost
Computer Research At cost, plus facilities surcharge

(approximately $5.00/minute)
Word processing support $35.00 per hour
Mileage At the Internal Revenue Service’s

business mileage reimbursement
guidelines



Judge Gattis
Page 7

4822-3951-3397.1

LEWIS BRISBOIS BISGAARD & SMITH LLP • www.lewisbrisbois.com

Messenger and other delivery fees At cost
Photocopying and other reproduction
costs

In-house - $0.10 per page
Outside service-At cost

After hours building services (when
dictated by special client need)

At cost



   

Commissioners Court - Special Session   45.           
Meeting Date: 07/28/2016  

Bluebonnet Eas
Submitted For: Dan Gattis  Submitted By: Hal Hawes, County Judge
Department: County Judge
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving and granting an Abutting Easement to Bluebonnet
Electric Cooperative, Inc. in relation to a 1.144 acre tract of land in Precinct 4 that is situated adjacent to the First
Shiloh Baptist Church.

Background
The Abutting Easement only provides Bluebonnet Electric with the ability to enter the easement area in order to
maintain, repair, upgrade, etc. the electric facilities that are to be placed on the the adjacent property that is owned
by First Shiloh Baptist Church. There will not be any facilities in, on and under the county’s property. The county will
continue to be able to use the easement area.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Bluebonnet Shiloh Easement

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Wendy Coco 07/18/2016 08:41 AM
Form Started By: Hal Hawes Started On: 07/15/2016 10:18 AM
Final Approval Date: 07/18/2016 













   

Commissioners Court - Special Session   46.           
Meeting Date: 07/28/2016  

CAMPO AG
Submitted For: Dan Gattis  Submitted By: Hal Hawes, County Judge
Department: County Judge
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on a Fiscal Agreement between the Capital Area Metropolitan
Organization (CAMPO) and Williamson County, Texas (Williamson County), which sets out the management roles
and responsibilities between CAMPO and Williamson County required in rendering fiscal management and payroll
processing for CAMPO. 

Background

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Fiscal Agreement
CAMPO Resolution

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Wendy Coco 07/19/2016 03:46 PM
Form Started By: Hal Hawes Started On: 07/19/2016 11:40 AM
Final Approval Date: 07/19/2016 





























   

Commissioners Court - Special Session   47.           
Meeting Date: 07/28/2016  

Google maps terms of use agreement with ITS
Submitted By: Richard Semple, Information Technology
Department: Information Technology
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on an agreement regarding Terms of Use with Google for
participation in pilot beta program for GIS Base Map Data Upload service in order to support operations of the
Williamson County Geographic Information Systems ("GIS") Division.

Background
There is no cost for this service and provides a value to citizens by helping to ensure that Google Maps is updated
with the latest data from the County's GIS department. This is a terms-of-use agreement that has been approved
by Legal.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Google Terms

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Hal Hawes Hal Hawes 07/21/2016 08:38 AM
County Judge Exec Asst. Wendy Coco 07/21/2016 11:32 AM
Form Started By: Richard Semple Started On: 07/20/2016 02:43 PM
Final Approval Date: 07/21/2016 



Your use of the Base Map Data Upload tool is subject to the Google Terms of Service and Privacy Policy, 
as well as the following additional terms:  

1. If you are accepting these terms on behalf of your employer or another entity, you represent 
and warrant that: (i) you have full legal authority to bind your employer or such entity to these 
terms, (ii) you have read and understand these terms, and (iii) that you agree, on behalf of the 
party that you represent, to these terms. If you don't have the legal authority to bind, please do 
not accept these Terms of Use by checking the box below.  

2. When you upload map data using the Base Map Data Upload, you grant to Google a royalty-free, 
perpetual, irrevocable, nonexclusive, worldwide license to use that map data in connection with 
Google products and services. You represent and warrant that you have and will retain all 
necessary rights to provide that license to Google.  

3. Once your map data has been uploaded, you will not be able to delete it from Google's systems 
or require Google to stop using it.  

4. You understand that Google may internally associate your map data with your Google Account 
and the contact information provided above. Deleting your Google Account will not 
automatically delete that contact information. In order to delete that contact information, you 
must use the "Send Feedback" function on your Partner Dash page. Even after deletion of that 
contact information and your Google Account, Google may continue to internally associate your 
organization name with your map data.  

 

https://www.google.com/intl/en/policies/terms/
https://www.google.com/intl/en/policies/privacy/
https://partnerdash.google.com/


   

Commissioners Court - Special Session   48.           
Meeting Date: 07/28/2016  

FEMA Project Number PA-06-TX-4223-PW02027 Project Title: WIL036C Driveway Repairs
Submitted For: Jarred Thomas  Submitted By: Cynthia Hood, Emergency Management
Department: Emergency Management
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on the acceptance of FEMA DR-4223 disaster recovery grant
funding. Project Title: WIL036C Driveway Repairs.

Background
Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) number: 97.036 FEMA Project Number PA-06-TX-4223-PW02027
Project Title: WIL036C Driveway Repairs, Period of Performance 05/29/2015 to 11/29/2016 .This disaster recovery
grant is a 75% federal share and 25% local share for damages sustained during the May Floods of 2015. This
project has been authorized by FEMA and approved by the Auditor’s Office, Road and Bridge, and Emergency
Management.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Terms and Conditions
WIL036C-PW02027 Subgrant Award Letter

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Rebecca Clemons 07/13/2016 03:39 PM
Emergency Management (Originator) Cynthia Hood 07/15/2016 11:26 AM
Form Started By: Cynthia Hood Started On: 07/11/2016 09:39 AM
Final Approval Date: 07/15/2016 



  
Page 1 of 18 

 

GRANT TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
This Grant Agreement (consisting of FEMA Disaster Award and these Terms and Conditions) is 
made and entered into by and between the Department of Public Safety / Texas Division of 
Emergency Management, an agency of the State of Texas, hereinafter referred to as 
"DPS/TDEM," and the funds recipient, hereinafter referred to as the "Applicant” or 
“Subrecipient.”  Furthermore, DPS/TDEM and the Subrecipient are collectively hereinafter 
referred to as the “Parties.”  
 
Subrecipient may not assign or transfer any interest in this Grant without the express, prior 
written consent of DPS/TDEM. If Subrecipient issues subawards as part of this Grant project, 
Subrecipient shall include and require its subawardees to comply with the terms and conditions 
of this Grant. 
 
The term "Subrecipient agreement funds" as used in this Grant means funds provided by 
DPS/TDEM under the United States Department of Homeland Security (DHS) Federal 
Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) grant programs (also referred to herein as 
DHS/FEMA).  The term "Subrecipient's funds" or match funds as used in this Grant means 
funds provided by the Subrecipient. 
 
A. Standard of Performance. Subrecipient shall perform all activities as approved by 

DPS/TDEM.  Any change to a project shall receive prior written approval by TDEM and, if 
required, by FEMA. Subrecipient shall perform all activities in accordance with all terms, 
provisions and requirements set forth in this Grant, including but not limited to the following 
Exhibits: 
1. Assurances – Non-Construction Programs, hereinafter referred to as “Exhibit A”  
2. Assurances – Construction Programs, hereinafter referred to as “Exhibit B” 
3. Certifications for Grant Agreements, hereinafter referred to as “Exhibit C” 
4. State of Texas Assurances, hereinafter referred to as “Exhibit D”  
5. Environmental Review Certification, hereinafter referred to as “Exhibit E” 
6. Additional Grant Conditions, hereinafter referred to as “Exhibit F” 
7. Additional Grant Certifications, hereinafter referred to as “Exhibit G” 

 
B. Failure to Perform.  In the event Subrecipient fails to implement the project(s) entered and 

approved in the DPS/TDEM web-based grants management system, or comply with any 
provision of this Grant, Subrecipient shall be liable to DPS/TDEM for an amount not to 
exceed the award amount of this Grant and may be barred from applying for or receiving 
additional DHS/FEMA grant program funds or any other grant program funds administered 
by DPS until repayment to DPS/TDEM is made and any other compliance or audit finding is 
satisfactorily resolved, in addition to any other remedy specified in this Grant.  Failure to 
timely implement projects may reduce future funding in additional DHS/FEMA and/or other 
grant programs administered by DPS. 

 
C. Funding Obligations. DPS/TDEM shall not be liable to Subrecipient for any costs incurred 

by Subrecipient that are not allowable costs. 
1. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Grant, the total of all payments and other 

obligations incurred by DPS/TDEM under this Grant shall not exceed the Total Award 
Amount listed on the Grant Subrecipient Award. 

2. Subrecipient shall contribute the match funds listed on the Grant Subrecipient Award.  



  
Page 2 of 18 

 

3. Subrecipient shall refund to DPS/TDEM any sum of these Grant funds that has been 
determined by DPS/TDEM to be an overpayment to Subrecipient or that DPS/TDEM 
determines has not been spent by Subrecipient in accordance with this Grant.  No 
refund payment(s) shall be made from local, state or federal Grant funds unless 
repayment with Grant funds is specifically permitted by statute or 
regulation.  Subrecipient shall make such refund to DPS/TDEM within thirty (30) 
calendar days after  

4. DPS/TDEM requests such refund. 
 
D. Performance Period.  The performance period for this Grant is listed on the Grant 

Subrecipient Award letter.  All projects shall be completed within the performance 
period AND all reimbursement requests shall be submitted to DPS/TDEM within 60 
days for the end of the performance period.  Subrecipient shall have expended all Grant 
funds and submitted reimbursement requests, invoices and any supporting documentation 
to DPS/TDEM within 60 days of the end of the performance period. DPS/TDEM shall not be 
obligated to reimburse expenses incurred after the performance period or submitted after 
the deadline. 

 
E. Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principals and Audit Requirements.  

Except as specifically modified by law or this Grant, Subrecipient shall administer this Grant 
through compliance with the most recent version of all applicable laws and regulations, 
including but not limited to DHS program legislation, Federal awarding agency regulations, 
and the terms and conditions of this Grant.  A non-exclusive list is provided below [not all 
may apply in every projects]: 
• Public Law 93-288, as amended (Stafford Act) 
• 44 CFR, Emergency Management and Assistance 
• Disaster Mitigation Act of 2000 
• OMB Regulations 2 CFR, Grant and Agreements  
• Executive Order 11988, Floodplain Management 
• Executive Order 11990, Protection of Wetlands 
• Executive Order 12372, Intergovernmental Review of Programs and Activities 
• Executive Order 12549, Debarment and Suspension 
• Executive Order 12612, Federalism 
• Executive Order 12699, Seismic Design 
• Executive Order 12898, Environmental Justice 
• Coastal Barrier Resources Act, Public Law 97-348 
• Single Audit Act, Public Law 98-502 
• Sandy Recovery Improvement Act publications 
• 16 U.S.C. § 470, National Historic Preservation Act 
• 16 U.S.C. § 1531, Endangered Species Act References 
• FEMA program publications, guidance and policies 

 
F. State Requirements for Grants.  Subrecipient shall comply with all other federal, state, and 

local laws and regulations applicable to this Grant including but not limited to the laws and 
the regulations promulgated in Texas Government Code, Chapter 783, Uniform Grant and 
Contract Management, (UGMS) at: 

 http://www.window.state.tx.us/procurement/catrad/ugms.pdf  
 and the program State Administrative Plan, available at: 
 http://www.txdps.state.tx.us/dem/GrantsResources/index.htm.  

http://www.window.state.tx.us/procurement/catrad/ugms.pdf
http://www.txdps.state.tx.us/dem/GrantsResources/index.htm


  
Page 3 of 18 

 

 Subrecipient shall, in addition to the assurances and certifications, comply and require each 
of its subcontractors employed in the completion of the project to comply with all applicable 
statutes, regulations, executive orders, OMB circulars, terms and conditions of this Grant 
and the approved application. 

Grant funds may not be awarded to or expended by any entity which performs political 
polling.  This prohibition does not apply to a poll conducted by an academic institution as 
part of the institution’s academic mission that is not conducted for the benefit of a particular 
candidate or party. 

Grant funds may not be expended by a unit of local government unless the following 
limitations and reporting requirements are satisfied:  

1. Texas General Appropriations Act, Art. IX, Parts 2 and 3, except there is no 
requirement for increased salaries for local government employees;  

2. Texas Government Code Sections 556.004, 556.005, and 556.006, which prohibits 
using any money or vehicle to support the candidacy of any person for office, 
influencing positively or negatively the payment, loan, or gift to a person or political 
organization for a political purpose, and using Grant funds to influence the passage 
or defeat of legislation including not assisting with the funding of a lobbyist, or using 
Grant funds to pay dues to an organization with a registered lobbyist; 

3. Texas Government Code Sections 2113.012 and 2113.101, which prohibits using 
Grant funds to compensate any employee who uses alcoholic beverages on active 
duty and Subrecipient may not use Grant funds to purchase an alcoholic beverage 
and may not pay or reimburse any travel expense for an alcoholic beverage; 

4. Texas General Appropriations Act, Art. IX, Section 6.13, which requires Subrecipient 
to make every effort to attain key performance target levels associated with this 
Grant, including performance milestones, milestone time frames, and related 
performance reporting requirements; and   

5. General Appropriations Act, Art. IX, Sections 7.01 and 7.02, and Texas Government 
Code §2102.0091, which requires that this Grant may only be expended if 
Subrecipient timely completes and files its reports. 

 
G. Restrictions and General Conditions.  
 

1. Use of Funds.  DHS/FEMA Grant funds may only be used for the purposes set forth in 
this Grant, and shall be consistent with the statutory authority for this Grant.  Grant funds 
may not be used for matching funds for other Federal grants/cooperative agreements, 
lobbying, or intervention in Federal regulatory or adjudicatory proceedings.  In addition, 
Federal funds may not be used to sue the Federal government or any other government 
entity. 

2. Federal Employee Prohibition.  Federal employees are prohibited from serving in any 
capacity (paid or unpaid) on any proposal submitted under this Grant.  Federal 
employees may not receive funds under this Grant. 

3. Points of Contacts.   Within 30 calendar days of any change, Subrecipient shall notify 
DPS/TDEM of any change or correction to the Designation of Applicant’s Agent, chief 
elected official, program, and/or financial points of contact in the DPS/TDEM grant 
management system.  

4. DUNS Number. Subrecipient confirms its Data Universal Numbering Systems (DUNS) 
Number is the number listed on this Grant.  The DUNS Number is the nine digit number 



  
Page 4 of 18 

 

established and assigned by Dun and Bradstreet, Inc., at 866/705-5711 or 
http://fedgov.dnb.com/webform 

5. Central Contractor Registration and Universal Identifier Requirements.   Subrecipient 
maintains that it has registered on the System for Award Management (SAM) at 
www.sam.gov or other federally established site for contractor registration, and entered 
DPS/TDEM-required information.  Subrecipient shall keep current, and then review and 
update the information at least annually.  Subrecipient shall keep information current in 
the SAM database until the later of when it submits this Grant's final financial report or 
receives final Grant award payment. Subrecipient agrees that it shall not make any 
subaward agreement or contract related to this Grant without first obtaining the 
vendor/subawardee's mandatory DUNS number. See Section §200.32 of OMB 2 C.F.R.  

6. Reporting Total Compensation of Subrecipient Executives. 2 C.F.R. §200.331; see 
FEMA Information Bulletin 350.  
a. Applicability and what to report: Subrecipient shall report whether Subrecipient 

received $25 million or more in Federal procurement contracts or financial assistance 
subject to the Transparency Act per 2 C.F.R. §200.331.  Subrecipient shall report 
whether 80% or more of Subrecipient’s annual gross revenues were from Federal 
procurement contracts or Federal financial assistance.  If Subrecipient answers “yes” 
to both questions, Subrecipient shall report, along with Subrecipient's DUNS number, 
the names and total compensation (see 17 C.F.R. §229.402(c)(2)) for each of 
Subrecipient’s five most highly compensated executives for the preceding completed 
fiscal year.   

b. Where and when to report: Subrecipient shall report executive total compensation at 
www.sam.gov or other federally established replacement site.  By signing this Grant, 
Subrecipient certifies that, if required, Subrecipient's jurisdiction has already 
registered, entered the required information, and shall keep information in the SAM 
database current, and update the information at least annually for each year until the 
later of when the jurisdiction submits its final financial report or receives final 
payment. Subrecipient agrees that it shall not make any subaward agreement or 
contract without first obtaining the subawardee's mandatory DUNS number.  

7. Debarment and Suspension.  Subrecipient shall comply with Executive Order 12549 and 
12689, which provide protection against waste, fraud, and abuse by debarring or 
suspending those persons deemed irresponsible in their dealings with the Federal 
government. 

8. Direct Deposit.  If Subrecipient has not received reimbursements from DPS/TDEM within 
the past eleven (11) months (prior to date of award), it shall forward a new/updated 
direct deposit form to DPS/TDEM.  Completed direct deposit forms from Subrecipient 
shall be emailed to TDEM project officer. The email subject line and attachment name 
shall include the subrecipient name and identify the document attached (i.e. “Sample 
County DD form”). The direct deposit form is currently available at 
http://www.window.state.tx.us/taxinfo/taxforms/74-176.pdf.   

9. Property Management and Inventory.  Subrecipient shall maintain property/inventory 
records which, at minimum, shall include a description of the property, a serial number or 
other identification number, the source of property, who holds title, the acquisition date, 
the cost of the property, the percentage of Federal participation in the cost of the 
property, the location, use and condition of the property, and any ultimate disposition 
data including the date of disposal and sale price of the property  Subrecipient shall 
develop and implement a control system to prevent loss, damage or theft of property and 
Subrecipient shall investigate and document any loss, damage or theft of property 
funded under this Grant. 

http://fedgov.dnb.com/webform
http://www.sam.gov
http://www.sam.gov
http://www.window.state.tx.us/taxinfo/taxforms/74-176.pdf


  
Page 5 of 18 

 

10. Site Visits. DHS and/or DPS/TDEM, through its authorized representatives, have the 
right at all reasonable times to make site visits to review project accomplishments and 
management control systems and to provide such technical assistance as may be 
required. If any site visit is made by DHS on the premises of Subrecipient or a contractor 
under this Grant, Subrecipient shall provide and shall require its contractors to provide 
all reasonable facilities and assistance for the safety and convenience of the government 
representatives in the performance of their duties.  All site visits and evaluations shall be 
performed in such a manner that will not unduly delay the work. 

 
H. Procurement and Contracting. 

1. Procurements.  Subrecipient shall comply with all applicable federal, state, and local 
laws and requirements, including but not limited to proper competitive solicitation 
processes where required, for any procurement which utilizes federal funds awarded 
under this Grant in accordance with 2 C.F.R. 200. 318 

2. Contract Provisions.  All contracts executed using funds awarded under this Grant shall 
contain the contract provisions listed under 2 C.F.R. 200.326 and Appendix II (A), 
Uniform Administrative Requirements for Grants and Cooperative Agreements to State 
and Local Governments. 

3. Procurement activities must follow the most restrictive of Federal, State and Local 
procurement regulations:  

a. Procurement by micro purchase 
b. Procurement by small purchase 
c. Procurement by sealed bid 
d. Procurement by competitive proposal 
e. Procurement by non-competitive proposal, solely when the award of a contract is 

unfeasible under the other methods  
 

The State must be contacted for approval to use a noncompetitive procurement method. 
Failure to follow eligible procurement methods will result in ineligible costs. Other types 
of agreements for services must have State approval prior to use or execution. A copy of 
the local procurement policy must be provided to the State before initial payment.  

 
The cost plus a percentage of cost and percentage of construction cost methods of 
contracting are ineligible.  
 
Must perform cost/price analysis for purchases over $3000. 
 
Must negotiate profit as a separate element where required. 

 
4. Evidence of non-debarment for vendors must be documented through 

http://www.sam.gov/portal/public/SAM and 
http://www.window.state.tx.us/procurement/prog/vendor_performance/debarred/ and 
submitted for review. 

5. Comply with rules related to underutilized businesses (small and minority businesses, 
women’s enterprises and labor surplus firms) at 2 CFR 200.321 
 

I. Monitoring.  Subrecipient will be monitored periodically by federal, state or local entities, 
both programmatically and financially, to ensure that project goals, objectives, performance 
requirements, timelines, milestone completion, budget, and other program-related criteria 
are met.  

 

http://www.sam.gov/portal/public/SAM
http://www.window.state.tx.us/procurement/prog/vendor_performance/debarred/


  
Page 6 of 18 

 

DPS/TDEM, or its authorized representative, reserves the right to perform periodic 
desk/office-based and/or on-site monitoring of Subrecipient's compliance with this Grant and 
of the adequacy and timeliness of Subrecipient's performance pursuant to this Grant.  After 
each monitoring visit, DPS/TDEM shall provide Subrecipient with a written report of the 
monitor's findings.  If the monitoring report notes deficiencies in Subrecipient's performance 
under this Grant, the monitoring report shall include requirements for the timely correction of 
such deficiencies by Subrecipient.  Failure by Subrecipient to take action specified in the 
monitoring report may be cause for suspension or termination of this Grant pursuant to the 
Suspension and/or Termination Section herein. 

 
J. Audit.   

1. Audit of Federal and State Funds.  Subrecipient shall arrange for the performance of an 
annual financial and compliance audit of funds received and performances rendered 
under this Grant as required by the Single Audit Act (OMB 2 C.F.R. 200.501, formerly A-
133).  Subrecipient shall comply, as applicable, with Texas Government Code, Chapter 
783, the Uniform Grant Management Standards (UGMS), the State Uniform 
Administrative Requirements for Grants and Cooperative Agreements. 

2. Right to Audit.  Subrecipient shall give the United States Department of Homeland 
Security (DHS), Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA), the Comptroller 
General of the United States, the Texas State Auditor, DPS/TDEM, or any of their duly 
authorized representatives, access to and the right to conduct a financial or compliance 
audit of Grant funds received and performances rendered under this 
Grant.  Subrecipient shall permit DPS/TDEM or its authorized representative to audit 
Subrecipient’s records. Subrecipient shall provide any documents, materials or 
information necessary to facilitate such audit. 

3. Subrecipient’s Liability for Disallowed Costs.  Subrecipient understands and agrees that 
it shall be liable to DPS/TDEM for any costs disallowed pursuant to any financial or 
compliance audit(s) of these funds.  Subrecipient further understands and agrees that 
reimbursement to DPS/TDEM of such disallowed costs shall be paid by Subrecipient 
from funds that were not provided or otherwise made available to Subrecipient pursuant 
to this Grant or any other federal contract.  

4. Subrecipient’s Facilitation of Audit.  Subrecipient shall take such action to facilitate the 
performance of such audit(s) conducted pursuant to this Section as DPS/TDEM may 
require of Subrecipient.  Subrecipient shall ensure that this clause concerning the 
authority to audit funds received indirectly by subcontractors through Subrecipient and 
the requirement to cooperate is included in any subcontract it awards. 

5. State Auditor’s Clause.  Subrecipient understands that acceptance of funds under this 
Grant acts as acceptance of the authority of the State Auditor’s Office to conduct an 
audit or investigation in connection with those funds.  Subrecipient further agrees to 
cooperate fully with the State Auditor’s Office in the conduct of the audit or investigation, 
including providing all records requested.  Subrecipient shall ensure that this clause 
concerning the State Auditor’s Office’s authority to audit funds and the requirement to 
cooperate fully with the State Auditor’s Office is included in any subgrants or 
subcontracts it awards.  Additionally, the State Auditor’s Office shall at any time have 
access to and the rights to examine, audit, excerpt, and transcribe any pertinent books, 
documents, working papers, and records of Subrecipient relating to this Grant. 

  



  
Page 7 of 18 

 

 
K. Retention and Accessibility of Records.   

1. Retention of Records.  Subrecipient shall maintain fiscal records and supporting 
documentation for all expenditures of this Grant’s funds pursuant to the applicable OMB 
2 C.F.R.  Subpart D – Post Federal Award Requirements, of Part 200 UGMS §__.42, 
and this Grant.  Subrecipient shall retain these records and any supporting 
documentation for a minimum of three (3) years from the later of the completion of this 
project's public objective, submission of the final expenditure report, any litigation, 
dispute, or audit.  Records shall be retained for three (3) years after any real estate or 
equipment final disposition.  The DHS or DPS/TDEM may direct Subrecipient to retain 
documents or to transfer certain records to DHS custody when DHS determines that the 
records possess long term retention value. 

2. Access to Records.  Subrecipient shall give the United States Department of Homeland 
Security, the Comptroller General of the United States, the Texas State Auditor, 
DPS/TDEM, or any of its duly authorized representatives, access to and the right to 
examine all books, accounts, records, reports, files, other papers, things or property 
belonging to or in use by Subrecipient pertaining to this Grant including records 
concerning the past use of DHS/FEMA funds. Such rights to access shall continue as 
long as the records are retained by Subrecipient. 

 
L. Changes, Amendments, Suspension or Termination   

1. Modification.  FEMA or DPS/TDEM may modify this Grant after an award has been 
made.    Once notification has been made in writing, any subsequent request for funds 
indicates Subrecipient’s acceptance of the changes to this Grant.  Any alteration, 
addition, or deletion to this Grant by Subrecipient is not valid. 

2. Effect of Changes in Federal and State Laws.  Any alterations, additions, or deletions to 
this Grant that are required by changes in federal and state laws, regulations or policy 
are automatically incorporated into this Grant without written amendment to this Grant 
and shall become effective upon the date designated by such law or regulation.  In the 
event FEMA or DPS/TDEM determines that changes are necessary to this Grant after 
an award has been made, including changes to the period of performance or terms and 
conditions, Subrecipient shall be notified of the changes in writing. Once notification has 
been made, any subsequent request for funds will indicate Subrecipient’s acceptance of 
the changes to this Grant. 

3. Suspension.  In the event Subrecipient fails to comply with any term of this Grant, 
DPS/TDEM may, upon written notification to Subrecipient, suspend this Grant, in whole 
or in part, withhold payments to Subrecipient and prohibit Subrecipient from incurring 
additional obligations of this Grant’s funds. 

4. Termination.  DPS/TDEM shall have the right to terminate this Grant, in whole or in part, 
at any time before the end of the Performance Period, if DPS/TDEM determines that 
Subrecipient has failed to comply with any term of this Grant.   DPS/TDEM shall provide 
written notice of the termination and include: 
a. The reason(s) for such termination;  
b. The effective date of such termination; and  
c. In the case of partial termination, the portion of this Grant to be terminated. 
d. Appeal may be made to the Deputy Assistant Director of Texas Division of 

Emergency Management- Recovery Mitigation and Standards, Texas Department of 
Public Safety. 

 
M. Enforcement.  If Subrecipient materially fails to comply with any term of this Grant, whether 

stated in a federal or state statute or regulation, an assurance, in a state plan or application, 



  
Page 8 of 18 

 

a notice of award, or elsewhere, DPS/TDEM or DHS may take one or more of the following 
actions, as appropriate in the circumstances: 
1. Increased monitoring of projects and require additional financial and performance 

reports 
2. Require payments as reimbursements rather than advance payments 
3. Temporarily withhold payments pending correction of the deficiency 
4. Disallow or deny use of funds and matching credit for all or part of the cost of the 

activity or action not in compliance; 
5. Request FEMA to wholly or partially de-obligate funding for a project 
6. Temporarily withhold cash payments pending correction of the deficiency by 

subrecipient or more severe enforcement action by DPS/TDEM or DHS; 
7. Withhold further awards for the grant program 
8. Take other remedies that may be legally available 
 
In taking an enforcement action, DPS/TDEM will provide Subrecipient an opportunity for a 
hearing, appeal, or other administrative proceeding to which Subrecipient is entitled under 
any statute or regulation applicable to the action involved. 
 
The costs of Subrecipient resulting from obligations incurred by Subrecipient during a 
suspension or after termination of this Grant are not allowable unless DPS/TDEM or DHS 
expressly authorizes them in the notice of suspension or termination or subsequently.   
 
Other Subrecipient costs during suspension or after termination which are necessary and 
not reasonably avoidable are allowable if: 
• The costs result from obligations which were properly incurred by Subrecipient before 

the effective date of suspension or termination, are not in anticipation of it, and in the 
case of a termination, are non-cancellable; and 

• The costs would be allowable if this Grant were not suspended or expired normally at 
the end of the funding period in which the termination takes effects. 

 
The enforcement remedies identified in this section, including suspension and termination, 
do not preclude Subrecipient from being subject to “Debarment and Suspension” under E.O. 
12549.  2 C.F.R., Appendix II to Part 200, (I). 
 

N. Conflicts of Interest.  The subrecipient will maintain written standards of conduct covering 
conflicts of interest and governing the actions of its employees engaged in the selection, 
award and administration of contracts and will establish safeguards to prohibit employees 
from using their positions for a purpose that constitutes or presents the appearance of 
personal or organizational conflict of interest or personal gain. 
 

O. Closing of this Grant.  DPS/TDEM will close a subaward after receiving all required final 
documentation from the Subrecipient.  If the close out review and reconciliation indicates 
that Subrecipient is owed additional funds, DPS/TDEM will send the final payment 
automatically to Subrecipient.  If Subrecipient did not use all the funds received, 
DPS/TDEM will recover the unused funds.   

 
At the completion of Subrecipient’s performance period, DPS/TDEM will de-obligate all 
uncommitted funds and de-obligate all unexpended funds if final documentation is not 
received by the deadline.  



  
Page 9 of 18 

 

The closeout of this Grant does not affect: 
1. DHS or DPS/TDEM’s right to disallow costs and recover funds on the basis of a later 

audit or other review; 
2. Subrecipient’s obligation to return any funds due as a result of later refunds, corrections, 

or other transactions; 
3. Records retention requirements, property management requirements, and audit 

requirements, as set forth herein; and 
4. Any other provisions of this Grant that impose continuing obligations on Subrecipient or 

that govern the rights and limitations of the parties to this Grant after the expiration or 
termination of this Grant.   



  
Page 10 of 18 

 

EXHIBIT A 
ASSURANCES - NON-CONSTRUCTION PROGRAMS See Standard Form 424B 
As the duly authorized representative of Subrecipient, I certify that Subrecipient: 
 

1.     Has the legal authority to apply for Federal assistance and the institutional, 
managerial and financial capability (including funds sufficient to pay the non-
Federal share of project cost) to ensure proper planning, management and 
completion of the project described in this Grant. 

 
2.      Will give the Department of Homeland Security, the Department of Public 

Safety, the Comptroller General of the United States and, if appropriate, the 
State, through any authorized representative, access to and the right to 
examine all records, books, papers, or documents related to this Grant and 
will establish a proper accounting system in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting standards or agency directives. 

 
3.      Will establish safeguards to prohibit employees from using their positions for 

a purpose that constitutes or presents the appearance of personal or 
organizational conflict of interest or personal gain. 

 
4.      Will initiate and complete the work within the applicable time frame after 

receipt of approval of the awarding agency. 
 
5.      Will comply with the Intergovernmental Personnel Act of 1970 (42 U.S.C. 

§§4728-4763) relating to prescribed  standards for merit systems for 
programs funded under one of the 19 statutes or regulations specified in 
Appendix A of OPM's Standards for a Merit System of Personnel 
Administration (5 C.F.R. 900, Subpart F). 

 
6.  Will comply with all Federal statutes relating to nondiscrimination. These 

include but are not limited to: (a) Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (P.L. 
88-352) which prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, color or national 
origin; (b) Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, as amended (20 
U.S.C. §§1681-1683, and 1685-1686 and 44 C.F.R. Part 19), which prohibits 
discrimination on the basis of sex; (c) Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act 
of 1973, as amended (29 U.S.C. §794), which prohibits discrimination on the 
basis of handicaps; (d) the Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended (42 
U.S.C. §§6101-6107), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of age; (e) 
the Drug Abuse Office and Treatment Act of 1972 (P.L. 92-255), as 
amended, relating to nondiscrimination on the basis of drug abuse; (f) the 
Comprehensive Alcohol Abuse and Alcoholism Prevention, Treatment and 
Rehabilitation Act of 1970 (P.L. 91-616), as amended, relating to 
nondiscrimination on the basis of alcohol abuse or alcoholism; (g) §§523 
and 527 of the Public Health Service Act of 1912 (42 U.S.C. §§290dd-3 and 
290ee-3), as amended, relating to confidentiality of alcohol and drug abuse 
patient records; (h) Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. 
§§3601 et seq.), as amended, relating to nondiscrimination in the sale, rental 
or financing of housing; (i) any other nondiscrimination provisions in the 
specific statute(s) under which agreement for Federal assistance is being 
made; and (j) the requirements of any other nondiscrimination statute(s) 
which may apply to the application. 

 
7.      Will comply or has already complied with the requirements of Titles II and III 

of the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies 
Act of 1970 (P.L. 91-646) which provide for fair and equitable treatment of 
persons displaced or whose property is acquired as a result of Federal or 
federally-assisted programs. These requirements apply to all interests in real 
property acquired for project purposes regardless of Federal participation in 
purchases. 

 
8.     Will comply, as applicable, with provisions of the Hatch Act (5 U.S.C. §§1501-

1508 and 7324-7328) which limit the political activities of employees whose 
principal employment activities are funded in whole or in part with Federal 
funds. 

 
9.      Will comply, as applicable, with the provisions of the Davis-Bacon Act (40 

U.S.C. §§276a to 276a-7), the Copeland Act (40 U.S.C. §276c and 18 
U.S.C. §874), and the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 
U.S.C. §§327-333), regarding labor standards for federally-assisted 
construction sub-agreements. 

 
10.    Will comply, if applicable, with flood insurance purchase requirements of 

Section 102(a) of the Flood Disaster Protection Act of 1973 (P.L. 93-234) 
which requires recipients in a special flood hazard area to participate in the 
program and to purchase flood insurance if the total cost of insurable 
construction and acquisition is $10,000 or more.  

 
11.   Will comply with environmental standards which may be prescribed pursuant 

to the following: (a) institution of environmental quality control measures 
under the National Environmental Policy Act of 1969 (P.L. 91-190 as 
amended by 42 U.S.C. 4311 et seq. and Executive Order (EO) 11514) which 

establishes national policy goals and procedures to protect and enhance the 
environment, including protection against natural disasters.  To comply with 
NEPA for DHS grant-supported activities, DHS-FEMA requires the 
environmental aspects to be reviewed and evaluated before final action on 
the application; (b) notification of violating facilities pursuant to EO 11738; 
(c) protection of wetlands pursuant to EO 11990; (d) evaluation of flood 
hazards in floodplains in accordance with EO 11988; (e) assurance of 
project consistency with the approved State management program 
developed under the Coastal Zone Management Act of 1972 (16 U.S.C. 
§§1451 et seq.); (f) comply with the Clean Air Act of 1977,  (42 U.S.C. 
§§7401 et seq. and Executive Order 11738) providing for the protection of 
and enhancement of the quality of the nation’s air resources to promote 
public health and welfare and for restoring and maintaining the chemical, 
physical, and biological integrity of the nation’s waters; (g) protection of 
underground sources of drinking water under the Safe Drinking Water Act of 
1974, as amended (P.L. 93-523); and, (h) protection of endangered species 
under the Endangered Species Act of 1973, as amended (P.L. 93- 205). 

 
12.   Will comply with the Wild and Scenic Rivers Act of 1968 (16 U.S.C. §§1271 et 

seq.) related to protecting components or potential components of the 
national wild and scenic rivers system. 

 
13.   Will assist the awarding agency in assuring compliance with Section 106 of 

the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966, as amended (16 U.S.C. 
§470), EO 11593 (identification and protection of historic properties), and the 
Archaeological and Historic Preservation Act of 1974 (16 U.S.C. §§469a-1 et 
seq.). 

 
14.   Will comply with P.L. 93-348, 45 C.F.R. 46, and DHS Management Directive 

026-044 (Directive) regarding the protection of human subjects involved in 
research, development, and related activities supported by this Grant.  
“Research” means a systematic investigation, including research, 
development, testing, and evaluation designed to develop or contribute to 
general knowledge.  See Directive for additional provisions for including 
humans in the womb, pregnant women, and neonates (Subpart B); prisoners 
(Subpart C); and children (Subpart D).  See also state and local law for 
research using autopsy materials. 

 
15.   Will comply with the Laboratory Animal Welfare Act of 1966 (P.L. 89-544, as 

amended, 7 U.S.C. §§2131 et seq.) which requires the minimum standards 
of care and treatment for vertebrate animals bred for commercial sale, used 
in research, transported commercially, or exhibited to the public according to 
the Guide for Care and Use of Laboratory Animals and Public Health 
Service Policy and Government Principals Regarding the Care and Use of 
Animals. 

16.   Will comply with the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act (42 U.S.C. 
§§4801 et seq.) which prohibits the use of lead-based paint in construction 
or rehabilitation of residence structures. 

17.   Will cause to be performed the required financial and compliance audits in 
accordance with the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996 and OMB 
Circular No. A-133 (now OMB 2 C.F.R. 200.500), "Audits of States, Local 
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations." 

18.   Will comply with all applicable requirements of all other Federal laws, 
executive orders, regulations, grant guidance, and policies governing this 
Grant.  

 



  
Page 11 of 18 

 

EXHIBIT B 
ASSURANCES - CONSTRUCTION PROGRAMS See Standard Form 424D 
As the duly authorized representative of Subrecipient, I certify that Subrecipient: 
 
1. Has the legal authority to apply for Federal assistance, and the 

institutional, managerial and financial capability (including funds 
sufficient to pay the non-Federal share of project costs) to ensure 
proper planning, management and completion of project described in 
this Grant.  

2. Will give the Department of Homeland Security, the Department of 
Public Safety, the Comptroller General of the United States and, if 
appropriate, the State, the right to examine all records, books, papers, 
or documents related to this Grant and will establish a proper 
accounting system in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
standards or agency directives. 

3.  Will not dispose of, modify the use of, or change the terms of the real 
property title or other interest in the site and facilities without 
permission and instructions from the awarding agency. Will record the 
Federal awarding agency directives and will include a covenant in the 
title of real property acquired in whole or in part with Federal assistance 
funds to assure nondiscrimination during the useful life of this Grant. 

4. Will comply with the requirements of the assistance awarding agency 
with regard to the drafting, review and approval of construction plans 
and specifications.  

5. Will provide and maintain competent and adequate engineering 
supervision at the construction site to ensure that the complete work 
conforms with the approved plans and specifications and will furnish 
progressive reports and such other information as may be required by 
the awarding agency or State.  

6. Will initiate and complete the work within the applicable time frame 
after receipt of approval of the awarding agency.  

7. Will establish safeguards to prohibit employees from using their 
positions for a purpose that constitutes or presents the appearance of 
personal or organizational conflict of interest or personal gain. 

8. Will comply with the Intergovernmental Personnel Act of 1970 (42 
U.S.C. §§4728-4763) relating to prescribed standards of merit systems 
for programs funded under one of the 19 statutes or regulations 
specified in Appendix A of OPM's Standards for a Merit System of 
Personnel Administration (5 C.F.R. 900, Subpart F). 

9. Will comply with the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act (42 
U.S.C. §§4801 et seq.) which prohibits the use of lead-based paint in 
construction or rehabilitation of residence structures.  

10. Will comply with all Federal statutes relating to nondiscrimination. 
These include but are not limited to: (a) Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 
1964 (P.L. 88-352) which prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, 
color or national origin; (b) Title IX of the Education Amendments of 
1972, as amended (20 U.S.C. §§1681 1683, and 1685-1686 and 44 
C.F.R. Part 19), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of sex; (c) 
Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended (29) U.S.C. 
§794), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of handicaps; (d) the 
Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended (42 U.S.C. §§6101-6107), 
which prohibits discrimination on the basis of age; (e) the Drug Abuse 
Office and Treatment Act of 1972 (P.L. 92-255), as amended relating to 
nondiscrimination on the basis of drug abuse; (f) the Comprehensive 
Alcohol Abuse and Alcoholism Prevention, Treatment and  
rehabilitation Act of 1970 (P.L. 91-616), as amended, relating to 
nondiscrimination on the basis of alcohol abuse or alcoholism; (g) 
§§523 and 527 of the Public Health Service Act of 1912 (42 U.S.C. 
§§290dd-3 and 290ee-3), as amended, relating to confidentiality of 
alcohol and drug abuse patient records; (h) Title VIII of the Civil Rights 
Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. §§3601 et seq.), as amended, relating to  
nondiscrimination in the sale, rental or financing of housing; (i) any 
other nondiscrimination provisions in the specific statue(s) under which 
agreement for Federal assistance is being made; and (j) the 

requirements of any other nondiscrimination statue(s) which may apply 
to the agreement. 

11. Will comply or has already complied with the requirements of Titles II 
and III of the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property 
Acquisition Policies Act of 1970 (P.L. 91-646) which provide for fair and 
equitable treatment of persons displaced or whose property is acquired 
as a result of Federal and federally-assisted programs. These 
requirements apply to all interests in real property acquired for project 
purposes regardless of Federal participation in purchases.  

12. Will comply with the provisions of the Hatch Act (5 U.S.C. §§1501-1508 
and 7324-7328) which limit the political activities of employees whose 
principal employment activities are funded in whole or in part with 
Federal funds. 

13.   Will comply, as applicable, with the provisions of the Davis-Bacon Act 
(40 U.S.C. §§276a to 276a-7), the Copeland Act (40 U.S.C. §276c and 
18 U.S.C. §874), and the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards 
Act (40 U.S.C. §§327- 333) regarding labor standards for federally-
assisted construction sub-agreements. 

14. Will comply with flood insurance purchase requirements of Section 
102(a) of the Flood Disaster Protection Act of 1973 (P.L. 93-234) which 
requires recipients in a special flood hazard area to participate in the 
program and to purchase flood insurance if the total cost of insurable 
construction and acquisition is $10,000 or more. 

15. Will comply with environmental standards which may be prescribed 
pursuant to the following: (a) institution of environmental quality control 
measures under the National Environmental Policy Act of 1969 (P.L. 
91- 190) as amended by 42 U.S.C. 4311 et seq. and Executive Order 
(EO) 11514 which establishes national policy goals and procedures to 
protect and enhance the environment, including protection against 
natural disasters; (b) notification of violating facilities pursuant to EO 
11738; (c) protection of wetlands pursuant to EO 11990; (d) evaluation 
of flood hazards in floodplains in accordance with EO 11988; (e) 
assurance of project consistency with the approved State management 
program developed under the Coastal Zone Management Act of 1972 
(16 U.S.C. §§1451 et seq.); (f) comply with the Clean Air Act of 1977,  
(42 U.S.C. §§7401 et seq. and Executive Order 11738) providing for 
the protection of and enhancement of the quality of the nation’s air 
resources to promote public health and welfare and for restoring and 
maintaining the chemical, physical, and biological integrity of the 
nation’s waters; (g) protection of underground sources of drinking water 
under the Safe Drinking Water Act of 1974, as amended (P.L. 93-523); 
and, (h) protection of endangered species under the Endangered 
Species Act of 1973, as amended (P.L. 93-205).  

16. Will comply with the Wild and Scenic Rivers Act of 1968 (16 U.S.C. 
§§1271 et seq.) related to protecting components or potential 
components of the national wild and scenic rivers system.  

17. Will assist the awarding agency in assuring compliance with Section 
106 of the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966, as amended (16 
U.S.C. §470), EO 11593 (identification and protection of historic 
properties), and the Archaeological and Historic  Preservation Act of 
1974 (16 U.S.C. §§469a-1 et seq).  

18. Will cause to be performed the required financial and compliance 
audits in accordance with the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996 
and OMB Circular No. A-133 (now OMB 2 C.F.R. 200.500), "Audits of 
States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations." 

19. Will comply with all applicable requirements of all other Federal laws, 
executive orders, regulations, grant guidance and policies governing 
this Grant.  

 
 



  
Page 12 of 18 

 

Exhibit C  
Certifications for Grant Agreements  

The undersigned, as the authorized official, certifies the following to the best of his/her knowledge and belief.  

A. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned to any person for influencing or 
attempting to influence an officer or employee of an agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an 
employee or a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any Federal grant, the 
making of any Federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, 
or modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement. 

B. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or attempting to 
influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee or a 
Member of Congress in connection with this Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall 
complete and submit Standard Form-LLL Disclosure of Lobbying Activities, in accordance with its instructions. 

C.  The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification prohibiting lobbying be included in the award documents for all 
subawards at all tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants, and contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that 
all subrecipients shall certify and disclose accordingly. This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was 
placed when this transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into 
this transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject 
to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such failure. 

D.  As required by Executive Order 12549, Debarment and Suspension, and implemented at 28 C.F.R. Part 67, for prospective 
participants in primary covered transactions, as defined at 28 C.F.R. Part 67, Section 67.510. (Federal Certification), the 
Subrecipient certifies that it and its principals and vendors: 

1. Are not debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, sentenced to a denial of Federal benefits by a 
State or Federal court, or voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency. Subrecipient 
can access debarment information by going to www.sam.gov and the State Debarred Vendor List at: 
www.window.state.tx.us/procurement/prog/vendor_performance/debarred. 

2. Have not within a three-year period preceding this Grant been convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against them for 
commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, 
State, or local) transaction or contract under a public transaction, violation of Federal or State antitrust statutes or commission 
of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen 
property; 

3. Are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity (Federal, State, or local) with 
commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (D)(2) of this certification;  

4. Have not within a three-year period preceding this Grant had one or more public transactions (Federal, State, or local) 
terminated for cause or default; or  

5.  Where Subrecipient is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification, he or she shall attach an explanation to 
this Grant. (Federal Certification). 

E. Federal funds will be used to supplement existing funds, and will not replace (supplant) funds that have been appropriated for the 
same purpose.  Subrecipient may be required to supply documentation certifying that a reduction in non-federal resources 
occurred for reasons other than the receipt or expected receipt of federal funds. 

F.  Subrecipient will comply with 2 C.F.R. Part 180, Subpart C as a condition of receiving grant funds and Subrecipient will require 
such compliance in any subgrants or contract at the next tier. 

G  Subrecipient will comply with the Drug-free Workplace Act, as amended, 412 U.S.C. §701 et seq., which requires Subrecipient to 
publish a statement about its drug-free workplace program and give a copy of the statement to each employee (including 
consultants and temporary  personnel) who will be involved in award-supported activities at any site where these activities will be 
carried out. Also, places where work is being performed under the award (i.e., street address, city, state, and zip code) must be 
maintained on file. Subrecipient will notify the Grants Officer of any employee convicted of a violation of a criminal drug statute that 
occurs in the workplace. For additional information, see 44 C.F.R. Part 17.  Subrecipient shall comply with the requirements of the 
Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988, which requires that all organizations receiving grants from any Federal agency agree to 
maintain a drug-free workplace. 

H. Subrecipient is not delinquent on any Federal debt.  Examples of relevant debt include delinquent payroll and other taxes, audit 
disallowances, and benefit overpayments.  See OMB Circular A-129 and form SF-424, item number 17 for additional information 
and guidance. 

I. Subrecipient will comply with all applicable requirements of all other federal laws, executive orders, regulations, program and 
administrative requirements, policies and any other requirements governing this Grant. 

J. Subrecipient understands that failure to comply with any of the above assurances may result in suspension, termination or 
reduction of funds in this Grant. 

http://www.sam.gov
http://www.window.state.tx.us/procurement/prog/vendor_performance/debarred


  
Page 13 of 18 

 

EXHIBIT D 

State of Texas Assurances  

As the duly authorized representative of Subrecipient, I certify that Subrecipient:  
 
1. Shall comply with Texas Government Code, Chapter 573, by ensuring that no officer, employee, or member of the Subrecipient’s 

governing body or of the Subrecipient’s contractor shall vote or confirm the employment of any person related within the second degree of 
affinity or the third degree of consanguinity to any member of the governing body or to any other officer or employee authorized to employ 
or supervise such person. This prohibition shall not prohibit the employment of a person who shall have been continuously employed for a 
period of two years, or such other period stipulated by local law, prior to the election or appointment of the officer, employee, or governing 
body member related to such person in the prohibited degree. 

2. Shall insure that all information collected, assembled, or maintained by the Subrecipient relative to a project will be available to the public 
during normal business hours in compliance with Texas Government Code, Chapter 552, unless otherwise expressly prohibited by law. 

3. Shall comply with Texas Government Code, Chapter 551, which requires all regular, special, or called meetings of governmental bodies to 
be open to the public, except as otherwise provided by law or specifically permitted in the Texas Constitution. 

4. Shall comply with Section 231.006, Texas Family Code, which prohibits payments to a person who is in arrears on child support payments. 

5.  Shall not contract with or issue a license, certificate, or permit to the owner, operator, or administrator of a facility if the Subrecipient is a 
health, human services, public safety, or law enforcement agency and the license, permit, or certificate has been revoked by another 
health and human services agency or public safety or law enforcement agency. 

6. Shall comply with all rules adopted by the Texas Commission on Law Enforcement pursuant to Chapter 1701, Texas Occupations Code, 
or shall provide the grantor agency with a certification from the Texas Commission on Law Enforcement that the agency is in the process 
of achieving compliance with such rules if the Subrecipient is a law enforcement agency regulated by Texas Occupations Code, Chapter 
1701. 

7.  Shall follow all assurances. When incorporated into a grant award or contract, standard assurances contained in the application package 
become terms or conditions for receipt of grant funds. Administering state agencies and subrecipients shall maintain an appropriate 
contract administration system to insure that all terms, conditions, and specifications are met.   (See UGMS Section _.36 for additional 
guidance on contract provisions). 

8.  Shall comply with the Texas Family Code, Section 261.101, which requires reporting of all suspected cases of child abuse to local law 
enforcement authorities and to the Texas Department of Child Protective and Regulatory Services.  Subrecipient shall also ensure that all 
program personnel are properly trained and aware of this requirement. 

9. Shall comply with all federal statutes relating to nondiscrimination.  These include but are not limited to: (a) Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 
1964 (P.L. 88-352), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, color, or national origin; (b) Title IX of the Education Amendments 
of 1972, as amended (20 U.S.C. §§1681-1683, and 1685-1686), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of sex; (c) Section 504 of the 
Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended (29 U.S.C. §794), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of handicaps and the Americans with 
Disabilities Act of 1990 including Titles I, II, and III of the Americans with Disability Act which prohibits recipients from discriminating on the 
basis of disability in the operation of public entities, public and private transportation systems, places of public accommodation, and certain 
testing entities, 44 U.S.C. §§ 12101-12213; (d) the Age Discrimination Act of 1974, as amended (42 U.S.C. §§6101-6107), which prohibits 
discrimination on the basis of age; (e) the Drug Abuse Office and Treatment Act of 1972 (P.L. 92-255), as amended, relating to 
nondiscrimination on the basis of drug abuse; (f) the Comprehensive Alcohol Abuse and Alcoholism Prevention, Treatment, and 
Rehabilitation Act of 1970 (P.L. 91-616), as amended, relating to the nondiscrimination on the basis of alcohol abuse or alcoholism; (g) 
§§523 and 527 of the Public Health Service Act of 1912 (42 U.S.C. §§290dd-3 and 290ee-3), as amended, relating to confidentiality of 
alcohol and drug abuse patient records; (h) Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. §§3601 et seq.), as amended, relating to 
nondiscrimination in the sale, rental, or financing of housing; (i) any other nondiscrimination provisions in the specific statute(s) under 
which application for Federal assistance is being made; and (j) the requirements of any other nondiscrimination statute(s) which may apply 
to this Grant. 

10. Shall comply, as applicable, with the provisions of the Davis-Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. §§276a to 276a-7), the Copeland Act (40 U.S.C. §276c 
and 18 U.S.C. §874), and the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. §§327-333), regarding labor standards for 
federally assisted construction subagreements. 

11. Shall comply with requirements of the provisions of the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisitions Act of 1970 (P.L. 
91-646), which provide for fair and equitable treatment of persons displaced or whose property is acquired as a result of Federal or 
federally assisted programs.  These requirements apply to all interests in real property acquired for project purposes regardless of Federal 
participation in purchases. 

12. Shall comply with the provisions of the Hatch Political Activity Act (5 U.S.C. §§7321-29), which limit the political activity of employees 
whose principal employment activities are funded in whole or in part with Federal funds. 

13. Shall comply with the minimum wage and maximum hours provisions of the Federal Fair Labor Standards Act and the Intergovernmental 
Personnel Act of 1970, as applicable. 

14. Shall insure that the facilities under its ownership, lease, or supervision which shall be utilized in the accomplishment of the project are not 
listed on the Environmental Protection Agency’s (EPA) list of Violating Facilities and that it will notify the Federal grantor agency of the 
receipt of any communication from the Director of the EPA Office of Federal Activities indicating that a facility to be used in the project is 
under consideration for listing by the EPA (EO 11738). 



  
Page 14 of 18 

 

15.  Shall comply with the flood insurance purchase requirements of Section 102(a) of the Flood Disaster Protection Act of 1973, Public Law 
93-234. Section 102(a) requires the purchase of flood insurance in communities where such insurance is available as a condition for the 
receipt of any Federal financial assistance for construction or acquisition proposed for use in any area that has been identified by the 
Secretary of the Department of Housing and Urban Development as an area having special flood hazards.  

 
16.  Shall comply with environmental standards which may be prescribed pursuant to the following: (a) institution of environmental quality 

control measures under the National Environmental Policy Act of 1969 (P.L. 91-190) and Executive Order (EO) 11514; (b) notification of 
violating facilities pursuant to EO 11738; (c) protection of wetlands pursuant to EO 11990; (d) evaluation of flood hazards in floodplains in 
accordance with EO 11988; (e) assurance of project consistency with the approved state management program developed under the 
Coastal Zone Management Act of 1972 (16 U.S.C. §§1451 et seq.); (f) conformity of federal actions to State (Clear Air) Implementation 
Plans under Section 176(c) of the Clear Air Act of 1955, as amended (42 U.S.C. §§7401 et seq.); (g) protection of underground sources of 
drinking water under the Safe Drinking Water Act of 1974, as amended (P.L. 93-523); and (h) protection of endangered species under the 
Endangered Species Act of 1973, as amended (P.L. 93-205).  

17.  Shall comply with the Wild and Scenic Rivers Act of 1968 (16 U.S.C. §§1271 et seq.) related to protecting components or potential 
components of the national wild and scenic rivers system. 

18. Shall assist the awarding agency in assuring compliance with Section 106 of the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966, as amended 
(16 U.S.C. §470), EO 11593 (identification and protection of historic properties), and the Archaeological and Historic Preservation Act of 
1974 (16 U.S.C. §§469a-1 et seq.). 

19. Shall comply with the Laboratory Animal Welfare Act of 1966 (P.L. 89-544, as amended, 7 U.S.C. §§2131 et seq.) which requires the 
minimum standards of care and treatment for vertebrate animals bred for commercial sale, used in research, transported commercially, or 
exhibited to the public according to the Guide for Care and Use of Laboratory Animals and Public Health Service Policy and Government 
Principals Regarding the Care and Use of Animals. 

20.  Shall comply with the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act (42 U.S.C. §§4801 et seq.) which prohibits the use of lead-based paint 
in construction or rehabilitation of residential structures. 

21. Shall comply with the Pro-Children Act of 1994 (Public Law 103-277), which prohibits smoking within any portion of any indoor facility used 
for the provision of services for children. 

22. Shall comply with all federal tax laws and are solely responsible for filing all required state and federal tax forms. 

23. Shall comply with all applicable requirements of all other federal and state laws, executive orders, regulations, and policies governing this 
program. 

24. And its principals are eligible to participate and have not been subjected to suspension, debarment, or similar ineligibility determined by 
any federal, state, or local governmental entity and it is not listed on a state or federal government’s terrorism watch list as described in 
Executive Order 13224.  Entities ineligible for federal procurement have Exclusions listed at https://www.sam.gov/portal/public/SAM/. 

25. Shall adopt and implement applicable provisions of the model HIV/AIDS work place guidelines of the Texas Department of Health as 
required by the Texas Health and Safety Code, Ann., Sec. 85.001, et seq. 

 

https://www.sam.gov/portal/public/SAM/


  
Page 15 of 18 

 

EXHIBIT E 

Environmental Review  

As the duly authorized representative of Subrecipient, I certify that Subrecipient: 

1. shall assess its federally funded projects for potential impact to environmental resources and historic properties.   

2. shall submit any required screening form(s) as soon as possible and shall comply with deadlines established by DPS/TDEM. 
Timelines for the Environmental Planning and Historic Preservation (EHP) review process will vary based upon the complexity of 
the project and the potential for environmental or historical impact.   

3. shall include sufficient review time within its project management plan to comply with EHP requirements.  Initiation of any activity 
prior to completion of FEMA’s EHP review will result in a non-compliance finding and DPS/TDEM will not authorize or release 
Grant funds for non-compliant projects.  

4. as soon as possible upon receiving this Grant, shall provide information to DPS/TDEM to assist with the legally-required EHP 
review and to ensure compliance with applicable EHP laws and Executive Orders (EO) currently using the FEMA EHP Screening 
Form OMB Number 1660-0115/FEMA Form 024-0-01 and submitting it, with all supporting documentation, to DPS/TDEM for 
review. These EHP requirements include but are not limited to the National Environmental Policy Act, the National Historic 
Preservation Act, the Endangered Species Act, EO 11988 – Floodplain Management, EO 11990 – Protection of Wetlands, and EO 
12898 – Environmental Justice.  Subrecipient shall comply with all Federal, State, and local EHP requirements and shall obtain 
applicable permits and clearances.   

5. shall not undertake any activity from the project that would result in ground disturbance, facility modification, or purchase and use 
of sonar equipment without the prior approval of FEMA.  These include but are not limited to communications towers, physical 
security enhancements involving ground disturbance, new construction, and modifications to buildings.   

6. shall comply with all mitigation or treatment measures required for the project as the result of FEMA’s EHP review.  Any changes to 
an approved project description will require re-evaluation for compliance with EHP requirements before the project can proceed.   

7. if ground disturbing activities occur during project implementation, Subrecipient shall ensure monitoring of ground disturbance and 
if any potential archeological resources are discovered, Subrecipient shall immediately cease construction in that area and notify 
FEMA and the appropriate State Historical Preservation Office. 

 



  
Page 16 of 18 

 

EXHIBIT F 
 
Additional Grant Conditions 
 
1. Additional damage requiring a new Public Assistance project to be written must be reported within 60 days 

following the Kickoff meeting with the State- Federal team. 
 

2. All work must be done prior to the approved project completion deadline assigned to each Project. Should 
additional time be required, a time extension request must be submitted which: a.) Identifies the projects 
requiring an extension. b.) Explains the reason for an extension. c.) Indicates the percentage of work that 
has been completed. d.) Provides an anticipated completion date. The reason for an extension must be 
based on extenuating circumstances or unusual project requirements that are beyond the control of your 
jurisdiction/organization. Failure to submit a time extension request may result in reduction or 
withdrawal of federal funds for approved work. 

 
3. Any significant change to a project's approved Scope of Work must be reported and approved through 

TDEM and FEMA before starting the project. Failure to do so will jeopardize grant funding. 
 
4. The Project Completion and Certification Report must be returned to TDEM once all the approved work has 

been completed for each project. If any project requires the purchase of insurance as a condition of 
receiving federal funds, a copy of the current policy must be attached to this report. 

 
5. A cost overrun appeal on small ($120,000.00) Public Assistance projects must be reported to the Texas 

Division of Emergency Management (TDEM) within 60 days of completing the last small project in order to 
be considered for additional funding. 

 
6. Appeals may be filed on any determination made by FEMA or TDEM.  All appeals must be submitted to 

TDEM within 60 days from receiving written notice of the action you wish to appeal. Should you wish to 
appeal a determination contained in the project application, the 60 days will start the day the application is 
signed. 

 
7. Public Assistance program projects will not receive funding until all of the requirements identified in the 

comments section of the Project Worksheet are met. 
 
8. You may request a payment of funds on projects by completing the "Payment of Funds" request and 

including documentation supporting your request. In the event that an audit results in a reduction of the 
awarded amount of a project, the subrecipient is responsible for returning the identified overage within 30 
days of notification of the overpayment.  Small Public Assistance projects are paid upon obligation and the 
receipt of all required documentation.  Payments must be requested at least quarterly if expenditures have 
been made in that quarter. 

 
9. Projects that have not received final payment will be reviewed quarterly by TDEM representatives upon 

receipt of the Quarterly Review form from the subrecipient. Quarterly reports will be due on the following 
dates: March 15th, June 15th, September 15th & December 15th.  Public Assistance program small 
projects are exempted. 

 
10. Subrecipient with must submit a project cost summary to TDEM following the completion of each project, 

except Public Assistance program small projects. The project cost summary must list all labor, equipment, 
materials and contract costs associated with making needed repairs. 

 
11. Subrecipients expending $750,000 or more in total Federal financial assistance in a fiscal year will be 

required to provide an audit made in accordance with OMB Uniform Guidance; Cost Principles, Audit, and 
Administrative Requirements for Federal Awards, Subpart F. A copy of the Single Audit must be submitted 



  
Page 17 of 18 

 

to your cognizant State agency or TDEM within nine months of the end of the subrecipient’s fiscal year. 
Consult with your financial officer regarding this requirement. If not required to submit a single audit, a letter 
must be sent to TDEM certifying to this. 

 
12. Completed record and cost documents for all approved work must be for a minimum of three (3) years from 

the later of the completion of this project's public objective, submission of the final expenditure report, any 
litigation, dispute, or audit.  Records shall be retained for three (3) years after any real estate or equipment 
final disposition.  The DHS or DPS/TDEM may direct Subrecipient to retain documents or to transfer certain 
records to DHS custody when DHS determines that the records possess long term retention value. During 
this time, all approved projects are subject to State and Federal audit/review. 

 
13. Subrecipients will not make any award to any party which is debarred or suspended, or is otherwise 

excluded from participation in the Federal assistance programs (EO 12549, Debarment and Suspension). 
Subrecipient must maintain documentation validating review of debarment list of eligible contractors. 

 
14. Subrecipients must keep record of equipment acquired by federal funds for the life cycle of the equipment. 

A life cycle for most equipment will be three years, but could be longer. If the fair market value of a piece of 
equipment is valued over $5,000, FEMA will have the right to a portion of proceeds if equipment is sold.  If 
the fair market value of a piece of equipment is less than $5,000, the property can either be retained, sold 
or designated as surplus with no further obligation to FEMA. 

 
 
 



  
Page 18 of 18 

 

EXHIBIT G 

Additional Grant Certifications  

Match Certification 
 

Applicant certifies that they have the ability to meet the or exceed the cost share required of this project. 

 

Duplication of Program Statement 
 

Applicant certifies there has not been, nor will there be, a duplication of benefits for this project. 

 

For Hazard Mitigation Projects Only:   

Maintenance Agreement 
 

Applicant certifies that if there is a Maintenance Agreement needed for this facility copy of that agreement will be 
provided to TDEM. 

 

Environmental Justice Statement 
  

Federal Executive Order 12898 compliance requirements – If there are any concentrations of low income or 
minority populations in or near the HMGP project:  

 

1. Applicant certifies that the HMGP project result will not result in a disproportionately high or adverse effect on 
low income or minority populations. 

OR 
 

2. Applicant certifies that action will be taken to ensure achievement of environmental justice for low income and 
minority populations related to this HMGP project.    

 

 







   

Commissioners Court - Special Session   49.           
Meeting Date: 07/28/2016  

FEMA Project Number PA-06-TX-4223-PW02069 Project Title: WIL035C Driveways
Submitted For: Jarred Thomas  Submitted By: Cynthia Hood, Emergency Management
Department: Emergency Management
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on the acceptance of FEMA DR-4223 disaster recovery grant
funding. Project Title: WIL035C Driveways

Background
Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) number: 97.036 FEMA Project Number PA-06-TX-4223-PW02069
Project Title: WIL035C Driveways, Period of Performance 05/29/2015 to 11/29/2016. This disaster recovery grant
is a 75% federal share and 25% local share for damages sustained during the May Floods of 2015. This project
has been authorized by FEMA and approved by the Auditor’s Office, Road and Bridge, and Emergency
Management.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
WIL035C-PW02069 Subgrant Award Letter
Terms and Conditions

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Rebecca Clemons 07/13/2016 03:39 PM
Emergency Management (Originator) Cynthia Hood 07/15/2016 11:26 AM
Form Started By: Cynthia Hood Started On: 07/11/2016 09:46 AM
Final Approval Date: 07/15/2016 







  
Page 1 of 18 

 

GRANT TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
This Grant Agreement (consisting of FEMA Disaster Award and these Terms and Conditions) is 
made and entered into by and between the Department of Public Safety / Texas Division of 
Emergency Management, an agency of the State of Texas, hereinafter referred to as 
"DPS/TDEM," and the funds recipient, hereinafter referred to as the "Applicant” or 
“Subrecipient.”  Furthermore, DPS/TDEM and the Subrecipient are collectively hereinafter 
referred to as the “Parties.”  
 
Subrecipient may not assign or transfer any interest in this Grant without the express, prior 
written consent of DPS/TDEM. If Subrecipient issues subawards as part of this Grant project, 
Subrecipient shall include and require its subawardees to comply with the terms and conditions 
of this Grant. 
 
The term "Subrecipient agreement funds" as used in this Grant means funds provided by 
DPS/TDEM under the United States Department of Homeland Security (DHS) Federal 
Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) grant programs (also referred to herein as 
DHS/FEMA).  The term "Subrecipient's funds" or match funds as used in this Grant means 
funds provided by the Subrecipient. 
 
A. Standard of Performance. Subrecipient shall perform all activities as approved by 

DPS/TDEM.  Any change to a project shall receive prior written approval by TDEM and, if 
required, by FEMA. Subrecipient shall perform all activities in accordance with all terms, 
provisions and requirements set forth in this Grant, including but not limited to the following 
Exhibits: 
1. Assurances – Non-Construction Programs, hereinafter referred to as “Exhibit A”  
2. Assurances – Construction Programs, hereinafter referred to as “Exhibit B” 
3. Certifications for Grant Agreements, hereinafter referred to as “Exhibit C” 
4. State of Texas Assurances, hereinafter referred to as “Exhibit D”  
5. Environmental Review Certification, hereinafter referred to as “Exhibit E” 
6. Additional Grant Conditions, hereinafter referred to as “Exhibit F” 
7. Additional Grant Certifications, hereinafter referred to as “Exhibit G” 

 
B. Failure to Perform.  In the event Subrecipient fails to implement the project(s) entered and 

approved in the DPS/TDEM web-based grants management system, or comply with any 
provision of this Grant, Subrecipient shall be liable to DPS/TDEM for an amount not to 
exceed the award amount of this Grant and may be barred from applying for or receiving 
additional DHS/FEMA grant program funds or any other grant program funds administered 
by DPS until repayment to DPS/TDEM is made and any other compliance or audit finding is 
satisfactorily resolved, in addition to any other remedy specified in this Grant.  Failure to 
timely implement projects may reduce future funding in additional DHS/FEMA and/or other 
grant programs administered by DPS. 

 
C. Funding Obligations. DPS/TDEM shall not be liable to Subrecipient for any costs incurred 

by Subrecipient that are not allowable costs. 
1. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Grant, the total of all payments and other 

obligations incurred by DPS/TDEM under this Grant shall not exceed the Total Award 
Amount listed on the Grant Subrecipient Award. 

2. Subrecipient shall contribute the match funds listed on the Grant Subrecipient Award.  



  
Page 2 of 18 

 

3. Subrecipient shall refund to DPS/TDEM any sum of these Grant funds that has been 
determined by DPS/TDEM to be an overpayment to Subrecipient or that DPS/TDEM 
determines has not been spent by Subrecipient in accordance with this Grant.  No 
refund payment(s) shall be made from local, state or federal Grant funds unless 
repayment with Grant funds is specifically permitted by statute or 
regulation.  Subrecipient shall make such refund to DPS/TDEM within thirty (30) 
calendar days after  

4. DPS/TDEM requests such refund. 
 
D. Performance Period.  The performance period for this Grant is listed on the Grant 

Subrecipient Award letter.  All projects shall be completed within the performance 
period AND all reimbursement requests shall be submitted to DPS/TDEM within 60 
days for the end of the performance period.  Subrecipient shall have expended all Grant 
funds and submitted reimbursement requests, invoices and any supporting documentation 
to DPS/TDEM within 60 days of the end of the performance period. DPS/TDEM shall not be 
obligated to reimburse expenses incurred after the performance period or submitted after 
the deadline. 

 
E. Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principals and Audit Requirements.  

Except as specifically modified by law or this Grant, Subrecipient shall administer this Grant 
through compliance with the most recent version of all applicable laws and regulations, 
including but not limited to DHS program legislation, Federal awarding agency regulations, 
and the terms and conditions of this Grant.  A non-exclusive list is provided below [not all 
may apply in every projects]: 
• Public Law 93-288, as amended (Stafford Act) 
• 44 CFR, Emergency Management and Assistance 
• Disaster Mitigation Act of 2000 
• OMB Regulations 2 CFR, Grant and Agreements  
• Executive Order 11988, Floodplain Management 
• Executive Order 11990, Protection of Wetlands 
• Executive Order 12372, Intergovernmental Review of Programs and Activities 
• Executive Order 12549, Debarment and Suspension 
• Executive Order 12612, Federalism 
• Executive Order 12699, Seismic Design 
• Executive Order 12898, Environmental Justice 
• Coastal Barrier Resources Act, Public Law 97-348 
• Single Audit Act, Public Law 98-502 
• Sandy Recovery Improvement Act publications 
• 16 U.S.C. § 470, National Historic Preservation Act 
• 16 U.S.C. § 1531, Endangered Species Act References 
• FEMA program publications, guidance and policies 

 
F. State Requirements for Grants.  Subrecipient shall comply with all other federal, state, and 

local laws and regulations applicable to this Grant including but not limited to the laws and 
the regulations promulgated in Texas Government Code, Chapter 783, Uniform Grant and 
Contract Management, (UGMS) at: 

 http://www.window.state.tx.us/procurement/catrad/ugms.pdf  
 and the program State Administrative Plan, available at: 
 http://www.txdps.state.tx.us/dem/GrantsResources/index.htm.  

http://www.window.state.tx.us/procurement/catrad/ugms.pdf
http://www.txdps.state.tx.us/dem/GrantsResources/index.htm


  
Page 3 of 18 

 

 Subrecipient shall, in addition to the assurances and certifications, comply and require each 
of its subcontractors employed in the completion of the project to comply with all applicable 
statutes, regulations, executive orders, OMB circulars, terms and conditions of this Grant 
and the approved application. 

Grant funds may not be awarded to or expended by any entity which performs political 
polling.  This prohibition does not apply to a poll conducted by an academic institution as 
part of the institution’s academic mission that is not conducted for the benefit of a particular 
candidate or party. 

Grant funds may not be expended by a unit of local government unless the following 
limitations and reporting requirements are satisfied:  

1. Texas General Appropriations Act, Art. IX, Parts 2 and 3, except there is no 
requirement for increased salaries for local government employees;  

2. Texas Government Code Sections 556.004, 556.005, and 556.006, which prohibits 
using any money or vehicle to support the candidacy of any person for office, 
influencing positively or negatively the payment, loan, or gift to a person or political 
organization for a political purpose, and using Grant funds to influence the passage 
or defeat of legislation including not assisting with the funding of a lobbyist, or using 
Grant funds to pay dues to an organization with a registered lobbyist; 

3. Texas Government Code Sections 2113.012 and 2113.101, which prohibits using 
Grant funds to compensate any employee who uses alcoholic beverages on active 
duty and Subrecipient may not use Grant funds to purchase an alcoholic beverage 
and may not pay or reimburse any travel expense for an alcoholic beverage; 

4. Texas General Appropriations Act, Art. IX, Section 6.13, which requires Subrecipient 
to make every effort to attain key performance target levels associated with this 
Grant, including performance milestones, milestone time frames, and related 
performance reporting requirements; and   

5. General Appropriations Act, Art. IX, Sections 7.01 and 7.02, and Texas Government 
Code §2102.0091, which requires that this Grant may only be expended if 
Subrecipient timely completes and files its reports. 

 
G. Restrictions and General Conditions.  
 

1. Use of Funds.  DHS/FEMA Grant funds may only be used for the purposes set forth in 
this Grant, and shall be consistent with the statutory authority for this Grant.  Grant funds 
may not be used for matching funds for other Federal grants/cooperative agreements, 
lobbying, or intervention in Federal regulatory or adjudicatory proceedings.  In addition, 
Federal funds may not be used to sue the Federal government or any other government 
entity. 

2. Federal Employee Prohibition.  Federal employees are prohibited from serving in any 
capacity (paid or unpaid) on any proposal submitted under this Grant.  Federal 
employees may not receive funds under this Grant. 

3. Points of Contacts.   Within 30 calendar days of any change, Subrecipient shall notify 
DPS/TDEM of any change or correction to the Designation of Applicant’s Agent, chief 
elected official, program, and/or financial points of contact in the DPS/TDEM grant 
management system.  

4. DUNS Number. Subrecipient confirms its Data Universal Numbering Systems (DUNS) 
Number is the number listed on this Grant.  The DUNS Number is the nine digit number 



  
Page 4 of 18 

 

established and assigned by Dun and Bradstreet, Inc., at 866/705-5711 or 
http://fedgov.dnb.com/webform 

5. Central Contractor Registration and Universal Identifier Requirements.   Subrecipient 
maintains that it has registered on the System for Award Management (SAM) at 
www.sam.gov or other federally established site for contractor registration, and entered 
DPS/TDEM-required information.  Subrecipient shall keep current, and then review and 
update the information at least annually.  Subrecipient shall keep information current in 
the SAM database until the later of when it submits this Grant's final financial report or 
receives final Grant award payment. Subrecipient agrees that it shall not make any 
subaward agreement or contract related to this Grant without first obtaining the 
vendor/subawardee's mandatory DUNS number. See Section §200.32 of OMB 2 C.F.R.  

6. Reporting Total Compensation of Subrecipient Executives. 2 C.F.R. §200.331; see 
FEMA Information Bulletin 350.  
a. Applicability and what to report: Subrecipient shall report whether Subrecipient 

received $25 million or more in Federal procurement contracts or financial assistance 
subject to the Transparency Act per 2 C.F.R. §200.331.  Subrecipient shall report 
whether 80% or more of Subrecipient’s annual gross revenues were from Federal 
procurement contracts or Federal financial assistance.  If Subrecipient answers “yes” 
to both questions, Subrecipient shall report, along with Subrecipient's DUNS number, 
the names and total compensation (see 17 C.F.R. §229.402(c)(2)) for each of 
Subrecipient’s five most highly compensated executives for the preceding completed 
fiscal year.   

b. Where and when to report: Subrecipient shall report executive total compensation at 
www.sam.gov or other federally established replacement site.  By signing this Grant, 
Subrecipient certifies that, if required, Subrecipient's jurisdiction has already 
registered, entered the required information, and shall keep information in the SAM 
database current, and update the information at least annually for each year until the 
later of when the jurisdiction submits its final financial report or receives final 
payment. Subrecipient agrees that it shall not make any subaward agreement or 
contract without first obtaining the subawardee's mandatory DUNS number.  

7. Debarment and Suspension.  Subrecipient shall comply with Executive Order 12549 and 
12689, which provide protection against waste, fraud, and abuse by debarring or 
suspending those persons deemed irresponsible in their dealings with the Federal 
government. 

8. Direct Deposit.  If Subrecipient has not received reimbursements from DPS/TDEM within 
the past eleven (11) months (prior to date of award), it shall forward a new/updated 
direct deposit form to DPS/TDEM.  Completed direct deposit forms from Subrecipient 
shall be emailed to TDEM project officer. The email subject line and attachment name 
shall include the subrecipient name and identify the document attached (i.e. “Sample 
County DD form”). The direct deposit form is currently available at 
http://www.window.state.tx.us/taxinfo/taxforms/74-176.pdf.   

9. Property Management and Inventory.  Subrecipient shall maintain property/inventory 
records which, at minimum, shall include a description of the property, a serial number or 
other identification number, the source of property, who holds title, the acquisition date, 
the cost of the property, the percentage of Federal participation in the cost of the 
property, the location, use and condition of the property, and any ultimate disposition 
data including the date of disposal and sale price of the property  Subrecipient shall 
develop and implement a control system to prevent loss, damage or theft of property and 
Subrecipient shall investigate and document any loss, damage or theft of property 
funded under this Grant. 

http://fedgov.dnb.com/webform
http://www.sam.gov
http://www.sam.gov
http://www.window.state.tx.us/taxinfo/taxforms/74-176.pdf


  
Page 5 of 18 

 

10. Site Visits. DHS and/or DPS/TDEM, through its authorized representatives, have the 
right at all reasonable times to make site visits to review project accomplishments and 
management control systems and to provide such technical assistance as may be 
required. If any site visit is made by DHS on the premises of Subrecipient or a contractor 
under this Grant, Subrecipient shall provide and shall require its contractors to provide 
all reasonable facilities and assistance for the safety and convenience of the government 
representatives in the performance of their duties.  All site visits and evaluations shall be 
performed in such a manner that will not unduly delay the work. 

 
H. Procurement and Contracting. 

1. Procurements.  Subrecipient shall comply with all applicable federal, state, and local 
laws and requirements, including but not limited to proper competitive solicitation 
processes where required, for any procurement which utilizes federal funds awarded 
under this Grant in accordance with 2 C.F.R. 200. 318 

2. Contract Provisions.  All contracts executed using funds awarded under this Grant shall 
contain the contract provisions listed under 2 C.F.R. 200.326 and Appendix II (A), 
Uniform Administrative Requirements for Grants and Cooperative Agreements to State 
and Local Governments. 

3. Procurement activities must follow the most restrictive of Federal, State and Local 
procurement regulations:  

a. Procurement by micro purchase 
b. Procurement by small purchase 
c. Procurement by sealed bid 
d. Procurement by competitive proposal 
e. Procurement by non-competitive proposal, solely when the award of a contract is 

unfeasible under the other methods  
 

The State must be contacted for approval to use a noncompetitive procurement method. 
Failure to follow eligible procurement methods will result in ineligible costs. Other types 
of agreements for services must have State approval prior to use or execution. A copy of 
the local procurement policy must be provided to the State before initial payment.  

 
The cost plus a percentage of cost and percentage of construction cost methods of 
contracting are ineligible.  
 
Must perform cost/price analysis for purchases over $3000. 
 
Must negotiate profit as a separate element where required. 

 
4. Evidence of non-debarment for vendors must be documented through 

http://www.sam.gov/portal/public/SAM and 
http://www.window.state.tx.us/procurement/prog/vendor_performance/debarred/ and 
submitted for review. 

5. Comply with rules related to underutilized businesses (small and minority businesses, 
women’s enterprises and labor surplus firms) at 2 CFR 200.321 
 

I. Monitoring.  Subrecipient will be monitored periodically by federal, state or local entities, 
both programmatically and financially, to ensure that project goals, objectives, performance 
requirements, timelines, milestone completion, budget, and other program-related criteria 
are met.  

 

http://www.sam.gov/portal/public/SAM
http://www.window.state.tx.us/procurement/prog/vendor_performance/debarred/


  
Page 6 of 18 

 

DPS/TDEM, or its authorized representative, reserves the right to perform periodic 
desk/office-based and/or on-site monitoring of Subrecipient's compliance with this Grant and 
of the adequacy and timeliness of Subrecipient's performance pursuant to this Grant.  After 
each monitoring visit, DPS/TDEM shall provide Subrecipient with a written report of the 
monitor's findings.  If the monitoring report notes deficiencies in Subrecipient's performance 
under this Grant, the monitoring report shall include requirements for the timely correction of 
such deficiencies by Subrecipient.  Failure by Subrecipient to take action specified in the 
monitoring report may be cause for suspension or termination of this Grant pursuant to the 
Suspension and/or Termination Section herein. 

 
J. Audit.   

1. Audit of Federal and State Funds.  Subrecipient shall arrange for the performance of an 
annual financial and compliance audit of funds received and performances rendered 
under this Grant as required by the Single Audit Act (OMB 2 C.F.R. 200.501, formerly A-
133).  Subrecipient shall comply, as applicable, with Texas Government Code, Chapter 
783, the Uniform Grant Management Standards (UGMS), the State Uniform 
Administrative Requirements for Grants and Cooperative Agreements. 

2. Right to Audit.  Subrecipient shall give the United States Department of Homeland 
Security (DHS), Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA), the Comptroller 
General of the United States, the Texas State Auditor, DPS/TDEM, or any of their duly 
authorized representatives, access to and the right to conduct a financial or compliance 
audit of Grant funds received and performances rendered under this 
Grant.  Subrecipient shall permit DPS/TDEM or its authorized representative to audit 
Subrecipient’s records. Subrecipient shall provide any documents, materials or 
information necessary to facilitate such audit. 

3. Subrecipient’s Liability for Disallowed Costs.  Subrecipient understands and agrees that 
it shall be liable to DPS/TDEM for any costs disallowed pursuant to any financial or 
compliance audit(s) of these funds.  Subrecipient further understands and agrees that 
reimbursement to DPS/TDEM of such disallowed costs shall be paid by Subrecipient 
from funds that were not provided or otherwise made available to Subrecipient pursuant 
to this Grant or any other federal contract.  

4. Subrecipient’s Facilitation of Audit.  Subrecipient shall take such action to facilitate the 
performance of such audit(s) conducted pursuant to this Section as DPS/TDEM may 
require of Subrecipient.  Subrecipient shall ensure that this clause concerning the 
authority to audit funds received indirectly by subcontractors through Subrecipient and 
the requirement to cooperate is included in any subcontract it awards. 

5. State Auditor’s Clause.  Subrecipient understands that acceptance of funds under this 
Grant acts as acceptance of the authority of the State Auditor’s Office to conduct an 
audit or investigation in connection with those funds.  Subrecipient further agrees to 
cooperate fully with the State Auditor’s Office in the conduct of the audit or investigation, 
including providing all records requested.  Subrecipient shall ensure that this clause 
concerning the State Auditor’s Office’s authority to audit funds and the requirement to 
cooperate fully with the State Auditor’s Office is included in any subgrants or 
subcontracts it awards.  Additionally, the State Auditor’s Office shall at any time have 
access to and the rights to examine, audit, excerpt, and transcribe any pertinent books, 
documents, working papers, and records of Subrecipient relating to this Grant. 

  



  
Page 7 of 18 

 

 
K. Retention and Accessibility of Records.   

1. Retention of Records.  Subrecipient shall maintain fiscal records and supporting 
documentation for all expenditures of this Grant’s funds pursuant to the applicable OMB 
2 C.F.R.  Subpart D – Post Federal Award Requirements, of Part 200 UGMS §__.42, 
and this Grant.  Subrecipient shall retain these records and any supporting 
documentation for a minimum of three (3) years from the later of the completion of this 
project's public objective, submission of the final expenditure report, any litigation, 
dispute, or audit.  Records shall be retained for three (3) years after any real estate or 
equipment final disposition.  The DHS or DPS/TDEM may direct Subrecipient to retain 
documents or to transfer certain records to DHS custody when DHS determines that the 
records possess long term retention value. 

2. Access to Records.  Subrecipient shall give the United States Department of Homeland 
Security, the Comptroller General of the United States, the Texas State Auditor, 
DPS/TDEM, or any of its duly authorized representatives, access to and the right to 
examine all books, accounts, records, reports, files, other papers, things or property 
belonging to or in use by Subrecipient pertaining to this Grant including records 
concerning the past use of DHS/FEMA funds. Such rights to access shall continue as 
long as the records are retained by Subrecipient. 

 
L. Changes, Amendments, Suspension or Termination   

1. Modification.  FEMA or DPS/TDEM may modify this Grant after an award has been 
made.    Once notification has been made in writing, any subsequent request for funds 
indicates Subrecipient’s acceptance of the changes to this Grant.  Any alteration, 
addition, or deletion to this Grant by Subrecipient is not valid. 

2. Effect of Changes in Federal and State Laws.  Any alterations, additions, or deletions to 
this Grant that are required by changes in federal and state laws, regulations or policy 
are automatically incorporated into this Grant without written amendment to this Grant 
and shall become effective upon the date designated by such law or regulation.  In the 
event FEMA or DPS/TDEM determines that changes are necessary to this Grant after 
an award has been made, including changes to the period of performance or terms and 
conditions, Subrecipient shall be notified of the changes in writing. Once notification has 
been made, any subsequent request for funds will indicate Subrecipient’s acceptance of 
the changes to this Grant. 

3. Suspension.  In the event Subrecipient fails to comply with any term of this Grant, 
DPS/TDEM may, upon written notification to Subrecipient, suspend this Grant, in whole 
or in part, withhold payments to Subrecipient and prohibit Subrecipient from incurring 
additional obligations of this Grant’s funds. 

4. Termination.  DPS/TDEM shall have the right to terminate this Grant, in whole or in part, 
at any time before the end of the Performance Period, if DPS/TDEM determines that 
Subrecipient has failed to comply with any term of this Grant.   DPS/TDEM shall provide 
written notice of the termination and include: 
a. The reason(s) for such termination;  
b. The effective date of such termination; and  
c. In the case of partial termination, the portion of this Grant to be terminated. 
d. Appeal may be made to the Deputy Assistant Director of Texas Division of 

Emergency Management- Recovery Mitigation and Standards, Texas Department of 
Public Safety. 

 
M. Enforcement.  If Subrecipient materially fails to comply with any term of this Grant, whether 

stated in a federal or state statute or regulation, an assurance, in a state plan or application, 



  
Page 8 of 18 

 

a notice of award, or elsewhere, DPS/TDEM or DHS may take one or more of the following 
actions, as appropriate in the circumstances: 
1. Increased monitoring of projects and require additional financial and performance 

reports 
2. Require payments as reimbursements rather than advance payments 
3. Temporarily withhold payments pending correction of the deficiency 
4. Disallow or deny use of funds and matching credit for all or part of the cost of the 

activity or action not in compliance; 
5. Request FEMA to wholly or partially de-obligate funding for a project 
6. Temporarily withhold cash payments pending correction of the deficiency by 

subrecipient or more severe enforcement action by DPS/TDEM or DHS; 
7. Withhold further awards for the grant program 
8. Take other remedies that may be legally available 
 
In taking an enforcement action, DPS/TDEM will provide Subrecipient an opportunity for a 
hearing, appeal, or other administrative proceeding to which Subrecipient is entitled under 
any statute or regulation applicable to the action involved. 
 
The costs of Subrecipient resulting from obligations incurred by Subrecipient during a 
suspension or after termination of this Grant are not allowable unless DPS/TDEM or DHS 
expressly authorizes them in the notice of suspension or termination or subsequently.   
 
Other Subrecipient costs during suspension or after termination which are necessary and 
not reasonably avoidable are allowable if: 
• The costs result from obligations which were properly incurred by Subrecipient before 

the effective date of suspension or termination, are not in anticipation of it, and in the 
case of a termination, are non-cancellable; and 

• The costs would be allowable if this Grant were not suspended or expired normally at 
the end of the funding period in which the termination takes effects. 

 
The enforcement remedies identified in this section, including suspension and termination, 
do not preclude Subrecipient from being subject to “Debarment and Suspension” under E.O. 
12549.  2 C.F.R., Appendix II to Part 200, (I). 
 

N. Conflicts of Interest.  The subrecipient will maintain written standards of conduct covering 
conflicts of interest and governing the actions of its employees engaged in the selection, 
award and administration of contracts and will establish safeguards to prohibit employees 
from using their positions for a purpose that constitutes or presents the appearance of 
personal or organizational conflict of interest or personal gain. 
 

O. Closing of this Grant.  DPS/TDEM will close a subaward after receiving all required final 
documentation from the Subrecipient.  If the close out review and reconciliation indicates 
that Subrecipient is owed additional funds, DPS/TDEM will send the final payment 
automatically to Subrecipient.  If Subrecipient did not use all the funds received, 
DPS/TDEM will recover the unused funds.   

 
At the completion of Subrecipient’s performance period, DPS/TDEM will de-obligate all 
uncommitted funds and de-obligate all unexpended funds if final documentation is not 
received by the deadline.  



  
Page 9 of 18 

 

The closeout of this Grant does not affect: 
1. DHS or DPS/TDEM’s right to disallow costs and recover funds on the basis of a later 

audit or other review; 
2. Subrecipient’s obligation to return any funds due as a result of later refunds, corrections, 

or other transactions; 
3. Records retention requirements, property management requirements, and audit 

requirements, as set forth herein; and 
4. Any other provisions of this Grant that impose continuing obligations on Subrecipient or 

that govern the rights and limitations of the parties to this Grant after the expiration or 
termination of this Grant.   



  
Page 10 of 18 

 

EXHIBIT A 
ASSURANCES - NON-CONSTRUCTION PROGRAMS See Standard Form 424B 
As the duly authorized representative of Subrecipient, I certify that Subrecipient: 
 

1.     Has the legal authority to apply for Federal assistance and the institutional, 
managerial and financial capability (including funds sufficient to pay the non-
Federal share of project cost) to ensure proper planning, management and 
completion of the project described in this Grant. 

 
2.      Will give the Department of Homeland Security, the Department of Public 

Safety, the Comptroller General of the United States and, if appropriate, the 
State, through any authorized representative, access to and the right to 
examine all records, books, papers, or documents related to this Grant and 
will establish a proper accounting system in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting standards or agency directives. 

 
3.      Will establish safeguards to prohibit employees from using their positions for 

a purpose that constitutes or presents the appearance of personal or 
organizational conflict of interest or personal gain. 

 
4.      Will initiate and complete the work within the applicable time frame after 

receipt of approval of the awarding agency. 
 
5.      Will comply with the Intergovernmental Personnel Act of 1970 (42 U.S.C. 

§§4728-4763) relating to prescribed  standards for merit systems for 
programs funded under one of the 19 statutes or regulations specified in 
Appendix A of OPM's Standards for a Merit System of Personnel 
Administration (5 C.F.R. 900, Subpart F). 

 
6.  Will comply with all Federal statutes relating to nondiscrimination. These 

include but are not limited to: (a) Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (P.L. 
88-352) which prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, color or national 
origin; (b) Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, as amended (20 
U.S.C. §§1681-1683, and 1685-1686 and 44 C.F.R. Part 19), which prohibits 
discrimination on the basis of sex; (c) Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act 
of 1973, as amended (29 U.S.C. §794), which prohibits discrimination on the 
basis of handicaps; (d) the Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended (42 
U.S.C. §§6101-6107), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of age; (e) 
the Drug Abuse Office and Treatment Act of 1972 (P.L. 92-255), as 
amended, relating to nondiscrimination on the basis of drug abuse; (f) the 
Comprehensive Alcohol Abuse and Alcoholism Prevention, Treatment and 
Rehabilitation Act of 1970 (P.L. 91-616), as amended, relating to 
nondiscrimination on the basis of alcohol abuse or alcoholism; (g) §§523 
and 527 of the Public Health Service Act of 1912 (42 U.S.C. §§290dd-3 and 
290ee-3), as amended, relating to confidentiality of alcohol and drug abuse 
patient records; (h) Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. 
§§3601 et seq.), as amended, relating to nondiscrimination in the sale, rental 
or financing of housing; (i) any other nondiscrimination provisions in the 
specific statute(s) under which agreement for Federal assistance is being 
made; and (j) the requirements of any other nondiscrimination statute(s) 
which may apply to the application. 

 
7.      Will comply or has already complied with the requirements of Titles II and III 

of the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies 
Act of 1970 (P.L. 91-646) which provide for fair and equitable treatment of 
persons displaced or whose property is acquired as a result of Federal or 
federally-assisted programs. These requirements apply to all interests in real 
property acquired for project purposes regardless of Federal participation in 
purchases. 

 
8.     Will comply, as applicable, with provisions of the Hatch Act (5 U.S.C. §§1501-

1508 and 7324-7328) which limit the political activities of employees whose 
principal employment activities are funded in whole or in part with Federal 
funds. 

 
9.      Will comply, as applicable, with the provisions of the Davis-Bacon Act (40 

U.S.C. §§276a to 276a-7), the Copeland Act (40 U.S.C. §276c and 18 
U.S.C. §874), and the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 
U.S.C. §§327-333), regarding labor standards for federally-assisted 
construction sub-agreements. 

 
10.    Will comply, if applicable, with flood insurance purchase requirements of 

Section 102(a) of the Flood Disaster Protection Act of 1973 (P.L. 93-234) 
which requires recipients in a special flood hazard area to participate in the 
program and to purchase flood insurance if the total cost of insurable 
construction and acquisition is $10,000 or more.  

 
11.   Will comply with environmental standards which may be prescribed pursuant 

to the following: (a) institution of environmental quality control measures 
under the National Environmental Policy Act of 1969 (P.L. 91-190 as 
amended by 42 U.S.C. 4311 et seq. and Executive Order (EO) 11514) which 

establishes national policy goals and procedures to protect and enhance the 
environment, including protection against natural disasters.  To comply with 
NEPA for DHS grant-supported activities, DHS-FEMA requires the 
environmental aspects to be reviewed and evaluated before final action on 
the application; (b) notification of violating facilities pursuant to EO 11738; 
(c) protection of wetlands pursuant to EO 11990; (d) evaluation of flood 
hazards in floodplains in accordance with EO 11988; (e) assurance of 
project consistency with the approved State management program 
developed under the Coastal Zone Management Act of 1972 (16 U.S.C. 
§§1451 et seq.); (f) comply with the Clean Air Act of 1977,  (42 U.S.C. 
§§7401 et seq. and Executive Order 11738) providing for the protection of 
and enhancement of the quality of the nation’s air resources to promote 
public health and welfare and for restoring and maintaining the chemical, 
physical, and biological integrity of the nation’s waters; (g) protection of 
underground sources of drinking water under the Safe Drinking Water Act of 
1974, as amended (P.L. 93-523); and, (h) protection of endangered species 
under the Endangered Species Act of 1973, as amended (P.L. 93- 205). 

 
12.   Will comply with the Wild and Scenic Rivers Act of 1968 (16 U.S.C. §§1271 et 

seq.) related to protecting components or potential components of the 
national wild and scenic rivers system. 

 
13.   Will assist the awarding agency in assuring compliance with Section 106 of 

the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966, as amended (16 U.S.C. 
§470), EO 11593 (identification and protection of historic properties), and the 
Archaeological and Historic Preservation Act of 1974 (16 U.S.C. §§469a-1 et 
seq.). 

 
14.   Will comply with P.L. 93-348, 45 C.F.R. 46, and DHS Management Directive 

026-044 (Directive) regarding the protection of human subjects involved in 
research, development, and related activities supported by this Grant.  
“Research” means a systematic investigation, including research, 
development, testing, and evaluation designed to develop or contribute to 
general knowledge.  See Directive for additional provisions for including 
humans in the womb, pregnant women, and neonates (Subpart B); prisoners 
(Subpart C); and children (Subpart D).  See also state and local law for 
research using autopsy materials. 

 
15.   Will comply with the Laboratory Animal Welfare Act of 1966 (P.L. 89-544, as 

amended, 7 U.S.C. §§2131 et seq.) which requires the minimum standards 
of care and treatment for vertebrate animals bred for commercial sale, used 
in research, transported commercially, or exhibited to the public according to 
the Guide for Care and Use of Laboratory Animals and Public Health 
Service Policy and Government Principals Regarding the Care and Use of 
Animals. 

16.   Will comply with the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act (42 U.S.C. 
§§4801 et seq.) which prohibits the use of lead-based paint in construction 
or rehabilitation of residence structures. 

17.   Will cause to be performed the required financial and compliance audits in 
accordance with the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996 and OMB 
Circular No. A-133 (now OMB 2 C.F.R. 200.500), "Audits of States, Local 
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations." 

18.   Will comply with all applicable requirements of all other Federal laws, 
executive orders, regulations, grant guidance, and policies governing this 
Grant.  

 



  
Page 11 of 18 

 

EXHIBIT B 
ASSURANCES - CONSTRUCTION PROGRAMS See Standard Form 424D 
As the duly authorized representative of Subrecipient, I certify that Subrecipient: 
 
1. Has the legal authority to apply for Federal assistance, and the 

institutional, managerial and financial capability (including funds 
sufficient to pay the non-Federal share of project costs) to ensure 
proper planning, management and completion of project described in 
this Grant.  

2. Will give the Department of Homeland Security, the Department of 
Public Safety, the Comptroller General of the United States and, if 
appropriate, the State, the right to examine all records, books, papers, 
or documents related to this Grant and will establish a proper 
accounting system in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
standards or agency directives. 

3.  Will not dispose of, modify the use of, or change the terms of the real 
property title or other interest in the site and facilities without 
permission and instructions from the awarding agency. Will record the 
Federal awarding agency directives and will include a covenant in the 
title of real property acquired in whole or in part with Federal assistance 
funds to assure nondiscrimination during the useful life of this Grant. 

4. Will comply with the requirements of the assistance awarding agency 
with regard to the drafting, review and approval of construction plans 
and specifications.  

5. Will provide and maintain competent and adequate engineering 
supervision at the construction site to ensure that the complete work 
conforms with the approved plans and specifications and will furnish 
progressive reports and such other information as may be required by 
the awarding agency or State.  

6. Will initiate and complete the work within the applicable time frame 
after receipt of approval of the awarding agency.  

7. Will establish safeguards to prohibit employees from using their 
positions for a purpose that constitutes or presents the appearance of 
personal or organizational conflict of interest or personal gain. 

8. Will comply with the Intergovernmental Personnel Act of 1970 (42 
U.S.C. §§4728-4763) relating to prescribed standards of merit systems 
for programs funded under one of the 19 statutes or regulations 
specified in Appendix A of OPM's Standards for a Merit System of 
Personnel Administration (5 C.F.R. 900, Subpart F). 

9. Will comply with the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act (42 
U.S.C. §§4801 et seq.) which prohibits the use of lead-based paint in 
construction or rehabilitation of residence structures.  

10. Will comply with all Federal statutes relating to nondiscrimination. 
These include but are not limited to: (a) Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 
1964 (P.L. 88-352) which prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, 
color or national origin; (b) Title IX of the Education Amendments of 
1972, as amended (20 U.S.C. §§1681 1683, and 1685-1686 and 44 
C.F.R. Part 19), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of sex; (c) 
Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended (29) U.S.C. 
§794), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of handicaps; (d) the 
Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended (42 U.S.C. §§6101-6107), 
which prohibits discrimination on the basis of age; (e) the Drug Abuse 
Office and Treatment Act of 1972 (P.L. 92-255), as amended relating to 
nondiscrimination on the basis of drug abuse; (f) the Comprehensive 
Alcohol Abuse and Alcoholism Prevention, Treatment and  
rehabilitation Act of 1970 (P.L. 91-616), as amended, relating to 
nondiscrimination on the basis of alcohol abuse or alcoholism; (g) 
§§523 and 527 of the Public Health Service Act of 1912 (42 U.S.C. 
§§290dd-3 and 290ee-3), as amended, relating to confidentiality of 
alcohol and drug abuse patient records; (h) Title VIII of the Civil Rights 
Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. §§3601 et seq.), as amended, relating to  
nondiscrimination in the sale, rental or financing of housing; (i) any 
other nondiscrimination provisions in the specific statue(s) under which 
agreement for Federal assistance is being made; and (j) the 

requirements of any other nondiscrimination statue(s) which may apply 
to the agreement. 

11. Will comply or has already complied with the requirements of Titles II 
and III of the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property 
Acquisition Policies Act of 1970 (P.L. 91-646) which provide for fair and 
equitable treatment of persons displaced or whose property is acquired 
as a result of Federal and federally-assisted programs. These 
requirements apply to all interests in real property acquired for project 
purposes regardless of Federal participation in purchases.  

12. Will comply with the provisions of the Hatch Act (5 U.S.C. §§1501-1508 
and 7324-7328) which limit the political activities of employees whose 
principal employment activities are funded in whole or in part with 
Federal funds. 

13.   Will comply, as applicable, with the provisions of the Davis-Bacon Act 
(40 U.S.C. §§276a to 276a-7), the Copeland Act (40 U.S.C. §276c and 
18 U.S.C. §874), and the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards 
Act (40 U.S.C. §§327- 333) regarding labor standards for federally-
assisted construction sub-agreements. 

14. Will comply with flood insurance purchase requirements of Section 
102(a) of the Flood Disaster Protection Act of 1973 (P.L. 93-234) which 
requires recipients in a special flood hazard area to participate in the 
program and to purchase flood insurance if the total cost of insurable 
construction and acquisition is $10,000 or more. 

15. Will comply with environmental standards which may be prescribed 
pursuant to the following: (a) institution of environmental quality control 
measures under the National Environmental Policy Act of 1969 (P.L. 
91- 190) as amended by 42 U.S.C. 4311 et seq. and Executive Order 
(EO) 11514 which establishes national policy goals and procedures to 
protect and enhance the environment, including protection against 
natural disasters; (b) notification of violating facilities pursuant to EO 
11738; (c) protection of wetlands pursuant to EO 11990; (d) evaluation 
of flood hazards in floodplains in accordance with EO 11988; (e) 
assurance of project consistency with the approved State management 
program developed under the Coastal Zone Management Act of 1972 
(16 U.S.C. §§1451 et seq.); (f) comply with the Clean Air Act of 1977,  
(42 U.S.C. §§7401 et seq. and Executive Order 11738) providing for 
the protection of and enhancement of the quality of the nation’s air 
resources to promote public health and welfare and for restoring and 
maintaining the chemical, physical, and biological integrity of the 
nation’s waters; (g) protection of underground sources of drinking water 
under the Safe Drinking Water Act of 1974, as amended (P.L. 93-523); 
and, (h) protection of endangered species under the Endangered 
Species Act of 1973, as amended (P.L. 93-205).  

16. Will comply with the Wild and Scenic Rivers Act of 1968 (16 U.S.C. 
§§1271 et seq.) related to protecting components or potential 
components of the national wild and scenic rivers system.  

17. Will assist the awarding agency in assuring compliance with Section 
106 of the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966, as amended (16 
U.S.C. §470), EO 11593 (identification and protection of historic 
properties), and the Archaeological and Historic  Preservation Act of 
1974 (16 U.S.C. §§469a-1 et seq).  

18. Will cause to be performed the required financial and compliance 
audits in accordance with the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996 
and OMB Circular No. A-133 (now OMB 2 C.F.R. 200.500), "Audits of 
States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations." 

19. Will comply with all applicable requirements of all other Federal laws, 
executive orders, regulations, grant guidance and policies governing 
this Grant.  

 
 



  
Page 12 of 18 

 

Exhibit C  
Certifications for Grant Agreements  

The undersigned, as the authorized official, certifies the following to the best of his/her knowledge and belief.  

A. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned to any person for influencing or 
attempting to influence an officer or employee of an agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an 
employee or a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any Federal grant, the 
making of any Federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, 
or modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement. 

B. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or attempting to 
influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee or a 
Member of Congress in connection with this Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall 
complete and submit Standard Form-LLL Disclosure of Lobbying Activities, in accordance with its instructions. 

C.  The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification prohibiting lobbying be included in the award documents for all 
subawards at all tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants, and contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that 
all subrecipients shall certify and disclose accordingly. This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was 
placed when this transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into 
this transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject 
to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such failure. 

D.  As required by Executive Order 12549, Debarment and Suspension, and implemented at 28 C.F.R. Part 67, for prospective 
participants in primary covered transactions, as defined at 28 C.F.R. Part 67, Section 67.510. (Federal Certification), the 
Subrecipient certifies that it and its principals and vendors: 

1. Are not debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, sentenced to a denial of Federal benefits by a 
State or Federal court, or voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency. Subrecipient 
can access debarment information by going to www.sam.gov and the State Debarred Vendor List at: 
www.window.state.tx.us/procurement/prog/vendor_performance/debarred. 

2. Have not within a three-year period preceding this Grant been convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against them for 
commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, 
State, or local) transaction or contract under a public transaction, violation of Federal or State antitrust statutes or commission 
of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen 
property; 

3. Are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity (Federal, State, or local) with 
commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (D)(2) of this certification;  

4. Have not within a three-year period preceding this Grant had one or more public transactions (Federal, State, or local) 
terminated for cause or default; or  

5.  Where Subrecipient is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification, he or she shall attach an explanation to 
this Grant. (Federal Certification). 

E. Federal funds will be used to supplement existing funds, and will not replace (supplant) funds that have been appropriated for the 
same purpose.  Subrecipient may be required to supply documentation certifying that a reduction in non-federal resources 
occurred for reasons other than the receipt or expected receipt of federal funds. 

F.  Subrecipient will comply with 2 C.F.R. Part 180, Subpart C as a condition of receiving grant funds and Subrecipient will require 
such compliance in any subgrants or contract at the next tier. 

G  Subrecipient will comply with the Drug-free Workplace Act, as amended, 412 U.S.C. §701 et seq., which requires Subrecipient to 
publish a statement about its drug-free workplace program and give a copy of the statement to each employee (including 
consultants and temporary  personnel) who will be involved in award-supported activities at any site where these activities will be 
carried out. Also, places where work is being performed under the award (i.e., street address, city, state, and zip code) must be 
maintained on file. Subrecipient will notify the Grants Officer of any employee convicted of a violation of a criminal drug statute that 
occurs in the workplace. For additional information, see 44 C.F.R. Part 17.  Subrecipient shall comply with the requirements of the 
Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988, which requires that all organizations receiving grants from any Federal agency agree to 
maintain a drug-free workplace. 

H. Subrecipient is not delinquent on any Federal debt.  Examples of relevant debt include delinquent payroll and other taxes, audit 
disallowances, and benefit overpayments.  See OMB Circular A-129 and form SF-424, item number 17 for additional information 
and guidance. 

I. Subrecipient will comply with all applicable requirements of all other federal laws, executive orders, regulations, program and 
administrative requirements, policies and any other requirements governing this Grant. 

J. Subrecipient understands that failure to comply with any of the above assurances may result in suspension, termination or 
reduction of funds in this Grant. 

http://www.sam.gov
http://www.window.state.tx.us/procurement/prog/vendor_performance/debarred


  
Page 13 of 18 

 

EXHIBIT D 

State of Texas Assurances  

As the duly authorized representative of Subrecipient, I certify that Subrecipient:  
 
1. Shall comply with Texas Government Code, Chapter 573, by ensuring that no officer, employee, or member of the Subrecipient’s 

governing body or of the Subrecipient’s contractor shall vote or confirm the employment of any person related within the second degree of 
affinity or the third degree of consanguinity to any member of the governing body or to any other officer or employee authorized to employ 
or supervise such person. This prohibition shall not prohibit the employment of a person who shall have been continuously employed for a 
period of two years, or such other period stipulated by local law, prior to the election or appointment of the officer, employee, or governing 
body member related to such person in the prohibited degree. 

2. Shall insure that all information collected, assembled, or maintained by the Subrecipient relative to a project will be available to the public 
during normal business hours in compliance with Texas Government Code, Chapter 552, unless otherwise expressly prohibited by law. 

3. Shall comply with Texas Government Code, Chapter 551, which requires all regular, special, or called meetings of governmental bodies to 
be open to the public, except as otherwise provided by law or specifically permitted in the Texas Constitution. 

4. Shall comply with Section 231.006, Texas Family Code, which prohibits payments to a person who is in arrears on child support payments. 

5.  Shall not contract with or issue a license, certificate, or permit to the owner, operator, or administrator of a facility if the Subrecipient is a 
health, human services, public safety, or law enforcement agency and the license, permit, or certificate has been revoked by another 
health and human services agency or public safety or law enforcement agency. 

6. Shall comply with all rules adopted by the Texas Commission on Law Enforcement pursuant to Chapter 1701, Texas Occupations Code, 
or shall provide the grantor agency with a certification from the Texas Commission on Law Enforcement that the agency is in the process 
of achieving compliance with such rules if the Subrecipient is a law enforcement agency regulated by Texas Occupations Code, Chapter 
1701. 

7.  Shall follow all assurances. When incorporated into a grant award or contract, standard assurances contained in the application package 
become terms or conditions for receipt of grant funds. Administering state agencies and subrecipients shall maintain an appropriate 
contract administration system to insure that all terms, conditions, and specifications are met.   (See UGMS Section _.36 for additional 
guidance on contract provisions). 

8.  Shall comply with the Texas Family Code, Section 261.101, which requires reporting of all suspected cases of child abuse to local law 
enforcement authorities and to the Texas Department of Child Protective and Regulatory Services.  Subrecipient shall also ensure that all 
program personnel are properly trained and aware of this requirement. 

9. Shall comply with all federal statutes relating to nondiscrimination.  These include but are not limited to: (a) Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 
1964 (P.L. 88-352), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, color, or national origin; (b) Title IX of the Education Amendments 
of 1972, as amended (20 U.S.C. §§1681-1683, and 1685-1686), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of sex; (c) Section 504 of the 
Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended (29 U.S.C. §794), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of handicaps and the Americans with 
Disabilities Act of 1990 including Titles I, II, and III of the Americans with Disability Act which prohibits recipients from discriminating on the 
basis of disability in the operation of public entities, public and private transportation systems, places of public accommodation, and certain 
testing entities, 44 U.S.C. §§ 12101-12213; (d) the Age Discrimination Act of 1974, as amended (42 U.S.C. §§6101-6107), which prohibits 
discrimination on the basis of age; (e) the Drug Abuse Office and Treatment Act of 1972 (P.L. 92-255), as amended, relating to 
nondiscrimination on the basis of drug abuse; (f) the Comprehensive Alcohol Abuse and Alcoholism Prevention, Treatment, and 
Rehabilitation Act of 1970 (P.L. 91-616), as amended, relating to the nondiscrimination on the basis of alcohol abuse or alcoholism; (g) 
§§523 and 527 of the Public Health Service Act of 1912 (42 U.S.C. §§290dd-3 and 290ee-3), as amended, relating to confidentiality of 
alcohol and drug abuse patient records; (h) Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. §§3601 et seq.), as amended, relating to 
nondiscrimination in the sale, rental, or financing of housing; (i) any other nondiscrimination provisions in the specific statute(s) under 
which application for Federal assistance is being made; and (j) the requirements of any other nondiscrimination statute(s) which may apply 
to this Grant. 

10. Shall comply, as applicable, with the provisions of the Davis-Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. §§276a to 276a-7), the Copeland Act (40 U.S.C. §276c 
and 18 U.S.C. §874), and the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. §§327-333), regarding labor standards for 
federally assisted construction subagreements. 

11. Shall comply with requirements of the provisions of the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisitions Act of 1970 (P.L. 
91-646), which provide for fair and equitable treatment of persons displaced or whose property is acquired as a result of Federal or 
federally assisted programs.  These requirements apply to all interests in real property acquired for project purposes regardless of Federal 
participation in purchases. 

12. Shall comply with the provisions of the Hatch Political Activity Act (5 U.S.C. §§7321-29), which limit the political activity of employees 
whose principal employment activities are funded in whole or in part with Federal funds. 

13. Shall comply with the minimum wage and maximum hours provisions of the Federal Fair Labor Standards Act and the Intergovernmental 
Personnel Act of 1970, as applicable. 

14. Shall insure that the facilities under its ownership, lease, or supervision which shall be utilized in the accomplishment of the project are not 
listed on the Environmental Protection Agency’s (EPA) list of Violating Facilities and that it will notify the Federal grantor agency of the 
receipt of any communication from the Director of the EPA Office of Federal Activities indicating that a facility to be used in the project is 
under consideration for listing by the EPA (EO 11738). 



  
Page 14 of 18 

 

15.  Shall comply with the flood insurance purchase requirements of Section 102(a) of the Flood Disaster Protection Act of 1973, Public Law 
93-234. Section 102(a) requires the purchase of flood insurance in communities where such insurance is available as a condition for the 
receipt of any Federal financial assistance for construction or acquisition proposed for use in any area that has been identified by the 
Secretary of the Department of Housing and Urban Development as an area having special flood hazards.  

 
16.  Shall comply with environmental standards which may be prescribed pursuant to the following: (a) institution of environmental quality 

control measures under the National Environmental Policy Act of 1969 (P.L. 91-190) and Executive Order (EO) 11514; (b) notification of 
violating facilities pursuant to EO 11738; (c) protection of wetlands pursuant to EO 11990; (d) evaluation of flood hazards in floodplains in 
accordance with EO 11988; (e) assurance of project consistency with the approved state management program developed under the 
Coastal Zone Management Act of 1972 (16 U.S.C. §§1451 et seq.); (f) conformity of federal actions to State (Clear Air) Implementation 
Plans under Section 176(c) of the Clear Air Act of 1955, as amended (42 U.S.C. §§7401 et seq.); (g) protection of underground sources of 
drinking water under the Safe Drinking Water Act of 1974, as amended (P.L. 93-523); and (h) protection of endangered species under the 
Endangered Species Act of 1973, as amended (P.L. 93-205).  

17.  Shall comply with the Wild and Scenic Rivers Act of 1968 (16 U.S.C. §§1271 et seq.) related to protecting components or potential 
components of the national wild and scenic rivers system. 

18. Shall assist the awarding agency in assuring compliance with Section 106 of the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966, as amended 
(16 U.S.C. §470), EO 11593 (identification and protection of historic properties), and the Archaeological and Historic Preservation Act of 
1974 (16 U.S.C. §§469a-1 et seq.). 

19. Shall comply with the Laboratory Animal Welfare Act of 1966 (P.L. 89-544, as amended, 7 U.S.C. §§2131 et seq.) which requires the 
minimum standards of care and treatment for vertebrate animals bred for commercial sale, used in research, transported commercially, or 
exhibited to the public according to the Guide for Care and Use of Laboratory Animals and Public Health Service Policy and Government 
Principals Regarding the Care and Use of Animals. 

20.  Shall comply with the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act (42 U.S.C. §§4801 et seq.) which prohibits the use of lead-based paint 
in construction or rehabilitation of residential structures. 

21. Shall comply with the Pro-Children Act of 1994 (Public Law 103-277), which prohibits smoking within any portion of any indoor facility used 
for the provision of services for children. 

22. Shall comply with all federal tax laws and are solely responsible for filing all required state and federal tax forms. 

23. Shall comply with all applicable requirements of all other federal and state laws, executive orders, regulations, and policies governing this 
program. 

24. And its principals are eligible to participate and have not been subjected to suspension, debarment, or similar ineligibility determined by 
any federal, state, or local governmental entity and it is not listed on a state or federal government’s terrorism watch list as described in 
Executive Order 13224.  Entities ineligible for federal procurement have Exclusions listed at https://www.sam.gov/portal/public/SAM/. 

25. Shall adopt and implement applicable provisions of the model HIV/AIDS work place guidelines of the Texas Department of Health as 
required by the Texas Health and Safety Code, Ann., Sec. 85.001, et seq. 

 

https://www.sam.gov/portal/public/SAM/


  
Page 15 of 18 

 

EXHIBIT E 

Environmental Review  

As the duly authorized representative of Subrecipient, I certify that Subrecipient: 

1. shall assess its federally funded projects for potential impact to environmental resources and historic properties.   

2. shall submit any required screening form(s) as soon as possible and shall comply with deadlines established by DPS/TDEM. 
Timelines for the Environmental Planning and Historic Preservation (EHP) review process will vary based upon the complexity of 
the project and the potential for environmental or historical impact.   

3. shall include sufficient review time within its project management plan to comply with EHP requirements.  Initiation of any activity 
prior to completion of FEMA’s EHP review will result in a non-compliance finding and DPS/TDEM will not authorize or release 
Grant funds for non-compliant projects.  

4. as soon as possible upon receiving this Grant, shall provide information to DPS/TDEM to assist with the legally-required EHP 
review and to ensure compliance with applicable EHP laws and Executive Orders (EO) currently using the FEMA EHP Screening 
Form OMB Number 1660-0115/FEMA Form 024-0-01 and submitting it, with all supporting documentation, to DPS/TDEM for 
review. These EHP requirements include but are not limited to the National Environmental Policy Act, the National Historic 
Preservation Act, the Endangered Species Act, EO 11988 – Floodplain Management, EO 11990 – Protection of Wetlands, and EO 
12898 – Environmental Justice.  Subrecipient shall comply with all Federal, State, and local EHP requirements and shall obtain 
applicable permits and clearances.   

5. shall not undertake any activity from the project that would result in ground disturbance, facility modification, or purchase and use 
of sonar equipment without the prior approval of FEMA.  These include but are not limited to communications towers, physical 
security enhancements involving ground disturbance, new construction, and modifications to buildings.   

6. shall comply with all mitigation or treatment measures required for the project as the result of FEMA’s EHP review.  Any changes to 
an approved project description will require re-evaluation for compliance with EHP requirements before the project can proceed.   

7. if ground disturbing activities occur during project implementation, Subrecipient shall ensure monitoring of ground disturbance and 
if any potential archeological resources are discovered, Subrecipient shall immediately cease construction in that area and notify 
FEMA and the appropriate State Historical Preservation Office. 

 



  
Page 16 of 18 

 

EXHIBIT F 
 
Additional Grant Conditions 
 
1. Additional damage requiring a new Public Assistance project to be written must be reported within 60 days 

following the Kickoff meeting with the State- Federal team. 
 

2. All work must be done prior to the approved project completion deadline assigned to each Project. Should 
additional time be required, a time extension request must be submitted which: a.) Identifies the projects 
requiring an extension. b.) Explains the reason for an extension. c.) Indicates the percentage of work that 
has been completed. d.) Provides an anticipated completion date. The reason for an extension must be 
based on extenuating circumstances or unusual project requirements that are beyond the control of your 
jurisdiction/organization. Failure to submit a time extension request may result in reduction or 
withdrawal of federal funds for approved work. 

 
3. Any significant change to a project's approved Scope of Work must be reported and approved through 

TDEM and FEMA before starting the project. Failure to do so will jeopardize grant funding. 
 
4. The Project Completion and Certification Report must be returned to TDEM once all the approved work has 

been completed for each project. If any project requires the purchase of insurance as a condition of 
receiving federal funds, a copy of the current policy must be attached to this report. 

 
5. A cost overrun appeal on small ($120,000.00) Public Assistance projects must be reported to the Texas 

Division of Emergency Management (TDEM) within 60 days of completing the last small project in order to 
be considered for additional funding. 

 
6. Appeals may be filed on any determination made by FEMA or TDEM.  All appeals must be submitted to 

TDEM within 60 days from receiving written notice of the action you wish to appeal. Should you wish to 
appeal a determination contained in the project application, the 60 days will start the day the application is 
signed. 

 
7. Public Assistance program projects will not receive funding until all of the requirements identified in the 

comments section of the Project Worksheet are met. 
 
8. You may request a payment of funds on projects by completing the "Payment of Funds" request and 

including documentation supporting your request. In the event that an audit results in a reduction of the 
awarded amount of a project, the subrecipient is responsible for returning the identified overage within 30 
days of notification of the overpayment.  Small Public Assistance projects are paid upon obligation and the 
receipt of all required documentation.  Payments must be requested at least quarterly if expenditures have 
been made in that quarter. 

 
9. Projects that have not received final payment will be reviewed quarterly by TDEM representatives upon 

receipt of the Quarterly Review form from the subrecipient. Quarterly reports will be due on the following 
dates: March 15th, June 15th, September 15th & December 15th.  Public Assistance program small 
projects are exempted. 

 
10. Subrecipient with must submit a project cost summary to TDEM following the completion of each project, 

except Public Assistance program small projects. The project cost summary must list all labor, equipment, 
materials and contract costs associated with making needed repairs. 

 
11. Subrecipients expending $750,000 or more in total Federal financial assistance in a fiscal year will be 

required to provide an audit made in accordance with OMB Uniform Guidance; Cost Principles, Audit, and 
Administrative Requirements for Federal Awards, Subpart F. A copy of the Single Audit must be submitted 



  
Page 17 of 18 

 

to your cognizant State agency or TDEM within nine months of the end of the subrecipient’s fiscal year. 
Consult with your financial officer regarding this requirement. If not required to submit a single audit, a letter 
must be sent to TDEM certifying to this. 

 
12. Completed record and cost documents for all approved work must be for a minimum of three (3) years from 

the later of the completion of this project's public objective, submission of the final expenditure report, any 
litigation, dispute, or audit.  Records shall be retained for three (3) years after any real estate or equipment 
final disposition.  The DHS or DPS/TDEM may direct Subrecipient to retain documents or to transfer certain 
records to DHS custody when DHS determines that the records possess long term retention value. During 
this time, all approved projects are subject to State and Federal audit/review. 

 
13. Subrecipients will not make any award to any party which is debarred or suspended, or is otherwise 

excluded from participation in the Federal assistance programs (EO 12549, Debarment and Suspension). 
Subrecipient must maintain documentation validating review of debarment list of eligible contractors. 

 
14. Subrecipients must keep record of equipment acquired by federal funds for the life cycle of the equipment. 

A life cycle for most equipment will be three years, but could be longer. If the fair market value of a piece of 
equipment is valued over $5,000, FEMA will have the right to a portion of proceeds if equipment is sold.  If 
the fair market value of a piece of equipment is less than $5,000, the property can either be retained, sold 
or designated as surplus with no further obligation to FEMA. 

 
 
 



  
Page 18 of 18 

 

EXHIBIT G 

Additional Grant Certifications  

Match Certification 
 

Applicant certifies that they have the ability to meet the or exceed the cost share required of this project. 

 

Duplication of Program Statement 
 

Applicant certifies there has not been, nor will there be, a duplication of benefits for this project. 

 

For Hazard Mitigation Projects Only:   

Maintenance Agreement 
 

Applicant certifies that if there is a Maintenance Agreement needed for this facility copy of that agreement will be 
provided to TDEM. 

 

Environmental Justice Statement 
  

Federal Executive Order 12898 compliance requirements – If there are any concentrations of low income or 
minority populations in or near the HMGP project:  

 

1. Applicant certifies that the HMGP project result will not result in a disproportionately high or adverse effect on 
low income or minority populations. 

OR 
 

2. Applicant certifies that action will be taken to ensure achievement of environmental justice for low income and 
minority populations related to this HMGP project.    

 

 



   

Commissioners Court - Special Session   50.           
Meeting Date: 07/28/2016  

FY16 Emergency Management Performance Grant
Submitted For: Jarred Thomas  Submitted By: Cynthia Hood, Emergency Management
Department: Emergency Management
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss and take action on the acceptance of FY16 Emergency Management Performance Grant funding and to
authorize the County Judge to sign associated documentation.

Background
Williamson County Office of Emergency Management has been awarded $84,923.24 in FY16 EMPG funding, DHS
Instrument Number: 2016-EP-1418, TDEM Grant Number 16TX-EMPG-1418. 

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
FY 16 Award Terms and Conditions
FY16 Williamson County - Grant Award
FY 16 EMPG Grant Award Letter

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Wendy Coco 07/20/2016 12:18 PM
Form Started By: Cynthia Hood Started On: 07/19/2016 02:09 PM
Final Approval Date: 07/20/2016 



 1 

2016 Emergency Management Performance Grant 

(EMPG) 

Terms and Conditions 
 

1. Purpose:  The FY 2016 priority for this program is to advance “Whole Community” security 
and emergency management. Grant funds will be used to support local comprehensive 
emergency management programs to encourage improvement of mitigation, preparedness, 
response, and recovery capabilities for all hazards. Funding may be used to support activities 
that contribute to the capability to manage consequences from acts of terrorism.  Funds 
provided may also be used to accomplish initiatives described in the Federal Program 
Guidelines, including local implementation of the National Incident Management System 
(NIMS), incorporation of appropriate references to the National Response Framework (NRF) 
into local plans, homeland security assessment and strategy integration, and assessment of 
local emergency management program using Emergency Management Assessment Program 
(EMAP) standards. 

 
2. Grant Conditions: Identify the source of funding under which this award is funded and 
reference the government code. The federal grant terms and conditions are located at: 
http://www.fema.gov/media-library/assets/documents/92248 
 
3. Grant Acceptance: Notice of Subrecipient Grant Award remains an offer until the signed 
copy of the Acceptance of Subrecipient Grant Award is received by the Department of Public 
Safety in accordance with the instructions provided in the transmittal letter. 
 
4. Work to Be Performed: The approved FY 2016 Statement of Work and Progress Report 
template outlines eight tasks that the grantee must perform during the grant period. The 
following additional tasks are also required of Subrecipients: 
 

A. Implement (NIMS) at the local level. 
 

B. Incorporate pertinent information concerning NRF into the local or inter-
jurisdictional emergency management plan and its annexes.  

 
C. Subrecipients must have a tracking system of record to organize and coordinate 

resources in response to incidents.  
 

D. During the performance period of this grant, Subrecipient must maintain an 
emergency management plan at the Advanced Level of planning preparedness 
or higher, as prescribed by the Texas Division of Emergency Management 
(TDEM). This may be accomplished by jurisdictions maintaining their own 
emergency management plan or participating in an inter-jurisdictional emergency 
management program that meets the required standards. If TDEM identifies 
deficiencies in the Subrecipient’s plan, Subrecipients will correct deficiencies 
within sixty (60) days of receiving notice of such deficiencies from TDEM. 

 
E. Subrecipients must maintain an updated inventory of equipment purchased 

through this grant program in accordance with Uniform Grant Management 
Standards – III, State Uniform Administrative Requirements for Grants and 
Cooperative Agreements, Subpart C-Post-Award Requirements, Reports, 



 2 

Records, Retention, and Enforcement, Equipment and the Department of 
Homeland Security (DHS), Office of Grant Operations Financial Management 
Guide. 

 
F. The Subrecipient agrees that any equipment purchased with funds through this 

grant program shall be prominently marked as follows: “Purchased with funds 
provided by the U.S. Department of Homeland Security.” Exceptions to this 
requirement are limited to items where placing of the marking is not possible due 
to the nature of the equipment. 

  
5. Grant Funding: Lists the amount of funding for this award. The amount of this grant may be 
less than the amount requested in your Application for Federal Assistance due to limits on 
federal funding for the EMPG program.  However, EMPG grant recipients should continue to 
report all eligible expenses in quarterly financial reports. In the event additional program funding 
becomes available from the federal government or unspent EMPG funds remain at the end of 
the fiscal year, TDEM may be able to allocate additional funding to EMPG program participants. 
 
6. Financial and Administrative Requirements: In Accordance with 44 Code of Federal 
Regulations (CFR) Part 13, Subrecipient agrees to comply with the applicable financial and 
administrative requirements set forth in the current edition of the Office of Justice Programs 
(OJP) Financial Guide located at http://www.ojp.usdoj.gov/financialguide/.  
 

A. All emergency management program costs for which the Subrecipient seeks 
 reimbursement must be eligible in accordance with Office of Management and Budget 

(OMB) Circular A-87, Cost Principles or State, Local, and Indian Tribal Governments.  A 
copy of that document is available at: http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/circulars. 

 
B. Subrecipient will comply with the organizational audit requirements of OMB Circular A-
 133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations.
 http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/circulars_default  
 
C. When implementing Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) National 
 Preparedness Directorate funded activities; the Subrecipient must comply with all federal 

civil rights laws, to include Title VI of the Civil Rights Act, as amended. The Subrecipient 
is required to take reasonable steps to ensure persons of limited English proficiency 
have meaningful access to language assistance services regarding the development of 
proposals and budgets and conducting FEMA funded activities.  

 
D. Subrecipient will assist the awarding agency (if necessary) in assuring compliance with 
  the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966 Section 106 (16 U.S.C. § 470), Ex. 
 Order 11593 (identification and protection of historic properties), the Archeological and 

Historical Preservation Act of 1974 (16 U.S.C. § 469 a-1 et seq.), and the National 
Environmental Policy Act of 1969 (42 U.S.C. § 4321). (Federal Assurance). 

 
E. Subrecipient agrees to make no request for reimbursement for goods or services 
 procured by the Subrecipient either prior to the start of the period of performance stated 
 in this award document or after the end of the period of performance. 

 

http://www.ojp.usdoj.gov/financialguide/
http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/circulars
http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/circulars_default


 3 

F. Notwithstanding any other provisions of this document, the parties understand and agree 
 that the obligations of TDEM under this Agreement are contingent upon the 
 availability of adequate funds to meet TDEM’s liabilities.  TDEM shall not be liable to the 

Subrecipient for costs under this Agreement that exceed the amount specified in the 
Notice of Subrecipient Grant Award. 

 
7. Single Audit Act Requirements: If Subrecipient has expenditures in excess of $750,000 in 
federal funds of all types within a single fiscal year, it must have an audit performed in 
accordance with the Single Audit Act as amended.  Subrecipient agrees to comply with the audit 
requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-profit 
Organizations. 
 
8. Reporting Requirements: Subrecipient agrees to comply with all reporting requirements and 
shall provide such information as required by TDEM. Reporting requirements are found in the 
2016 Local Emergency Management Performance Grant (EMPG) Guide.  Subrecipients may be 
required to submit additional information and data requested by TDEM and after the end of the 
period of performance in order to close out the grant. A copy of the 2016 Local Emergency 
Management Performance Grant (EMPG) Guide can be found on the TDEM website at:  
http://www.txdps.state.tx.us/dem/CouncilsCommittees/EMPG/empgCurrentGuide.pdf.  
Subrecipient must prepare and submit Semi-Annual Progress Reports to TDEM for the duration 
of the grant performance period or until all grant activities are completed and the grant is 
formally closed. The first performance reporting period is October 1 to March 31 (progress 
report due April 15) and the second reporting period is April 1 to September 30 (progress report 
due October 15). Subrecipient may also be required to submit additional information and data 
as requested by TDEM. 
 
9. Review of Work and Expenditures: TDEM may review the work of the Subrecipient with 
respect to approved program tasks and expenditures for which reimbursement is requested to 
ensure the federal awards are used for authorized purposes in compliance with laws, 
regulations, and the provisions of this contract or grant agreement and that performance goals 
are achieved. These reviews may include, without limitation:  comparing actual Subrecipient 
activities to those approved in the sub-award application and subsequent modifications if any; 
ensuring that grant funds have been expended in accordance with applicable guidelines; 
confirming compliance with grant assurances, and verifying information provided on 
performance reports and payment requests. EMPG grant funds cannot be matched with any 
other federal funds. 
 
10. Lobbying:   
 

A. As required by Section 1352, Title 31 of the U.S. Code, and implemented at 28 CFR Part 
 69, for persons entering into a grant or cooperative agreement over $100,000, as 
 defined at 28 CFR Part 69, the Subrecipient certifies that:  

 

1) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the 
Subrecipient, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or 
employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of 
Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the making 
of any Federal grant, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the 
extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal grant or 
cooperative agreement;  

 



 4 

2) If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to 
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any 
agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee 
of a Member of Congress in connection with this Federal grant or cooperative 
agreement, the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form - LLL, 
"Disclosure of Lobbying Activities," in accordance with its instructions. 

 
3) The Subrecipient will establish safeguards to prohibit employees from using their     

positions for a purpose that constitutes or presents the appearance of personal or 
organizational conflict of interest or personal gain. 

 

11. Debarment, Suspension, and other Responsibility Matters:  
 

A. As required by Executive Order 12549, Debarment and Suspension, and implemented at 
 28 CFR Part 67, for prospective participants in primary covered transactions, as 
 defined at 28 CFR Part 67, Section 67.510 (Federal Certification). 
 

B. The Subrecipient certifies that it and its principals and vendors:  
 

1) Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, 
sentenced to a denial of Federal benefits by a State or Federal court, or voluntarily 
excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency; 
Subrecipients can access debarment information by going to www.epls.gov. 

        
2) Have not, within a three-year period preceding this application, been convicted of or 

had a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal 
offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public 
(Federal, State, or local) transaction or contract under a public transaction; violation 
of Federal or State  antitrust  statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, 
bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving 
stolen property; 

 

3) Are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a 
governmental entity (Federal, State, or local) with commission of any of the offenses 
enumerated in paragraph (1)(b) of this certification; and  

 

4) Have not, within a three-year period preceding this application, had one or more 
public transactions (Federal, State, or local) terminated for cause or default.  

 

C. Where the applicant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification, he or 
 she shall attach an explanation to this application (Federal Certification). 

 
12. Monitoring: 
 

A. Subrecipient will provide TDEM, State Auditor, DHS personnel or their authorized 
 representative, access to and the right to examine all paper or electronic records related 
 to financial assistance. 

 

http://www.epls.gov/


 5 

B. Subrecipient agrees to monitor their program to ensure that federal awards are used for 
 authorized purposes in compliance with laws, regulations, and the provisions of 
 contracts or grant agreements and that the performance goals are achieved.   

 
C. TDEM may perform periodic reviews of Subrecipient performance of eligible 
 activities and approved projects.  These reviews may include, without limitation: 
 performance of an on-site audit and compliance monitoring, including inspection of all  
      grant-related records and items, comparing actual Subrecipient activities to those      

approved in the sub-award application and subsequent modifications if any, ensuring 
that advances  have been disbursed in accordance with applicable guidelines, confirming 
compliance with grant assurances, verifying information provided in performance reports 
and reviewing payment requests, needs and threat assessments and strategies. 

 
D. Subrecipient understands and agrees that it cannot use any federal funds, either directly 
 or indirectly, in support of the enactment, repeal, modification or adoption of any law, 
 regulation or policy, at any level of government, without the express prior written 
 approval of FEMA National Preparedness Directorate. 

 
E. The Subrecipient official certifies federal funds will be used to supplement existing funds, 
 and will not replace (supplant) funds that have been appropriated for the same purpose.  
 Subrecipient may be required to supply documentation certifying that a reduction in non-
 federal resources occurred for reasons other than the receipt or expected receipt of 
 federal funds. 

 
13. Reimbursement for Expenses: 
 

Reimbursement for expenses incurred during the second and fourth quarter of Fiscal Year 
2016 will not be disbursed until TDEM receives the first and second semi-annual EMPG 
Progress Reports, which are due on April 15, and October 15, respectively. 
 

14. Choice of Law: This agreement shall be construed and governed by Texas law. 
 
15. Changes to the Law: DPS is a state agency whose authority and appropriations are subject 
to the actions of the Texas Legislature and the United States Congress.  If DPS and/or the 
subject matter of this contract become subject to a legislative or regulatory change, revocation 
of statutory or regulatory authority, or lack of funds that would render the services and/or goods 
and/or payment to be provided under this agreement impossible, unnecessary, void, or 
substantially amended, DPS may terminate this agreement without penalty to, or any liability 
whatsoever on the part of, DPS, the State of Texas, or the United States.  This contract does 
not grant vendor a franchise or any other vested property right.   
 
16. Written Modification: No modification or amendment to this Agreement shall become valid 
unless in writing and signed by both parties. 
 
17. To the extent it applies, Subrecipient shall comply with Texas Government Code, Chapter 
783, 1 Texas Administrative Code (TAC) §§ 5.141 et seq., and the Uniform Grant Management 
Standards, State Uniform Administrative Requirements for Grants and Cooperative 
Agreements, Subpart B, §_14.   
 



 6 

18. To the extent it applies, Subrecipient shall comply with the General Appropriations Act, 80th 
Legislature, Article IX, Part 17. 
 
19. TDEM may suspend or terminate sub-award funding, in whole or in part, or other measures 
may be imposed for any of the following reasons:  failing to comply with the requirements or 
statutory objectives of federal law, failing to make satisfactory progress toward the goals or 
objectives set forth in the sub-award application, failing to follow grant agreement requirements 
or special conditions, failing to submit required reports, or filing a false certification or other 
report or document.  Satisfactory progress is defined as accomplishing the following during the 
performance period of the grant: requesting federal funds for purchases, training, etc. and 
deciding what purchases will be made, ordering the equipment, ensuring the equipment is 
shipped and received, and training is accomplished with the equipment (or readied for 
deployment). All of the aforementioned tasks must be accomplished in a timely manner. Special 
Conditions may be imposed on Subrecipient’s use of grant funds until problems 
identified during grant monitoring visits conducted by TDEM audit and compliance 
personnel are resolved. 
 
 







   

Commissioners Court - Special Session   51.           
Meeting Date: 07/28/2016  

Project Title: WIL010C Damage Roads
Submitted For: Jarred Thomas  Submitted By: Cynthia Hood, Emergency Management
Department: Emergency Management
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on the acceptance of FEMA DR-4223 disaster recovery
grant funding. Project Title: WIL010C Damage Roads (Correcting Project Title Error in Item #27 of the May
24, 2016 Williamson County Commissioners Court’s Session).

Background
Item #27 of the May 24, 2016 Williamson County Commissioners Court’s session had the wrong Project Title. The
agenda item referred to “Project Title: WIL014C Damage Roads” when it should have referred to “Project Title:
WIL010C Damage Roads”. The following background information relating to such item remains unchanged:
Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) number: 97.036 FEMA Project Number PA-06-TX-4223-PW01698
Project Title: WIL010C Damage Roads Period of Performance 05/29/2015 to 11/29/2016 This disaster recovery
grant is a 75% federal share and 25% local share for damages sustained during the May Floods of 2015. This
project has been authorized by FEMA and approved by the Auditor’s Office, Road and Bridge, and Emergency
Management.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
WIL010C-PW01698 Subgrant Award Letter
Terms and Conditions

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Wendy Coco 07/20/2016 12:18 PM
Form Started By: Cynthia Hood Started On: 07/20/2016 09:59 AM
Final Approval Date: 07/20/2016 







  
Page 1 of 18 

 

GRANT TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
This Grant Agreement (consisting of FEMA Disaster Award and these Terms and Conditions) is 
made and entered into by and between the Department of Public Safety / Texas Division of 
Emergency Management, an agency of the State of Texas, hereinafter referred to as 
"DPS/TDEM," and the funds recipient, hereinafter referred to as the "Applicant” or 
“Subrecipient.”  Furthermore, DPS/TDEM and the Subrecipient are collectively hereinafter 
referred to as the “Parties.”  
 
Subrecipient may not assign or transfer any interest in this Grant without the express, prior 
written consent of DPS/TDEM. If Subrecipient issues subawards as part of this Grant project, 
Subrecipient shall include and require its subawardees to comply with the terms and conditions 
of this Grant. 
 
The term "Subrecipient agreement funds" as used in this Grant means funds provided by 
DPS/TDEM under the United States Department of Homeland Security (DHS) Federal 
Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) grant programs (also referred to herein as 
DHS/FEMA).  The term "Subrecipient's funds" or match funds as used in this Grant means 
funds provided by the Subrecipient. 
 
A. Standard of Performance. Subrecipient shall perform all activities as approved by 

DPS/TDEM.  Any change to a project shall receive prior written approval by TDEM and, if 
required, by FEMA. Subrecipient shall perform all activities in accordance with all terms, 
provisions and requirements set forth in this Grant, including but not limited to the following 
Exhibits: 
1. Assurances – Non-Construction Programs, hereinafter referred to as “Exhibit A”  
2. Assurances – Construction Programs, hereinafter referred to as “Exhibit B” 
3. Certifications for Grant Agreements, hereinafter referred to as “Exhibit C” 
4. State of Texas Assurances, hereinafter referred to as “Exhibit D”  
5. Environmental Review Certification, hereinafter referred to as “Exhibit E” 
6. Additional Grant Conditions, hereinafter referred to as “Exhibit F” 
7. Additional Grant Certifications, hereinafter referred to as “Exhibit G” 

 
B. Failure to Perform.  In the event Subrecipient fails to implement the project(s) entered and 

approved in the DPS/TDEM web-based grants management system, or comply with any 
provision of this Grant, Subrecipient shall be liable to DPS/TDEM for an amount not to 
exceed the award amount of this Grant and may be barred from applying for or receiving 
additional DHS/FEMA grant program funds or any other grant program funds administered 
by DPS until repayment to DPS/TDEM is made and any other compliance or audit finding is 
satisfactorily resolved, in addition to any other remedy specified in this Grant.  Failure to 
timely implement projects may reduce future funding in additional DHS/FEMA and/or other 
grant programs administered by DPS. 

 
C. Funding Obligations. DPS/TDEM shall not be liable to Subrecipient for any costs incurred 

by Subrecipient that are not allowable costs. 
1. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Grant, the total of all payments and other 

obligations incurred by DPS/TDEM under this Grant shall not exceed the Total Award 
Amount listed on the Grant Subrecipient Award. 

2. Subrecipient shall contribute the match funds listed on the Grant Subrecipient Award.  



  
Page 2 of 18 

 

3. Subrecipient shall refund to DPS/TDEM any sum of these Grant funds that has been 
determined by DPS/TDEM to be an overpayment to Subrecipient or that DPS/TDEM 
determines has not been spent by Subrecipient in accordance with this Grant.  No 
refund payment(s) shall be made from local, state or federal Grant funds unless 
repayment with Grant funds is specifically permitted by statute or 
regulation.  Subrecipient shall make such refund to DPS/TDEM within thirty (30) 
calendar days after  

4. DPS/TDEM requests such refund. 
 
D. Performance Period.  The performance period for this Grant is listed on the Grant 

Subrecipient Award letter.  All projects shall be completed within the performance 
period AND all reimbursement requests shall be submitted to DPS/TDEM within 60 
days for the end of the performance period.  Subrecipient shall have expended all Grant 
funds and submitted reimbursement requests, invoices and any supporting documentation 
to DPS/TDEM within 60 days of the end of the performance period. DPS/TDEM shall not be 
obligated to reimburse expenses incurred after the performance period or submitted after 
the deadline. 

 
E. Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principals and Audit Requirements.  

Except as specifically modified by law or this Grant, Subrecipient shall administer this Grant 
through compliance with the most recent version of all applicable laws and regulations, 
including but not limited to DHS program legislation, Federal awarding agency regulations, 
and the terms and conditions of this Grant.  A non-exclusive list is provided below [not all 
may apply in every projects]: 
• Public Law 93-288, as amended (Stafford Act) 
• 44 CFR, Emergency Management and Assistance 
• Disaster Mitigation Act of 2000 
• OMB Regulations 2 CFR, Grant and Agreements  
• Executive Order 11988, Floodplain Management 
• Executive Order 11990, Protection of Wetlands 
• Executive Order 12372, Intergovernmental Review of Programs and Activities 
• Executive Order 12549, Debarment and Suspension 
• Executive Order 12612, Federalism 
• Executive Order 12699, Seismic Design 
• Executive Order 12898, Environmental Justice 
• Coastal Barrier Resources Act, Public Law 97-348 
• Single Audit Act, Public Law 98-502 
• Sandy Recovery Improvement Act publications 
• 16 U.S.C. § 470, National Historic Preservation Act 
• 16 U.S.C. § 1531, Endangered Species Act References 
• FEMA program publications, guidance and policies 

 
F. State Requirements for Grants.  Subrecipient shall comply with all other federal, state, and 

local laws and regulations applicable to this Grant including but not limited to the laws and 
the regulations promulgated in Texas Government Code, Chapter 783, Uniform Grant and 
Contract Management, (UGMS) at: 

 http://www.window.state.tx.us/procurement/catrad/ugms.pdf  
 and the program State Administrative Plan, available at: 
 http://www.txdps.state.tx.us/dem/GrantsResources/index.htm.  

http://www.window.state.tx.us/procurement/catrad/ugms.pdf
http://www.txdps.state.tx.us/dem/GrantsResources/index.htm


  
Page 3 of 18 

 

 Subrecipient shall, in addition to the assurances and certifications, comply and require each 
of its subcontractors employed in the completion of the project to comply with all applicable 
statutes, regulations, executive orders, OMB circulars, terms and conditions of this Grant 
and the approved application. 

Grant funds may not be awarded to or expended by any entity which performs political 
polling.  This prohibition does not apply to a poll conducted by an academic institution as 
part of the institution’s academic mission that is not conducted for the benefit of a particular 
candidate or party. 

Grant funds may not be expended by a unit of local government unless the following 
limitations and reporting requirements are satisfied:  

1. Texas General Appropriations Act, Art. IX, Parts 2 and 3, except there is no 
requirement for increased salaries for local government employees;  

2. Texas Government Code Sections 556.004, 556.005, and 556.006, which prohibits 
using any money or vehicle to support the candidacy of any person for office, 
influencing positively or negatively the payment, loan, or gift to a person or political 
organization for a political purpose, and using Grant funds to influence the passage 
or defeat of legislation including not assisting with the funding of a lobbyist, or using 
Grant funds to pay dues to an organization with a registered lobbyist; 

3. Texas Government Code Sections 2113.012 and 2113.101, which prohibits using 
Grant funds to compensate any employee who uses alcoholic beverages on active 
duty and Subrecipient may not use Grant funds to purchase an alcoholic beverage 
and may not pay or reimburse any travel expense for an alcoholic beverage; 

4. Texas General Appropriations Act, Art. IX, Section 6.13, which requires Subrecipient 
to make every effort to attain key performance target levels associated with this 
Grant, including performance milestones, milestone time frames, and related 
performance reporting requirements; and   

5. General Appropriations Act, Art. IX, Sections 7.01 and 7.02, and Texas Government 
Code §2102.0091, which requires that this Grant may only be expended if 
Subrecipient timely completes and files its reports. 

 
G. Restrictions and General Conditions.  
 

1. Use of Funds.  DHS/FEMA Grant funds may only be used for the purposes set forth in 
this Grant, and shall be consistent with the statutory authority for this Grant.  Grant funds 
may not be used for matching funds for other Federal grants/cooperative agreements, 
lobbying, or intervention in Federal regulatory or adjudicatory proceedings.  In addition, 
Federal funds may not be used to sue the Federal government or any other government 
entity. 

2. Federal Employee Prohibition.  Federal employees are prohibited from serving in any 
capacity (paid or unpaid) on any proposal submitted under this Grant.  Federal 
employees may not receive funds under this Grant. 

3. Points of Contacts.   Within 30 calendar days of any change, Subrecipient shall notify 
DPS/TDEM of any change or correction to the Designation of Applicant’s Agent, chief 
elected official, program, and/or financial points of contact in the DPS/TDEM grant 
management system.  

4. DUNS Number. Subrecipient confirms its Data Universal Numbering Systems (DUNS) 
Number is the number listed on this Grant.  The DUNS Number is the nine digit number 



  
Page 4 of 18 

 

established and assigned by Dun and Bradstreet, Inc., at 866/705-5711 or 
http://fedgov.dnb.com/webform 

5. Central Contractor Registration and Universal Identifier Requirements.   Subrecipient 
maintains that it has registered on the System for Award Management (SAM) at 
www.sam.gov or other federally established site for contractor registration, and entered 
DPS/TDEM-required information.  Subrecipient shall keep current, and then review and 
update the information at least annually.  Subrecipient shall keep information current in 
the SAM database until the later of when it submits this Grant's final financial report or 
receives final Grant award payment. Subrecipient agrees that it shall not make any 
subaward agreement or contract related to this Grant without first obtaining the 
vendor/subawardee's mandatory DUNS number. See Section §200.32 of OMB 2 C.F.R.  

6. Reporting Total Compensation of Subrecipient Executives. 2 C.F.R. §200.331; see 
FEMA Information Bulletin 350.  
a. Applicability and what to report: Subrecipient shall report whether Subrecipient 

received $25 million or more in Federal procurement contracts or financial assistance 
subject to the Transparency Act per 2 C.F.R. §200.331.  Subrecipient shall report 
whether 80% or more of Subrecipient’s annual gross revenues were from Federal 
procurement contracts or Federal financial assistance.  If Subrecipient answers “yes” 
to both questions, Subrecipient shall report, along with Subrecipient's DUNS number, 
the names and total compensation (see 17 C.F.R. §229.402(c)(2)) for each of 
Subrecipient’s five most highly compensated executives for the preceding completed 
fiscal year.   

b. Where and when to report: Subrecipient shall report executive total compensation at 
www.sam.gov or other federally established replacement site.  By signing this Grant, 
Subrecipient certifies that, if required, Subrecipient's jurisdiction has already 
registered, entered the required information, and shall keep information in the SAM 
database current, and update the information at least annually for each year until the 
later of when the jurisdiction submits its final financial report or receives final 
payment. Subrecipient agrees that it shall not make any subaward agreement or 
contract without first obtaining the subawardee's mandatory DUNS number.  

7. Debarment and Suspension.  Subrecipient shall comply with Executive Order 12549 and 
12689, which provide protection against waste, fraud, and abuse by debarring or 
suspending those persons deemed irresponsible in their dealings with the Federal 
government. 

8. Direct Deposit.  If Subrecipient has not received reimbursements from DPS/TDEM within 
the past eleven (11) months (prior to date of award), it shall forward a new/updated 
direct deposit form to DPS/TDEM.  Completed direct deposit forms from Subrecipient 
shall be emailed to TDEM project officer. The email subject line and attachment name 
shall include the subrecipient name and identify the document attached (i.e. “Sample 
County DD form”). The direct deposit form is currently available at 
http://www.window.state.tx.us/taxinfo/taxforms/74-176.pdf.   

9. Property Management and Inventory.  Subrecipient shall maintain property/inventory 
records which, at minimum, shall include a description of the property, a serial number or 
other identification number, the source of property, who holds title, the acquisition date, 
the cost of the property, the percentage of Federal participation in the cost of the 
property, the location, use and condition of the property, and any ultimate disposition 
data including the date of disposal and sale price of the property  Subrecipient shall 
develop and implement a control system to prevent loss, damage or theft of property and 
Subrecipient shall investigate and document any loss, damage or theft of property 
funded under this Grant. 

http://fedgov.dnb.com/webform
http://www.sam.gov
http://www.sam.gov
http://www.window.state.tx.us/taxinfo/taxforms/74-176.pdf


  
Page 5 of 18 

 

10. Site Visits. DHS and/or DPS/TDEM, through its authorized representatives, have the 
right at all reasonable times to make site visits to review project accomplishments and 
management control systems and to provide such technical assistance as may be 
required. If any site visit is made by DHS on the premises of Subrecipient or a contractor 
under this Grant, Subrecipient shall provide and shall require its contractors to provide 
all reasonable facilities and assistance for the safety and convenience of the government 
representatives in the performance of their duties.  All site visits and evaluations shall be 
performed in such a manner that will not unduly delay the work. 

 
H. Procurement and Contracting. 

1. Procurements.  Subrecipient shall comply with all applicable federal, state, and local 
laws and requirements, including but not limited to proper competitive solicitation 
processes where required, for any procurement which utilizes federal funds awarded 
under this Grant in accordance with 2 C.F.R. 200. 318 

2. Contract Provisions.  All contracts executed using funds awarded under this Grant shall 
contain the contract provisions listed under 2 C.F.R. 200.326 and Appendix II (A), 
Uniform Administrative Requirements for Grants and Cooperative Agreements to State 
and Local Governments. 

3. Procurement activities must follow the most restrictive of Federal, State and Local 
procurement regulations:  

a. Procurement by micro purchase 
b. Procurement by small purchase 
c. Procurement by sealed bid 
d. Procurement by competitive proposal 
e. Procurement by non-competitive proposal, solely when the award of a contract is 

unfeasible under the other methods  
 

The State must be contacted for approval to use a noncompetitive procurement method. 
Failure to follow eligible procurement methods will result in ineligible costs. Other types 
of agreements for services must have State approval prior to use or execution. A copy of 
the local procurement policy must be provided to the State before initial payment.  

 
The cost plus a percentage of cost and percentage of construction cost methods of 
contracting are ineligible.  
 
Must perform cost/price analysis for purchases over $3000. 
 
Must negotiate profit as a separate element where required. 

 
4. Evidence of non-debarment for vendors must be documented through 

http://www.sam.gov/portal/public/SAM and 
http://www.window.state.tx.us/procurement/prog/vendor_performance/debarred/ and 
submitted for review. 

5. Comply with rules related to underutilized businesses (small and minority businesses, 
women’s enterprises and labor surplus firms) at 2 CFR 200.321 
 

I. Monitoring.  Subrecipient will be monitored periodically by federal, state or local entities, 
both programmatically and financially, to ensure that project goals, objectives, performance 
requirements, timelines, milestone completion, budget, and other program-related criteria 
are met.  

 

http://www.sam.gov/portal/public/SAM
http://www.window.state.tx.us/procurement/prog/vendor_performance/debarred/


  
Page 6 of 18 

 

DPS/TDEM, or its authorized representative, reserves the right to perform periodic 
desk/office-based and/or on-site monitoring of Subrecipient's compliance with this Grant and 
of the adequacy and timeliness of Subrecipient's performance pursuant to this Grant.  After 
each monitoring visit, DPS/TDEM shall provide Subrecipient with a written report of the 
monitor's findings.  If the monitoring report notes deficiencies in Subrecipient's performance 
under this Grant, the monitoring report shall include requirements for the timely correction of 
such deficiencies by Subrecipient.  Failure by Subrecipient to take action specified in the 
monitoring report may be cause for suspension or termination of this Grant pursuant to the 
Suspension and/or Termination Section herein. 

 
J. Audit.   

1. Audit of Federal and State Funds.  Subrecipient shall arrange for the performance of an 
annual financial and compliance audit of funds received and performances rendered 
under this Grant as required by the Single Audit Act (OMB 2 C.F.R. 200.501, formerly A-
133).  Subrecipient shall comply, as applicable, with Texas Government Code, Chapter 
783, the Uniform Grant Management Standards (UGMS), the State Uniform 
Administrative Requirements for Grants and Cooperative Agreements. 

2. Right to Audit.  Subrecipient shall give the United States Department of Homeland 
Security (DHS), Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA), the Comptroller 
General of the United States, the Texas State Auditor, DPS/TDEM, or any of their duly 
authorized representatives, access to and the right to conduct a financial or compliance 
audit of Grant funds received and performances rendered under this 
Grant.  Subrecipient shall permit DPS/TDEM or its authorized representative to audit 
Subrecipient’s records. Subrecipient shall provide any documents, materials or 
information necessary to facilitate such audit. 

3. Subrecipient’s Liability for Disallowed Costs.  Subrecipient understands and agrees that 
it shall be liable to DPS/TDEM for any costs disallowed pursuant to any financial or 
compliance audit(s) of these funds.  Subrecipient further understands and agrees that 
reimbursement to DPS/TDEM of such disallowed costs shall be paid by Subrecipient 
from funds that were not provided or otherwise made available to Subrecipient pursuant 
to this Grant or any other federal contract.  

4. Subrecipient’s Facilitation of Audit.  Subrecipient shall take such action to facilitate the 
performance of such audit(s) conducted pursuant to this Section as DPS/TDEM may 
require of Subrecipient.  Subrecipient shall ensure that this clause concerning the 
authority to audit funds received indirectly by subcontractors through Subrecipient and 
the requirement to cooperate is included in any subcontract it awards. 

5. State Auditor’s Clause.  Subrecipient understands that acceptance of funds under this 
Grant acts as acceptance of the authority of the State Auditor’s Office to conduct an 
audit or investigation in connection with those funds.  Subrecipient further agrees to 
cooperate fully with the State Auditor’s Office in the conduct of the audit or investigation, 
including providing all records requested.  Subrecipient shall ensure that this clause 
concerning the State Auditor’s Office’s authority to audit funds and the requirement to 
cooperate fully with the State Auditor’s Office is included in any subgrants or 
subcontracts it awards.  Additionally, the State Auditor’s Office shall at any time have 
access to and the rights to examine, audit, excerpt, and transcribe any pertinent books, 
documents, working papers, and records of Subrecipient relating to this Grant. 

  



  
Page 7 of 18 

 

 
K. Retention and Accessibility of Records.   

1. Retention of Records.  Subrecipient shall maintain fiscal records and supporting 
documentation for all expenditures of this Grant’s funds pursuant to the applicable OMB 
2 C.F.R.  Subpart D – Post Federal Award Requirements, of Part 200 UGMS §__.42, 
and this Grant.  Subrecipient shall retain these records and any supporting 
documentation for a minimum of three (3) years from the later of the completion of this 
project's public objective, submission of the final expenditure report, any litigation, 
dispute, or audit.  Records shall be retained for three (3) years after any real estate or 
equipment final disposition.  The DHS or DPS/TDEM may direct Subrecipient to retain 
documents or to transfer certain records to DHS custody when DHS determines that the 
records possess long term retention value. 

2. Access to Records.  Subrecipient shall give the United States Department of Homeland 
Security, the Comptroller General of the United States, the Texas State Auditor, 
DPS/TDEM, or any of its duly authorized representatives, access to and the right to 
examine all books, accounts, records, reports, files, other papers, things or property 
belonging to or in use by Subrecipient pertaining to this Grant including records 
concerning the past use of DHS/FEMA funds. Such rights to access shall continue as 
long as the records are retained by Subrecipient. 

 
L. Changes, Amendments, Suspension or Termination   

1. Modification.  FEMA or DPS/TDEM may modify this Grant after an award has been 
made.    Once notification has been made in writing, any subsequent request for funds 
indicates Subrecipient’s acceptance of the changes to this Grant.  Any alteration, 
addition, or deletion to this Grant by Subrecipient is not valid. 

2. Effect of Changes in Federal and State Laws.  Any alterations, additions, or deletions to 
this Grant that are required by changes in federal and state laws, regulations or policy 
are automatically incorporated into this Grant without written amendment to this Grant 
and shall become effective upon the date designated by such law or regulation.  In the 
event FEMA or DPS/TDEM determines that changes are necessary to this Grant after 
an award has been made, including changes to the period of performance or terms and 
conditions, Subrecipient shall be notified of the changes in writing. Once notification has 
been made, any subsequent request for funds will indicate Subrecipient’s acceptance of 
the changes to this Grant. 

3. Suspension.  In the event Subrecipient fails to comply with any term of this Grant, 
DPS/TDEM may, upon written notification to Subrecipient, suspend this Grant, in whole 
or in part, withhold payments to Subrecipient and prohibit Subrecipient from incurring 
additional obligations of this Grant’s funds. 

4. Termination.  DPS/TDEM shall have the right to terminate this Grant, in whole or in part, 
at any time before the end of the Performance Period, if DPS/TDEM determines that 
Subrecipient has failed to comply with any term of this Grant.   DPS/TDEM shall provide 
written notice of the termination and include: 
a. The reason(s) for such termination;  
b. The effective date of such termination; and  
c. In the case of partial termination, the portion of this Grant to be terminated. 
d. Appeal may be made to the Deputy Assistant Director of Texas Division of 

Emergency Management- Recovery Mitigation and Standards, Texas Department of 
Public Safety. 

 
M. Enforcement.  If Subrecipient materially fails to comply with any term of this Grant, whether 

stated in a federal or state statute or regulation, an assurance, in a state plan or application, 



  
Page 8 of 18 

 

a notice of award, or elsewhere, DPS/TDEM or DHS may take one or more of the following 
actions, as appropriate in the circumstances: 
1. Increased monitoring of projects and require additional financial and performance 

reports 
2. Require payments as reimbursements rather than advance payments 
3. Temporarily withhold payments pending correction of the deficiency 
4. Disallow or deny use of funds and matching credit for all or part of the cost of the 

activity or action not in compliance; 
5. Request FEMA to wholly or partially de-obligate funding for a project 
6. Temporarily withhold cash payments pending correction of the deficiency by 

subrecipient or more severe enforcement action by DPS/TDEM or DHS; 
7. Withhold further awards for the grant program 
8. Take other remedies that may be legally available 
 
In taking an enforcement action, DPS/TDEM will provide Subrecipient an opportunity for a 
hearing, appeal, or other administrative proceeding to which Subrecipient is entitled under 
any statute or regulation applicable to the action involved. 
 
The costs of Subrecipient resulting from obligations incurred by Subrecipient during a 
suspension or after termination of this Grant are not allowable unless DPS/TDEM or DHS 
expressly authorizes them in the notice of suspension or termination or subsequently.   
 
Other Subrecipient costs during suspension or after termination which are necessary and 
not reasonably avoidable are allowable if: 
• The costs result from obligations which were properly incurred by Subrecipient before 

the effective date of suspension or termination, are not in anticipation of it, and in the 
case of a termination, are non-cancellable; and 

• The costs would be allowable if this Grant were not suspended or expired normally at 
the end of the funding period in which the termination takes effects. 

 
The enforcement remedies identified in this section, including suspension and termination, 
do not preclude Subrecipient from being subject to “Debarment and Suspension” under E.O. 
12549.  2 C.F.R., Appendix II to Part 200, (I). 
 

N. Conflicts of Interest.  The subrecipient will maintain written standards of conduct covering 
conflicts of interest and governing the actions of its employees engaged in the selection, 
award and administration of contracts and will establish safeguards to prohibit employees 
from using their positions for a purpose that constitutes or presents the appearance of 
personal or organizational conflict of interest or personal gain. 
 

O. Closing of this Grant.  DPS/TDEM will close a subaward after receiving all required final 
documentation from the Subrecipient.  If the close out review and reconciliation indicates 
that Subrecipient is owed additional funds, DPS/TDEM will send the final payment 
automatically to Subrecipient.  If Subrecipient did not use all the funds received, 
DPS/TDEM will recover the unused funds.   

 
At the completion of Subrecipient’s performance period, DPS/TDEM will de-obligate all 
uncommitted funds and de-obligate all unexpended funds if final documentation is not 
received by the deadline.  



  
Page 9 of 18 

 

The closeout of this Grant does not affect: 
1. DHS or DPS/TDEM’s right to disallow costs and recover funds on the basis of a later 

audit or other review; 
2. Subrecipient’s obligation to return any funds due as a result of later refunds, corrections, 

or other transactions; 
3. Records retention requirements, property management requirements, and audit 

requirements, as set forth herein; and 
4. Any other provisions of this Grant that impose continuing obligations on Subrecipient or 

that govern the rights and limitations of the parties to this Grant after the expiration or 
termination of this Grant.   



  
Page 10 of 18 

 

EXHIBIT A 
ASSURANCES - NON-CONSTRUCTION PROGRAMS See Standard Form 424B 
As the duly authorized representative of Subrecipient, I certify that Subrecipient: 
 

1.     Has the legal authority to apply for Federal assistance and the institutional, 
managerial and financial capability (including funds sufficient to pay the non-
Federal share of project cost) to ensure proper planning, management and 
completion of the project described in this Grant. 

 
2.      Will give the Department of Homeland Security, the Department of Public 

Safety, the Comptroller General of the United States and, if appropriate, the 
State, through any authorized representative, access to and the right to 
examine all records, books, papers, or documents related to this Grant and 
will establish a proper accounting system in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting standards or agency directives. 

 
3.      Will establish safeguards to prohibit employees from using their positions for 

a purpose that constitutes or presents the appearance of personal or 
organizational conflict of interest or personal gain. 

 
4.      Will initiate and complete the work within the applicable time frame after 

receipt of approval of the awarding agency. 
 
5.      Will comply with the Intergovernmental Personnel Act of 1970 (42 U.S.C. 

§§4728-4763) relating to prescribed  standards for merit systems for 
programs funded under one of the 19 statutes or regulations specified in 
Appendix A of OPM's Standards for a Merit System of Personnel 
Administration (5 C.F.R. 900, Subpart F). 

 
6.  Will comply with all Federal statutes relating to nondiscrimination. These 

include but are not limited to: (a) Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (P.L. 
88-352) which prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, color or national 
origin; (b) Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, as amended (20 
U.S.C. §§1681-1683, and 1685-1686 and 44 C.F.R. Part 19), which prohibits 
discrimination on the basis of sex; (c) Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act 
of 1973, as amended (29 U.S.C. §794), which prohibits discrimination on the 
basis of handicaps; (d) the Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended (42 
U.S.C. §§6101-6107), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of age; (e) 
the Drug Abuse Office and Treatment Act of 1972 (P.L. 92-255), as 
amended, relating to nondiscrimination on the basis of drug abuse; (f) the 
Comprehensive Alcohol Abuse and Alcoholism Prevention, Treatment and 
Rehabilitation Act of 1970 (P.L. 91-616), as amended, relating to 
nondiscrimination on the basis of alcohol abuse or alcoholism; (g) §§523 
and 527 of the Public Health Service Act of 1912 (42 U.S.C. §§290dd-3 and 
290ee-3), as amended, relating to confidentiality of alcohol and drug abuse 
patient records; (h) Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. 
§§3601 et seq.), as amended, relating to nondiscrimination in the sale, rental 
or financing of housing; (i) any other nondiscrimination provisions in the 
specific statute(s) under which agreement for Federal assistance is being 
made; and (j) the requirements of any other nondiscrimination statute(s) 
which may apply to the application. 

 
7.      Will comply or has already complied with the requirements of Titles II and III 

of the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies 
Act of 1970 (P.L. 91-646) which provide for fair and equitable treatment of 
persons displaced or whose property is acquired as a result of Federal or 
federally-assisted programs. These requirements apply to all interests in real 
property acquired for project purposes regardless of Federal participation in 
purchases. 

 
8.     Will comply, as applicable, with provisions of the Hatch Act (5 U.S.C. §§1501-

1508 and 7324-7328) which limit the political activities of employees whose 
principal employment activities are funded in whole or in part with Federal 
funds. 

 
9.      Will comply, as applicable, with the provisions of the Davis-Bacon Act (40 

U.S.C. §§276a to 276a-7), the Copeland Act (40 U.S.C. §276c and 18 
U.S.C. §874), and the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 
U.S.C. §§327-333), regarding labor standards for federally-assisted 
construction sub-agreements. 

 
10.    Will comply, if applicable, with flood insurance purchase requirements of 

Section 102(a) of the Flood Disaster Protection Act of 1973 (P.L. 93-234) 
which requires recipients in a special flood hazard area to participate in the 
program and to purchase flood insurance if the total cost of insurable 
construction and acquisition is $10,000 or more.  

 
11.   Will comply with environmental standards which may be prescribed pursuant 

to the following: (a) institution of environmental quality control measures 
under the National Environmental Policy Act of 1969 (P.L. 91-190 as 
amended by 42 U.S.C. 4311 et seq. and Executive Order (EO) 11514) which 

establishes national policy goals and procedures to protect and enhance the 
environment, including protection against natural disasters.  To comply with 
NEPA for DHS grant-supported activities, DHS-FEMA requires the 
environmental aspects to be reviewed and evaluated before final action on 
the application; (b) notification of violating facilities pursuant to EO 11738; 
(c) protection of wetlands pursuant to EO 11990; (d) evaluation of flood 
hazards in floodplains in accordance with EO 11988; (e) assurance of 
project consistency with the approved State management program 
developed under the Coastal Zone Management Act of 1972 (16 U.S.C. 
§§1451 et seq.); (f) comply with the Clean Air Act of 1977,  (42 U.S.C. 
§§7401 et seq. and Executive Order 11738) providing for the protection of 
and enhancement of the quality of the nation’s air resources to promote 
public health and welfare and for restoring and maintaining the chemical, 
physical, and biological integrity of the nation’s waters; (g) protection of 
underground sources of drinking water under the Safe Drinking Water Act of 
1974, as amended (P.L. 93-523); and, (h) protection of endangered species 
under the Endangered Species Act of 1973, as amended (P.L. 93- 205). 

 
12.   Will comply with the Wild and Scenic Rivers Act of 1968 (16 U.S.C. §§1271 et 

seq.) related to protecting components or potential components of the 
national wild and scenic rivers system. 

 
13.   Will assist the awarding agency in assuring compliance with Section 106 of 

the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966, as amended (16 U.S.C. 
§470), EO 11593 (identification and protection of historic properties), and the 
Archaeological and Historic Preservation Act of 1974 (16 U.S.C. §§469a-1 et 
seq.). 

 
14.   Will comply with P.L. 93-348, 45 C.F.R. 46, and DHS Management Directive 

026-044 (Directive) regarding the protection of human subjects involved in 
research, development, and related activities supported by this Grant.  
“Research” means a systematic investigation, including research, 
development, testing, and evaluation designed to develop or contribute to 
general knowledge.  See Directive for additional provisions for including 
humans in the womb, pregnant women, and neonates (Subpart B); prisoners 
(Subpart C); and children (Subpart D).  See also state and local law for 
research using autopsy materials. 

 
15.   Will comply with the Laboratory Animal Welfare Act of 1966 (P.L. 89-544, as 

amended, 7 U.S.C. §§2131 et seq.) which requires the minimum standards 
of care and treatment for vertebrate animals bred for commercial sale, used 
in research, transported commercially, or exhibited to the public according to 
the Guide for Care and Use of Laboratory Animals and Public Health 
Service Policy and Government Principals Regarding the Care and Use of 
Animals. 

16.   Will comply with the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act (42 U.S.C. 
§§4801 et seq.) which prohibits the use of lead-based paint in construction 
or rehabilitation of residence structures. 

17.   Will cause to be performed the required financial and compliance audits in 
accordance with the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996 and OMB 
Circular No. A-133 (now OMB 2 C.F.R. 200.500), "Audits of States, Local 
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations." 

18.   Will comply with all applicable requirements of all other Federal laws, 
executive orders, regulations, grant guidance, and policies governing this 
Grant.  

 



  
Page 11 of 18 

 

EXHIBIT B 
ASSURANCES - CONSTRUCTION PROGRAMS See Standard Form 424D 
As the duly authorized representative of Subrecipient, I certify that Subrecipient: 
 
1. Has the legal authority to apply for Federal assistance, and the 

institutional, managerial and financial capability (including funds 
sufficient to pay the non-Federal share of project costs) to ensure 
proper planning, management and completion of project described in 
this Grant.  

2. Will give the Department of Homeland Security, the Department of 
Public Safety, the Comptroller General of the United States and, if 
appropriate, the State, the right to examine all records, books, papers, 
or documents related to this Grant and will establish a proper 
accounting system in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
standards or agency directives. 

3.  Will not dispose of, modify the use of, or change the terms of the real 
property title or other interest in the site and facilities without 
permission and instructions from the awarding agency. Will record the 
Federal awarding agency directives and will include a covenant in the 
title of real property acquired in whole or in part with Federal assistance 
funds to assure nondiscrimination during the useful life of this Grant. 

4. Will comply with the requirements of the assistance awarding agency 
with regard to the drafting, review and approval of construction plans 
and specifications.  

5. Will provide and maintain competent and adequate engineering 
supervision at the construction site to ensure that the complete work 
conforms with the approved plans and specifications and will furnish 
progressive reports and such other information as may be required by 
the awarding agency or State.  

6. Will initiate and complete the work within the applicable time frame 
after receipt of approval of the awarding agency.  

7. Will establish safeguards to prohibit employees from using their 
positions for a purpose that constitutes or presents the appearance of 
personal or organizational conflict of interest or personal gain. 

8. Will comply with the Intergovernmental Personnel Act of 1970 (42 
U.S.C. §§4728-4763) relating to prescribed standards of merit systems 
for programs funded under one of the 19 statutes or regulations 
specified in Appendix A of OPM's Standards for a Merit System of 
Personnel Administration (5 C.F.R. 900, Subpart F). 

9. Will comply with the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act (42 
U.S.C. §§4801 et seq.) which prohibits the use of lead-based paint in 
construction or rehabilitation of residence structures.  

10. Will comply with all Federal statutes relating to nondiscrimination. 
These include but are not limited to: (a) Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 
1964 (P.L. 88-352) which prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, 
color or national origin; (b) Title IX of the Education Amendments of 
1972, as amended (20 U.S.C. §§1681 1683, and 1685-1686 and 44 
C.F.R. Part 19), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of sex; (c) 
Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended (29) U.S.C. 
§794), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of handicaps; (d) the 
Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended (42 U.S.C. §§6101-6107), 
which prohibits discrimination on the basis of age; (e) the Drug Abuse 
Office and Treatment Act of 1972 (P.L. 92-255), as amended relating to 
nondiscrimination on the basis of drug abuse; (f) the Comprehensive 
Alcohol Abuse and Alcoholism Prevention, Treatment and  
rehabilitation Act of 1970 (P.L. 91-616), as amended, relating to 
nondiscrimination on the basis of alcohol abuse or alcoholism; (g) 
§§523 and 527 of the Public Health Service Act of 1912 (42 U.S.C. 
§§290dd-3 and 290ee-3), as amended, relating to confidentiality of 
alcohol and drug abuse patient records; (h) Title VIII of the Civil Rights 
Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. §§3601 et seq.), as amended, relating to  
nondiscrimination in the sale, rental or financing of housing; (i) any 
other nondiscrimination provisions in the specific statue(s) under which 
agreement for Federal assistance is being made; and (j) the 

requirements of any other nondiscrimination statue(s) which may apply 
to the agreement. 

11. Will comply or has already complied with the requirements of Titles II 
and III of the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property 
Acquisition Policies Act of 1970 (P.L. 91-646) which provide for fair and 
equitable treatment of persons displaced or whose property is acquired 
as a result of Federal and federally-assisted programs. These 
requirements apply to all interests in real property acquired for project 
purposes regardless of Federal participation in purchases.  

12. Will comply with the provisions of the Hatch Act (5 U.S.C. §§1501-1508 
and 7324-7328) which limit the political activities of employees whose 
principal employment activities are funded in whole or in part with 
Federal funds. 

13.   Will comply, as applicable, with the provisions of the Davis-Bacon Act 
(40 U.S.C. §§276a to 276a-7), the Copeland Act (40 U.S.C. §276c and 
18 U.S.C. §874), and the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards 
Act (40 U.S.C. §§327- 333) regarding labor standards for federally-
assisted construction sub-agreements. 

14. Will comply with flood insurance purchase requirements of Section 
102(a) of the Flood Disaster Protection Act of 1973 (P.L. 93-234) which 
requires recipients in a special flood hazard area to participate in the 
program and to purchase flood insurance if the total cost of insurable 
construction and acquisition is $10,000 or more. 

15. Will comply with environmental standards which may be prescribed 
pursuant to the following: (a) institution of environmental quality control 
measures under the National Environmental Policy Act of 1969 (P.L. 
91- 190) as amended by 42 U.S.C. 4311 et seq. and Executive Order 
(EO) 11514 which establishes national policy goals and procedures to 
protect and enhance the environment, including protection against 
natural disasters; (b) notification of violating facilities pursuant to EO 
11738; (c) protection of wetlands pursuant to EO 11990; (d) evaluation 
of flood hazards in floodplains in accordance with EO 11988; (e) 
assurance of project consistency with the approved State management 
program developed under the Coastal Zone Management Act of 1972 
(16 U.S.C. §§1451 et seq.); (f) comply with the Clean Air Act of 1977,  
(42 U.S.C. §§7401 et seq. and Executive Order 11738) providing for 
the protection of and enhancement of the quality of the nation’s air 
resources to promote public health and welfare and for restoring and 
maintaining the chemical, physical, and biological integrity of the 
nation’s waters; (g) protection of underground sources of drinking water 
under the Safe Drinking Water Act of 1974, as amended (P.L. 93-523); 
and, (h) protection of endangered species under the Endangered 
Species Act of 1973, as amended (P.L. 93-205).  

16. Will comply with the Wild and Scenic Rivers Act of 1968 (16 U.S.C. 
§§1271 et seq.) related to protecting components or potential 
components of the national wild and scenic rivers system.  

17. Will assist the awarding agency in assuring compliance with Section 
106 of the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966, as amended (16 
U.S.C. §470), EO 11593 (identification and protection of historic 
properties), and the Archaeological and Historic  Preservation Act of 
1974 (16 U.S.C. §§469a-1 et seq).  

18. Will cause to be performed the required financial and compliance 
audits in accordance with the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996 
and OMB Circular No. A-133 (now OMB 2 C.F.R. 200.500), "Audits of 
States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations." 

19. Will comply with all applicable requirements of all other Federal laws, 
executive orders, regulations, grant guidance and policies governing 
this Grant.  

 
 



  
Page 12 of 18 

 

Exhibit C  
Certifications for Grant Agreements  

The undersigned, as the authorized official, certifies the following to the best of his/her knowledge and belief.  

A. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned to any person for influencing or 
attempting to influence an officer or employee of an agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an 
employee or a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any Federal grant, the 
making of any Federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, 
or modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement. 

B. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or attempting to 
influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee or a 
Member of Congress in connection with this Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall 
complete and submit Standard Form-LLL Disclosure of Lobbying Activities, in accordance with its instructions. 

C.  The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification prohibiting lobbying be included in the award documents for all 
subawards at all tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants, and contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that 
all subrecipients shall certify and disclose accordingly. This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was 
placed when this transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into 
this transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject 
to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such failure. 

D.  As required by Executive Order 12549, Debarment and Suspension, and implemented at 28 C.F.R. Part 67, for prospective 
participants in primary covered transactions, as defined at 28 C.F.R. Part 67, Section 67.510. (Federal Certification), the 
Subrecipient certifies that it and its principals and vendors: 

1. Are not debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, sentenced to a denial of Federal benefits by a 
State or Federal court, or voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency. Subrecipient 
can access debarment information by going to www.sam.gov and the State Debarred Vendor List at: 
www.window.state.tx.us/procurement/prog/vendor_performance/debarred. 

2. Have not within a three-year period preceding this Grant been convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against them for 
commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, 
State, or local) transaction or contract under a public transaction, violation of Federal or State antitrust statutes or commission 
of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen 
property; 

3. Are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity (Federal, State, or local) with 
commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (D)(2) of this certification;  

4. Have not within a three-year period preceding this Grant had one or more public transactions (Federal, State, or local) 
terminated for cause or default; or  

5.  Where Subrecipient is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification, he or she shall attach an explanation to 
this Grant. (Federal Certification). 

E. Federal funds will be used to supplement existing funds, and will not replace (supplant) funds that have been appropriated for the 
same purpose.  Subrecipient may be required to supply documentation certifying that a reduction in non-federal resources 
occurred for reasons other than the receipt or expected receipt of federal funds. 

F.  Subrecipient will comply with 2 C.F.R. Part 180, Subpart C as a condition of receiving grant funds and Subrecipient will require 
such compliance in any subgrants or contract at the next tier. 

G  Subrecipient will comply with the Drug-free Workplace Act, as amended, 412 U.S.C. §701 et seq., which requires Subrecipient to 
publish a statement about its drug-free workplace program and give a copy of the statement to each employee (including 
consultants and temporary  personnel) who will be involved in award-supported activities at any site where these activities will be 
carried out. Also, places where work is being performed under the award (i.e., street address, city, state, and zip code) must be 
maintained on file. Subrecipient will notify the Grants Officer of any employee convicted of a violation of a criminal drug statute that 
occurs in the workplace. For additional information, see 44 C.F.R. Part 17.  Subrecipient shall comply with the requirements of the 
Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988, which requires that all organizations receiving grants from any Federal agency agree to 
maintain a drug-free workplace. 

H. Subrecipient is not delinquent on any Federal debt.  Examples of relevant debt include delinquent payroll and other taxes, audit 
disallowances, and benefit overpayments.  See OMB Circular A-129 and form SF-424, item number 17 for additional information 
and guidance. 

I. Subrecipient will comply with all applicable requirements of all other federal laws, executive orders, regulations, program and 
administrative requirements, policies and any other requirements governing this Grant. 

J. Subrecipient understands that failure to comply with any of the above assurances may result in suspension, termination or 
reduction of funds in this Grant. 

http://www.sam.gov
http://www.window.state.tx.us/procurement/prog/vendor_performance/debarred


  
Page 13 of 18 

 

EXHIBIT D 

State of Texas Assurances  

As the duly authorized representative of Subrecipient, I certify that Subrecipient:  
 
1. Shall comply with Texas Government Code, Chapter 573, by ensuring that no officer, employee, or member of the Subrecipient’s 

governing body or of the Subrecipient’s contractor shall vote or confirm the employment of any person related within the second degree of 
affinity or the third degree of consanguinity to any member of the governing body or to any other officer or employee authorized to employ 
or supervise such person. This prohibition shall not prohibit the employment of a person who shall have been continuously employed for a 
period of two years, or such other period stipulated by local law, prior to the election or appointment of the officer, employee, or governing 
body member related to such person in the prohibited degree. 

2. Shall insure that all information collected, assembled, or maintained by the Subrecipient relative to a project will be available to the public 
during normal business hours in compliance with Texas Government Code, Chapter 552, unless otherwise expressly prohibited by law. 

3. Shall comply with Texas Government Code, Chapter 551, which requires all regular, special, or called meetings of governmental bodies to 
be open to the public, except as otherwise provided by law or specifically permitted in the Texas Constitution. 

4. Shall comply with Section 231.006, Texas Family Code, which prohibits payments to a person who is in arrears on child support payments. 

5.  Shall not contract with or issue a license, certificate, or permit to the owner, operator, or administrator of a facility if the Subrecipient is a 
health, human services, public safety, or law enforcement agency and the license, permit, or certificate has been revoked by another 
health and human services agency or public safety or law enforcement agency. 

6. Shall comply with all rules adopted by the Texas Commission on Law Enforcement pursuant to Chapter 1701, Texas Occupations Code, 
or shall provide the grantor agency with a certification from the Texas Commission on Law Enforcement that the agency is in the process 
of achieving compliance with such rules if the Subrecipient is a law enforcement agency regulated by Texas Occupations Code, Chapter 
1701. 

7.  Shall follow all assurances. When incorporated into a grant award or contract, standard assurances contained in the application package 
become terms or conditions for receipt of grant funds. Administering state agencies and subrecipients shall maintain an appropriate 
contract administration system to insure that all terms, conditions, and specifications are met.   (See UGMS Section _.36 for additional 
guidance on contract provisions). 

8.  Shall comply with the Texas Family Code, Section 261.101, which requires reporting of all suspected cases of child abuse to local law 
enforcement authorities and to the Texas Department of Child Protective and Regulatory Services.  Subrecipient shall also ensure that all 
program personnel are properly trained and aware of this requirement. 

9. Shall comply with all federal statutes relating to nondiscrimination.  These include but are not limited to: (a) Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 
1964 (P.L. 88-352), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, color, or national origin; (b) Title IX of the Education Amendments 
of 1972, as amended (20 U.S.C. §§1681-1683, and 1685-1686), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of sex; (c) Section 504 of the 
Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended (29 U.S.C. §794), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of handicaps and the Americans with 
Disabilities Act of 1990 including Titles I, II, and III of the Americans with Disability Act which prohibits recipients from discriminating on the 
basis of disability in the operation of public entities, public and private transportation systems, places of public accommodation, and certain 
testing entities, 44 U.S.C. §§ 12101-12213; (d) the Age Discrimination Act of 1974, as amended (42 U.S.C. §§6101-6107), which prohibits 
discrimination on the basis of age; (e) the Drug Abuse Office and Treatment Act of 1972 (P.L. 92-255), as amended, relating to 
nondiscrimination on the basis of drug abuse; (f) the Comprehensive Alcohol Abuse and Alcoholism Prevention, Treatment, and 
Rehabilitation Act of 1970 (P.L. 91-616), as amended, relating to the nondiscrimination on the basis of alcohol abuse or alcoholism; (g) 
§§523 and 527 of the Public Health Service Act of 1912 (42 U.S.C. §§290dd-3 and 290ee-3), as amended, relating to confidentiality of 
alcohol and drug abuse patient records; (h) Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. §§3601 et seq.), as amended, relating to 
nondiscrimination in the sale, rental, or financing of housing; (i) any other nondiscrimination provisions in the specific statute(s) under 
which application for Federal assistance is being made; and (j) the requirements of any other nondiscrimination statute(s) which may apply 
to this Grant. 

10. Shall comply, as applicable, with the provisions of the Davis-Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. §§276a to 276a-7), the Copeland Act (40 U.S.C. §276c 
and 18 U.S.C. §874), and the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. §§327-333), regarding labor standards for 
federally assisted construction subagreements. 

11. Shall comply with requirements of the provisions of the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisitions Act of 1970 (P.L. 
91-646), which provide for fair and equitable treatment of persons displaced or whose property is acquired as a result of Federal or 
federally assisted programs.  These requirements apply to all interests in real property acquired for project purposes regardless of Federal 
participation in purchases. 

12. Shall comply with the provisions of the Hatch Political Activity Act (5 U.S.C. §§7321-29), which limit the political activity of employees 
whose principal employment activities are funded in whole or in part with Federal funds. 

13. Shall comply with the minimum wage and maximum hours provisions of the Federal Fair Labor Standards Act and the Intergovernmental 
Personnel Act of 1970, as applicable. 

14. Shall insure that the facilities under its ownership, lease, or supervision which shall be utilized in the accomplishment of the project are not 
listed on the Environmental Protection Agency’s (EPA) list of Violating Facilities and that it will notify the Federal grantor agency of the 
receipt of any communication from the Director of the EPA Office of Federal Activities indicating that a facility to be used in the project is 
under consideration for listing by the EPA (EO 11738). 



  
Page 14 of 18 

 

15.  Shall comply with the flood insurance purchase requirements of Section 102(a) of the Flood Disaster Protection Act of 1973, Public Law 
93-234. Section 102(a) requires the purchase of flood insurance in communities where such insurance is available as a condition for the 
receipt of any Federal financial assistance for construction or acquisition proposed for use in any area that has been identified by the 
Secretary of the Department of Housing and Urban Development as an area having special flood hazards.  

 
16.  Shall comply with environmental standards which may be prescribed pursuant to the following: (a) institution of environmental quality 

control measures under the National Environmental Policy Act of 1969 (P.L. 91-190) and Executive Order (EO) 11514; (b) notification of 
violating facilities pursuant to EO 11738; (c) protection of wetlands pursuant to EO 11990; (d) evaluation of flood hazards in floodplains in 
accordance with EO 11988; (e) assurance of project consistency with the approved state management program developed under the 
Coastal Zone Management Act of 1972 (16 U.S.C. §§1451 et seq.); (f) conformity of federal actions to State (Clear Air) Implementation 
Plans under Section 176(c) of the Clear Air Act of 1955, as amended (42 U.S.C. §§7401 et seq.); (g) protection of underground sources of 
drinking water under the Safe Drinking Water Act of 1974, as amended (P.L. 93-523); and (h) protection of endangered species under the 
Endangered Species Act of 1973, as amended (P.L. 93-205).  

17.  Shall comply with the Wild and Scenic Rivers Act of 1968 (16 U.S.C. §§1271 et seq.) related to protecting components or potential 
components of the national wild and scenic rivers system. 

18. Shall assist the awarding agency in assuring compliance with Section 106 of the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966, as amended 
(16 U.S.C. §470), EO 11593 (identification and protection of historic properties), and the Archaeological and Historic Preservation Act of 
1974 (16 U.S.C. §§469a-1 et seq.). 

19. Shall comply with the Laboratory Animal Welfare Act of 1966 (P.L. 89-544, as amended, 7 U.S.C. §§2131 et seq.) which requires the 
minimum standards of care and treatment for vertebrate animals bred for commercial sale, used in research, transported commercially, or 
exhibited to the public according to the Guide for Care and Use of Laboratory Animals and Public Health Service Policy and Government 
Principals Regarding the Care and Use of Animals. 

20.  Shall comply with the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act (42 U.S.C. §§4801 et seq.) which prohibits the use of lead-based paint 
in construction or rehabilitation of residential structures. 

21. Shall comply with the Pro-Children Act of 1994 (Public Law 103-277), which prohibits smoking within any portion of any indoor facility used 
for the provision of services for children. 

22. Shall comply with all federal tax laws and are solely responsible for filing all required state and federal tax forms. 

23. Shall comply with all applicable requirements of all other federal and state laws, executive orders, regulations, and policies governing this 
program. 

24. And its principals are eligible to participate and have not been subjected to suspension, debarment, or similar ineligibility determined by 
any federal, state, or local governmental entity and it is not listed on a state or federal government’s terrorism watch list as described in 
Executive Order 13224.  Entities ineligible for federal procurement have Exclusions listed at https://www.sam.gov/portal/public/SAM/. 

25. Shall adopt and implement applicable provisions of the model HIV/AIDS work place guidelines of the Texas Department of Health as 
required by the Texas Health and Safety Code, Ann., Sec. 85.001, et seq. 

 

https://www.sam.gov/portal/public/SAM/


  
Page 15 of 18 

 

EXHIBIT E 

Environmental Review  

As the duly authorized representative of Subrecipient, I certify that Subrecipient: 

1. shall assess its federally funded projects for potential impact to environmental resources and historic properties.   

2. shall submit any required screening form(s) as soon as possible and shall comply with deadlines established by DPS/TDEM. 
Timelines for the Environmental Planning and Historic Preservation (EHP) review process will vary based upon the complexity of 
the project and the potential for environmental or historical impact.   

3. shall include sufficient review time within its project management plan to comply with EHP requirements.  Initiation of any activity 
prior to completion of FEMA’s EHP review will result in a non-compliance finding and DPS/TDEM will not authorize or release 
Grant funds for non-compliant projects.  

4. as soon as possible upon receiving this Grant, shall provide information to DPS/TDEM to assist with the legally-required EHP 
review and to ensure compliance with applicable EHP laws and Executive Orders (EO) currently using the FEMA EHP Screening 
Form OMB Number 1660-0115/FEMA Form 024-0-01 and submitting it, with all supporting documentation, to DPS/TDEM for 
review. These EHP requirements include but are not limited to the National Environmental Policy Act, the National Historic 
Preservation Act, the Endangered Species Act, EO 11988 – Floodplain Management, EO 11990 – Protection of Wetlands, and EO 
12898 – Environmental Justice.  Subrecipient shall comply with all Federal, State, and local EHP requirements and shall obtain 
applicable permits and clearances.   

5. shall not undertake any activity from the project that would result in ground disturbance, facility modification, or purchase and use 
of sonar equipment without the prior approval of FEMA.  These include but are not limited to communications towers, physical 
security enhancements involving ground disturbance, new construction, and modifications to buildings.   

6. shall comply with all mitigation or treatment measures required for the project as the result of FEMA’s EHP review.  Any changes to 
an approved project description will require re-evaluation for compliance with EHP requirements before the project can proceed.   

7. if ground disturbing activities occur during project implementation, Subrecipient shall ensure monitoring of ground disturbance and 
if any potential archeological resources are discovered, Subrecipient shall immediately cease construction in that area and notify 
FEMA and the appropriate State Historical Preservation Office. 

 



  
Page 16 of 18 

 

EXHIBIT F 
 
Additional Grant Conditions 
 
1. Additional damage requiring a new Public Assistance project to be written must be reported within 60 days 

following the Kickoff meeting with the State- Federal team. 
 

2. All work must be done prior to the approved project completion deadline assigned to each Project. Should 
additional time be required, a time extension request must be submitted which: a.) Identifies the projects 
requiring an extension. b.) Explains the reason for an extension. c.) Indicates the percentage of work that 
has been completed. d.) Provides an anticipated completion date. The reason for an extension must be 
based on extenuating circumstances or unusual project requirements that are beyond the control of your 
jurisdiction/organization. Failure to submit a time extension request may result in reduction or 
withdrawal of federal funds for approved work. 

 
3. Any significant change to a project's approved Scope of Work must be reported and approved through 

TDEM and FEMA before starting the project. Failure to do so will jeopardize grant funding. 
 
4. The Project Completion and Certification Report must be returned to TDEM once all the approved work has 

been completed for each project. If any project requires the purchase of insurance as a condition of 
receiving federal funds, a copy of the current policy must be attached to this report. 

 
5. A cost overrun appeal on small ($120,000.00) Public Assistance projects must be reported to the Texas 

Division of Emergency Management (TDEM) within 60 days of completing the last small project in order to 
be considered for additional funding. 

 
6. Appeals may be filed on any determination made by FEMA or TDEM.  All appeals must be submitted to 

TDEM within 60 days from receiving written notice of the action you wish to appeal. Should you wish to 
appeal a determination contained in the project application, the 60 days will start the day the application is 
signed. 

 
7. Public Assistance program projects will not receive funding until all of the requirements identified in the 

comments section of the Project Worksheet are met. 
 
8. You may request a payment of funds on projects by completing the "Payment of Funds" request and 

including documentation supporting your request. In the event that an audit results in a reduction of the 
awarded amount of a project, the subrecipient is responsible for returning the identified overage within 30 
days of notification of the overpayment.  Small Public Assistance projects are paid upon obligation and the 
receipt of all required documentation.  Payments must be requested at least quarterly if expenditures have 
been made in that quarter. 

 
9. Projects that have not received final payment will be reviewed quarterly by TDEM representatives upon 

receipt of the Quarterly Review form from the subrecipient. Quarterly reports will be due on the following 
dates: March 15th, June 15th, September 15th & December 15th.  Public Assistance program small 
projects are exempted. 

 
10. Subrecipient with must submit a project cost summary to TDEM following the completion of each project, 

except Public Assistance program small projects. The project cost summary must list all labor, equipment, 
materials and contract costs associated with making needed repairs. 

 
11. Subrecipients expending $750,000 or more in total Federal financial assistance in a fiscal year will be 

required to provide an audit made in accordance with OMB Uniform Guidance; Cost Principles, Audit, and 
Administrative Requirements for Federal Awards, Subpart F. A copy of the Single Audit must be submitted 



  
Page 17 of 18 

 

to your cognizant State agency or TDEM within nine months of the end of the subrecipient’s fiscal year. 
Consult with your financial officer regarding this requirement. If not required to submit a single audit, a letter 
must be sent to TDEM certifying to this. 

 
12. Completed record and cost documents for all approved work must be for a minimum of three (3) years from 

the later of the completion of this project's public objective, submission of the final expenditure report, any 
litigation, dispute, or audit.  Records shall be retained for three (3) years after any real estate or equipment 
final disposition.  The DHS or DPS/TDEM may direct Subrecipient to retain documents or to transfer certain 
records to DHS custody when DHS determines that the records possess long term retention value. During 
this time, all approved projects are subject to State and Federal audit/review. 

 
13. Subrecipients will not make any award to any party which is debarred or suspended, or is otherwise 

excluded from participation in the Federal assistance programs (EO 12549, Debarment and Suspension). 
Subrecipient must maintain documentation validating review of debarment list of eligible contractors. 

 
14. Subrecipients must keep record of equipment acquired by federal funds for the life cycle of the equipment. 

A life cycle for most equipment will be three years, but could be longer. If the fair market value of a piece of 
equipment is valued over $5,000, FEMA will have the right to a portion of proceeds if equipment is sold.  If 
the fair market value of a piece of equipment is less than $5,000, the property can either be retained, sold 
or designated as surplus with no further obligation to FEMA. 

 
 
 



  
Page 18 of 18 

 

EXHIBIT G 

Additional Grant Certifications  

Match Certification 
 

Applicant certifies that they have the ability to meet the or exceed the cost share required of this project. 

 

Duplication of Program Statement 
 

Applicant certifies there has not been, nor will there be, a duplication of benefits for this project. 

 

For Hazard Mitigation Projects Only:   

Maintenance Agreement 
 

Applicant certifies that if there is a Maintenance Agreement needed for this facility copy of that agreement will be 
provided to TDEM. 

 

Environmental Justice Statement 
  

Federal Executive Order 12898 compliance requirements – If there are any concentrations of low income or 
minority populations in or near the HMGP project:  

 

1. Applicant certifies that the HMGP project result will not result in a disproportionately high or adverse effect on 
low income or minority populations. 

OR 
 

2. Applicant certifies that action will be taken to ensure achievement of environmental justice for low income and 
minority populations related to this HMGP project.    

 

 



   

Commissioners Court - Special Session   52.           
Meeting Date: 07/28/2016  

Extend the Pecan Harvesting Lease at Blackland Park
Submitted For: Max Bricka  Submitted By: Sydney Richardson, Purchasing
Department: Purchasing
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on authorizing the extension of Pecan Harvest Lease for the term of
October 1, 2016 - September 30, 2017, with Rob Stewart, Owner of Stewart Pecan Farm.

Background
This extension is for the harvesting of an estimated 200 native and mature pecan trees that are situated on
approximately 90 acres, on a tract of land known as the Blackland Heritage County Park.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Lease Agreement - Blackland 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Rebecca Clemons 07/13/2016 03:39 PM
Form Started By: Sydney Richardson Started On: 07/13/2016 08:05 AM
Final Approval Date: 07/13/2016 







   

Commissioners Court - Special Session   53.           
Meeting Date: 07/28/2016  

Food Services for Williamson County Jail
Submitted By: Brenda Fuller, Purchasing
Department: Purchasing
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on awarding the proposal received for RFP #1605-081 Food
Services for Williamson County Jail to the best proposer, Aramark Correctional Services, LLC

Background
After concluding the evaluation process and receiving three (3) proposals through the County's online bidding site
(Bid Sync), the evaluation committee is recommending Aramark Correctional Services, LLC. The evaluation
reports are attached.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Evaluation Sheets
Recommendation Letter
HB 1295 Form for Aramark
Aramark Contract for Food Service

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Purchasing (Originator) Jayme Jasso 07/20/2016 04:55 PM
County Judge Exec Asst. Wendy Coco 07/21/2016 08:14 AM
Purchasing (Originator) Max Bricka 07/21/2016 10:39 AM
Form Started By: Brenda Fuller Started On: 07/20/2016 03:19 PM
Final Approval Date: 07/21/2016 









 
 
         

 
 
 

JAMES R. WILSON 
WILLIAMSON COUNTY SHERIFF 

508 South Rock Street 
Georgetown, Texas 78626 

Phone (512) 943-1300  *   Fax (512) 943-1393 
 
 
 
 

L.C. “TONY” MARSHALL 
Chief Deputy 

MIKE COWIE 
Asst Chief Deputy- Law Enforcement 
 
MIKE GLEASON 
Asst Chief Deputy - Corrections    

 
Date:  July 20, 2016 
 
To:  Max Bricka, Purchasing Director 
  Brenda Fuller, Senior Purchasing Specialist 
 
From:  Kurt Showalter, Financial Manager 
 
Subject: RFP #1605-081 Food Services for Williamson County Jail 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The Williamson County Sheriff Office provides meals for inmates housed at the Williamson County 
Jail via of a private vendor under the direction of jail employees.  Currently the jail has a population 
of approximately 750 inmates requiring three meals per day. 
 
EVALUATION MEASURES 
 

1. References ( 10 points ) 
2. Experience ( 10 points) 
3. Prior Experience providing food service to inmates from an exterior location ( 20 points ) 
4. Compliance with Proposal Specification ( 20 points ) 
5. Price per inmate meal ( 40 points ) 
6. Price for jail staff meals ( 5 points ) 

 
The evaluation sheet that provides scoring has been signed and submitted to the Purchasing 
Department for inclusion with this recommendation. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 
 
The budgeted amount of $707,706.96 should be sufficient to complete fiscal year 2016.  With an 
anticipated average daily population of 825 inmates, $1,066,642.90 will be required for jail food 
service for fiscal year 2017. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
After detailed review and careful consideration by the five member evaluation committee together 
with the direction of the two purchasing department representatives, the proposal submitted by 
Aramark is the best apparent solution to the project for which the RFP was issued.  As a result, our 
recommendation to the Commissioner’s Court is to award the jail food service to Aramark.   
 
Each respondent’s submission was appreciated and received complete consideration.
 



































   

Commissioners Court - Special Session   54.           
Meeting Date: 07/28/2016  

Specific and Aggregate Stop Loss Insurance
Submitted By: Kerstin Hancock, Purchasing
Department: Purchasing
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on authorizing Purchasing Agent to advertise and receive proposals
for RFP#1605-083, Specific & Aggregate Stop Loss Insurance for Williamson County.

Background

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
RFP package

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Wendy Coco 07/21/2016 10:08 AM
Form Started By: Kerstin Hancock Started On: 07/21/2016 08:27 AM
Final Approval Date: 07/21/2016 



5

6

PUBLIC ANNOUNCEMENT AND GENERAL INFORMATION

WILLIAMSON COUNTY PURCHASING DEPARTMENT

SOLICITATION

Specific & Aggregate Stop Loss Insurance

PROPOSALS MUST BE RECEIVED ON OR 
BEFORE:

Aug 23, 2016 3:00:00 PM CDT
PROPOSALS WILL BE PUBLICLY 

OPENED: 
Aug 23, 2016 3:00:00 PM CDT

Notice is hereby given that sealed Proposals for the above-mentioned goods and/or services will be accepted by
the Williamson County Purchasing Department. Williamson County uses BidSync to distribute and receive 
proposals.  Specifications for this RFP may be obtained by registering at www.bidsync.com .

Williamson County prefers and requests electronic submittal of this 
proposal.

All electronic proposals must be submitted via:  www.bidsync.com

All interested Respondents are invited to submit a Proposal in accordance with the Instructions and General 
Requirements, Proposal Format, Proposal Specifications, and Definit ions, Terms and Condit ions stated in this
RFP. 

Respondents are strongly encouraged to carefully read this entire 
RFP.

Electronic proposals are requested, however paper proposals will currently still be 

received, until further notice and may be mailed or delivered to the address listed below.

Please note that a complete package must be submitted choosing one of the above two methods. 
Split packages submitted will be considered “unresponsive” and will not be accepted or evaluated.

ü If mailed or delivered in person, Proposals and Proposal addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on 
or before the submittal deadline, as noted in the ‘Public Announcement and General Information ’ listed 
above for this RFP, to:

Williamson County Purchasing Department
Attn: PROPOSAL NAME AND NUMBER
901 South Austin Avenue 
Georgetown, Texas 78626

ü Respondents should list the Proposal Number, Proposal Name, Name and Address of 
Respondent, and the Date of the Proposal opening on the outside of the box or envelope and
note “Sealed Proposal Enclosed. ”

ü Respondent should submit one (1) original; AND one (1) CD OR (1) USB copy of the Proposal.

ü Williamson County will not accept any Proposals received after the submittal deadline,
and shall return such Proposals unopened to the Respondent.

ü Williamson County will not accept any responsibility for Proposals being delivered by third party
carriers.

ü Facsimile transmittals will NOT be accepted.

ü Proposals will be publicly opened in a manner to avoid public disclosure of contents; however, 
names of Respondents will be read aloud.

ü All submitted questions with their answers will be posted and updated on www.bidsync.com.

ü It is the Respondent ’s responsibi l ity to review all documents in BidSync including any addenda that may have been 
added after the document packet was originally released and posted.

ü Any addenda and/or other information relevant to the RFP will be posted on www.bidsync.com. 

ü The Williamson County Purchasing Department takes no responsibility to ensure any interested
Respondent has obtained any outstanding addenda or additional information. 

ü Williamson County will NOT be responsible for unmarked or improperly marked envelopes. 

Bid 1605-083Williamson County, Texas

7/21/2016 7:45 AM p. 1



5

6

PUBLIC ANNOUNCEMENT AND GENERAL INFORMATION

WILLIAMSON COUNTY PURCHASING DEPARTMENT

SOLICITATION

Specific & Aggregate Stop Loss Insurance

PROPOSALS MUST BE RECEIVED ON OR 
BEFORE:

Aug 23, 2016 3:00:00 PM CDT
PROPOSALS WILL BE PUBLICLY 

OPENED: 
Aug 23, 2016 3:00:00 PM CDT

Notice is hereby given that sealed Proposals for the above-mentioned goods and/or services will be accepted by
the Williamson County Purchasing Department. Williamson County uses BidSync to distribute and receive 
proposals.  Specifications for this RFP may be obtained by registering at www.bidsync.com .

Williamson County prefers and requests electronic submittal of this 
proposal.

All electronic proposals must be submitted via:  www.bidsync.com

All interested Respondents are invited to submit a Proposal in accordance with the Instructions and General 
Requirements, Proposal Format, Proposal Specifications, and Definit ions, Terms and Condit ions stated in this
RFP. 

Respondents are strongly encouraged to carefully read this entire 
RFP.

Electronic proposals are requested, however paper proposals will currently still be 

received, until further notice and may be mailed or delivered to the address listed below.

Please note that a complete package must be submitted choosing one of the above two methods. 
Split packages submitted will be considered “unresponsive” and will not be accepted or evaluated.

ü If mailed or delivered in person, Proposals and Proposal addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on 
or before the submittal deadline, as noted in the ‘Public Announcement and General Information ’ listed 
above for this RFP, to:

Williamson County Purchasing Department
Attn: PROPOSAL NAME AND NUMBER
901 South Austin Avenue 
Georgetown, Texas 78626

ü Respondents should list the Proposal Number, Proposal Name, Name and Address of 
Respondent, and the Date of the Proposal opening on the outside of the box or envelope and
note “Sealed Proposal Enclosed. ”

ü Respondent should submit one (1) original; AND one (1) CD OR (1) USB copy of the Proposal.

ü Williamson County will not accept any Proposals received after the submittal deadline,
and shall return such Proposals unopened to the Respondent.

ü Williamson County will not accept any responsibility for Proposals being delivered by third party
carriers.

ü Facsimile transmittals will NOT be accepted.

ü Proposals will be publicly opened in a manner to avoid public disclosure of contents; however, 
names of Respondents will be read aloud.

ü All submitted questions with their answers will be posted and updated on www.bidsync.com.

ü It is the Respondent ’s responsibi l ity to review all documents in BidSync including any addenda that may have been 
added after the document packet was originally released and posted.

ü Any addenda and/or other information relevant to the RFP will be posted on www.bidsync.com. 

ü The Williamson County Purchasing Department takes no responsibility to ensure any interested
Respondent has obtained any outstanding addenda or additional information. 

ü Williamson County will NOT be responsible for unmarked or improperly marked envelopes. 

Bid 1605-083Williamson County, Texas

7/21/2016 7:45 AM p. 2



55

66

Bid 1605-083
Specific & Aggregate Stop Loss Insurance

Bid Number     1605 -083 

Bid Title     Specific & Aggregate Stop Loss Insurance 

Bid Start Date  In Held

Bid End Date  Aug 23, 2016 3:00:00 PM CDT

Question & 
Answer End Date

 Aug 17, 2016 5:00:00 PM CDT

Bid Contact     Kerstin N Hancock 

 512 -943-1546 

 khancock@wilco.org 

Contract Duration    12 months 

Contract Renewal    2 annual renewals   

Prices Good for    90 days 

Bid Comments Williamson County is seeking proposal for Specific Aggregate Stop Loss Insurance. Respondent must specify 
any deviation from the RFP in their proposal on the "Statement of Compliance" form. It will be assumed that 
the Respondent's Proposal is in compliance with the RFP specifications if deviations are not noted on the 
"Statement of Compliance" form.  

Secure copy of the census and the LCR (Large Claim Review) or any additional information can be obtained by 
emailing khancock@wilco.org
All required documents must be attached:
- Fee Proposal Appendix A
- Statement of Compliance
- Conflict of Interest Questionnaire
- Bidder References
- RFP Affidavit

Item Response Form

Item     1605-083--01-01 -  Please attach all required proposal documents to this line item

Quantity    1 each

Prices are not requested for this item. 

Delivery Location          Williamson County, Texas

No Location Specified

Qty  1 

Description
Please attach all required documents to this line item:
- Fee Proposal Appendix A
- Statement of Compliance
- Conflict of Interest Questionnaire
- Bidder References
- RFP Affidavit

Bid 1605-083Williamson County, Texas

7/21/2016 7:45 AM p. 3



1. PROPOSAL SPECIFICATIONS 
 
1.1 Background Information 

 
Williamson County has a self-insured Medical benefit program administered by Aetna Inc. 
utilizing both Aetna’s Choice POS 2 network and The Seton Health Alliance ACO.  The 
County offers Two (2) Medical plans.  These plans differ by network. 
 
 
The County's current ISL is $250,000 and the Aggregate is a 120% corridor.  

This RFP is for: 

Specific & Aggregate Stop Loss Insurance 
 
 
The County does not have the staff to increase their job functions being performed 
currently. Therefore, any carrier/administrator must be willing to meet all the stated current 
services as a minimum and clearly outlined in his or her Proposal any deviations from 
those stated within the RFP. 
 
You must specify any and all deviations in your Proposal and the RFP on the "Statement of 
Compliance".  It will be assumed that your Proposal is in compliance if deviations 
are not noted in the "Statement of Compliance".  This RFP has outlined the services 
the County expects as a minimum requirement. 
 
Any prospective Respondent will be responsible for having qualified personnel and 
computerized systems capable of handling a case of this size and the flexible plan of 
benefits. The Respondent must provide references and proof of the provider's ability to 
serve satisfactory to the County. This Contract will not be based upon cost alone but will 
place equal importance on ability to pay claims timely and accurately, and on the ability 
of the provider to serve satisfactorily to the County. 
 
It is not the intent of the County that commissions are built into the Proposals.  
Commissions, fees or other reimbursement arrangements are prohibited.  Each 
Respondent must sign the Non- Collusion Affidavit enclosed or their Proposal will not 
be considered. 
 
If you have any technical questions about the specifications, please submit all 
questions in writing to Bidsync at www.Bidsync.com 
 
 
FOR AN ELECTRONIC COPY OF THE CENSUS OR INFORMATION ON CLAIMS 
THAT ARE 50% OF THE INDIVIDUAL SPECIFIC, PLEASE SUBMIT YOUR REQUEST 
IN WRITING TO  khancock@wilco.org  
 
1.2  General Carrier Requirements 
 
1.2.1   Specific Stop-Loss 
 
Williamson County is looking to go to a 12 month contract from 01/1/17 through 12/31/17.  
The requested specific is for $250,000 Deductible and should be a 24/12 paid contract. 
The optional requests are for a $225,000 and $275,000 deductible and it should be a 24/12 
contract.   The specific and aggregate should include all prescription drug claims and 
exclude all claims from the stand alone dental and vision plans.  Proposals must clearly 

Bid 1605-083Williamson County, Texas

7/21/2016 7:45 AM p. 4

mailto:khancock@wilco.org


state any limitations in regards to an unlimited lifetime maximum benefit. 
 

Note:  Respondents are encouraged to give options for more than a single year contract.  
Any Lasers, Aggregating Specific or different contract periods, must be finalized after the 
receipt of updated materials.   Non-acceptance of this requirement must be outlined on 
the Statement of Compliance Form in the Proposal. 
 
1.2.2  Aggregate Excess Protection 
 
The aggregate attachment point must be proposed on 120% of projected paid claims.  
Corridors of lesser amounts such as 115% will receive preferential review.  A monthly cap 
should be given as an option.   Each Proposal must state exactly the monthly and total 
attachment point dollar amount the time period covered, and if there are any restrictions. 
 
1.2.3  Transitional Process 
 
The selected carrier shall be responsible for all claims incurred on/or after January 1, 2017 
and paid from January 1, 2017 through December 31, 2017.  The County desires that 
covered employees and their dependents should not be adversely affected by a change 
in insurance carriers.   A "no-loss/no-gain" approach will apply to all participants covered 
under the new plan.   It is imperative that any exclusions, limitations, or any other deviation 
be clearly outlined and discussed.  A Respondent is expected to explain, in detail, their 
approach and responsibilities for total disabilities, active at work clauses, or any other 
limitations. 
 
Proposals received with full protection - no limitations - will receive preference. 
 
1.2.4  Commission 
 
No commissions or service fees shall be paid to any party without 
disclosure. 
 
1.2.5   Compliance with the Proposal 
 
All responses are to be prepared according to the Proposal.  Any item(s) your company 
cannot accommodate are to be disclosed in writing prior to binding acceptance by the 
consultant and the County.  Any deviations from this request are to be discussed, in writing, 
with the consultant in advance of the due date.  After the County has made a commitment 
and awarded the Contract, the carrier will be held responsible for all items contained in the 
specifications. 
 
1.2.6  Effective Date 
 
The effective date of the new contract(s) will be January 1, 2017 for 12 months.  Following 
the initial contract term from November 1, 2017   to December 31, 2017, the County will 
have the option to renew the contract for two (2) one-year annual renewals. 
 
1.2.7  Proposed Rates 
 
A minimum rate guarantee of 12 (twelve) months is required.  Please confirm this 
guarantee in your Proposal and denote any additional guarantees your company may wish 
to extend to the County.  It is the County's intent to establish a one year contract with the 
new carrier(s) provided renewal rates are acceptable and can be given within your Proposal.   
Multiple year rate guaranteed contracts will receive preference.  Multiple year 

Bid 1605-083Williamson County, Texas

7/21/2016 7:45 AM p. 5



contracts must include a not to exceed cap for rate increase in the additional years. 
 
1.2.8   Renewal Rates 
 
The selected carrier is asked to deliver a rate adjustment no later than 90 (ninety) days 
prior to the anniversary date each year. 
 
1.2.9   Ownership of Records 
 
All records, member files and miscellaneous data necessary to administer the plan shall 
be the property of the County.  The selected carrier will be asked to transfer records to the 
County within 30 (thirty days of notice of termination. 
 
1.2.10   Master Policy 
 
The master policy shall be provided to the County no later than 30 (thirty) days from 
effective date. Please confirm your ability to provide this service and meet the deadline in 
your Proposal. 
 
1.2.11    Plan Changes and Amendments 
 
If changes in the plan of benefits or servicing requirements are needed, such changes 
will be made in writing and deemed as an amendment to the Contract. 
 
1.2.12   Carrier Selection 
 
The selection of the carrier is tentatively scheduled to occur on 11-29-2016 
(tentative). 
 
1.2.13  Data Caveat 
 
Williamson County and Aetna have supplied the data contained herein.  It has been 
gathered and coordinated by the consultant and reviewed as to accuracy on a "best effort" 
manner.  This Request for Proposal is qualified to the extent the data provided is accurate. 
 
1.3   Stop Loss Questionnaire 
 
 
CARRIER INFORMATION 
 
1.  When did the insurer start writing Medical Stop Loss Insurance? 
 
2.  Please note any years in which the insurer ceased writing or renewing medical stop 
loss business. 
 
3.  Please provide the names, titles and phone numbers for key contact persons for claims, 
billing and eligibility. 
 
FINANCIAL INFORMATION 
 
1.  Please provide information relative to your reinsurance arrangements for your medical 
stop loss coverage. 
 
2.  What percentage of the risk do you retain? Describe in detail. 
 
 

Bid 1605-083Williamson County, Texas

7/21/2016 7:45 AM p. 6



 
UNDERWRITING INFORMATION 

 
1. At renewal, what information do you require? Specifically address all disclosure 

requirements. 
 

2. Williamson County would like the renewal by July 1, 2017. Please confirm that you can 
provide the renewal by this date. 
 
 
 
RATING PROCEDURES 

 
1. Discuss your renewal philosophy.  Be specific as it relates to known ongoing large 

claims, high deductibles, lasering, rating up, exclusion, etc. 
 
2. Has a renewal ever been denied solely due to claim experience? 
 
3. Does your contract allow you to limit or exclude coverage for an individual who becomes 

disabled or begins receiving treatment after you are awarded the contract but prior to the 
contract effective date?  

 
 
CLAIMS INFORMATION 
 

1. What information do you require to process a specific stop loss claim? 
 
2. What information do you require to process an aggregate stop loss claim? 
 
3. What kind of timeframe can we expect for you to pay both claim types? 
 
4. What proof of payment is required for specific and aggregate claims? 
 
5. What is your definition of a paid claim? 
 
6. If you purchase reinsurance protection, does the reinsurer need to review all 

claims before they are paid, or are your decisions binding on the reinsurance? 
 
7. If a claim is delayed beyond the end of the contract period, do you grant a waiver of 

the time limits for payments if the circumstances are reported to you prior to the end 
of the period?  If not, how are such situations handled? 

 
8. Do you require that large claim management services be used?  Under what 

circumstances? Do you pay for such services? 
 
9. Do you accept the reasonable and customary determinations made by the TPA, or 

do you have a database you use? 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Bid 1605-083Williamson County, Texas

7/21/2016 7:45 AM p. 7



 
CONTRACT INFORMATION 
 
1. Please provide a sample policy for our review. 

 
2. Please list any exclusion(s) that are mandatory, regardless of the c l ient ’s  

proposed plan document language or benefit design. 
 
3. Do you have an "actively at work" provision?   What are the procedures for 

waiving it? 
 
4. What is the maximum time allowed for submission after the termination date of 

valid claims that were paid within the contract period? 
 
5. Please provide the definition of experimental procedures and note how this 

provision is interpreted for a claim approved for payment under the medical plan. 
 
6. Does the insurer assist in claim determination before reimbursement is requested? 
 
7. Are there any circumstances where the insurer can deny reimbursement of a 

claim which has been approved by the UR program and/or the Large Case Manager 
and paid under the Plan? 

 
8. Please specify all terms and conditions under which the insurer may terminate or 

modify its policy. 
 
 
9. If the policy is issued through an MGU, delineate what happens when the 

reinsurer changes on a date other than the client's Plan anniversary. 
 

 
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 

 

1.  Have you ever been suspended from writing Stop Loss Coverage?  If yes, please 
describe. 
 

2. Is your organization able to work with any claims administrator (TPAs, BCBS plans, 
carriers, etc.? If no, provide a listing of all U.S. based claims administrators with 
whom your organization will do business.  Please also indicate those that may have 
a “preferred” status and describe the advantage to Williamson County in doing 
business with these claims administrators. 
 

3. Is your stop loss contract considered guaranteed renewable?  If no, please 
describe your determination and notification methods. 
 

4. Is your organization capable and willing to contact the claims administrator (TPAs, 
carrier, etc.) or Case Management firm directly to obtain additional information 
related to large claimants? 
 

Bid 1605-083Williamson County, Texas

7/21/2016 7:45 AM p. 8



5. Once firm rates are presented and coverage is bound, under which circumstances, 
if any, would your organization modify rates / factors mid-year? 
 

6. Are there any conditions or circumstances (i.e., diagnosis, procedure, medical 
services, etc.) that require pre-approval by your case managers?  If yes, please 
list.   
 

7. Is there a Transplant Center of Excellence provision in your contract? 
a. If yes, is this a voluntary or mandatory program? 

 
8.  Do you offer advance funding or quick pay options for specific claims?  If yes, 

please provide details including any additional cost. 
 

9. Do you offer advance funding or quick pay options for aggregate claims?  If yes, 
please provide details including any additional cost. 

 
 

1.4   Plan Designs Claims Experience 
 
FOR AN ELECTRONIC COPY OF THE CENSUS AND LARGE CLAIMANT 
INFORMATION, PLEASE EMAIL khancock@wilco.org 

Bid 1605-083Williamson County, Texas

7/21/2016 7:45 AM p. 9

mailto:khancock@wilco.org


 
 
 
1.5  Network Benefit 

 
 

This Plan provides benefits through a group of contracted providers (Network Providers).  A 
Network Provider means using a Physician or other Licensed Health Care Provider who is 
part of a group of contracted providers.   Using Network Providers offers cost-savings 
advantages because a Covered Person pays only a percentage of the scheduled fee for 
services provided. 
 
To determine if a provider qualifies as an eligible Network Provider under this Plan, please 
consult A e t n a ’ s  website at www.aetna.com to access l inks for directories of Network 
Providers. 
 
The Benefit Percentages for Medical Benefits may vary depending on the type of service and 
provider rendering the service or treatment.   Non-Network Provider means a provider who 
is not a Network Provider. If a Non-Network Provider is chosen over a Network Provider, the 
Benefit Percentage will be lower (as stated in the following Schedule of Medical Benefits), 
unless one of the a Non-Network Benefit Exceptions stated below applies. 
 
NON-NETWORK BENEFIT EXCEPTION 
 
When a covered service is rendered by a Non-Network Provider, charges will be paid as if 
the service were rendered by a Network Provider only under the following circumstances: 
 

1. Charges for an Emergency as defined by this Plan, limited to only those emergency medical 
procedures necessary to treat and stabilize an eligible injury or illness and then only to the 
extent that the same are necessary in order for the Covered Person to be transported, at the 
earliest medically appropriate time to a Network Hospital, clinic or other facility, or discharged. 
 

2.  Charges which are incurred as a result of and related to confinement in or use of a Network 
Hospital, clinic or other facility only for Non-Network services and providers over whom or which 
the Covered Person does not have any choice in or ability to select. 
 

3. A Network Provider is not reasonably available within 50 miles (using Googlemaps.com) who 
can provide the service needed.  To obtain this exception, the Covered Person must request 
the exception in  writing indicating the  name  and  address  of  the  patient,  the  
Participant’s name, identification number  and group  number,  type  of treatment,  service  
or supply  for which  exception is  needed.   Requests for exceptions can be sent to Aetna.    
If this exception is granted by the Plan, charges made by the Non-Network Provider will be 
paid at the Network benefit level.  This exception will not be granted until written approval is 
received from the Plan. 
 

4. A Network Provider refers the patient to a Non-Network Provider.   Medical documentation 
from the Network Provider stating the reason for referring the patient to a Non-Network Provider 
must be submitted to the Plan for review.  To obtain  this  exception, the Network  Provider  
must request the exception in writing indicating the name and address  of the patient, 
the Participant’s name, identification number  and group  number, type of treatment, service 
or supply  for  which   exception  is  needed  including  medical   documentation  stating   
the reasons for referring the patient  to a Non-Network Provider.  Requests for exceptions 
can be sent to Aetna.  If this exception is granted by the Plan, charges made by the Non 
 Network Provider will be paid at the Network benefit level.   This exception will not be 
granted until written approval is received from the Plan. 

 

Bid 1605-083Williamson County, Texas

7/21/2016 7:45 AM p. 10



 
 
 
 

2.  Additional Stipulations 

2.1 Introduction 
The Proposal evaluation and selection process is detailed in this section, as are other 
factors, and the format in which the Price Proposal of each Proposal should be submitted. 

 
2.2 Price Proposal 

The Respondent must utilize the price sheet form as provided in the Appendix A which will be 
attached to this RFP. The Price Proposal should be included in each copy of the Proposal if 
submitted in paper form. 

Note: Any reworked version of the Appendix that is intended to be a substitute and that 
is provided by a Respondent may be determined as non-responsive, and may, at 
Williamson County’s sole discretion, result in the Respondent’s disqualification. 

 
2.3 Proposal Evaluation and Selection 
 
2.3.1 Evaluation/Selection Criteria 

All Proposals received by the designated date and time will be evaluated based on the 
Respondent’s Proposal. Other information may be taken into consideration when that 
information potentially provides an additional benefit to Williamson County, and further helps 
Williamson County in receiving the services listed in the RFP. 
Respondents’ Proposals must meet all mandatory (minimum) requirements in order to 
be scored. Scoring may also be based on total information gathered by Williamson 
County at its discretion, including but not limited to respondent’s ability to perform 
“without delay or interference”; respondent’s “character, responsibility, integrity, and 
experience or demonstrated capability; quality of prior work; compliance with laws; and 
noncompliance with requirements as to submission of relevant information.” 

 
2.3.2 Evaluation Committee and Selection Process 

All Proposals will be evaluated by a County appointed Evaluation Committee. The Evaluation 
Committee may be composed of County Staff that may have expertise, knowledge or 
experience with the services and/or goods being procured hereunder. Those Respondents 
meeting all requirements and deemed most qualified may receive further evaluation via 
telephone or in-person interviews with members of the Evaluation Committee. The County will 
select a Respondent determined best and most responsible Respondent meeting minimum 
specifications and qualifications. 
Respondents are advised that the Evaluation Committee, at its option, may recommend an 
award strictly on the basis of the initial RFP responses, or in addition, may have interviews with 
firms to determine its final recommendation. The Evaluation Committee will present its 
recommendation to the Williamson County Commissioners’ Court for approval and award of 
contract. 
Finalist shall be determined by the Respondent receiving the most points in relation to the 
following Evaluation Criteria. Additional scoring may be conducted based upon Respondent’s 
presentation during the interview process and may or may not include previous scores from 
Proposer's Proposal. 
 
 
  

Bid 1605-083Williamson County, Texas

7/21/2016 7:45 AM p. 11



 
 
 
 
 

2.3.3 Mandatory criteria (has to be met in order to be scored) 
Minimum requirements must be passed in order to be considered for scoring as 
described in section 2.3.4 

 

Minimum Requirements Pass/Fail 

Must have been rated by A.M. Best for at least the past three 
years as an A- rated company  
Insurance company is published in the current listing of insurance 
companies, authorized to transact business in Texas  
Will consider waiving the Employee Actively at Work/Dependent 
Non-Confined Underwriting  provision  

 
 
2.3.4 Graded Evaluation Factors 

The following  graded  evaluation  factors  will  be  used  to  determine  how  well  a 
Respondent(s) meet(s) the desired performance.  

 

valuation Criteria 
Total 

Points 
Available 

 Please select a Whole Number from the list 
provided for each question. (Decimal scoring or 
unlisted rating scores are not permitted) 

Individual number of Lasers 5 

5 = Significantly Exceeds Requirements                                     
4 = Marginally Exceeds Requirements                                
3 = Meets Requirements                                                       
2 = Marginally Meets Requirements                                                       
1 = Does Not Meet Requirements 

Overall presentation of proposal 
submitted (clarity and attention to 
detail on submittal) 

5 

5 = Significantly Exceeds Requirements                                     
4 = Marginally Exceeds Requirements                                
3 = Meets Requirements                                                       
2 = Marginally Meets Requirements                                                       
1 = Does Not Meet Requirements 

Specific Policy Exclusions 5 

5 = Significantly Exceeds Requirements                                     
4 = Marginally Exceeds Requirements                                
3 = Meets Requirements                                                       
2 = Marginally Meets Requirements                                                       
1 = Does Not Meet Requirements 

Response to RFP questions and how 
they meet the needs of the County 5 

5 = Significantly Exceeds Requirements                                     
4 = Marginally Exceeds Requirements                                
3 = Meets Requirements                                                       
2 = Marginally Meets Requirements                                                       
1 = Does Not Meet Requirements 

Claims payment turn-around time 5 

5 = Significantly Exceeds Requirements                                     
4 = Marginally Exceeds Requirements                                
3 = Meets Requirements                                                       
2 = Marginally Meets Requirements                                                       
1 = Does Not Meet Requirements 

Price (RFP Cost Score): Lowest 
Respondent’s proposal/ Respondent’s 
Proposal x 10 (points)  

             
10  

Total 25 (Highest scorers = Proceed to 
Interviews) 

 
 
 
 
 

Bid 1605-083Williamson County, Texas

7/21/2016 7:45 AM p. 12



 
 
 
 
 
Evaluation Criteria 
Summary  

Total maximum points  

Evaluation Criteria 1-5  

25 (5 points for each criteria)  

Evaluation Criteria 6 
(Price)  

10 (weighted at 40% of the total maximum points of criteria – 25 
x 40% = 10 maximum points)  

 
 
2.3.5  Interviews 

Interview scoring (if applicable) will be provided along with invitation to interview candidates. 
Best and Final Offer will be required from all Respondents scheduled for interviews, 24 hours 

 
2.3.6 Additional Evaluation information 

Williamson County reserves the right to award a contract for any or all areas of this RFP. 
 

It is the responsibility of the Respondent to provide sufficient information/data in a convincing 
manner to the County to assure all of the terms, conditions and expectations for satisfactory 
performance of the services requested herein will be met. 
 
All contact during the evaluation phase shall be through the Williamson County 
Purchasing Department only.  Respondent shall neither contact nor lobby evaluators during 
the evaluation process.   Attempts by Respondent to contact and/or influence members of the 
Evaluation Committee may result in disqualification of Proposal. 

 
2.4 Technical Contact 

Shelley Loughrey, Benefits Administrator (or successor), Williamson County,301 SE Inner Loop, 
Ste 108, Georgetown, TX shall serve as Williamson County’s Technical Contact with designated 
responsibility to ensure compliance with the requirements of the Contract and any ensuing 
agreement, such as but not limited to, acceptance, inspection and delivery, together with the 
Purchasing Department. The Technical Contact together with the Purchasing Department will 
serve as liaison between Williamson County Commissioners Court and the Successful 
Respondent. 

 
2.5   Initial Contract Term 

The Successful Respondent shall provide the goods and/or services described herein for an 
initial term of twelve (12) months beginning on January 1, 2017 through December 31, 2017 
 

2.6 Contract Extensions 
At the end of the Initial Contract Term, the Commissioners Court reserves the right to extend the 
Initial Contract Term, by mutual agreement of both parties, as it deems to be in the best interest 
of the County. The extension may be negotiated if renewal indications are provided within 
Williamson County’s timeframe which reflect renewal terms for the forthcoming policy year that 
are deemed by Williamson County to be competitive with current market conditions. However, 
Williamson County may terminate the contract at any time if funds are restricted, withdrawn, not 
approved, or if service is unsatisfactory. Any extension will be in twelve (12) month increments for 
up to an additional twenty-four (24) months, with the terms and conditions remaining the same. 
The total period of the contract, including all extensions will not exceed a maximum combined  
 

Bid 1605-083Williamson County, Texas

7/21/2016 7:45 AM p. 13



 
 
 
period of sixty (60) months. The extension of the contract is contingent on the appropriation of 
necessary funds by Commissioners Court for the fiscal year in question.  Upon the failure of 
Commissioners Court to so appropriate in any year, the Respondent may elect to terminate the 
contract, with no additional liability to the County. The County and the Respondent agree that 
termination shall be the Respondent’s sole remedy under this circumstance.   
 

2.7 Insurance Requirements 
 

By signing its Proposal, the Respondent agrees to maintain at all times during any term of the 
Contract and any ensuing Agreement at Respondent's cost, insurance in accordance with this 
provision. 

Respondent will be required to submit Certificates of Insurance prior to contract award and 
any renewals. 

All certificates of insurance coverage as specified below must be provided to the following 
location: 

 Williamson County Purchasing Department 

901 S Austin Ave 

Georgetown, Texas  78626 

Failure to comply with these Insurance Requirements may result in the termination of the 
Contract and any ensuing Agreement(s) between the Successful Respondent and County. 

 

The following coverage limits shall be required at a minimum: 

A. Worker's Compensation     Statutory – Texas Law 

B. Employer's Liability:   
  
Bodily Injury by Accident $500,000 Ea. Accident 
Bodily Injury by Disease $500,000 Ea. Employee  
Bodily Injury by Disease $500,000 Policy Limit 
 
C. Comprehensive general liability including completed operations and contractual liability 
insurance for bodily injury, death, or property damages in the following amounts: 
COVERAGE  PER PERSON     PER OCCURRENCE 
Comprehensive   
General Liability  $1,000,000  $1,000,000 
    
Aggregate policy limits:    $1,000,000 
 
Successful Respondent’s property will not be covered by any insurance that may be carried by 
Williamson County.  Successful Respondent assumes the risk of loss on its contents and 
property that are situated on/in/around Williamson County property.  The Successful Respondent 
is strongly encouraged to obtain insurance on its property to the extent deemed necessary by 
the Successful Respondent.  

Bid 1605-083Williamson County, Texas

7/21/2016 7:45 AM p. 14



The deductible for an insurance policy required hereunder shall not exceed $100,000. 
Williamson  

 

 

County shall be named as an additional insured under any policy of insurance required 
hereunder. 

Successful Respondent shall not commence any work until it has obtained all required insurance 
and such insurance has been approved by County. Successful Respondent shall not allow any 
subcontractor(s) to commence work to be performed until all required insurance has been 
obtained by such subcontractor(s) and approved by County. Approval of the insurance by County 
shall not relieve or decrease the liability of Successful Respondent or its subcontractor(s) 
hereunder. 

The required insurance must be written by a company approved to do business in the State of 
Texas with a financial standing of at least an A- rating, as reflected in Best’s insurance ratings or 
by a similar rating system recognized within the insurance industry at the time the policy is issued. 
Successful Respondent shall furnish County with a certificate of coverage issued by the insurer. 
Successful Respondent shall not cause any insurance to be canceled nor permit any insurance 
to lapse. ALL INSURANCE CERTIFICATES SHALL INCLUDE A CLAUSE TO THE EFFECT 
THAT THE POLICY SHALL NOT BE CANCELED OR REDUCED, RESTRICTED OR LIMITED 
UNTIL TEN (10) CALENDAR DAYS AFTER COUNTY HAS RECEIVED WRITTEN NOTICE AS 
EVIDENCED BY RETURN RECEIPT OF REGISTERED OR CERTIFIED LETTER. 

It is the intention of the County, and agreed to and hereby acknowledged by the Successful 
Respondent, that no provision of this Contract or any ensuing Agreement shall be construed to 
require the County to submit to mandatory arbitration or mediation in the settlement of any claim, 
cause of action or dispute, except as specifically required in direct connection with an insurance 
claim or threat of claim under an insurance policy required hereunder which absolutely requires 
arbitration or mediation of such claim, or as otherwise required by law or a court of law with 
jurisdiction over the provisions of this Contract or any ensuing Agreement. 
 

2.8 Confidentiality 
Respondent expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information 
that may be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees 
that it will not access unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any 
information to unauthorized third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the 
information at all times. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Bid 1605-083Williamson County, Texas

7/21/2016 7:45 AM p. 15



 
 

 
2.9 Tentative Schedule 
 

Event                                                                                           Date 

RFP released in BidSync                                      07/26/16 

Deadline for RFP questions                                                    08/17/16 5:00PM 
RFP final responses due                                                         08/23/16 3:00PM 
Benefit Committee Meeting – Final 
Selection of Vendor 

09/21/16 

Contract awarded                                                             11/15/16 

Contract effective date                                                         01/01/17 
 

Bid 1605-083Williamson County, Texas

7/21/2016 7:45 AM p. 16



RFP Standard Documents 
 

 
 

1. RESPONSE FORMAT AND SUBMISSION  

1.1 Introduction  
 
Each Proposal submitted in response to this RFP should clearly reference those numbered sections of this RFP that require a 
response.  Failure to arrange the Proposal as requested may result in the disqualification of the Proposal. 

Though there is not a page limit for Proposals, to save natural resources including paper, and to allow Williamson County staff to 
efficiently evaluate all submitted Proposals, Williamson County requests that Proposals be orderly, concise, but comprehensive in 
providing the requested information.  Conciseness and clarity of content are emphasized and encouraged.  If   mailed   or delivered in 
person, please limit additional, non-requested   information. 

Please provide your Proposal response using: 

1. 8 ½” x 11” pages, inclusive of any cover letter or supporting materials 

2. The least amount of plastic/laminate or other non-recyclable binding materials 

3. Single-sided printing 

Vague and general Proposals will be considered non-responsive, and may, at County’s sole discretion, result in disqualification. 
Proposals must be legible and complete. Failure to provide the required information may result in the disqualification of the Proposal. All 
pages of the Proposal should be numbered and the Proposal should contain an organized, paginated table of contents   corresponding 
to the sections and pages of the Proposal. 

 

1.2 Organization of Proposal C ontents and Table of Contents  

Each Proposal should be submitted with a table of contents that clearly identifies and denotes the location of each title and subtitle of 
the Proposal. Additionally, the table of contents should  clearly  identify and denote the location of all enclosures of the Proposal. The 
table of contents should follow  the RFP’s structure as much as is practical. 

Each Proposal should be organized in the manner described below: 

1. Transmittal Letter 

2. Table of Contents 

3. Executive Summary 

4. Proposal Response to Criteria (see Specifications & Cost Proposal,  Experience and Qualifications, References, Implementation 
Strategy) 

5. Price Sheet 

6. References: Identification of three (3) references within the last 4 years for which the Respondent is providing or has provided 
the goods and services (public sector) of the type  requested, including the name, position, and telephone number of a contact 
person at each entity 

7. Conflict of Interest Questionnaire 

8. Proposal Affidavit and Addenda Acknowledgement 

9. Signature Page 

10. Attach your entities Sample Contract 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Bid 1605-083Williamson County, Texas

7/21/2016 7:45 AM p. 17



RFP Standard Documents 
 

 
 

1.3 Transmittal Letter  

The Respondent should submit a Transmittal Letter that provides the following: 

 

a) Name and address of individual or business entity submitting the Proposal; 

b) Respondent’s type of business entity (i.e., Corporation, General Partnership, Limited Partnership,   LLC, etc.); 

c) Place of incorporation or organization, if applicable; 

d) Name  and  location  of  major  offices  and  other  facilities  that  relate  to  the  Respondent’s  performance under the 
terms of this RFP; 

e) Name, address, business and fax number of the Respondent’s principal contact person regarding  all contractual matters 
relating to this RFP; 

f) The Respondent’s Federal Employer Identification Number; 

g) A commitment by the Respondent to provide the services required by Williamson County; 

h) A statement that the Proposal is valid for ninety (90) calendar days from the deadline for submittal  of Proposals to Williamson 
County (Any Proposal containing a term of less than ninety (90)  calendar days for acceptance, may at Williamson County’s 
sole discretion, be rejected as non-responsive.); 

If the Proposal being submitted will have an effect on air quality for Williamson County (as it  relates to any state, federal, or voluntary 
air quality standard), then the Respondent is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact. 

The Transmittal Letter should be signed by a person legally authorized to bind the Respondent to the representations in the 
Transmittal Letter and Proposal.  In the case of a joint Proposal, each party must   sign the Transmittal Letter. 

 

1.4 Executive Summary  

The Respondent should provide an Executive Summary of its Proposal that asserts that the Respondent is providing in its response all 
of the requirements of this RFP. The Executive Summary must represent a full and concise summary of the contents of the Proposal 

The Executive Summary should not include any information concerning the cost of the Proposal. 

The Respondent should identify any services and/or goods that are provided beyond those specifically requested. If the Respondent is 
providing services and/or goods that do not meet  the  specific  requirements  of  this  RFP,  but  in  the  opinion  of the Respondent are 
equivalent or superior to those specifically requested, any such  differences  should  be  noted  in  the Executive Summary. However, 
the Respondent must realize that failure to provide the services specifically required may, at Williamson County’s sole discretion, result 
in disqualification of the Proposal. 

The Respondent also should indicate why it believes that it is the most qualified Respondent to provide the services described in this 
RFP. The Successful Respondent must demonstrate extensive experience in and understanding required in order to carry out the intent 
of this project. The Respondent should describe in  detail  the  current  and  historical  experience  the  Respondent and its 
subcontractors have that would be relevant to completing  the  project.  References must contain the name of key contacts and a 
telephone number. The Respondent should briefly state why it believes its proposed services and/or goods best meet Williamson 
County’s needs and RFP requirements, and the Respondent also should concisely describe any additional features, aspects, or 
advantages of its services and/or goods in any relevant area not covered elsewhere in its Proposal. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Bid 1605-083Williamson County, Texas

7/21/2016 7:45 AM p. 18



RFP Standard Documents 
 

 

1.5 Conflict of Interest  

No public official shall have interest in a contract, in accordance with Vernon's Texas Codes Annotated, Local Government Code Title 
5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended.  

 
As of January 1, 2006, Respondents are responsible for complying with Local Government Code Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 
176. Additional information may be obtained from the Williamson County website at the following link:  
 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en-US/Default.aspx 

Each Respondent must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the requirements of this 
RFP. Examples of potential conflicts may include an existing business or personal relationship between the Respondent, its 
principal, or any affiliate or subcontractor, with  Williamson County or any other entity or person involved in any way in the project 
that is the subject of this RFP. Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Respondent, the principals, or any 
affiliate or subcontractor, with any employee or official of Williamson County or its suppliers must be disclosed. Any such relationship 
that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal 
personal relationships with Williamson County  employees  or  officials  may  be  cause  for  termination.  Williamson County will 
decide if an actual  or perceived conflict should result in Proposal disqualification. 

By submitting a Proposal in response to this RFP, all Respondents affirm that they have not given, nor intend to give, at any time 
hereafter any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, trip, favor, or service to a Williamson 
County public servant or any employee, official  or representative of same, in connection with this procurement. 

Each Respondent must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement in accordance with this RFP. 
 

1.6 Certificate of Interested Parties   

As of January 1, 2016, Respondents are responsible for complying with the Texas Government Code Section 2252.908. The law states 
that Williamson County may not enter into certain contracts with a Respondent unless the Respondent submits a disclosure of 
interested parties to Williamson County at the time the Respondent submits the signed contract to Williamson County.  

The disclosure requirement applies to any contract of Williamson County entered into on or after January 1, 2016 that either: 

1. requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court (all contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of Commissioners Court 
approval such as contracts resulting from an IFB, RFP, RFQ etc. excluding but not limited to certain Juvenile Services 
contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff’s seized funds monies etc.) before the contract may be signed 

2. has a value of at least $1 million.  

Note: Since the majority of contracts with Williamson County re quire approval by the Commissioners Court, this form will 
most likely be required to be supplied . 

On January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission made available on its website a new filing application that must be used to file Form 
1295. 

Information regarding how to use the filing application is available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link: 

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm 

A Respondent must: 

1. use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295 

2. print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number 

3. an authorized agent of the Respondent must sign the printed copy of the form 

4. and have the form notarized 

5. the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing must be filed (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) with Williamson 
County at the time the signed contract is submitted for Commissioners Court approval. 

After Commissioners Court award of the contract, Williamson County must: 

1. notify the commission, using the commission’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 1295 and certification of filing 
not later than the 30th day after the date the contract binds all parties to the contract. The commission will post the completed 
Form 1295 to its website within seven business days after receiving notice from Williamson County. 

 

Bid 1605-083Williamson County, Texas

7/21/2016 7:45 AM p. 19



RFP Standard Documents 
 

 

1.7 Ethics  

The Respondent shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement with any employee, official 
or agent of Williamson County. 

 

1.8 Delivery of Proposals  
 

Williamson County uses BidSync to distribute and receive bids and proposals Bids can be submitted electronically through BidSync or 
by hard copy. Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information. 

 

If mailed or delivered in person , Proposals and Proposal addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before the 
submittal deadline, as noted in the ‘Public Announcement and General Information’ listed above for this RFP, to: 

Williamson County Purchasing Department Attn: 
PROPOSAL NAME AND NUMBER  
901 South Austin Avenue Georgetown, 
Texas 78626 
 
Williamson  County  will  not  accept  any  Proposals  received  after  the  submittal  deadline,  and  shall  return   such  Proposals 
unopened to the Respondent. 

 
Williamson  County  will  not  accept  any  responsibility  for  Proposals being  delivered  by  third  party  carriers. 
Respondent should submit one (1) original, two (2) paper copies and one (1) CD or (1) USB copy of  the Proposal.  Proposals 
will be opened publicly in a manner to avoid public disclosure of contents; however , names of Respondents will be read aloud. 
Respondents should list the Proposal Number, Proposal Name, Name and Address of Respondent, and the Date of the Proposal 
opening on the outside of the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” 

 
 

2.1 INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS  

Read this document carefully.  Follow all instructions and requirements.   You are responsible for fulfilling   all requirements and 
specifications.  Be sure you have a clear understanding of this   RFP. 

General requirements apply to all advertised RFPs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in part, by the Proposal 
Specifications, Addenda issued as a part of this RFP and Modifications issued as a part of this RFP. Be sure your Proposal package is 
complete. 

 
 

2.2 Ambiguity, Conflict, or other Errors in the RFP  

If Respondent discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this RFP, Respondent shall immediately notify 
Williamson County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request modification or clarification of the document. 
Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Respondent fails to  notify  Williamson  County  prior to the date and time fixed for  
submission  of  Proposals  of  an  error  or  ambiguity in  the  RFP  known  to  Respondent,  or  an error or ambiguity that reasonably 
should have been known to Respondent, then Respondent shall be deemed to have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution. 

Williamson County may also modify the RFP, no later than 48 hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Proposals, by 
issuance of an Addendum. All addenda will be numbered consecutively, beginning with 1. 

 
 

2.3 Notification of Most Current Address  

Respondents in receipt of this RFP shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any address changes, contact person 
changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than 48 hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Proposals. 

 

2.4 Proposal Preparation Cost  
 

Cost of developing Proposals is entirely the responsibility of Respondents and shall not be charged to W i l l i a m s o n  County. 
 
 
 
 
 

Bid 1605-083Williamson County, Texas

7/21/2016 7:45 AM p. 20



RFP Standard Documents 
 

 

2.5 Signature of Respondent  

A Transmittal Letter, which shall be considered an integral part of the Proposal, shall be signed by an individual who is authorized to 
bind the Respondent contractually. 

If the Respondent is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation or   Limited  Liability  Company shall 
be  provided together  with  the  signature  of the  officer  or  officers  authorized to sign on behalf of such entity. 

If the Respondent  is  a  General  Partnership,  the  true  name  of  the  firm  shall  be  provided  with  the  signature of each partner 
authorized to sign. 

If the Respondent is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner’s General Partner shall be provided with the signature of the 
officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner. 

If the Respondent is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign. 

If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s)  or  an  officer  of  a  Corporation,  Limited  Liability  Company, General 
Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney or  equivalent  document  must  be  submitted  to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department prior to   contract award. 

 

2.6 Assumed Business Name  

If the Respondent operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Respondent must have on file with the Williamson County 
Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same prior to contract award. 

 

2.7 Economy of Presentation  

Proposals should not contain promotional or display materials, except as they may directly answer in whole or in part questions 
contained in the RFP. Such exhibits shall be clearly  marked  with  the  applicable  reference  number  of  the question in  the  RFP.  
Proposals must address the technical requirements as specified in the RFP.  All questions posed by the RFP must be answered 
concisely and clearly. Proposals that do not address each criterion may be, at the sole discretion of Williamson   County, rejected and 
not considered. 

 

2.8 Proposal Obligation  

The contents of the RFP, Proposal and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Respondent shall become part of the 
contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the   Contract and any ensuing agreement. 

 

2.9 Compliance with RFP Specifications  

It is intended that this RFP describe the requirements and the response format in sufficient detail to secure comparable Proposals. 
Failure to comply with all provisions of the RFP may, at the sole discretion of Williamson County, result in disqualification. 

 
 

2.10 Evaluation  

Williamson County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than disclosed in the RFP 
process) that might affect Williamson County’s judgment as to the appropriateness of an award to the best evaluated Respondent. This 
information may be appended to the Proposal evaluation process results. Information on a Respondent from reliable sources, and not 
within the Respondent’s Proposal, may also be noted and made part of the evaluation file. Williamson County shall have sole discretion 
for determining the reliability of the source.  Williamson County reserves the right to conduct written and/or oral discussions/interviews 
after the Proposal opening. The purpose of such discussions/interviews is to provide clarification and/or additional information to make   
an award that is in the best interest of Williamson County. 

 

2.11 Withdrawal of Proposal  

The Respondent may withdraw its Proposal by submitting a written request over the signature of an authorized individual, as described 
herein above, to the Williamson County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline. The Respondent may 
thereafter submit a new Proposal prior to the deadline. Withdrawal of a Proposal after the deadline will be subject to written approval of 
the Williamson County Purchasing Agent. 

 

 

Bid 1605-083Williamson County, Texas

7/21/2016 7:45 AM p. 21



RFP Standard Documents 
 

 

2.12 Responsibility  

It is expected that a Respondent will be able to affirmatively demonstrate Respondent’s responsibility. Respondent should be able to 
meet the following requirements: 

 
a) have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as   required; 
b) be able to comply with the required or proposed  delivery schedule; 
c) have a satisfactory record of performance; and 
d) be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award. 

 

Williamson County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine Respondent’s ability to meet these 
minimum standards listed above. 

 
 

2.13 Purchase Orders  

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to the Successful Respondent for 
goods and/or services. If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests 
for payment. 

 

2.14 Silence of Specifications  

The apparent silence of any RFP specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a detailed description concerning 
any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are to prevail. All interpretations of these specifications shall be 
made on the basis of this statement. 

 

2.15 References  

Williamson County requires Respondent to supply a list of at least three (3) references within the last 4 years where like services and/or 
goods have been supplied by Respondent if Respondent has not done business with the County within the past five (5) years. 

 
 
 

3.1 DEFINITIONS, TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 

3.2 Definitions  

a) “Addenda” – Means any written or graphic instruments issued by Williamson County prior to the consideration of Proposals 
which modify or interpret the Proposal Documents by additions,  deletions, clarifications, or corrections. 

b) “Agreement” – The Successful Respondent may be required by Williamson County to sign an additional Agreement containing 
terms necessary to ensure compliance with the RFP and Respondent’s Proposal. Such ensuing Agreement shall contain the 
Proposal Specifications, Terms and Conditions that are derived from the RFP. 

c) “Contract” – This RFP and the Proposal of the Successful Respondent shall become a contract between the Successful 
Respondent and Williamson County once the Successful Respondent’s Proposal is properly accepted by the Williamson County 
Commissioners Court (sometimes referred to herein as the “Commissioners Court”). 

d) “Proposal Documents” – The Legal Notice, RFP including attachments, and any Addenda issued by Williamson County prior to 
the consideration of any Proposals. 

e) “Proposal” – Is a complete, properly signed Proposal submitted in accordance with this RFP which is irrevocable during the 
specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Proposals. 

f) “Respondent” – A person or entity who submits a Proposal in response to this RFP. 

g) “RFP” – Refers to this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future addenda issued by Williamson County. 

h) “Successful Respondent” – The responsible Respondent who, in Williamson County’s sole opinion, submits the Proposal which 
is in the best interest of Williamson County, taking into account factors identified herein and to whom Williamson County intends 
to award the Contract. 

 

 

Bid 1605-083Williamson County, Texas

7/21/2016 7:45 AM p. 22



RFP Standard Documents 
 

 

3.3 TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 

3.3.1 Venue and Governing Law  

Respondent hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of action arising out of or in 
connection with this RFP, the Contract and any ensuing Agreement shall lie   exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the 
Austin Division of the Western Federal District of Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction. 
Furthermore, except to the extent that this RFP, the Contract and any ensuing Agreement is governed by the laws of the United States, 
this RFP, the  Contract  and  any  ensuing  Agreement  shall  be  governed  by  and  construed  in  accordance with the laws of the 
State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules. 

 

3.3.2 Incorporation by Reference and Precedence  

The Contract shall be derived from (1) the RFP and its Addenda; and (2) the Respondent’s Proposal. In the event of a dispute under  the  
Contract,  applicable  documents  will  be  referred  to  for  the  purpose  of   clarification  or  for  additional  detail  in  the following order 
of precedence: (1) the RFP and its Addenda;   and (2) the Respondent’s Proposal. 

In the event Williamson County requires that an ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a  dispute  arises  between terms 
and conditions of the ensuing Agreement, (2) the RFP, and its Addenda; and (3) the Respondent’s Proposal, applicable documents will 
be referred to for the purpose of Clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: (1) terms and conditions of the 
ensuing Agreement and its Addenda, (2) the RFP and its Addenda; and (3) the Respondent’s Proposal. 

 

3.3.3 Ownership of Proposal  

Each Proposal shall become the property of Williamson County upon submittal and will not be returned to Respondents unless received 
after the submittal deadline. 

 

3.3.4 Disqualification of Respondent  

Upon signing and submittal of the Proposal, a Respondent offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment to Williamson 
County certifies that the Respondent has not violated the antitrust laws of this state codified in Section 15.01, et seq, Business & 
Commerce Code, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any 
other person engaged in such line of business. Any or all Proposals may be rejected if Williamson County believes that collusion exists 
among the Respondents. 

 

3.3.5 Funding  

County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to   finance the costs of the Contract. 
Respondents understand and agree that the County’s  payment  of  amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the  County  
receiving  appropriations  or  other   expenditure  authority  sufficient  to  allow  the  County,  in  the  exercise  of reasonable 
administrative  discretion, to make payments under the Contract. 

 

3.3.6 Assignment, Successors and Assigns  

The Successful Respondent may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or interests obtained under the 
Contract without written permission of the Williamson County Commissioners Court. The Contract and any ensuing Agreement shall be 
binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting parties and their respective successors and permitted assigns. 

 
 

3.3.7 Implied Requirements  

Products and services not specifically described or required in the RFP, but which are necessary to  provide the functional capabilities 
described by the Respondent, shall be deemed to be implied and  included in the Proposal. 

 

 

 

 

 

Bid 1605-083Williamson County, Texas

7/21/2016 7:45 AM p. 23



RFP Standard Documents 
 

 

3.3.8 Termination  
 

a) Termination for Cause: Williamson County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any ensuing Agreement for 
default if the Successful Respondent breaches any of the RFP Specifications, Terms and Conditions, including warranties of 
Respondent, if any, or if the Successful Respondent becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination 
is in addition to and not in lieu of any other remedies Williamson County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise be 
provided herein. Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper goods and/or services within the 
proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform  any  and  all  other  requirements  to  Williamson  County’s  satisfaction, 
and/or to meet all other obligations and  requirements. 

b) Termination for Convenience: Williamson County may terminate the Contract and/or any ensuing Agreement for convenience 
and without cause or further liability, upon ninety (90) calendar day’s written notice to Successful Respondent. In the event 
Williamson County exercises its right to terminate without cause, it is  understood  and  agreed  that  only  the amounts due to the 
Successful Respondent for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including  the date of 
termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for Williamson County’s termination for convenience. 

 

3.2.9 Non-Performance  

It is the objective of Williamson County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set forth herein. In addition 
to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment 
equal to the amount of the goods and/or services that were not provided and/or performed to the County’s satisfaction. In the event of 
such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to complete the services itself or by others and/or 
purchase the goods from other sources. If the County elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to 
the foregoing, the Successful  Respondent shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs incurred 
by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, and field  overhead,  and  the  cost of 
necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in  correcting  the  nonperformance which the Successful Respondent fails to meet 
pursuant to the requirements set out  herein. In  the  event  the  Successful  Respondent  refuses  to  reimburse  the County as set out 
in  this  provision, County shall have the right to deduct  such  reimbursement  amounts from  any  amounts that  may be then owing or 
that may become owing in the future to the Successful Respondent. 

 

3.2.10 Proprietary Information a nd Texas Public Information Act  

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public Information Act upon receipt. If a 
Respondent does not desire proprietary information in the Proposal to  be disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked 
proprietary at time of submittal or, more   preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly 
identified  and marked as being proprietary. The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect   from public disclosure 
the information that has been identified and marked as proprietary. The final decision as to what information must be disclosed, 
however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set forth under 
this provision will  result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and available to the public.  For all  information that 
has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary by the Respondent, the  County may   choose  to  place  such  information  on  
the  County’s  website  and/or  a  similar  public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Respondent. 

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this RFP or in the Respondent’s Proposal is in conflict with Tex. Gov’t Code 552.001 et seq., 
as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no force or effect. Furthermore, it is expressly understood and agreed 
that Williamson County, its officers and employees may request advice, decisions and opinions of  the  Attorney General of the State of 
Texas in regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or  data  furnished  to Williamson County as to whether or 
not the same are available to the public. It is further understood that Williamson County’s officers and employees shall have the right to 
rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General, and that Williamson County, its officers and employees shall have no 
liability or obligation to any party hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items  or  data  furnished  to 
Williamson  County by a  party hereto,  in  reliance  of any  advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the State of Texas. 

 

3.2.11 Right to Audit  

Successful Respondent agrees that Williamson County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until   the  expiration  of  three (3) 
years after termination or expiration of the Contract and/or the  ensuing  Agreement,  have  access  to  and  the  right  to examine and 
photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of Successful Respondent, which are directly pertinent to the services to 
be performed or goods to be  delivered  for  the  purposes  of  making  audits,  examinations, excerpts and transcriptions. Successful 
Respondent agrees that Williamson County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and shall be 
provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the provisions of this section. Williamson 
County shall give Successful Respondent reasonable advance notice of intended audits. 

 

 

 

 

Bid 1605-083Williamson County, Texas

7/21/2016 7:45 AM p. 24



RFP Standard Documents 
 

 

3.2.12 Inspections and Testing  

Williamson County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, material(s) and goods for quality and compliance with this 
RFP, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be available for review.  Should  the  goods or services  fail  
to  meet  requirements  and/or  be  unavailable for evaluation, Williamson County can deem the Respondent to be in breach and 
terminate  the Contract and/or any ensuing Agreement(s). 

 

3.2.13 Proposal Preparation Cost  

Cost of developing Proposals is entirely the responsibility of Respondents and shall not be charged to Williamson County. There is no 
expressed or implied obligation for Williamson County to reimburse Respondents for any expense incurred in preparing a Proposal in 
response to this RFP and Williamson County will not reimburse Respondents for such expenses. 

 

3.2.14 Indemnification  

SUCCESSFUL RESPONDENT SHALL INDEMNIFY, DEFEND AND SAVE HARMLESS WILLIAMSON COUNTY, ITS OFFICIALS, 
EMPLOYEES, AGENTS AND AGENTS’ EMPLOYEES FROM A ND  AGAINST ALL CLAIMS, LIABILITY, AND EXPENSES, 
INCLUDING  REASONABLE ATTORNEYS’ FEES, ARISING FROM ACTIVITIES OF RESPONDENT, ITS AGENTS, SERVANTS OR 
EMPLOYEES, PERFORMED HEREUNDER THAT RESULT FROM THE NEGLIGENT ACT, ERROR, OR OMISSION  OF 
RESPONDENT  OR ANY OF RESPONDENT’S AGENTS, SERVANTS  OR EMPLOYEES, AS WELL AS ALL CLAIMS OF LOSS OR 
DAMAGE TO THE RESPONDENT’S AND WILLIAMSON COUNTY’S PROPERTY, EQUIPMENT, AND/OR SUPPLIES. 

FURTHERMORE, WILLIAMSON COUNTY, ITS OFFICIALS, EMPL OYEES, AGENTS AND AGENTS’ EMPLOYEES SHALL NOT BE 
LIABLE FOR DAMAGES TO THE SUCCESSFUL RESPONDENT ARIS ING FROM ANY ACT OF ANY THIRD PARTY, INCLUDING, 
BUT  NOT  BEING LIMITED TO THEFT. SUCCESSFUL RESPO NDENT FURTHER AGREES TO INDEMNIFY, DEFEND AND SAVE 
HARMLESS WILLIAMSON COUNTY FROM, ITS OFFICIALS, EMPLOYEES, AGENTS AN D AGENTS’ EMPLOYEES AGAINST ALL 
CLAIMS OF WHATEVER NATURE ARISING FROM ANY ACCIDEN T, INJURY, OR DAMAGE WHATSOEVER CAUSED TO ANY 
PERSON OR TO THE PROPERTY OF ANY PERSON OCCURRING IN RELATION TO SUCCESSFUL RESPONDENT’S 
PERFORMANCE OF ANY SERVICES REQUESTED HEREUNDER DURING THE TERM OF THE CONTRACT AND/OR ANY 
ENSUING AGREEMENT. 

SUCCESSFUL RESPONDENT SHALL TIMELY  REPORT ALL CLAIMS, DEMANDS, SUITS, ACTIONS, PROCEEDINGS, LIENS OR 
JUDGMENTS TO WILLIAMSON COUNTY AND SHALL, UPON THE RECEIPT OF ANY CLAIM, DEMAND, SUIT, ACTION, 
PROCEEDING, LIEN OR JUDGMENT, NOT LATER THAN TH E FIFTEENTH (15TH) DAY OF EACH MONTH; PROVIDE 
WILLIAMSON COUNTY WITH A WRITTEN REPORT ON EACH SU CH MATTER, SETTING FORTH THE STATUS OF EACH 
MATTER, THE SCHEDULE OR PLANNED PROCEEDINGS WITH RESPECT TO EACH MATTER AND THE COOPERATION OR 
ASSISTANCE, IF ANY, OF WILLIAMSON COUNTY REQUIRED BY  SUCCESSFUL RESPONDENT IN THE DEFENSE OF EACH 
MATTER. SUCCESSFUL RESPONDENT’S DUTY TO DEFEND, INDEMNIFY AND HOLD WILLIAMSON COUNTY HARMLESS 
SHALL BE ABSOLUTE. IT SHALL NOT ABATE OR END BY REASON OF THE EXPIRATION OR TERMINATION OF THE 
CONTRACT AND/OR ANY ENSUING AGREEMENT UNLESS OTHERW ISE AGREED BY WILLIAMSON COUNTY IN WRITING. 
THE PROVISIONS OF THIS SECTION SHALL SURVIVE THE TERMINATION OF THE CONTRACT AND SHALL REMAIN IN FULL 
FORCE AND EFFECT WITH RESPECT TO ALL SU CH MATTERS NO MATTER WHEN THEY ARISE. 

IN THE EVENT OF ANY DISPUTE BETWEEN THE PARTIE S AS TO WHETHER A CLAIM, DEMAND, SUIT, ACTION, 
PROCEEDING, LIEN OR JUDGMENT APPEARS TO HAVE BEEN CA USED BY OR APPEARS TO HAVE ARISEN OUT OF OR IN 
CONNECTION WITH ACTS OR OMISSIONS OF WILLIAMSON COUNTY, RESPONDENT SHALL NEVER-THE-LESS FULLY 
DEFEND SUCH CLAIM, DEMAND, SUIT, ACTION, PROCEEDING, LIEN OR JUDGMENT UNTIL AND UNLESS 

 

THERE IS A DETERMINATION BY A COURT OF COMPETENT JURISDICTION THAT THE ACTS AND OMISSIONS 
OFRESPONDENT ARE NOT AT ISSUE IN THE MATTER. 

SUCCESSFUL RESPONDENT’S INDEMNIFICATION SHALL COVER, AND SUCCESSFUL RESPONDENT AGREES TO 
INDEMNIFY WILLIAMSON COUNTY, IN THE EVENT WILLIAMSON COUNTY IS FOUND TO HAVE BEEN NEGLIGENT FOR 
HAVING SELECTED SUCCESSFUL RESPONDENT TO PERFORM THE WORK DESCRIBED IN THIS REQUEST. THE 
PROVISION BY SUCCESSFUL RESPONDENT OF INSURANCE SHALL NOT LIMIT THE LIABILITY OF SUCCESSFUL 
RESPONDENT UNDER THE CONTRACT AND/OR ANY ENSUING AGREEMENT. 

 

3.2.15 Waiver of Subrogation  

Successful Respondent and Successful Respondent’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights whatsoever with regard to subrogation 
against Williamson County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of personal or  property  damages  resulting from the 
Respondent’s performance under this Contract   and any ensuing Agreement. 

 
 
 

Bid 1605-083Williamson County, Texas

7/21/2016 7:45 AM p. 25



RFP Standard Documents 
 

 
3.2.16 Relationship of the Parties  

The Successful Respondent shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights,  obligations,  liabilities, applicable 
to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions  herein which may appear to give County the right to direct the 
Successful Respondent as to details of doing work herein covered or to exercise a measure of control over the work shall be 
deemed to mean that the Successful Respondent shall follow the desires of County in the results of the work  only. County shall not 
retain or have the right to control the Successful Respondent’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Respondent’s performance of the work. County and the Successful Respondent hereby agree and declare that the Successful 
Respondent is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications  of  an  “Independent  Contractor’ under Texas 
Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, that the Successful  Respondent  is  not  an employee of County , 
and that the Successful Respondent  and  its  employees,  agents  and  sub-  contractors  shall  not  be entitled to workers 
compensation coverage or any other type of insurance  coverage held by County. 

 

3.2.17 Sole Provider  

The Successful Respondent agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the goods and/or 
services described herein and that Williamson County may contract with other providers of such goods and/or services if 
Williamson County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same goods and/or services will serve the best 
interest of Williamson County. 

 

3.2.18 Force Majeure  

If the party obligated to perform is  prevented  from  performance  by  an  act  of  war,  order  of  legal  authority, act of God, or other 
unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other party shall grant such party relief from the 
performance. The burden of proof for the need of such relief shall rest upon the party obligated to perform. To obtain release based 
on force majeure, t he  party obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party. 

 

3.2.19 Severability  

If any provision of this RFP, the Contract or any ensuing Agreement shall be held invalid or unenforceable by any court of 
competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate  or  render  unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire 
RFP, Contract or any ensuing Agreement will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or 
provisions, and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance  therewith. The parties 
acknowledge that if any provision  of  this  RFP,  the  Contract  or  any  ensuing  Agreement is determined to be invalid or 
unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to 
the maximum extent practicable, give effect to the intent of this RFP, the Contract or any ensuing Agreement  and be deemed to 
be  validated and enforceable. 

 
3.2.20 Equal Opportunity  

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, color, religion, sex, or national 
origin. 

 

3.2.21 Notice  

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be affected by personal delivery or by registered or certified mail, return receipt 
requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address: 

 

Williamson County Purchasing Department 

Max Bricka, Purchasing Agent (or successor) 

901 S Austin Ave. 

Georgetown, Texas 78626 

Respondent: Address set out in Respondent’s Transmittal Letter 

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (i) receipt by the party to which notice is given, or (ii) on the 
third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first. 

 

 

 

Bid 1605-083Williamson County, Texas

7/21/2016 7:45 AM p. 26



RFP Standard Documents 
 

 

3.2.22 Sales and Use Tax Exemption  
 

Williamson County is a corporate and politic under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption from sales and use 
taxes under Texas Tax Code Ann. § 151.309, as amended, and the  services and/or goods subject hereof are being secured for 
use by Williamson County. 

 

3.2.23 Compliance with Laws  

Williamson County and Successful Respondent shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes, ordinances, rules 
and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or tribunals in any matter affecting the 
performance of the Contract and any ensuing Agreement, including, without limitation, Workers’ Compensation laws, salary and 
wage statutes and regulations, licensing laws and regulations. When required, the Successful Respondent shall furnish the County 
with certification of compliance with said laws, statutes, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees above specified. 

 

3.2.24 Incorporation of Exhibi ts, Appendices and Attachments  

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein be incorporated by reference as if set forth verbatim herein. 

 

3.2.25 No Waiver of Immunities  

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend  any  legal  defense  available  at  law  or  in  equity  to  Williamson County, 
its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on behalf of any third party. Williamson County 
does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of 
the State   of Texas and of the United States. 

 

3.2.26 No Waiver  

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this RFP, the Contract or any 
ensuing Agreement shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and 
every provision. Furthermore, no term or provision shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall 
be in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented. Any consent by any party to, or waiver of, a breach by the 
other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach. 

 
3.2.27 Current Revenues  

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any ensuing Agreement do not constitute a general obligation or indebtedness for 
which County is obligated to levy, pledge, or collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that Williamson County shall have the 
right to terminate the Contract and any ensuing Agreement at the end of any Williamson County fiscal year if the governing of 
Williamson County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by Williamson County’s budget for the fiscal year in question. 
Williamson County may affect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the Successful Respondent at the end of its 
then-current fiscal year. 

 

3.2.28 Binding Effect  

This Contract and any ensuing Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties and their respective permitted 
assigns and successors. 

 

3.2.29 Assignment  

The Successful Respondent’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party without the express 
written consent of Williamson County. 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Bid 1605-083Williamson County, Texas

7/21/2016 7:45 AM p. 27



RFP Standard Documents 
 

3.2.30 General Obligations and Reliance  

Successful Respondent shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably inferable and necessary for 
completion and provision of the services and goods required hereunder. The Successful Respondent shall keep the County 
informed of the progress and quality of the services and/or goods to be provided. Successful Respondent agrees and acknowledges 
that County is relying on Successful Respondent's represented expertise and abi l i ty  to  p r o v i d e  the goods and/or services 
desc r i bed  herein. Successful Respondent agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in 
accordance with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of County in accordance with County’s 
requirements and procedures. Successful   Respondent’s duties as set forth herein shall at no time be in any way diminished by 
reason of any approval by the County nor shall the Successful Respondent be released from any liability by reason of such 
approval by the County, it being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Respondent’s skill 
and knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods r e q u i r e d  hereunder. 

 

3.2.31 Contractual Development  

The Williamson County Commissioners Court may award the Contract  on  the  basis  of  the  initial  Proposals  received, without any 
further or  additional  discussions. Therefore, each initial Proposal should contain the Respondent’s best terms and offer. The contents 
of the RFP and the selected Proposal will become an integral part of the Contract, but may be modified, at Williamson County’s sole 
discretion, by provisions of an ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the Respondent must agree to inclusion in an ensuing Agreement of the 
Proposal Specifications, Terms and Conditions of this RFP. Williamson County may, at its discretion, opt to conduct further discussions 
with responsible offerors and request the highest ranked firm’s Best and Final Offer. 

 

3.2.32 Entire Agreement  

The Contract and any ensuing Agreement shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral between the Successful Respondent 
and County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or 
goods to be provided. Each of the provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified amended 
or altered except by w r i t i n g  signed by the Successful Respondent and County. 

 

3.2.33 Survivability  

All applicable agreements that were entered into between Respondent and Williamson County under the terms and conditions of the 
Contract and/or any ensuing Agreement shall survive the expiration or termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has 
been awarded. 

 

3.2.34 Payment  

County’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by Chapter 2251 of the Texas Government Code. An invoice shall be 
deemed overdue the 31st day after the later of (1) the date County receives the goods under the Contract; (2) the date the 
performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or (3) the date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for 
the goods or services. Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by County in accordance with Texas Government 
Code Section 2251.025. More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late payment is the rate in effect on 
September 1 of County’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes due. The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to 
the sum of one percent (1%); and (2) the prime rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first day of July of the preceding 
fiscal year that does not fall on a Saturday or Sunday. 

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by Successful Respondent, County shall notify Successful Respondent of the 
error not later than the twenty first (21st) day after the date County receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of Successful 
Respondent, Successful Respondent shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by 
Successful R e s p o n d e n t  beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue. If the error is resolved in favor 
of the County, Successful Respondent shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in accordance within the time set forth 
above. The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by 

Chapter 2251 of the Texas Government Code if the corrected invoice  is  not  paid  by  the  appropriate  date. As a minimum, invoices 
shall include: 

 Name, address, and telephone number of Successful Respondent and similar information in the event  the payment is to be 
made to a different address 

 County contract, Purchase Order, and/or delivery order number 
 Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract 
 Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices, and total amount 
 Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the Williamson County Auditor's Office,  

 Accounts Payable Department: accountspayable@wilco.org, (512) 943-1500. 

Bid 1605-083Williamson County, Texas

7/21/2016 7:45 AM p. 28



RFP Standard Documents 
 

 

 
 

3.2.35 Contractual Formati on and Ensuing Agreement  

The RFP and the Respondent’s Proposal, when properly accepted by the Williamson County  Commissioners  Court,  shall constitute 
a contract equally binding between the Successful Respondent and Williamson County. The Successful Respondent may be 
required by Williamson County to sign an additional Agreement containing  terms  necessary  to  ensure  compliance with  the  
RFP  and  Respondent’s Proposal. 

 
THE RESPONDENT’S PROPOSAL SHOULD INCLUDE A SAMPLE CONTRACT, ANY  OR  ALL  ADDITIONAL AGREEMENTS 
OR TERMS AND CONDITIONS AT THE TIME THE RESPONDENT’S  PROPOSAL IS SUBMMITTED USING SEPARATE 
ATTACHED DOCUMENTS  FOR  THE  COUNTY’S  REVIEW AND CONSIDERATION.  

 
3.2.36 Legal Liability Information  

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation or anticipated litigation that your 
firm is involved in, including but not limited to, potential or actual legal matters with private parties and any local, State, Federal or 
international governmental entities. Williamson County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the 
recommendation of any proposed contract to the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

 
3.2.37 Confidentiality  

Respondent expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may be obtained while working 
in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access unauthorized areas or confidential information and it 
will not disclose any information to unauthorized third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times. 

Bid 1605-083Williamson County, Texas

7/21/2016 7:45 AM p. 29



5

6

Bidder References

List the last (3) companies or governmental agencies, where the same or similar
goods and/or services as contained in this IFB package, were recently provided
by Bidder.

Reference 1

Client Name:                                                         Location:

Contact Name:                                                      Title:

Phone:                                                                  E-mail

Contract Date To:                  Contract Date From:             Contract Value: $

Scope of Work:

Reference 2

Client Name:                                                         Location:

Contact Name:                                                      Title:

Phone:                                                                  E-mail

Contract Date To:                  Contract Date From:             Contract Value: $

Scope of Work:

Reference 3

Client Name:                                                         Location:

Contact Name:                                                      Title:

Phone:                                                                  E-mail

Contract Date To:                  Contract Date From:             Contract Value: $

Scope of Work:

55

66

55

66

55

66

Bid 1605-083Williamson County, Texas

7/21/2016 7:45 AM p. 30



5

6

Bidder References

List the last (3) companies or governmental agencies, where the same or similar
goods and/or services as contained in this IFB package, were recently provided
by Bidder.

Reference 1

Client Name:                                                         Location:

Contact Name:                                                      Title:

Phone:                                                                  E-mail

Contract Date To:                  Contract Date From:             Contract Value: $

Scope of Work:

Reference 2

Client Name:                                                         Location:

Contact Name:                                                      Title:

Phone:                                                                  E-mail

Contract Date To:                  Contract Date From:             Contract Value: $

Scope of Work:

Reference 3

Client Name:                                                         Location:

Contact Name:                                                      Title:

Phone:                                                                  E-mail

Contract Date To:                  Contract Date From:             Contract Value: $

Scope of Work:

55

66

55

66

55

66

Bid 1605-083Williamson County, Texas

7/21/2016 7:45 AM p. 31



5

6

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE
For vendor or other person doing business with local governmental entity Form CIQ

This questionnaire is being filed in accordance with chapter 176 of the Local 
Government Code by a person doing business with the governmental entity.

By law this questionnaire must be filed with the records administrator of the 
local government not later than the 7th business day after the date the person 

becomes aware of facts that require the statement to be filed. See Section 
176.006, Local Government Code.

A person commits an offense if the person violates Section 176.006, Local 
Government Code. An offense under this section is a Class C misdemeanor.

   Date Received 

OFFICE USE ONLY

1 Name of person doing business with local governmental entity.

2
Check this box if you are filing an update to a previously filed questionnaire.

(The law requires that you file an updated completed questionnaire with the appropriate filing authority not later than 

September 1 of the year for which an activity described in Section 176.006(a), Local Government Code, is pending and 

not later than the 7th business day after the date the originally filed questionnaire becomes incomplete or inaccurate.)

3
Describe each affiliation or business relationship with an employee or contractor of the local governmental entity 

who makes recommendations to a local government officer of the local governmental entity with respect to 
expenditure of money.

55

66

4
Describe each affiliation or business relationship with a person who is a local government officer and who 
appoints or employs a local government officer of the local governmental entity that is the subject of this 

questionnaire.

55

66

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE
For vendor or other person doing business with local governmental 

entity

Form CIQ
Page 2

5 Name of local government officer with whom filer has affiliation or business relationship. 
(Complete this section only if the answer to A, B, or C is YES.)

This section, item 5 including subparts A, B, C & D, must be completed for each officer with whom the filer has 
affiliation or other relationship. Attach additional pages to this Form CIQ as necessary.

A. Is the local government officer named in this section receiving or likely to receive taxable income from the filer 
of the questionnaire?

 Yes  No

B. Is the filer of the questionnaire receiving or likely to receive taxable income from or at the direction of the local 
government officer named in this section AND the taxable income is not from the local governmental entity?

 Yes  No

C. Is the filer of this questionnaire affiliated with a corporation or other business entity that the local government 
officer serves as an officer or director, or holds an ownership of 10 percent or more?

 Yes  No

D. Describe each affiliation or business relationship.

6. Describe any other affiliation or business relationship that might cause conflict of interest:

55

66

55

66

7

Signature of person doing business with the governmental entity Date

Signature not required if completing in BIDSYNC electronically.

Bid 1605-083Williamson County, Texas

7/21/2016 7:45 AM p. 32



5

6

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE
For vendor or other person doing business with local governmental entity Form CIQ

This questionnaire is being filed in accordance with chapter 176 of the Local 
Government Code by a person doing business with the governmental entity.

By law this questionnaire must be filed with the records administrator of the 
local government not later than the 7th business day after the date the person 

becomes aware of facts that require the statement to be filed. See Section 
176.006, Local Government Code.

A person commits an offense if the person violates Section 176.006, Local 
Government Code. An offense under this section is a Class C misdemeanor.

   Date Received 

OFFICE USE ONLY

1 Name of person doing business with local governmental entity.

2
Check this box if you are filing an update to a previously filed questionnaire.

(The law requires that you file an updated completed questionnaire with the appropriate filing authority not later than 

September 1 of the year for which an activity described in Section 176.006(a), Local Government Code, is pending and 

not later than the 7th business day after the date the originally filed questionnaire becomes incomplete or inaccurate.)

3
Describe each affiliation or business relationship with an employee or contractor of the local governmental entity 

who makes recommendations to a local government officer of the local governmental entity with respect to 
expenditure of money.

55

66

4
Describe each affiliation or business relationship with a person who is a local government officer and who 
appoints or employs a local government officer of the local governmental entity that is the subject of this 

questionnaire.

55

66

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE
For vendor or other person doing business with local governmental 

entity

Form CIQ
Page 2

5 Name of local government officer with whom filer has affiliation or business relationship. 
(Complete this section only if the answer to A, B, or C is YES.)

This section, item 5 including subparts A, B, C & D, must be completed for each officer with whom the filer has 
affiliation or other relationship. Attach additional pages to this Form CIQ as necessary.

A. Is the local government officer named in this section receiving or likely to receive taxable income from the filer 
of the questionnaire?

 Yes  No

B. Is the filer of the questionnaire receiving or likely to receive taxable income from or at the direction of the local 
government officer named in this section AND the taxable income is not from the local governmental entity?

 Yes  No

C. Is the filer of this questionnaire affiliated with a corporation or other business entity that the local government 
officer serves as an officer or director, or holds an ownership of 10 percent or more?

 Yes  No

D. Describe each affiliation or business relationship.

6. Describe any other affiliation or business relationship that might cause conflict of interest:

55

66

55

66

7

Signature of person doing business with the governmental entity Date

Signature not required if completing in BIDSYNC electronically.

Bid 1605-083Williamson County, Texas

7/21/2016 7:45 AM p. 33



5

6

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE
For vendor or other person doing business with local governmental entity Form CIQ

This questionnaire is being filed in accordance with chapter 176 of the Local 
Government Code by a person doing business with the governmental entity.

By law this questionnaire must be filed with the records administrator of the 
local government not later than the 7th business day after the date the person 

becomes aware of facts that require the statement to be filed. See Section 
176.006, Local Government Code.

A person commits an offense if the person violates Section 176.006, Local 
Government Code. An offense under this section is a Class C misdemeanor.

   Date Received 

OFFICE USE ONLY

1 Name of person doing business with local governmental entity.

2
Check this box if you are filing an update to a previously filed questionnaire.

(The law requires that you file an updated completed questionnaire with the appropriate filing authority not later than 

September 1 of the year for which an activity described in Section 176.006(a), Local Government Code, is pending and 

not later than the 7th business day after the date the originally filed questionnaire becomes incomplete or inaccurate.)

3
Describe each affiliation or business relationship with an employee or contractor of the local governmental entity 

who makes recommendations to a local government officer of the local governmental entity with respect to 
expenditure of money.

55

66

4
Describe each affiliation or business relationship with a person who is a local government officer and who 
appoints or employs a local government officer of the local governmental entity that is the subject of this 

questionnaire.

55

66

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE
For vendor or other person doing business with local governmental 

entity

Form CIQ
Page 2

5 Name of local government officer with whom filer has affiliation or business relationship. 
(Complete this section only if the answer to A, B, or C is YES.)

This section, item 5 including subparts A, B, C & D, must be completed for each officer with whom the filer has 
affiliation or other relationship. Attach additional pages to this Form CIQ as necessary.

A. Is the local government officer named in this section receiving or likely to receive taxable income from the filer 
of the questionnaire?

 Yes  No

B. Is the filer of the questionnaire receiving or likely to receive taxable income from or at the direction of the local 
government officer named in this section AND the taxable income is not from the local governmental entity?

 Yes  No

C. Is the filer of this questionnaire affiliated with a corporation or other business entity that the local government 
officer serves as an officer or director, or holds an ownership of 10 percent or more?

 Yes  No

D. Describe each affiliation or business relationship.

6. Describe any other affiliation or business relationship that might cause conflict of interest:

55

66

55

66

7

Signature of person doing business with the governmental entity Date

Signature not required if completing in BIDSYNC electronically.

Bid 1605-083Williamson County, Texas

7/21/2016 7:45 AM p. 34



5

6

PROPOSAL AFFIDAVIT

This form must be completed, signed, notarized and returned with Proposal package

The undersigned certi fies that the RFP and the Respondent ’s Proposal have been carefully reviewed and are 
submitted as correct and final.  Respondent further certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or 
services upon which prices are extended at the price Proposal, and upon the condit ions contained in the RFP.

STATE OF 

COUNTY OF 

BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, a Notary Public in and for the State of , on this day

personally appeared ,(Name of Signer), who after being by me duly sworn,

did depose and say: “I, , (Name of Signer) am a duly authorized officer of/agent

for (Name of Respondent) and have been duly authorized to execute the

foregoing on behalf of the said (Name of Respondent).

I hereby cert i fy that the foregoing Proposal has not been prepared in collusion with any other Respondent or
other person or persons engaged in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Proposal.
Further, I certi fy that the Respondent is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly
concerned in any pool or agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Proposal on, or
to influence any person or persons to submit a Proposal or not to submit a Proposal thereon. ”

Name of Respondent: 

Address of Respondent: 

Email:

Telephone#: 

By:

Printed Name:

Tit le:

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me by the above-named 

on this the day of  , 20 .

Notary Public in and for

The State of 

SIGNATURE AND NOTARY NOT REQUIRED IF COMPLETING IN BIDSYNC ELECTRONICALLY. 

Bid 1605-083Williamson County, Texas

7/21/2016 7:45 AM p. 35



5

6

PROPOSAL AFFIDAVIT

This form must be completed, signed, notarized and returned with Proposal package

The undersigned certi fies that the RFP and the Respondent ’s Proposal have been carefully reviewed and are 
submitted as correct and final.  Respondent further certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or 
services upon which prices are extended at the price Proposal, and upon the condit ions contained in the RFP.

STATE OF 

COUNTY OF 

BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, a Notary Public in and for the State of , on this day

personally appeared ,(Name of Signer), who after being by me duly sworn,

did depose and say: “I, , (Name of Signer) am a duly authorized officer of/agent

for (Name of Respondent) and have been duly authorized to execute the

foregoing on behalf of the said (Name of Respondent).

I hereby cert i fy that the foregoing Proposal has not been prepared in collusion with any other Respondent or
other person or persons engaged in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Proposal.
Further, I certi fy that the Respondent is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly
concerned in any pool or agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Proposal on, or
to influence any person or persons to submit a Proposal or not to submit a Proposal thereon. ”

Name of Respondent: 

Address of Respondent: 

Email:

Telephone#: 

By:

Printed Name:

Tit le:

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me by the above-named 

on this the day of  , 20 .

Notary Public in and for

The State of 

SIGNATURE AND NOTARY NOT REQUIRED IF COMPLETING IN BIDSYNC ELECTRONICALLY. 

Bid 1605-083Williamson County, Texas

7/21/2016 7:45 AM p. 36



STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE 

 

This form must be completed and submitted as a part of your Proposal (if additional space is needed 

please attach additional sheet) 

 

RE: WILLIAMSON COUNTY 

 

We hereby acknowledge receipt of Request for Proposal for Specific & Aggregate Stop Loss Insurance  

Proposal Number: 1605-083 (the “RPF”) and certify that our Proposal conforms to the RFP except as 

detailed below: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited 

Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney or 

equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department prior to 

contract award. 

 

____________________________   ________________________________ 

Organization      Signature 

 

____________________________   ________________________________ 

Date        Title 

Bid 1605-083Williamson County, Texas

7/21/2016 7:45 AM p. 37



 
FEE PROPOSALS 

 

Each stop-loss Respondent must complete this form using the census head count provided. 
 

A. Individual Specific $ 225,000 Pooling Point (includes RX) 
Contract Type:  26/12 Rate Guarantee: . 

# of Years 
Employee Composite  X = . 

#EEs Rate Monthly Prem. 
Or 

Employee Only  X = . 
#EEs Rate Monthly Prem. 

 
Dependents Only  X = . 

#DEPs Rate Monthly Prem. 

(Note:  If rates are EE and Family, you will have to make subtraction.) 

B. Aggregate stop-loss Option(s) with $ 225,000     Specific 
Contract Type 26/12 Paid 

 

(1) Corridor 120% (includes RX) Rate Guarantee:    
 

Contract Type 26/12 
 

X 

 
 

  = 

# of Years 
 

   
Premium  #EEs Monthly Att. 

 
Att. Factor 

X   = 
#EEs 

   
Monthly Att. 

 
Att. Factor 

X   = 
#DEPs 

   
Monthly Att. 

 
 

NOTES:  The County is requesting a 120% Aggregating Corridor. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

| P a g e 

 

Bid 1605-083Williamson County, Texas

7/21/2016 7:45 AM p. 38



 (CONTINUED) 
FEE PROPOSALS 

 
 

A. Individual Specific $ 250,000 Pooling Point (includes RX) 
Contract Type:  26/12 Rate Guarantee:  . 

# of Years 
 

Employee Composite  X = . 
#EEs Rate Monthly Prem. 

Or 
Employee Only  X = . 

#EEs Rate Monthly Prem. 
 

Dependents Only  X = . 
#DEPs Rate Monthly Prem. 

(Note:  If rates are EE and Family, you will have to make subtraction.) 

B. Aggregate stop-loss Option(s) with $ 250,000     Specific 
Contract Type 26/12 Paid 

 

(1) Corridor 120% (includes RX) Rate Guarantee:    
 

Contract Type 26/12 
 

X 

 
 

  = 

      # of Years 
 

   
Premium  #EEs Monthly Att. 

 
Att. Factor 

X   = 
#EEs 

   
Monthly Att. 

 
Att. Factor 

X   = 
#DEPs 

   
Monthly Att. 

 
 

NOTES:  The County is requesting a 120% Aggregating Corridor. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

| P a g e 

 

Bid 1605-083Williamson County, Texas

7/21/2016 7:45 AM p. 39



 

(CONTINUED) 
FEE PROPOSALS 

 
 

A. Individual Specific $ 275,000 Pooling Point (includes RX) 
Contract Type:  26/12 Rate Guarantee: . 

# of Years 
 

Employee Composite  X = . 
#EEs Rate Monthly Prem. 

Or 
Employee Only  X = . 

#EEs Rate Monthly Prem. 
 

Dependents Only  X = . 
#DEPs Rate Monthly Prem. 

(Note:  If rates are EE and Family, you will have to make subtraction.) 

B. Aggregate stop-loss Option(s) with $ 275,000     Specific 
Contract Type 26/12 Paid 

 

(1) Corridor 120% (includes RX) Rate Guarantee:    
 

Contract Type 26/12 
 

X 

 
 

  = 

# of Years 
 

   
Premium  #EEs Monthly Att. 

 
Att. Factor 

X   = 
#EEs 

   
Monthly Att. 

 
Att. Factor 

X   = 
#DEPs 

   
Monthly Att. 

 
 

NOTES:  The County is requesting a 120% Aggregating Corridor. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 P a g e 

 

Bid 1605-083Williamson County, Texas

7/21/2016 7:45 AM p. 40



 

 (CONTINUED) 
FEE PROPOSALS 

 
THIS FORM MUST BE COMPLETED, SIGNED, AND RETURNED WITH 
PROPOSAL 

 

The undersigned hereby certifies that he or she has read the terms of this RFP and understands that 
Williamson County reserves the right to waive any informality in or to reject any or all Proposals. 

 
 

Respondent 
Name:    

Address:    

Telephone:  Fax:  
  

 

Contact Name (please print):  
  

 

Authorized Signature:  
  

 

Title or Representative Capacity of Signer: 
 
 

 
 

State of Incorporation/Organization or Primary Place of Business:   
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, 
Limited Liability Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power 
of attorney or equivalent document must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing 
Department prior to being recommended for award of the Proposal. 

 
 
 

 

Bid 1605-083Williamson County, Texas

7/21/2016 7:45 AM p. 41



   

    11/01/14                                                    Allegiance Benefit Plan Management, Inc.                                                 PAGE:   431  

    LXRTCLAN                                                             CLAIMS ANALYSIS REPORT  

   

    Group -    2001025               WILLIAMSON COUNTY  

    Coverage - DIV                   - DIVISION SUMMARY -  

                                                                Check dates        10/01/2014 - 10/31/2014  

   

                                                                              PPO        Deductible    Coinsurance        COB            Total       Claim  

   Claim Category                             Charges      Ineligible       Discount      Amounts     Out of Pocket     Savings          Paid        Count      Lines  

 ======================================= ==============  ==============  =============  ============  =============  =============  ==============  =========  =========  

   

         0001        ADJUDICATED-NO-PLAN       2,694.78        2,694.78           0.00          0.00           0.00           0.00            0.00         11         25  

         0001        WILCO-DEN-HIGH          197,249.32       69,381.87       9,193.88      3,074.00      22,458.35       4,168.22       90,427.10        428       1303  

         0001        WILCO-DEN-LOW            26,729.80        6,144.22       3,838.00        850.00         596.21           0.00       15,301.37         93        305  

         0001        WILCO-MED-CORE        2,124,912.67      720,139.83     707,301.94     13,183.42      43,974.53       1,062.79      639,250.16       2068       3740  

         0001        WILCO-MED-DED         2,400,336.53      386,880.25     842,290.60    115,807.79      52,903.43       4,806.06      997,649.03       4242       7918  

         0001        WILCO-MED-EPO           400,060.07       40,791.16     212,745.11     11,788.88       5,911.06           0.00      128,823.86        592       1222  

         0001        WILCO-MED-EPO-DIAB          919.00          525.00         225.48         25.00           0.00           0.00          143.52          2          2  

         0001        WILCO-VIS01              48,940.83       16,555.24           0.00          0.00           0.00         165.26       32,220.33        198        509  

                                         ==============  ==============  =============  ============  =============  =============  ==============  =========  =========  

   

         0001                              5,201,843.00    1,243,112.35   1,775,595.01    144,729.09     125,843.58      10,202.33    1,903,815.37       7634      15024  

   

   

         0002        WILCO-DEN-HIGH           31,707.78       10,038.19       1,377.50        445.00       3,582.88           0.00       16,264.21         75        245  

         0002        WILCO-DEN-LOW               765.00          139.00          55.00         50.00          14.50           0.00          506.50          5         10  

         0002        ADJUDICATED-NO-PLAN         172.50          172.50           0.00          0.00           0.00           0.00            0.00          1          1  

         0002        WILCO-MED-CORE-DIAB     423,567.46       24,637.02     202,360.79      2,288.40      11,955.21           0.00      182,326.04        673       1229  

         0002        WILCO-MED-DED-DIAB      650,072.10      156,440.79     227,645.50      9,084.40       5,768.01           0.00      251,133.40        970       1522  

         0002        WILCO-MED-EPO-DIAB      261,860.82       34,334.99      76,358.57      4,865.75       5,341.97           0.00      140,959.54        343        582  

         0002        WILCO-VIS01               4,863.86        1,320.93           0.00          0.00           0.00           0.00        3,542.93         20         48  

                                         ==============  ==============  =============  ============  =============  =============  ==============  =========  =========  

   

         0002                              1,373,009.52      227,083.42     507,797.36     16,733.55      26,662.57           0.00      594,732.62       2087       3637  

   

   

         CBR2        WILCO-MED-CORE-DIAB       1,480.89            0.00           0.00         44.31           0.00           0.00        1,436.58          8          8  

         CBR2        WILCO-VIS01                 444.00          144.00           0.00          0.00           0.00           0.00          300.00          1          3  

                                         ==============  ==============  =============  ============  =============  =============  ==============  =========  =========  

   

         CBR2                                  1,924.89          144.00           0.00         44.31           0.00           0.00        1,736.58          9         11  

   

   

         COBR        WILCO-MED-CORE              183.00            0.00          88.10          0.00          28.47           0.00           66.43          1          1  

         COBR        WILCO-MED-DED             6,022.32          300.00       1,940.85      1,378.66           0.00           0.00        2,402.81         26         33  

                                         ==============  ==============  =============  ============  =============  =============  ==============  =========  =========  

   

         COBR                                  6,205.32          300.00       2,028.95      1,378.66          28.47           0.00        2,469.24         27         34  

   

   

         RET2        WILCO-DEN-HIGH            4,686.50          409.06         380.50        250.00         733.85           0.00        2,913.09         17         37  

         RET2        WILCO-MED-CORE-DIAB     209,843.19       11,709.26     116,673.29        740.64       2,542.59         163.92       78,013.49        192        346  

         RET2        WILCO-MED-DED-DIAB       42,886.90       17,754.76       4,775.60      2,786.99       1,249.91       3,924.98       12,394.66         98        112  

         RET2        WILCO-MED-EPO-DIAB       26,294.69          500.00      19,219.91        861.84         157.87           0.00        5,555.07         40         62  

         RET2        WILCO-VIS01                 775.00          600.00           0.00          0.00           0.00           0.00          175.00          3          6  

                                         ==============  ==============  =============  ============  =============  =============  ==============  =========  =========  

   

         RET2                                284,486.28       30,973.08     141,049.30      4,639.47       4,684.22       4,088.90       99,051.31        350        563  

   

   

Bid 1605-083Williamson County, Texas

7/21/2016 7:45 AM p. 42



   

    11/01/14                                                    Allegiance Benefit Plan Management, Inc.                                                 PAGE:   432  

    LXRTCLAN                                                             CLAIMS ANALYSIS REPORT  

   

    Group -    2001025               WILLIAMSON COUNTY  

    Coverage - DIV                   - DIVISION SUMMARY -  

                                                                Check dates        10/01/2014 - 10/31/2014  

   

                                                                              PPO        Deductible    Coinsurance        COB            Total       Claim  

   Claim Category                             Charges      Ineligible       Discount      Amounts     Out of Pocket     Savings          Paid        Count      Lines  

 ======================================= ==============  ==============  =============  ============  =============  =============  ==============  =========  =========  

   

         RETR        WILCO-DEN-HIGH            5,108.33        1,792.48         308.34          0.00         396.87           0.00        2,610.64         16         44  

         RETR        WILCO-DEN-LOW               709.00            0.00          60.00         50.00          31.20           0.00          567.80          4         10  

         RETR        WILCO-MED-CORE           84,728.12       17,581.46      22,524.88      1,646.59       2,310.23       6,214.92       34,450.04        197        326  

         RETR        WILCO-MED-DED            24,285.18           12.00       7,630.21      2,041.52          86.20           0.00       14,515.25        153        213  

         RETR        WILCO-MED-EPO               772.56            0.00         342.73         83.86           0.00           0.00          345.97          5          7  

         RETR        WILCO-VIS01               3,379.98        1,029.00           0.00          0.00           0.00           0.00        2,350.98         19         32  

                                         ==============  ==============  =============  ============  =============  =============  ==============  =========  =========  

   

         RETR                                118,983.17       20,414.94      30,866.16      3,821.97       2,824.50       6,214.92       54,840.68        394        632  

   

   

         RXD         WILCO-MED-CORE              606.66-           0.00           0.00          0.00           0.00           0.00          606.66-         1          1  

                                         ==============  ==============  =============  ============  =============  =============  ==============  =========  =========  

   

         RXD                                     606.66-           0.00           0.00          0.00           0.00           0.00          606.66-         1          1  

   

   

                                         ==============  ==============  =============  ============  =============  =============  ==============  =========  =========  

      - GROUP TOTAL -                      6,985,845.52    1,522,027.79   2,457,336.78    171,347.05     160,043.34      20,506.15    2,656,039.14      10502      19902  

Bid 1605-083Williamson County, Texas

7/21/2016 7:45 AM p. 43



   

    11/01/14                                                    Allegiance Benefit Plan Management, Inc.                                                 PAGE:   433  

    LXRTCLAN                                                             CLAIMS ANALYSIS REPORT  

   

    Group -    2001025               WILLIAMSON COUNTY  

    Division - ALL                   - ALL DIVISIONS -  

    Plan -     ALL                   All Plans  

   

    Coverage - ALL                   - GROUP SUMMARY -  

                                                                Check dates        10/01/2014 - 10/31/2014  

   

                                                                              PPO        Deductible    Coinsurance        COB            Total       Claim  

   Claim Category                             Charges      Ineligible       Discount      Amounts     Out of Pocket     Savings          Paid        Count      Lines  

 ======================================= ==============  ==============  =============  ============  =============  =============  ==============  =========  =========  

   

    DEN  ADJUDICATED-NO-PLAN                     320.00          320.00           0.00          0.00           0.00           0.00            0.00          2          2  

    DEN  WILCO-DEN-HIGH                      238,751.93       81,621.60      11,260.22      3,769.00      27,171.95       4,168.22      112,215.04        536       1629  

    DEN  WILCO-DEN-LOW                        28,203.80        6,283.22       3,953.00        950.00         641.91           0.00       16,375.67        102        325  

                                         ==============  ==============  =============  ============  =============  =============  ==============  =========  =========  

    DEN  DENTAL                              267,275.73       88,224.82      15,213.22      4,719.00      27,813.86       4,168.22      128,590.71        640       1956  

   

    MED  ADJUDICATED-NO-PLAN                     887.35          887.35           0.00          0.00           0.00           0.00            0.00          6         13  

    MED  WILCO-MED-CORE                    2,209,217.13      737,721.29     729,914.92     14,830.01      46,313.23       7,277.71      673,159.97       2267       4068  

    MED  WILCO-MED-DED                     2,430,644.03      387,192.25     851,861.66    119,227.97      52,989.63       4,806.06    1,014,567.09       4421       8164  

    MED  WILCO-MED-EPO                       400,832.63       40,791.16     213,087.84     11,872.74       5,911.06           0.00      129,169.83        597       1229  

    MED  WILCO-MED-EPO-DIAB                  289,074.51       35,359.99      95,803.96      5,752.59       5,499.84           0.00      146,658.13        385        646  

    MED  WILCO-MED-CORE-DIAB                 634,891.54       36,346.28     319,034.08      3,073.35      14,497.80         163.92      261,776.11        873       1583  

    MED  WILCO-MED-DED-DIAB                  692,959.00      174,195.55     232,421.10     11,871.39       7,017.92       3,924.98      263,528.06       1068       1634  

                                         ==============  ==============  =============  ============  =============  =============  ==============  =========  =========  

    MED  MEDICAL                           6,658,506.19    1,412,493.87   2,442,123.56    166,628.05     132,229.48      16,172.67    2,488,859.19       9617      17337  

   

    VIS  ADJUDICATED-NO-PLAN                   1,659.93        1,659.93           0.00          0.00           0.00           0.00            0.00          4         11  

    VIS  WILCO-VIS01                          58,403.67       19,649.17           0.00          0.00           0.00         165.26       38,589.24        241        598  

                                         ==============  ==============  =============  ============  =============  =============  ==============  =========  =========  

    VIS  VISION                               60,063.60       21,309.10           0.00          0.00           0.00         165.26       38,589.24        245        609  

   

                                         ==============  ==============  =============  ============  =============  =============  ==============  =========  =========  

      - GROUP TOTAL -                      6,985,845.52    1,522,027.79   2,457,336.78    171,347.05     160,043.34      20,506.15    2,656,039.14      10502      19902  

   

   Dependent Breakdown  

 -----------------------  

    ADJUDICATED-NO-PLAN  PARTICIPANT           1,089.43        1,089.43           0.00          0.00           0.00           0.00            0.00          5          6  

    ADJUDICATED-NO-PLAN  SPOUSE                  980.00          980.00           0.00          0.00           0.00           0.00            0.00          3          9  

    ADJUDICATED-NO-PLAN  DEPENDENT               797.85          797.85           0.00          0.00           0.00           0.00            0.00          4         11  

                                         ==============  ==============  =============  ============  =============  =============  ==============  =========  =========  

    ADJUDICATED-NO-PLAN  TOTAL                 2,867.28        2,867.28           0.00          0.00           0.00           0.00            0.00         12         26  

   

    WILCO-DEN-HIGH       PARTICIPANT          83,262.00       16,741.48       4,753.00      1,790.00      11,512.18           0.00       48,465.34        185        493  

    WILCO-DEN-HIGH       SPOUSE               54,261.50       27,948.17       3,080.00        490.00       3,063.13         801.40       18,878.80        104        300  

    WILCO-DEN-HIGH       DEPENDENT           101,228.43       36,931.95       3,427.22      1,489.00      12,596.64       3,366.82       44,870.90        247        836  

                                         ==============  ==============  =============  ============  =============  =============  ==============  =========  =========  

    WILCO-DEN-HIGH       TOTAL               238,751.93       81,621.60      11,260.22      3,769.00      27,171.95       4,168.22      112,215.04        536       1629  

   

    WILCO-DEN-LOW        PARTICIPANT          14,380.00        2,742.94       2,778.00        500.00         339.03           0.00        8,020.03         55        154  

Bid 1605-083Williamson County, Texas

7/21/2016 7:45 AM p. 44



   

    11/01/14                                                    Allegiance Benefit Plan Management, Inc.                                                 PAGE:   434  

    LXRTCLAN                                                             CLAIMS ANALYSIS REPORT  

   

    Group -    2001025               WILLIAMSON COUNTY  

    Division - ALL                   - ALL DIVISIONS -  

    Plan -     ALL                   All Plans  

   

    Coverage - ALL                   - GROUP SUMMARY -  

                                                                Check dates        10/01/2014 - 10/31/2014  

   

                                                                              PPO        Deductible    Coinsurance        COB            Total       Claim  

   Claim Category                             Charges      Ineligible       Discount      Amounts     Out of Pocket     Savings          Paid        Count      Lines  

 ======================================= ==============  ==============  =============  ============  =============  =============  ==============  =========  =========  

   

    WILCO-DEN-LOW        SPOUSE                3,023.00          269.00         292.00        150.00          94.12           0.00        2,217.88         17         45  

    WILCO-DEN-LOW        DEPENDENT            10,800.80        3,271.28         883.00        300.00         208.76           0.00        6,137.76         30        126  

                                         ==============  ==============  =============  ============  =============  =============  ==============  =========  =========  

    WILCO-DEN-LOW        TOTAL                28,203.80        6,283.22       3,953.00        950.00         641.91           0.00       16,375.67        102        325  

   

    WILCO-MED-CORE       PARTICIPANT         664,168.98      243,070.14     179,733.96      7,748.84      17,875.25       6,117.11      209,623.68       1062       1842  

    WILCO-MED-CORE       SPOUSE            1,181,020.00      359,898.85     491,187.14      4,015.39      17,307.98         995.54      307,615.10        609       1151  

    WILCO-MED-CORE       DEPENDENT           364,028.15      134,752.30      58,993.82      3,065.78      11,130.00         165.06      155,921.19        596       1075  

                                         ==============  ==============  =============  ============  =============  =============  ==============  =========  =========  

    WILCO-MED-CORE       TOTAL             2,209,217.13      737,721.29     729,914.92     14,830.01      46,313.23       7,277.71      673,159.97       2267       4068  

   

    WILCO-MED-DED        PARTICIPANT       1,024,923.12      181,183.73     390,109.05     62,673.05      24,008.56           0.00      366,948.73       2172       3710  

    WILCO-MED-DED        SPOUSE              963,297.23      134,484.14     340,536.24     23,747.51       5,535.32       4,764.06      454,230.59       1153       2499  

    WILCO-MED-DED        DEPENDENT           442,423.68       71,524.38     121,216.37     32,807.41      23,445.75          42.00      193,387.77       1096       1955  

                                         ==============  ==============  =============  ============  =============  =============  ==============  =========  =========  

    WILCO-MED-DED        TOTAL             2,430,644.03      387,192.25     851,861.66    119,227.97      52,989.63       4,806.06    1,014,567.09       4421       8164  

   

    WILCO-MED-EPO        PARTICIPANT         299,122.32        8,146.69     181,841.76      7,636.99       4,581.82           0.00       96,915.06        411        826  

    WILCO-MED-EPO        SPOUSE               61,811.49       17,764.47      19,070.25      2,051.91       1,072.12           0.00       21,852.74        109        263  

    WILCO-MED-EPO        DEPENDENT            39,898.82       14,880.00      12,175.83      2,183.84         257.12           0.00       10,402.03         77        140  

                                         ==============  ==============  =============  ============  =============  =============  ==============  =========  =========  

    WILCO-MED-EPO        TOTAL               400,832.63       40,791.16     213,087.84     11,872.74       5,911.06           0.00      129,169.83        597       1229  

   

    WILCO-MED-EPO-DIAB   PARTICIPANT          52,223.12        1,470.74      25,904.04      1,613.83         380.15           0.00       22,854.36        168        227  

    WILCO-MED-EPO-DIAB   SPOUSE              186,795.22        6,121.00      64,288.25      2,722.50       4,595.28           0.00      109,068.19        130        254  

    WILCO-MED-EPO-DIAB   DEPENDENT            50,056.17       27,768.25       5,611.67      1,416.26         524.41           0.00       14,735.58         87        165  

                                         ==============  ==============  =============  ============  =============  =============  ==============  =========  =========  

    WILCO-MED-EPO-DIAB   TOTAL               289,074.51       35,359.99      95,803.96      5,752.59       5,499.84           0.00      146,658.13        385        646  

   

    WILCO-VIS01          PARTICIPANT          29,690.65        9,921.44           0.00          0.00           0.00           0.00       19,769.21        120        295  

    WILCO-VIS01          SPOUSE               16,825.75        6,826.53           0.00          0.00           0.00         147.30        9,851.92         63        171  

    WILCO-VIS01          DEPENDENT            11,887.27        2,901.20           0.00          0.00           0.00          17.96        8,968.11         58        132  

                                         ==============  ==============  =============  ============  =============  =============  ==============  =========  =========  

    WILCO-VIS01          TOTAL                58,403.67       19,649.17           0.00          0.00           0.00         165.26       38,589.24        241        598  

   

Bid 1605-083Williamson County, Texas

7/21/2016 7:45 AM p. 45



   

    11/01/14                                                    Allegiance Benefit Plan Management, Inc.                                                 PAGE:   435  

    LXRTCLAN                                                             CLAIMS ANALYSIS REPORT  

   

    Group -    2001025               WILLIAMSON COUNTY  

    Division - ALL                   - ALL DIVISIONS -  

    Plan -     ALL                   All Plans  

   

    Coverage - ALL                   - GROUP SUMMARY -  

                                                                Check dates        10/01/2014 - 10/31/2014  

   

                                                                              PPO        Deductible    Coinsurance        COB            Total       Claim  

   Claim Category                             Charges      Ineligible       Discount      Amounts     Out of Pocket     Savings          Paid        Count      Lines  

 ======================================= ==============  ==============  =============  ============  =============  =============  ==============  =========  =========  

   

    WILCO-MED-CORE-DIAB  PARTICIPANT         490,572.21       32,175.37     257,260.79      2,192.03       8,237.67           0.00      190,706.35        529        992  

    WILCO-MED-CORE-DIAB  SPOUSE              134,555.80        2,676.91      57,068.87        763.81       5,699.80         163.92       68,182.49        299        510  

    WILCO-MED-CORE-DIAB  DEPENDENT             9,763.53        1,494.00       4,704.42        117.51         560.33           0.00        2,887.27         45         81  

                                         ==============  ==============  =============  ============  =============  =============  ==============  =========  =========  

    WILCO-MED-CORE-DIAB  TOTAL               634,891.54       36,346.28     319,034.08      3,073.35      14,497.80         163.92      261,776.11        873       1583  

   

    WILCO-MED-DED-DIAB   PARTICIPANT         331,123.69       93,725.13      93,097.62      6,356.50       5,796.92       3,924.98      128,222.54        635        921  

    WILCO-MED-DED-DIAB   SPOUSE              325,543.55       78,227.02     126,156.67      2,476.86         430.02           0.00      118,252.98        295        500  

    WILCO-MED-DED-DIAB   DEPENDENT            36,291.76        2,243.40      13,166.81      3,038.03         790.98           0.00       17,052.54        138        213  

                                         ==============  ==============  =============  ============  =============  =============  ==============  =========  =========  

    WILCO-MED-DED-DIAB   TOTAL               692,959.00      174,195.55     232,421.10     11,871.39       7,017.92       3,924.98      263,528.06       1068       1634  

   

    PARTICIPANT                            2,990,555.52      590,267.09   1,135,478.22     90,511.24      72,731.58      10,042.09    1,091,525.30       5342       9466  

    SPOUSE                                 2,928,113.54      635,196.09   1,101,679.42     36,417.98      37,797.77       6,872.22    1,110,150.69       2782       5702  

    DEPENDENT                              1,067,176.46      296,564.61     220,179.14     44,417.83      49,513.99       3,591.84      454,363.15       2378       4734  

                                         ==============  ==============  =============  ============  =============  =============  ==============  =========  =========  

      - GROUP TOTAL -                      6,985,845.52    1,522,027.79   2,457,336.78    171,347.05     160,043.34      20,506.15    2,656,039.14      10502      19902  

Bid 1605-083Williamson County, Texas

7/21/2016 7:45 AM p. 46



Grand

Month Allegiance Aetna Total Emps

Nov-14 $701,842 $186,486 $888,328 1,426                       

Dec-14 $298,097 $883,940 $1,182,037 1,426                       

Jan-15 $61,268 $732,306 $793,574 1,416                       

Feb-15 $321,112 $1,322,968 $1,644,080 1,422                       

Mar-15 $81,113 $1,825,806 $1,906,919 1,418                       

Apr-15 -$1,518 $1,368,241 $1,366,723 1,410                       

May-15 $2,589 $1,317,144 $1,319,733 1,413                       

Jun-15 $81,366 $1,450,500 $1,531,866 1,395                       

Jul-15 $14,715 $1,252,120 $1,266,835 1,399                       

Aug-15 $5,062 $1,169,552 $1,174,614 1,400                       

Sep-15 $6,889 $1,213,287 $1,220,176 1,400                       

Oct-15 $0

Total $1,572,534 $12,722,350 $14,294,884 15,525                     

Bid 1605-083Williamson County, Texas

7/21/2016 7:45 AM p. 47



November - 14 Through

Control - SFX - ACCT Total Product Month
*(1) Estimated 

Employees

 *(2) Customer 

Funded Claims

*(3) Individual Stop 

Loss Claims

 *(4)  Aggregate Stop        

Loss Claims   

866349 - 010 - 001 (5) Managed Behavioral Health 02/01/2015 $3,344.58 $0.00 $0.00

03/01/2015 $760.99 $0.00 $0.00

04/01/2015 $7,642.73 $0.00 $0.00

06/01/2015 $143.21 $0.00 $0.00

07/01/2015 $315.30 $0.00 $0.00

08/01/2015 $360.30 $0.00 $0.00

09/01/2015 $4,084.16 $0.00 $0.00

10/01/2015 $270.00 $0.00 $0.00

(5) Managed Behavioral Health Total $16,921.27 $0.00 $0.00

Indemnity Vision 11/01/2014 $1,689.00

12/01/2014 $2,097.30

01/01/2015 $732.50

02/01/2015 $1,641.60

03/01/2015 $3,088.40

04/01/2015 $2,445.00

05/01/2015 $3,117.85

06/01/2015 $1,177.45

07/01/2015 $1,457.83

08/01/2015 $853.35

09/01/2015 $4,071.27

10/01/2015 $3,205.30

Indemnity Vision Total $25,576.85

Open Acc EPO 11/01/2014 137 $7,038.19 $0.00 $0.00

12/01/2014 135 $70,397.56 $0.00 $0.00

01/01/2015 133 $62,504.69 $0.00 $0.00

02/01/2015 133 $157,108.23 $0.00 $0.00

03/01/2015 133 $308,237.34 $0.00 $0.00

04/01/2015 133 $173,245.35 $34,401.42 $0.00

05/01/2015 130 $176,366.27 $191,575.53 $0.00

06/01/2015 128 $142,891.15 $205,224.60 $0.00

07/01/2015 128 -$212,197.09 -$431,201.55 $0.00

08/01/2015 129 $86,570.22 $1,158.98 $0.00

09/01/2015 131 $61,571.57 $0.00 $0.00

10/01/2015 131 $134,963.09 $0.00 $0.00

Open Acc EPO Total 1,581 $1,168,696.57 $1,158.98 $0.00

Pharmacy 11/01/2014 137 $4,947.38 $0.00 $0.00

12/01/2014 135 $16,898.85 $0.00 $0.00

01/01/2015 133 $24,021.31 $0.00 $0.00

$134,963.09

$1,169,855.55

$4,947.38

$16,898.85

$24,021.31

$207,646.77

$367,941.80

$348,115.75

-$643,398.64

$87,729.20

$61,571.57

$7,038.19

$70,397.56

$62,504.69

$157,108.23

$308,237.34

$1,177.45

$1,457.83

$853.35

$4,071.27

$3,205.30

$25,576.85

$2,097.30

$732.50

$1,641.60

$3,088.40

$2,445.00

$3,117.85

$360.30

$4,084.16

$270.00

$16,921.27

$1,689.00

Total Claims

$3,344.58

$760.99

$7,642.73

$143.21

$315.30

SELF FUNDED MONTHLY CLAIMS REPORT

WILLIAMSON COUNTY 

Customer Number 866349 October - 15

Bid 1605-083Williamson County, Texas

7/21/2016 7:45 AM p. 48



02/01/2015 133 $21,058.35 $0.00 $0.00

03/01/2015 133 $25,984.57 $0.00 $0.00

04/01/2015 133 $26,816.39 $0.00 $0.00

05/01/2015 130 $24,915.86 $2,283.58 $0.00

06/01/2015 128 $25,857.51 $0.00 $0.00

07/01/2015 128 $30,712.90 -$2,283.58 $0.00

08/01/2015 129 $28,991.46 $0.00 $0.00

09/01/2015 131 $28,866.26 $0.00 $0.00

10/01/2015 131 $36,454.24 $0.00 $0.00

Pharmacy Total 1,581 $295,525.08 $0.00 $0.00

Control - SFX - ACCT Total 3,162 $1,506,719.77 $1,158.98 $0.00

866349 - 010 - 002 Indemnity Vision 01/01/2015 $300.00

02/01/2015 $529.00

06/01/2015 $243.55

07/01/2015 $560.00

09/01/2015 $300.00

Indemnity Vision Total $1,932.55

Open Acc EPO 11/01/2014 14 $108.39 $0.00 $0.00

12/01/2014 14 $935.10 $0.00 $0.00

01/01/2015 15 $8,949.03 $0.00 $0.00

02/01/2015 15 $4,201.83 $0.00 $0.00

03/01/2015 14 $7,919.88 $0.00 $0.00

04/01/2015 14 $4,646.72 $0.00 $0.00

05/01/2015 14 $4,428.89 $0.00 $0.00

06/01/2015 13 $2,970.92 $0.00 $0.00

07/01/2015 13 $5,754.04 $0.00 $0.00

08/01/2015 13 $8,944.62 $0.00 $0.00

09/01/2015 12 $999.29 $0.00 $0.00

10/01/2015 12 $11,053.27 $0.00 $0.00

Open Acc EPO Total 163 $60,911.98 $0.00 $0.00

Pharmacy 11/01/2014 14 $731.48 $0.00 $0.00

12/01/2014 14 $3,524.53 $0.00 $0.00

01/01/2015 15 $4,825.09 $0.00 $0.00

02/01/2015 15 $39,006.77 $0.00 $0.00

03/01/2015 14 $39,693.58 $0.00 $0.00

04/01/2015 14 $3,321.36 $0.00 $0.00

05/01/2015 14 $5,789.31 $0.00 $0.00

06/01/2015 13 $4,050.72 $0.00 $0.00

07/01/2015 13 $4,569.22 $0.00 $0.00

08/01/2015 13 $3,888.71 $0.00 $0.00

09/01/2015 12 $5,623.85 $0.00 $0.00

10/01/2015 12 $3,621.13 $0.00 $0.00

Pharmacy Total 163 $118,645.75 $0.00 $0.00

Control - SFX - ACCT Total 326 $181,490.28 $0.00 $0.00

$3,888.71

$5,623.85

$3,621.13

$118,645.75

$181,490.28

$39,006.77

$39,693.58

$3,321.36

$5,789.31

$4,050.72

$4,569.22

$11,053.27

$60,911.98

$731.48

$3,524.53

$4,825.09

$4,646.72

$4,428.89

$2,970.92

$5,754.04

$8,944.62

$999.29

$108.39

$935.10

$8,949.03

$4,201.83

$7,919.88

$300.00

$529.00

$243.55

$560.00

$300.00

$1,932.55

$28,991.46

$28,866.26

$36,454.24

$295,525.08

$1,507,878.75

$21,058.35

$25,984.57

$26,816.39

$27,199.44

$25,857.51

$28,429.32

Bid 1605-083Williamson County, Texas

7/21/2016 7:45 AM p. 49



866349 - 010 - 997 06/01/2015 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

09/01/2015 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Pharmacy Total $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Control - SFX - ACCT Total $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

866349 - 011 - 101 (5) Managed Behavioral Health 11/01/2014 $4,096.00 $0.00 $0.00

12/01/2014 $4,295.39 $0.00 $0.00

01/01/2015 $810.71 $0.00 $0.00

02/01/2015 $1,049.51 $0.00 $0.00

03/01/2015 $1,884.96 $0.00 $0.00

04/01/2015 $1,385.32 $0.00 $0.00

05/01/2015 $2,155.22 $0.00 $0.00

06/01/2015 $1,463.11 $0.00 $0.00

07/01/2015 $2,258.56 $0.00 $0.00

08/01/2015 $2,216.08 $0.00 $0.00

09/01/2015 $1,603.14 $0.00 $0.00

10/01/2015 $1,069.83 $0.00 $0.00

(5) Managed Behavioral Health Total $24,287.83 $0.00 $0.00

Indemnity Vision 11/01/2014 $7,109.83

12/01/2014 $13,400.99

01/01/2015 $11,434.05

02/01/2015 $15,353.31

03/01/2015 $15,193.35

04/01/2015 $13,825.72

05/01/2015 $11,983.74

06/01/2015 $9,515.15

07/01/2015 $13,265.61

08/01/2015 $18,326.73

09/01/2015 $18,395.72

10/01/2015 $17,504.00

Indemnity Vision Total $165,308.20

Open Acc EPO 11/01/2014 914 $44,746.21 $0.00 $0.00

12/01/2014 907 $186,244.29 $0.00 $0.00

01/01/2015 906 $117,405.17 $0.00 $0.00

02/01/2015 912 $330,488.04 $0.00 $0.00

03/01/2015 906 $594,141.31 $0.00 $0.00

04/01/2015 911 $400,246.15 $0.00 $0.00

05/01/2015 907 $264,018.14 $0.00 $0.00

06/01/2015 902 $310,462.23 $1,904.65 $0.00

07/01/2015 896 $291,162.50 $76,254.28 $0.00

08/01/2015 895 $317,185.75 $5,609.21 $0.00

09/01/2015 911 $286,340.49 $2,692.26 $0.00

10/01/2015 911 $317,971.81 $6,717.89 $0.00

Open Acc EPO Total 10,878 $3,460,412.09 $93,178.29 $0.00

Pharmacy 11/01/2014 914 $16,560.63 $0.00 $0.00

$322,794.96

$289,032.75

$324,689.70

$3,553,590.38

$16,560.63

$330,488.04

$594,141.31

$400,246.15

$264,018.14

$312,366.88

$367,416.78

$17,504.00

$165,308.20

$44,746.21

$186,244.29

$117,405.17

$13,825.72

$11,983.74

$9,515.15

$13,265.61

$18,326.73

$18,395.72

$7,109.83

$13,400.99

$11,434.05

$15,353.31

$15,193.35

$1,463.11

$2,258.56

$2,216.08

$1,603.14

$1,069.83

$24,287.83

$4,295.39

$810.71

$1,049.51

$1,884.96

$1,385.32

$2,155.22

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$4,096.00

Bid 1605-083Williamson County, Texas

7/21/2016 7:45 AM p. 50



12/01/2014 907 $100,257.66 $0.00 $0.00

01/01/2015 906 $113,769.51 $0.00 $0.00

02/01/2015 912 $116,384.63 $0.00 $0.00

03/01/2015 906 $132,328.73 $0.00 $0.00

04/01/2015 911 $115,632.05 $0.00 $0.00

05/01/2015 907 $135,311.50 $0.00 $0.00

06/01/2015 902 $142,335.70 $0.00 $0.00

07/01/2015 896 $108,070.98 $21.05 $0.00

08/01/2015 895 $183,224.83 $207.94 $0.00

09/01/2015 911 $147,096.88 $367.68 $0.00

10/01/2015 911 $166,886.74 $101.30 $0.00

Pharmacy Total 10,878 $1,477,859.84 $697.97 $0.00

Control - SFX - ACCT Total 21,756 $5,127,867.96 $93,876.26 $0.00

866349 - 011 - 102 (5) Managed Behavioral Health 01/01/2015 $4,737.36 $0.00 $0.00

02/01/2015 $17,786.32 $0.00 $0.00

03/01/2015 $3,975.06 $0.00 $0.00

07/01/2015 $185.00 $0.00 $0.00

08/01/2015 $50.00 $0.00 $0.00

10/01/2015 $147.73 $0.00 $0.00

(5) Managed Behavioral Health Total $26,881.47 $0.00 $0.00

Indemnity Vision 11/01/2014 $61.75

01/01/2015 $900.00

02/01/2015 $300.00

03/01/2015 $893.96

04/01/2015 $868.89

05/01/2015 $200.26

07/01/2015 $600.00

08/01/2015 $1,324.96

09/01/2015 $300.00

10/01/2015 $1,198.00

Indemnity Vision Total $6,647.82

Open Acc EPO 11/01/2014 39 $1,037.21 $0.00 $0.00

12/01/2014 39 $13,450.40 $0.00 $0.00

01/01/2015 39 $25,675.08 $0.00 $0.00

02/01/2015 39 $8,382.39 $0.00 $0.00

03/01/2015 41 $9,414.50 $0.00 $0.00

04/01/2015 41 $5,108.63 $0.00 $0.00

05/01/2015 42 $18,618.65 $0.00 $0.00

06/01/2015 46 $50,291.67 $0.00 $0.00

07/01/2015 46 $33,292.85 $0.00 $0.00

08/01/2015 46 $35,197.52 $0.00 $0.00

09/01/2015 44 $50,492.15 $0.00 $0.00

10/01/2015 44 $51,550.06 $0.00 $0.00

Open Acc EPO Total 506 $302,511.11 $0.00 $0.00

$33,292.85

$35,197.52

$50,492.15

$51,550.06

$302,511.11

$25,675.08

$8,382.39

$9,414.50

$5,108.63

$18,618.65

$50,291.67

$300.00

$1,198.00

$6,647.82

$1,037.21

$13,450.40

$300.00

$893.96

$868.89

$200.26

$600.00

$1,324.96

$50.00

$147.73

$26,881.47

$61.75

$900.00

$5,221,744.22

$4,737.36

$17,786.32

$3,975.06

$185.00

$142,335.70

$108,092.03

$183,432.77

$147,464.56

$166,988.04

$1,478,557.81

$100,257.66

$113,769.51

$116,384.63

$132,328.73

$115,632.05

$135,311.50

Bid 1605-083Williamson County, Texas

7/21/2016 7:45 AM p. 51



Pharmacy 11/01/2014 39 $2,216.47 $0.00 $0.00

12/01/2014 39 $16,143.97 $0.00 $0.00

01/01/2015 39 $11,467.88 $0.00 $0.00

02/01/2015 39 $12,655.31 $0.00 $0.00

03/01/2015 41 $15,027.96 $0.00 $0.00

04/01/2015 41 $11,275.63 $0.00 $0.00

05/01/2015 42 $17,554.73 $0.00 $0.00

06/01/2015 46 $15,602.28 $0.00 $0.00

07/01/2015 46 $9,957.03 $0.00 $0.00

08/01/2015 46 $19,223.35 $0.00 $0.00

09/01/2015 44 $17,562.44 $0.00 $0.00

10/01/2015 44 $16,517.00 $0.00 $0.00

Pharmacy Total 506 $165,204.05 $0.00 $0.00

Control - SFX - ACCT Total 1,012 $501,244.45 $0.00 $0.00

866349 - 011 - 103 (5) Managed Behavioral Health 05/01/2015 $345.62 $0.00 $0.00

(5) Managed Behavioral Health Total $345.62 $0.00 $0.00

Open Acc EPO 11/01/2014 1 $0.50 $0.00 $0.00

12/01/2014 2 $2,263.61 $0.00 $0.00

01/01/2015 2 $184.37 $0.00 $0.00

02/01/2015 2 $2,449.91 $0.00 $0.00

03/01/2015 2 $19,994.82 $0.00 $0.00

04/01/2015 1 $29,696.58 $0.00 $0.00

05/01/2015 $511.08 $0.00 $0.00

06/01/2015 $84.02 $0.00 $0.00

07/01/2015 $901.37 $0.00 $0.00

09/01/2015 $8,470.00 $0.00 $0.00

Open Acc EPO Total 10 $64,556.26 $0.00 $0.00

Pharmacy 11/01/2014 1 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

12/01/2014 2 $2,059.78 $0.00 $0.00

01/01/2015 2 $2,592.18 $0.00 $0.00

02/01/2015 2 $1,937.96 $0.00 $0.00

03/01/2015 2 $871.70 $0.00 $0.00

04/01/2015 1 $1,843.58 $0.00 $0.00

05/01/2015 $901.17 $0.00 $0.00

09/01/2015 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Pharmacy Total 10 $10,206.37 $0.00 $0.00

Control - SFX - ACCT Total 20 $75,108.25 $0.00 $0.00

866349 - 012 - 201 (5) Managed Behavioral Health 01/01/2015 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

02/01/2015 $3,550.50 $0.00 $0.00

03/01/2015 $219.29 $0.00 $0.00

04/01/2015 $3.12 $0.00 $0.00

05/01/2015 $344.00 $0.00 $0.00

06/01/2015 $158.20 $0.00 $0.00

07/01/2015 $3,404.00 $0.00 $0.00

$3,550.50

$219.29

$3.12

$344.00

$158.20

$3,404.00

$901.17

$0.00

$10,206.37

$75,108.25

$0.00

$0.00

$2,059.78

$2,592.18

$1,937.96

$871.70

$1,843.58

$511.08

$84.02

$901.37

$8,470.00

$64,556.26

$0.50

$2,263.61

$184.37

$2,449.91

$19,994.82

$29,696.58

$165,204.05

$501,244.45

$345.62

$345.62

$17,554.73

$15,602.28

$9,957.03

$19,223.35

$17,562.44

$16,517.00

$2,216.47

$16,143.97

$11,467.88

$12,655.31

$15,027.96

$11,275.63

Bid 1605-083Williamson County, Texas

7/21/2016 7:45 AM p. 52



08/01/2015 $746.65 $0.00 $0.00

09/01/2015 $240.10 $0.00 $0.00

10/01/2015 $647.81 $0.00 $0.00

(5) Managed Behavioral Health Total $9,313.67 $0.00 $0.00

Indemnity Vision 11/01/2014 $1,796.94

12/01/2014 $129.20

01/01/2015 $300.00

02/01/2015 $1,024.49

03/01/2015 $277.46

04/01/2015 $1,136.99

05/01/2015 $385.00

06/01/2015 $474.25

07/01/2015 $622.00

08/01/2015 $2,486.70

09/01/2015 $1,754.75

10/01/2015 $666.30

Indemnity Vision Total $11,054.08

Open Acc POS 11/01/2014 63 $5,597.54 $0.00 $0.00

12/01/2014 62 $48,081.23 $0.00 $0.00

01/01/2015 61 $29,984.59 $0.00 $0.00

02/01/2015 60 $84,330.90 $0.00 $0.00

03/01/2015 59 $47,850.06 $0.00 $0.00

04/01/2015 61 $114,013.80 $0.00 $0.00

05/01/2015 61 $82,731.73 $0.00 $0.00

06/01/2015 62 $87,970.23 $0.00 $0.00

07/01/2015 62 $25,591.10 $0.00 $0.00

08/01/2015 65 $28,184.10 $0.00 $0.00

09/01/2015 67 $88,917.78 $0.00 $0.00

10/01/2015 67 $130,983.89 $0.00 $0.00

Open Acc POS Total 750 $774,236.95 $0.00 $0.00

Pharmacy 11/01/2014 63 $12,152.07 $0.00 $0.00

12/01/2014 62 $46,637.07 $0.00 $0.00

01/01/2015 61 $49,855.03 $0.00 $0.00

02/01/2015 60 $29,598.53 $0.00 $0.00

03/01/2015 59 $24,894.14 $0.00 $0.00

04/01/2015 61 $41,110.67 $0.00 $0.00

05/01/2015 61 $25,523.24 $0.00 $0.00

06/01/2015 62 $32,880.11 $0.00 $0.00

07/01/2015 62 $25,656.89 $0.00 $0.00

08/01/2015 65 $42,051.17 $0.00 $0.00

09/01/2015 67 $42,227.11 $0.00 $0.00

10/01/2015 67 $29,973.86 $0.00 $0.00

Pharmacy Total 750 $402,559.89 $0.00 $0.00

Control - SFX - ACCT Total 1,500 $1,197,164.59 $0.00 $0.00

$42,051.17

$42,227.11

$29,973.86

$402,559.89

$1,197,164.59

$29,598.53

$24,894.14

$41,110.67

$25,523.24

$32,880.11

$25,656.89

$130,983.89

$774,236.95

$12,152.07

$46,637.07

$49,855.03

$114,013.80

$82,731.73

$87,970.23

$25,591.10

$28,184.10

$88,917.78

$5,597.54

$48,081.23

$29,984.59

$84,330.90

$47,850.06

$474.25

$622.00

$2,486.70

$1,754.75

$666.30

$11,054.08

$129.20

$300.00

$1,024.49

$277.46

$1,136.99

$385.00

$746.65

$240.10

$647.81

$9,313.67

$1,796.94

Bid 1605-083Williamson County, Texas

7/21/2016 7:45 AM p. 53



866349 - 012 - 202 (5) Managed Behavioral Health 08/01/2015 $147.77 $0.00 $0.00

09/01/2015 $230.83 $0.00 $0.00

10/01/2015 $272.42 $0.00 $0.00

(5) Managed Behavioral Health Total $651.02 $0.00 $0.00

Indemnity Vision 05/01/2015 $300.00

10/01/2015 $273.46

Indemnity Vision Total $573.46

Open Acc POS 11/01/2014 7 $321.79 $0.00 $0.00

12/01/2014 7 $4,127.63 $0.00 $0.00

01/01/2015 7 $1,029.98 $0.00 $0.00

02/01/2015 7 $70,752.61 $0.00 $0.00

03/01/2015 7 $3,482.28 $0.00 $0.00

04/01/2015 7 $1,040.82 $0.00 $0.00

05/01/2015 7 $1,694.18 $0.00 $0.00

06/01/2015 6 $3,953.60 $0.00 $0.00

07/01/2015 7 $2,809.38 $0.00 $0.00

08/01/2015 7 $1,008.82 $0.00 $0.00

09/01/2015 7 $23,487.67 $0.00 $0.00

10/01/2015 7 $7,883.05 $0.00 $0.00

Open Acc POS Total 83 $121,591.81 $0.00 $0.00

Pharmacy 11/01/2014 7 $221.01 $0.00 $0.00

12/01/2014 7 $2,626.08 $0.00 $0.00

01/01/2015 7 $812.19 $0.00 $0.00

02/01/2015 7 $3,273.05 $0.00 $0.00

03/01/2015 7 $2,010.92 $0.00 $0.00

04/01/2015 7 $2,010.30 $0.00 $0.00

05/01/2015 7 $3,416.08 $0.00 $0.00

06/01/2015 6 $1,734.83 $0.00 $0.00

07/01/2015 7 $1,309.64 $0.00 $0.00

08/01/2015 7 $3,176.05 $0.00 $0.00

09/01/2015 7 $2,486.00 $0.00 $0.00

10/01/2015 7 $4,909.10 $0.00 $0.00

Pharmacy Total 83 $27,985.25 $0.00 $0.00

Control - SFX - ACCT Total 166 $150,801.54 $0.00 $0.00

866349 - 012 - 203 Open Acc POS 06/01/2015 1 $111.98 $0.00 $0.00

07/01/2015 $792.16 $0.00 $0.00

08/01/2015 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

09/01/2015 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

10/01/2015 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Open Acc POS Total 1 $904.14 $0.00 $0.00

Pharmacy 06/01/2015 1 $488.14 $0.00 $0.00

07/01/2015 $169.94 $0.00 $0.00

08/01/2015 $127.52 $0.00 $0.00

$0.00

$904.14

$488.14

$169.94

$127.52

$150,801.54

$111.98

$792.16

$0.00

$0.00

$1,734.83

$1,309.64

$3,176.05

$2,486.00

$4,909.10

$27,985.25

$2,626.08

$812.19

$3,273.05

$2,010.92

$2,010.30

$3,416.08

$1,008.82

$23,487.67

$7,883.05

$121,591.81

$221.01

$70,752.61

$3,482.28

$1,040.82

$1,694.18

$3,953.60

$2,809.38

$273.46

$573.46

$321.79

$4,127.63

$1,029.98

$147.77

$230.83

$272.42

$651.02

$300.00

Bid 1605-083Williamson County, Texas

7/21/2016 7:45 AM p. 54



09/01/2015 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Pharmacy Total 1 $785.60 $0.00 $0.00

Control - SFX - ACCT Total 2 $1,689.74 $0.00 $0.00

866349 - 013 - 301 (5) Managed Behavioral Health 12/01/2014 $244.16 $0.00 $0.00

01/01/2015 $4,631.17 $0.00 $0.00

02/01/2015 $1,314.31 $0.00 $0.00

03/01/2015 $145.58 $0.00 $0.00

04/01/2015 $5,565.30 $0.00 $0.00

05/01/2015 $6,153.15 $0.00 $0.00

06/01/2015 $6,922.43 $0.00 $0.00

07/01/2015 $1,746.58 $0.00 $0.00

08/01/2015 $2,274.64 $0.00 $0.00

09/01/2015 $1,325.01 $0.00 $0.00

10/01/2015 $1,979.96 $0.00 $0.00

(5) Managed Behavioral Health Total $32,302.29 $0.00 $0.00

Indemnity Vision 11/01/2014 $2,107.29

12/01/2014 $3,674.61

01/01/2015 $2,752.47

02/01/2015 $5,619.39

03/01/2015 $2,541.10

04/01/2015 $2,099.25

05/01/2015 $2,770.00

06/01/2015 $4,056.51

07/01/2015 $3,558.75

08/01/2015 $8,998.76

09/01/2015 $6,509.19

10/01/2015 $5,277.07

Indemnity Vision Total $49,964.39

Open Acc POS 11/01/2014 214 $30,562.84 $0.00 $0.00

12/01/2014 211 $201,684.68 $0.00 $0.00

01/01/2015 209 $99,549.82 $0.00 $0.00

02/01/2015 210 $195,335.04 $0.00 $0.00

03/01/2015 211 $430,038.97 $0.00 $0.00

04/01/2015 215 $217,624.87 $0.00 $0.00

05/01/2015 216 $187,565.88 $0.00 $0.00

06/01/2015 214 $167,874.10 $0.00 $0.00

07/01/2015 215 $310,897.98 $0.00 $0.00

08/01/2015 215 $163,619.17 $0.00 $0.00

09/01/2015 214 $189,822.14 $3,147.66 $0.00

10/01/2015 214 $208,095.23 $2,820.50 $0.00

Open Acc POS Total 2,558 $2,402,670.72 $5,968.16 $0.00

Pharmacy 11/01/2014 214 $10,218.58 $0.00 $0.00

12/01/2014 211 $57,423.96 $0.00 $0.00

01/01/2015 209 $87,053.95 $0.00 $0.00

$210,915.73

$2,408,638.88

$10,218.58

$57,423.96

$87,053.95

$217,624.87

$187,565.88

$167,874.10

$310,897.98

$163,619.17

$192,969.80

$30,562.84

$201,684.68

$99,549.82

$195,335.04

$430,038.97

$4,056.51

$3,558.75

$8,998.76

$6,509.19

$5,277.07

$49,964.39

$3,674.61

$2,752.47

$5,619.39

$2,541.10

$2,099.25

$2,770.00

$2,274.64

$1,325.01

$1,979.96

$32,302.29

$2,107.29

$1,314.31

$145.58

$5,565.30

$6,153.15

$6,922.43

$1,746.58

$0.00

$785.60

$1,689.74

$244.16

$4,631.17

Bid 1605-083Williamson County, Texas

7/21/2016 7:45 AM p. 55



02/01/2015 210 $112,100.91 $0.00 $0.00

03/01/2015 211 $38,822.83 $0.00 $0.00

04/01/2015 215 $63,017.73 $0.00 $0.00

05/01/2015 216 $61,329.61 $0.00 $0.00

06/01/2015 214 $62,433.01 $0.00 $0.00

07/01/2015 215 $67,037.52 $0.00 $0.00

08/01/2015 215 $73,939.18 $0.00 $0.00

09/01/2015 214 $100,058.97 $0.00 $0.00

10/01/2015 214 $97,683.95 $0.00 $0.00

Pharmacy Total 2,558 $831,120.20 $0.00 $0.00

Control - SFX - ACCT Total 5,116 $3,316,057.60 $5,968.16 $0.00

866349 - 013 - 302 Indemnity Vision 11/01/2014 $40.00

12/01/2014 $1,140.40

03/01/2015 $300.00

04/01/2015 $221.85

07/01/2015 $600.00

08/01/2015 $476.60

09/01/2015 $1,981.35

10/01/2015 $439.89

Indemnity Vision Total $5,200.09

Open Acc POS 11/01/2014 29 $563.38 $0.00 $0.00

12/01/2014 29 $4,517.29 $0.00 $0.00

01/01/2015 29 $912.07 $0.00 $0.00

02/01/2015 29 $4,070.72 $0.00 $0.00

03/01/2015 29 $21,299.90 $0.00 $0.00

04/01/2015 29 $4,101.86 $0.00 $0.00

05/01/2015 29 $4,670.49 $0.00 $0.00

06/01/2015 29 $5,884.18 $0.00 $0.00

07/01/2015 28 $7,162.87 $0.00 $0.00

08/01/2015 28 $10,282.18 $0.00 $0.00

09/01/2015 28 $6,025.94 $0.00 $0.00

10/01/2015 28 $20,678.76 $0.00 $0.00

Open Acc POS Total 344 $90,169.64 $0.00 $0.00

Pharmacy 11/01/2014 29 $1,761.35 $0.00 $0.00

12/01/2014 29 $9,691.52 $0.00 $0.00

01/01/2015 29 $13,641.02 $0.00 $0.00

02/01/2015 29 $22,384.65 $0.00 $0.00

03/01/2015 29 $5,091.22 $0.00 $0.00

04/01/2015 29 $16,245.32 $0.00 $0.00

05/01/2015 29 $15,462.12 $0.00 $0.00

06/01/2015 29 $10,490.95 $0.00 $0.00

07/01/2015 28 $6,703.16 $0.00 $0.00

08/01/2015 28 $22,581.70 $0.00 $0.00

09/01/2015 28 $13,394.32 $0.00 $0.00

10/01/2015 28 $16,010.94 $0.00 $0.00

$15,462.12

$10,490.95

$6,703.16

$22,581.70

$13,394.32

$16,010.94

$1,761.35

$9,691.52

$13,641.02

$22,384.65

$5,091.22

$16,245.32

$7,162.87

$10,282.18

$6,025.94

$20,678.76

$90,169.64

$912.07

$4,070.72

$21,299.90

$4,101.86

$4,670.49

$5,884.18

$1,981.35

$439.89

$5,200.09

$563.38

$4,517.29

$40.00

$1,140.40

$300.00

$221.85

$600.00

$476.60

$73,939.18

$100,058.97

$97,683.95

$831,120.20

$3,322,025.76

$112,100.91

$38,822.83

$63,017.73

$61,329.61

$62,433.01

$67,037.52

Bid 1605-083Williamson County, Texas

7/21/2016 7:45 AM p. 56



Pharmacy Total 344 $153,458.27 $0.00 $0.00

Control - SFX - ACCT Total 688 $248,828.00 $0.00 $0.00

866349 - 013 - 303 Open Acc POS 11/01/2014 1 $0.50 $0.00 $0.00

12/01/2014 1 $103.29 $0.00 $0.00

01/01/2015 1 $0.50 $0.00 $0.00

02/01/2015 1 $106.01 $0.00 $0.00

03/01/2015 1 $126.37 $0.00 $0.00

04/01/2015 1 $0.50 $0.00 $0.00

05/01/2015 1 $196.68 $0.00 $0.00

06/01/2015 1 $0.50 $0.00 $0.00

07/01/2015 1 $2.64 $0.00 $0.00

08/01/2015 1 $132.33 $0.00 $0.00

09/01/2015 1 $0.50 $0.00 $0.00

10/01/2015 1 $3,033.25 $0.00 $0.00

Open Acc POS Total 12 $3,703.07 $0.00 $0.00

Pharmacy 11/01/2014 1

12/01/2014 1 $1,321.39 $0.00 $0.00

01/01/2015 1 $221.58 $0.00 $0.00

02/01/2015 1 $78.40 $0.00 $0.00

03/01/2015 1 $152.84 $0.00 $0.00

04/01/2015 1 $586.65 $0.00 $0.00

05/01/2015 1 $691.68 $0.00 $0.00

06/01/2015 1 -$12.97 $0.00 $0.00

07/01/2015 1 $477.70 $0.00 $0.00

08/01/2015 1 $640.44 $0.00 $0.00

09/01/2015 1 $124.60 $0.00 $0.00

10/01/2015 1 $1,587.05 $0.00 $0.00

Pharmacy Total 12 $5,869.36 $0.00 $0.00

Control - SFX - ACCT Total 24 $9,572.43 $0.00 $0.00

866349 - 020 - 401 PPO Dental 11/01/2014 892 $27,520.50

12/01/2014 885 $61,922.81

01/01/2015 883 $59,376.50

02/01/2015 883 $66,577.40

03/01/2015 877 $71,659.87

04/01/2015 876 $77,023.05

05/01/2015 872 $47,509.64

06/01/2015 860 $69,433.54

07/01/2015 861 $59,074.29

08/01/2015 856 $55,115.99

09/01/2015 858 $64,659.69

10/01/2015 858 $53,383.57

PPO Dental Total 10,461 $713,256.85

Control - SFX - ACCT Total 10,461 $713,256.85

866349 - 020 - 402 11/01/2014 69 $393.60

$64,659.69

$53,383.57

$713,256.85

$713,256.85

$393.60

$71,659.87

$77,023.05

$47,509.64

$69,433.54

$59,074.29

$55,115.99

$9,572.43

$27,520.50

$61,922.81

$59,376.50

$66,577.40

-$12.97

$477.70

$640.44

$124.60

$1,587.05

$5,869.36

$1,321.39

$221.58

$78.40

$152.84

$586.65

$691.68

$132.33

$0.50

$3,033.25

$3,703.07

$106.01

$126.37

$0.50

$196.68

$0.50

$2.64

$153,458.27

$248,828.00

$0.50

$103.29

$0.50

Bid 1605-083Williamson County, Texas

7/21/2016 7:45 AM p. 57



12/01/2014 69 $1,490.60

01/01/2015 70 $1,287.50

02/01/2015 70 $5,514.20

03/01/2015 72 $5,277.95

04/01/2015 71 $3,471.25

05/01/2015 71 $3,961.12

06/01/2015 72 $2,549.80

07/01/2015 71 $1,751.42

08/01/2015 70 $4,139.37

09/01/2015 68 $9,442.55

10/01/2015 68 $3,366.80

PPO Dental Total 841 $42,646.16

Control - SFX - ACCT Total 841 $42,646.16

866349 - 020 - 403 11/01/2014 1

12/01/2014 1

01/01/2015 1

02/01/2015 1

03/01/2015 1

04/01/2015 1

05/01/2015 1

06/01/2015 2

07/01/2015 1

08/01/2015 1

09/01/2015 1

10/01/2015 1

PPO Dental Total 13

Control - SFX - ACCT Total 13

866349 - 021 - 501 11/01/2014 309 $2,518.90

12/01/2014 306 $7,155.20

01/01/2015 303 $6,588.40

02/01/2015 305 $8,010.40

03/01/2015 307 $14,020.70

04/01/2015 316 $6,445.40

05/01/2015 319 $12,119.50

06/01/2015 318 $8,394.40

07/01/2015 313 $12,942.67

08/01/2015 315 $11,731.10

09/01/2015 327 $13,847.30

10/01/2015 327 $8,665.10

PPO Dental Total 3,765 $112,439.07

Control - SFX - ACCT Total 3,765 $112,439.07

866349 - 021 - 502 11/01/2014 10 $367.40

12/01/2014 10

01/01/2015 10 $420.60

02/01/2015 10 $117.90

$112,439.07

$367.40

$420.60

$117.90

$8,394.40

$12,942.67

$11,731.10

$13,847.30

$8,665.10

$112,439.07

$7,155.20

$6,588.40

$8,010.40

$14,020.70

$6,445.40

$12,119.50

$2,518.90

$42,646.16

$2,549.80

$1,751.42

$4,139.37

$9,442.55

$3,366.80

$42,646.16

$1,490.60

$1,287.50

$5,514.20

$5,277.95

$3,471.25

$3,961.12

Bid 1605-083Williamson County, Texas

7/21/2016 7:45 AM p. 58



03/01/2015 10 $86.40

04/01/2015 10 $717.10

05/01/2015 10 $248.00

06/01/2015 10

07/01/2015 11 $961.60

08/01/2015 11 $312.80

09/01/2015 11 $246.70

10/01/2015 11 $848.80

PPO Dental Total 124 $4,327.30

Control - SFX - ACCT Total 124 $4,327.30

866349 - 021 - 503 12/01/2014 1

01/01/2015 1

02/01/2015 1

03/01/2015 1 $391.00

PPO Dental Total 4 $391.00

Control - SFX - ACCT Total 4 $391.00

866349 - 022 - 601 Open Acc EPO 11/01/2014 1

12/01/2014 1

01/01/2015 1

02/01/2015 1

03/01/2015 1

04/01/2015 1

05/01/2015 1

06/01/2015 1 $51,878.90 $0.00 $0.00

07/01/2015 1 $7,712.74 $0.00 $0.00

08/01/2015 1 $6,728.50 $0.00 $0.00

09/01/2015 1 $409.00 $0.00 $0.00

10/01/2015 1 $2,886.42 $0.00 $0.00

Open Acc EPO Total 12 $69,615.56 $0.00 $0.00

Pharmacy 11/01/2014 1

12/01/2014 1

01/01/2015 1

02/01/2015 1

03/01/2015 1

04/01/2015 1

05/01/2015 1

06/01/2015 1 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

07/01/2015 1 $902.04 $0.00 $0.00

08/01/2015 1 $6,787.78 $0.00 $0.00

09/01/2015 1 $205.10 $0.00 $0.00

10/01/2015 1 $6,266.65 $0.00 $0.00

Pharmacy Total 12 $14,161.57 $0.00 $0.00

Control - SFX - ACCT Total 24 $83,777.13 $0.00 $0.00

866349 - 022 - 602 (5) Managed Behavioral Health 10/01/2015 $180.00 $0.00 $0.00

$205.10

$6,266.65

$14,161.57

$83,777.13

$180.00

$0.00

$902.04

$6,787.78

$69,615.56

$51,878.90

$7,712.74

$6,728.50

$409.00

$2,886.42

$391.00

$391.00

$391.00

$246.70

$848.80

$4,327.30

$4,327.30

$86.40

$717.10

$248.00

$961.60

$312.80

Bid 1605-083Williamson County, Texas

7/21/2016 7:45 AM p. 59



(5) Managed Behavioral Health Total $180.00 $0.00 $0.00

Open Acc EPO 07/01/2015 $680,929.71 $0.00 $0.00

Open Acc EPO Total $680,929.71 $0.00 $0.00

Open Acc POS 11/01/2014 1

12/01/2014 1

01/01/2015 1

02/01/2015 1

03/01/2015 1

04/01/2015 1

05/01/2015 1

06/01/2015 1 $509.54 $0.00 $0.00

07/01/2015 1 $3,109.48 $0.00 $0.00

08/01/2015 1 $1,468.84 $0.00 $0.00

09/01/2015 1 $2.00 $0.00 $0.00

10/01/2015 1 $2,023.30 $0.00 $0.00

Open Acc POS Total 12 $7,113.16 $0.00 $0.00

Pharmacy 11/01/2014 1

12/01/2014 1

01/01/2015 1

02/01/2015 1

03/01/2015 1

04/01/2015 1

05/01/2015 1

06/01/2015 1 $3.00 $0.00 $0.00

07/01/2015 1 $2,621.49 $0.00 $0.00

08/01/2015 1 $3,936.16 $0.00 $0.00

09/01/2015 1 $69.06 $0.00 $0.00

10/01/2015 1 $80.91 $0.00 $0.00

Pharmacy Total 12 $6,710.62 $0.00 $0.00

Control - SFX - ACCT Total 24 $694,933.49 $0.00 $0.00

866349 - 022 - 603 Indemnity Vision 06/01/2015 $300.00

09/01/2015 $191.49

Indemnity Vision Total $491.49

Open Acc POS 11/01/2014 1

12/01/2014 1

01/01/2015 1

02/01/2015 1

03/01/2015 1

04/01/2015 1

05/01/2015 1

06/01/2015 1 $9,248.62 $0.00 $0.00

07/01/2015 1 $8,046.55 $0.00 $0.00

08/01/2015 1 $1,839.29 $0.00 $0.00

$9,248.62

$8,046.55

$1,839.29

$491.49

$80.91

$6,710.62

$694,933.49

$300.00

$191.49

$3.00

$2,621.49

$3,936.16

$69.06

$509.54

$3,109.48

$1,468.84

$2.00

$2,023.30

$7,113.16

$180.00

$680,929.71

$680,929.71

Bid 1605-083Williamson County, Texas

7/21/2016 7:45 AM p. 60



09/01/2015 1 $1,251.91 $0.00 $0.00

10/01/2015 1 $811.60 $0.00 $0.00

Open Acc POS Total 12 $21,197.97 $0.00 $0.00

Pharmacy 11/01/2014 1

12/01/2014 1

01/01/2015 1

02/01/2015 1

03/01/2015 1

04/01/2015 1

05/01/2015 1

06/01/2015 1 $2,059.41 $0.00 $0.00

07/01/2015 1 $860.92 $0.00 $0.00

08/01/2015 1 $6,283.03 $0.00 $0.00

09/01/2015 1 $2,392.61 $0.00 $0.00

10/01/2015 1 $1,933.74 $0.00 $0.00

Pharmacy Total 12 $13,529.71 $0.00 $0.00

Control - SFX - ACCT Total 24 $35,219.17 $0.00 $0.00

Grand Total $14,003,534.78 $101,003.40 $0.00

$35,219.17

$14,104,538.18

(1) Due to timing, current month lives are NOT available and therefore the prior month's lives are used for both months.  Estimated Employee counts are unedited and exclude retroactive changes.  

Audited counts will be used for accounting results.

(2) If applicable, claims displayed include charges for the National Advantage Program, Value-Based Pricing and/or specific buy-up program fees/ad hoc service charges that are billed through the 

claim wire. The monthly Claim Detail Report is available to identify specific claim wire billed fees/charges.

(3), (4) Stop Loss claim values (including 0.00) display only if applicable. Absence of values in a Stop Loss column indicates that arrangement is not in effect. Stop Loss claims may be greater 

than displayed if subject to a year end reconciliation.

(5) Managed Behavioral Health lives are assumed to equal the medical on the same account.  This may or may not be representative of your plan.

$860.92

$6,283.03

$2,392.61

$1,933.74

$13,529.71

$2,059.41

$1,251.91

$811.60

$21,197.97

Bid 1605-083Williamson County, Texas

7/21/2016 7:45 AM p. 61



Medical Medical Medical Medical

ACO High ACO Low POS High POS Low Total

12 Nov-14 $14,513 $75,829 $20,089 $45,254 $155,685

Dec-14 $107,255 $324,714 $101,601 $279,801 $813,371

Jan-15 $100,301 $276,640 $81,683 $206,010 $664,634

Feb-15 $224,720 $491,133 $191,506 $335,390 $1,242,749

Mar-15 $382,596 $777,641 $78,456 $495,677 $1,734,370

Apr-15 $250,074 $565,189 $158,179 $307,143 $1,280,585

May-15 $408,477 $451,599 $114,393 $278,838 $1,253,307

Jun-15 $383,072 $601,633 $127,771 $257,648 $1,370,124

Jul-15 $84,346 $553,492 $141,365 $398,188 $1,177,391

Aug-15 $136,172 $601,206 $77,930 $282,945 $1,098,253

Sep-15 $105,586 $533,320 $163,795 $322,389 $1,125,090

Oct-15 $191,850 $572,845 $187,507 $354,786 $1,306,988

Total $2,388,962 $5,825,241 $1,444,275 $3,564,069 $13,222,547

 Avg. Emps 147                950                 71                    244                 1,412            

Avg cost $1,354 $511 $1,695 $1,217 $780

per emp / mo

Avg. Funding $1,160 $938 $1,362 $1,283 $1,042

(Included Fixed Costs)

Medical Medical Medical Medical

Active Retirees COBRA Total

Nov-14 $148,622 $7,061 $2 $155,685

Dec-14 $738,066 $69,558 $5,747 $813,371

Jan-15 $589,585 $72,050 $2,999 $664,634

Feb-15 $1,055,663 $182,514 $4,572 $1,242,749

Mar-15 $1,605,307 $107,917 $21,146 $1,734,370

Apr-15 $1,200,705 $47,751 $32,129 $1,280,585

May-15 $1,178,527 $72,133 $2,647 $1,253,307

Jun-15 $1,274,229 $95,223 $672 $1,370,124

Jul-15 $1,101,543 $73,503 $2,345 $1,177,391

Aug-15 $991,049 $106,304 $900 $1,098,253

Sep-15 $993,612 $122,883 $8,595 $1,125,090

Oct-15 $1,167,814 $134,554 $4,620 $1,306,988

Total $12,044,722 $1,091,451 $86,374 $13,222,547

Emps 1319 91 2 1412

Aetna Medical Claims by plan, active /retiree / COBRA

Bid 1605-083Williamson County, Texas

7/21/2016 7:45 AM p. 62



Avg cost $761 $999 $3,599 $780

per emp / mo

Medical Medical Medical Medical

ACO High ACO Low POS High POS Low Total

$1,354 $511 $1,695 $1,217 $780

Average monthly cost by per employee from 11/1/14

Bid 1605-083Williamson County, Texas

7/21/2016 7:45 AM p. 63



Administration

Medical Medical Medical Medical Emps $51.45 $47.90 $71.63

ACO High ACO Low POS High POS Low Total ACO POS Total ACO POS Tot. Admin Stop Loss

7 Nov-15 $90,339 $561,789 $83,769 $277,188 $1,013,085 Nov-15 1057 323 1380 $54,383 $15,472 $69,855 $98,849

Dec-15 $22,621 $543,088 $47,010 $415,548 $1,028,267 Dec-15 1058 323 1381 $54,434 $15,472 $69,906 $98,921

Jan-16 $10,368 $544,073 $2,998 $386,661 $944,100 Jan-16 1067 322 1389 $54,897 $15,424 $70,321 $99,494

Feb-16 $2,025 $725,117 -$53,985 $918,580 $1,591,737 Feb-16 1070 323 1393 $55,052 $15,472 $70,524 $99,781

Mar-16 -$15,233 $931,290 -$2,476 $621,615 $1,535,196 Mar-16 1070 323 1393 $55,052 $15,472 $70,524 $99,781

Apr-16 $2,991 $989,893 $1,049 $457,029 $1,450,962 Apr-16 1066 322 1388 $54,846 $15,424 $70,270 $99,422

May-16 $1,289 $941,377 -$488 $404,516 $1,346,694 May-16 1079 322 1401 $55,515 $15,424 $70,939 $100,354

Jun-16 $0 Jun-16 0 0 0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Jul-16 $0 Jul-16 0 0 0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Aug-16 $0 Aug-16 0 0 0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Sep-16 $0 Sep-16 0 0 0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Oct-16 $0 Oct-16 0 0 0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Total $114,400 $5,236,627 $77,877 $3,481,137 $8,910,041 Totsl 7467 2258 9725 $384,179 $108,160 $492,339 $696,602

 Avg. Emps -                1,065              -                  322                 1,387           

Avg cost NA $702 NA $1,544 $918

per emp / mo

Avg. Funding NA $919 NA $1,291 $1,042

(Included Fixed Costs)

Medical Medical Medical Medical

Active Retirees COBRA Total

Nov-15 $871,293 $141,174 $618 $1,013,085

Dec-15 $893,018 $134,249 $1,000 $1,028,267

Jan-16 $836,239 $105,780 $2,081 $944,100

Feb-16 $1,501,309 $90,361 $67 $1,591,737

Mar-16 $1,434,255 $100,831 $110 $1,535,196

Apr-16 $1,298,272 $152,240 $450 $1,450,962

May-16 $1,228,023 $117,993 $678 $1,346,694

Jun-16 $0

Jul-16 $0

Aug-16 $0

Sep-16 $0

Oct-16 $0

Total $8,062,409 $842,628 $5,004 $8,910,041

Emps 1,301            86                   2                     1,389           

Avg cost $885 $1,400 $357 $916

per emp / mo

Medical Medical Medical Medical

ACO High ACO Low POS High POS Low Total

NA $702 NA $1,544 $918

Aetna Medical Claims by plan, active /retiree / COBRA

Average monthly cost by per employee from 11/1/14

Bid 1605-083Williamson County, Texas

7/21/2016 7:45 AM p. 64



November - 15 Through

Control - SFX - ACCT Total Product Month
*(1) Estimated 

Employees

 *(2) Customer 

Funded Claims

*(3) Individual Stop 

Loss Claims

 *(4)  Aggregate Stop        

Loss Claims   

866349 - 010 - 001 (5) Managed Behavioral Health 11/01/2015 0 $150.00 $0.00 $0.00

12/01/2015 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

01/01/2016 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

02/01/2016 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

03/01/2016 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

04/01/2016 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

(5) Managed Behavioral Health Total 0 $150.00 $0.00 $0.00

Indemnity Vision 11/01/2015 0 $2,556.25 $0.00 $0.00

12/01/2015 0 $105.80 $0.00 $0.00

01/01/2016 0 $33.00 $0.00 $0.00

02/01/2016 0 $184.60 $0.00 $0.00

03/01/2016 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

04/01/2016 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Indemnity Vision Total 0 $2,879.65 $0.00 $0.00

Open Acc EPO 11/01/2015 0 $50,288.38 $0.00 $0.00

12/01/2015 0 $21,464.05 $0.00 $0.00

01/01/2016 0 $10,335.10 $0.00 $0.00

02/01/2016 0 $732.67 $0.00 $0.00

03/01/2016 0 -$15,252.15 $0.00 $0.00

04/01/2016 0 $2,811.06 $0.00 $0.00

Open Acc EPO Total 0 $70,379.11 $0.00 $0.00

Pharmacy 11/01/2015 0 $13,895.64 $0.00 $0.00

12/01/2015 0 $109.94 $0.00 $0.00

01/01/2016 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

02/01/2016 0 $538.13 $0.00 $0.00

03/01/2016 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

04/01/2016 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Pharmacy Total 0 $14,543.71 $0.00 $0.00

Control - SFX - ACCT Total 0 $87,952.47 $0.00 $0.00

866349 - 010 - 002 Indemnity Vision 11/01/2015 0 $516.00 $0.00 $0.00

12/01/2015 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

01/01/2016 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

02/01/2016 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

03/01/2016 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

04/01/2016 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Indemnity Vision Total 0 $516.00 $0.00 $0.00

$0.00

$516.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$14,543.71

$87,952.47

$516.00

$0.00

$538.13

$0.00

$0.00

$70,379.11

$13,895.64

$109.94

$10,335.10

$732.67

-$15,252.15

$2,811.06

$2,879.65

$50,288.38

$21,464.05

$33.00

$184.60

$0.00

$0.00

$150.00

$2,556.25

$105.80

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

Total Claims

$150.00

$0.00

SELF FUNDED MONTHLY CLAIMS REPORT

WILLIAMSON COUNTY 

Customer Number 866349 April - 16

$0.00

Bid 1605-083Williamson County, Texas

7/21/2016 7:45 AM p. 65



Open Acc EPO 11/01/2015 0 $17,506.10 $0.00 $0.00

12/01/2015 0 $940.67 $0.00 $0.00

01/01/2016 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

02/01/2016 0 $481.30 $0.00 $0.00

03/01/2016 0 $19.22 $0.00 $0.00

04/01/2016 0 $180.21 $0.00 $0.00

Open Acc EPO Total 0 $19,127.50 $0.00 $0.00

Pharmacy 11/01/2015 0 $4,686.51 $0.00 $0.00

12/01/2015 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

01/01/2016 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

02/01/2016 0 $88.92 $0.00 $0.00

03/01/2016 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

04/01/2016 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Pharmacy Total 0 $4,775.43 $0.00 $0.00

Control - SFX - ACCT Total 0 $24,418.93 $0.00 $0.00

866349 - 010 - 997 Pharmacy 11/01/2015 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

12/01/2015 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

01/01/2016 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

02/01/2016 0 -$14,989.06 $0.00 $0.00

03/01/2016 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

04/01/2016 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Pharmacy Total 0 -$14,989.06 $0.00 $0.00

Control - SFX - ACCT Total 0 -$14,989.06 $0.00 $0.00

866349 - 011 - 101 (5) Managed Behavioral Health 11/01/2015 0 $5,876.32 $0.00 $0.00

12/01/2015 0 $1,098.47 $0.00 $0.00

01/01/2016 0 $4,385.11 $0.00 $0.00

02/01/2016 0 $11,683.07 $0.00 $0.00

03/01/2016 0 $3,387.98 $0.00 $0.00

04/01/2016 0 $8,602.66 $0.00 $0.00

(5) Managed Behavioral Health Total 0 $35,033.61 $0.00 $0.00

Indemnity Vision 11/01/2015 0 $29,108.59 $0.00 $0.00

12/01/2015 0 $18,535.81 $0.00 $0.00

01/01/2016 0 $10,741.25 $0.00 $0.00

02/01/2016 0 $26,463.84 $0.00 $0.00

03/01/2016 0 $20,781.51 $0.00 $0.00

04/01/2016 0 $10,872.39 $0.00 $0.00

Indemnity Vision Total 0 $116,503.39 $0.00 $0.00

Open Acc EPO 11/01/2015 1,002 $273,470.76 $0.00 $0.00

12/01/2015 1,003 $297,955.15 $0.00 $0.00

01/01/2016 1,015 $254,109.77 $0.00 $0.00

02/01/2016 1,017 $420,909.36 $0.00 $0.00

03/01/2016 1,014 $594,053.83 $0.00 $0.00

04/01/2016 1,014 $621,693.99 $5,239.48 $0.00

$420,909.36

$594,053.83

$626,933.47

$273,470.76

$297,955.15

$254,109.77

$26,463.84

$20,781.51

$10,872.39

$116,503.39

$29,108.59

$18,535.81

$10,741.25

$11,683.07

$3,387.98

$8,602.66

$35,033.61

-$14,989.06

$5,876.32

$1,098.47

$4,385.11

$0.00

$0.00

-$14,989.06

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

-$14,989.06

$0.00

$4,775.43

$24,418.93

$0.00

$0.00

$88.92

$0.00

$180.21

$19,127.50

$4,686.51

$940.67

$0.00

$481.30

$19.22

$17,506.10
Bid 1605-083Williamson County, Texas

7/21/2016 7:45 AM p. 66



Open Acc EPO Total 6,065 $2,462,192.86 $5,239.48 $0.00

Pharmacy 11/01/2015 1,002 $177,981.75 $0.00 $0.00

12/01/2015 1,003 $157,559.43 $0.00 $0.00

01/01/2016 1,015 $202,560.08 $0.00 $0.00

02/01/2016 1,017 $202,110.57 $0.00 $0.00

03/01/2016 1,014 $245,069.67 $0.00 $0.00

04/01/2016 1,014 $224,169.26 $245.32 $0.00

Pharmacy Total 6,065 $1,209,450.76 $245.32 $0.00

Control - SFX - ACCT Total 12,130 $3,823,180.62 $5,484.80 $0.00

866349 - 011 - 102 (5) Managed Behavioral Health 11/01/2015 0 $265.01 $0.00 $0.00

12/01/2015 0 $9,897.70 $0.00 $0.00

01/01/2016 0 $8,483.50 $0.00 $0.00

02/01/2016 0 $84.87 $0.00 $0.00

03/01/2016 0 $877.12 $0.00 $0.00

04/01/2016 0 $1,253.34 $0.00 $0.00

(5) Managed Behavioral Health Total 0 $20,861.54 $0.00 $0.00

Indemnity Vision 11/01/2015 0 $1,924.60 $0.00 $0.00

12/01/2015 0 $1,036.00 $0.00 $0.00

01/01/2016 0 $810.00 $0.00 $0.00

02/01/2016 0 $1,436.00 $0.00 $0.00

03/01/2016 0 $49.60 $0.00 $0.00

04/01/2016 0 $300.00 $0.00 $0.00

Indemnity Vision Total 0 $5,556.20 $0.00 $0.00

Open Acc EPO 11/01/2015 53 $55,969.57 $0.00 $0.00

12/01/2015 51 $39,706.71 $0.00 $0.00

01/01/2016 51 $40,656.61 $0.00 $0.00

02/01/2016 51 $44,357.37 $0.00 $0.00

03/01/2016 50 $33,630.96 $0.00 $0.00

04/01/2016 50 $85,681.25 $0.00 $0.00

Open Acc EPO Total 306 $300,002.47 $0.00 $0.00

Pharmacy 11/01/2015 53 $16,950.60 $0.00 $0.00

12/01/2015 51 $17,297.60 $0.00 $0.00

01/01/2016 51 $22,287.24 $0.00 $0.00

02/01/2016 51 $18,070.85 $0.00 $0.00

03/01/2016 50 $33,328.29 $0.00 $0.00

04/01/2016 50 $31,386.33 $0.00 $0.00

Pharmacy Total 306 $139,320.91 $0.00 $0.00

Control - SFX - ACCT Total 612 $465,741.12 $0.00 $0.00

866349 - 011 - 103 Open Acc EPO 11/01/2015 0 $240.00 $0.00 $0.00

12/01/2015 1 $0.50 $0.00 $0.00

01/01/2016 1 $38.87 $0.00 $0.00

02/01/2016 2 $1.00 $0.00 $0.00

$0.50

$38.87

$1.00

$139,320.91

$465,741.12

$240.00

$22,287.24

$18,070.85

$33,328.29

$31,386.33

$300,002.47

$16,950.60

$17,297.60

$40,656.61

$44,357.37

$33,630.96

$85,681.25

$5,556.20

$55,969.57

$39,706.71

$810.00

$1,436.00

$49.60

$300.00

$20,861.54

$1,924.60

$1,036.00

$8,483.50

$84.87

$877.12

$1,253.34

$3,828,665.42

$265.01

$9,897.70

$202,110.57

$245,069.67

$224,414.58

$1,209,696.08

$177,981.75

$157,559.43

$202,560.08

$2,467,432.34
Bid 1605-083Williamson County, Texas

7/21/2016 7:45 AM p. 67



03/01/2016 2 $1.00 $0.00 $0.00

04/01/2016 2 $289.66 $0.00 $0.00

Open Acc EPO Total 8 $571.03 $0.00 $0.00

Pharmacy 11/01/2015 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

12/01/2015 1 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

01/01/2016 1 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

02/01/2016 2 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

03/01/2016 2 $109.54 $0.00 $0.00

04/01/2016 2 $160.56 $0.00 $0.00

Pharmacy Total 8 $270.10 $0.00 $0.00

Control - SFX - ACCT Total 16 $841.13 $0.00 $0.00

866349 - 012 - 201 (5) Managed Behavioral Health 11/01/2015 0 $1,035.30 $0.00 $0.00

12/01/2015 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

01/01/2016 0 $0.80 $0.00 $0.00

02/01/2016 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

03/01/2016 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

04/01/2016 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

(5) Managed Behavioral Health Total 0 $1,036.10 $0.00 $0.00

Indemnity Vision 11/01/2015 0 $693.03 $0.00 $0.00

12/01/2015 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

01/01/2016 0 $9.00 $0.00 $0.00

02/01/2016 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

03/01/2016 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

04/01/2016 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Indemnity Vision Total 0 $702.03 $0.00 $0.00

Open Acc POS 11/01/2015 0 $46,849.97 $0.00 $0.00

12/01/2015 0 $47,018.76 $0.00 $0.00

01/01/2016 0 $2,196.71 $0.00 $0.00

02/01/2016 0 -$54,975.60 $0.00 $0.00

03/01/2016 0 -$2,965.52 $0.00 $0.00

04/01/2016 0 $1,049.33 $0.00 $0.00

Open Acc POS Total 0 $39,173.65 $0.00 $0.00

Pharmacy 11/01/2015 0 $21,977.40 $0.00 $0.00

12/01/2015 0 -$18.90 $0.00 $0.00

01/01/2016 0 $890.90 $0.00 $0.00

02/01/2016 0 $1,020.11 $0.00 $0.00

03/01/2016 0 $449.42 $0.00 $0.00

04/01/2016 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Pharmacy Total 0 $24,318.93 $0.00 $0.00

Control - SFX - ACCT Total 0 $65,230.71 $0.00 $0.00

866349 - 012 - 202 Indemnity Vision 11/01/2015 0 $215.00 $0.00 $0.00

12/01/2015 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

$65,230.71

$215.00

$0.00

$449.42

$0.00

$24,318.93

$21,977.40

-$18.90

$890.90

$1,020.11

-$2,965.52

$1,049.33

$39,173.65

$46,849.97

$47,018.76

$2,196.71

-$54,975.60

$0.00

$0.00

$702.03

$693.03

$0.00

$9.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$1,036.10

$1,035.30

$0.00

$0.80

$0.00

$160.56

$270.10

$841.13

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$109.54

$289.66

$571.03

$0.00

$1.00
Bid 1605-083Williamson County, Texas

7/21/2016 7:45 AM p. 68



01/01/2016 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

02/01/2016 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

03/01/2016 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

04/01/2016 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Indemnity Vision Total 0 $215.00 $0.00 $0.00

Open Acc POS 11/01/2015 0 $3,546.37 $0.00 $0.00

12/01/2015 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

01/01/2016 0 -$296.68 $0.00 $0.00

02/01/2016 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

03/01/2016 0 $39.71 $0.00 $0.00

04/01/2016 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Open Acc POS Total 0 $3,289.40 $0.00 $0.00

Pharmacy 11/01/2015 0 $505.58 $0.00 $0.00

12/01/2015 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

01/01/2016 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

02/01/2016 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

03/01/2016 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

04/01/2016 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Pharmacy Total 0 $505.58 $0.00 $0.00

Control - SFX - ACCT Total 0 $4,009.98 $0.00 $0.00

866349 - 012 - 203 Open Acc POS 11/01/2015 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

12/01/2015 0 -$11.56 $0.00 $0.00

01/01/2016 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

02/01/2016 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

03/01/2016 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

04/01/2016 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Open Acc POS Total 0 -$11.56 $0.00 $0.00

Pharmacy 11/01/2015 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

12/01/2015 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

01/01/2016 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

02/01/2016 0 $5.60 $0.00 $0.00

03/01/2016 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

04/01/2016 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Pharmacy Total 0 $5.60 $0.00 $0.00

Control - SFX - ACCT Total 0 -$5.96 $0.00 $0.00

866349 - 013 - 301 (5) Managed Behavioral Health 11/01/2015 0 $1,164.72 $0.00 $0.00

12/01/2015 0 $3,595.75 $0.00 $0.00

01/01/2016 0 $1,021.79 $0.00 $0.00

02/01/2016 0 $1,380.76 $0.00 $0.00

03/01/2016 0 $914.99 $0.00 $0.00

04/01/2016 0 $4,127.78 $0.00 $0.00

(5) Managed Behavioral Health Total 0 $12,205.79 $0.00 $0.00

$4,127.78

$12,205.79

$3,595.75

$1,021.79

$1,380.76

$914.99

$5.60

-$5.96

$1,164.72

$0.00

$5.60

$0.00

$0.00

-$11.56

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$4,009.98

$0.00

-$11.56

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$505.58

$505.58

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$39.71

$0.00

$3,289.40

$3,546.37

$0.00

-$296.68

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$215.00

$0.00
Bid 1605-083Williamson County, Texas

7/21/2016 7:45 AM p. 69



Indemnity Vision 11/01/2015 0 $5,488.03 $0.00 $0.00

12/01/2015 0 $5,138.31 $0.00 $0.00

01/01/2016 0 $2,027.25 $0.00 $0.00

02/01/2016 0 $11,778.68 $0.00 $0.00

03/01/2016 0 $6,380.38 $0.00 $0.00

04/01/2016 0 $3,472.00 $0.00 $0.00

Indemnity Vision Total 0 $34,284.65 $0.00 $0.00

Open Acc POS 11/01/2015 286 $158,853.73 $0.00 $0.00

12/01/2015 287 $255,147.16 $0.00 $0.00

01/01/2016 287 $227,692.58 $0.00 $0.00

02/01/2016 288 $788,811.83 $5,759.89 $0.00

03/01/2016 287 $447,477.61 $6,563.40 $0.00

04/01/2016 287 $286,180.72 $1,226.55 $0.00

Open Acc POS Total 1,722 $2,164,163.63 $13,549.84 $0.00

Pharmacy 11/01/2015 286 $72,215.65 $0.00 $0.00

12/01/2015 287 $85,287.25 $0.00 $0.00

01/01/2016 287 $120,037.63 $0.00 $0.00

02/01/2016 288 $84,731.62 $214.86 $0.00

03/01/2016 287 $126,681.54 $711.57 $0.00

04/01/2016 287 $128,005.60 $576.39 $0.00

Pharmacy Total 1,722 $616,959.29 $1,502.82 $0.00

Control - SFX - ACCT Total 3,444 $2,827,613.36 $15,052.66 $0.00

866349 - 013 - 302 (5) Managed Behavioral Health 11/01/2015 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

12/01/2015 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

01/01/2016 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

02/01/2016 0 $54.17 $0.00 $0.00

03/01/2016 0 $227.42 $0.00 $0.00

04/01/2016 0 $161.66 $0.00 $0.00

(5) Managed Behavioral Health Total 0 $443.25 $0.00 $0.00

Indemnity Vision 11/01/2015 0 $1,188.00 $0.00 $0.00

12/01/2015 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

01/01/2016 0 $300.00 $0.00 $0.00

02/01/2016 0 $600.00 $0.00 $0.00

03/01/2016 0 $1,036.00 $0.00 $0.00

04/01/2016 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Indemnity Vision Total 0 $3,124.00 $0.00 $0.00

Open Acc POS 11/01/2015 36 $19,071.18 $0.00 $0.00

12/01/2015 35 $52,365.91 $0.00 $0.00

01/01/2016 35 $5,140.67 $0.00 $0.00

02/01/2016 35 $5,412.46 $0.00 $0.00

03/01/2016 35 $12,344.78 $0.00 $0.00

04/01/2016 35 $11,964.67 $0.00 $0.00

Open Acc POS Total 211 $106,299.67 $0.00 $0.00

$12,344.78

$11,964.67

$106,299.67

$19,071.18

$52,365.91

$5,140.67

$5,412.46

$1,036.00

$0.00

$3,124.00

$1,188.00

$0.00

$300.00

$600.00

$227.42

$161.66

$443.25

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$54.17

$128,581.99

$618,462.11

$2,842,666.02

$85,287.25

$120,037.63

$84,946.48

$127,393.11

$287,407.27

$2,177,713.47

$72,215.65

$255,147.16

$227,692.58

$794,571.72

$454,041.01

$3,472.00

$34,284.65

$158,853.73

$5,138.31

$2,027.25

$11,778.68

$6,380.38

$5,488.03
Bid 1605-083Williamson County, Texas

7/21/2016 7:45 AM p. 70



Pharmacy 11/01/2015 36 $18,828.11 $0.00 $0.00

12/01/2015 35 $13,003.30 $0.00 $0.00

01/01/2016 35 $28,397.35 $0.00 $0.00

02/01/2016 35 $19,777.22 $0.00 $0.00

03/01/2016 35 $19,277.74 $0.00 $0.00

04/01/2016 35 $21,313.16 $0.00 $0.00

Pharmacy Total 211 $120,596.88 $0.00 $0.00

Control - SFX - ACCT Total 422 $230,463.80 $0.00 $0.00

866349 - 013 - 303 Open Acc POS 11/01/2015 1 $156.45 $0.00 $0.00

12/01/2015 1 $114.15 $0.00 $0.00

01/01/2016 0 $2,041.89 $0.00 $0.00

02/01/2016 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

03/01/2016 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

04/01/2016 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Open Acc POS Total 2 $2,312.49 $0.00 $0.00

Pharmacy 11/01/2015 1 $221.58 $0.00 $0.00

12/01/2015 1 $896.61 $0.00 $0.00

01/01/2016 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

02/01/2016 0 $60.00 $0.00 $0.00

03/01/2016 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

04/01/2016 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Pharmacy Total 2 $1,178.19 $0.00 $0.00

Control - SFX - ACCT Total 4 $3,490.68 $0.00 $0.00

866349 - 020 - 401 PPO Dental 11/01/2015 896 $68,088.96 $0.00 $0.00

12/01/2015 897 $71,191.68 $0.00 $0.00

01/01/2016 901 $69,409.33 $0.00 $0.00

02/01/2016 902 $65,772.02 $0.00 $0.00

03/01/2016 901 $55,268.75 $0.00 $0.00

04/01/2016 901 $6,626.10 $0.00 $0.00

PPO Dental Total 5,398 $336,356.84 $0.00 $0.00

Control - SFX - ACCT Total 5,398 $336,356.84 $0.00 $0.00

866349 - 020 - 402 PPO Dental 11/01/2015 67 $5,661.57 $0.00 $0.00

12/01/2015 65 $4,826.30 $0.00 $0.00

01/01/2016 65 $2,226.74 $0.00 $0.00

02/01/2016 64 $2,588.92 $0.00 $0.00

03/01/2016 63 $2,976.81 $0.00 $0.00

04/01/2016 63 $793.80 $0.00 $0.00

PPO Dental Total 387 $19,074.14 $0.00 $0.00

Control - SFX - ACCT Total 387 $19,074.14 $0.00 $0.00

866349 - 021 - 501 PPO Dental 11/01/2015 314 $11,395.10 $0.00 $0.00

12/01/2015 313 $9,997.60 $0.00 $0.00

01/01/2016 312 $8,449.80 $0.00 $0.00

$11,395.10

$9,997.60

$8,449.80

$793.80

$19,074.14

$19,074.14

$4,826.30

$2,226.74

$2,588.92

$2,976.81

$336,356.84

$336,356.84

$5,661.57

$69,409.33

$65,772.02

$55,268.75

$6,626.10

$3,490.68

$68,088.96

$71,191.68

$60.00

$0.00

$0.00

$1,178.19

$221.58

$896.61

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$2,312.49

$230,463.80

$156.45

$114.15

$2,041.89

$19,277.74

$21,313.16

$120,596.88

$18,828.11

$13,003.30

$28,397.35

$19,777.22

Bid 1605-083Williamson County, Texas

7/21/2016 7:45 AM p. 71



02/01/2016 312 $12,013.10 $0.00 $0.00

03/01/2016 307 $5,587.60 $0.00 $0.00

04/01/2016 307 $76.00 $0.00 $0.00

PPO Dental Total 1,865 $47,519.20 $0.00 $0.00

Control - SFX - ACCT Total 1,865 $47,519.20 $0.00 $0.00

866349 - 021 - 502 PPO Dental 11/01/2015 6 $74.40 $0.00 $0.00

12/01/2015 6 $67.00 $0.00 $0.00

01/01/2016 6 $861.00 $0.00 $0.00

02/01/2016 7 $120.00 $0.00 $0.00

03/01/2016 7 $158.00 $0.00 $0.00

04/01/2016 7 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

PPO Dental Total 39 $1,280.40 $0.00 $0.00

Control - SFX - ACCT Total 39 $1,280.40 $0.00 $0.00

866349 - 022 - 601 Open Acc EPO 11/01/2015 0 $6,200.80 $0.00 $0.00

12/01/2015 0 $14.11 $0.00 $0.00

01/01/2016 0 $39.19 $0.00 $0.00

02/01/2016 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

03/01/2016 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

04/01/2016 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Open Acc EPO Total 0 $6,254.10 $0.00 $0.00

Pharmacy 11/01/2015 0 $287.02 $0.00 $0.00

12/01/2015 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

01/01/2016 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

02/01/2016 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

03/01/2016 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

04/01/2016 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Pharmacy Total 0 $287.02 $0.00 $0.00

Control - SFX - ACCT Total 0 $6,541.12 $0.00 $0.00

866349 - 022 - 602 (5) Managed Behavioral Health 11/01/2015 0 $86.40 $0.00 $0.00

12/01/2015 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

01/01/2016 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

02/01/2016 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

03/01/2016 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

04/01/2016 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

(5) Managed Behavioral Health Total 0 $86.40 $0.00 $0.00

Open Acc POS 11/01/2015 0 $565.84 $0.00 $0.00

12/01/2015 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

01/01/2016 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

02/01/2016 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

03/01/2016 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

04/01/2016 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Open Acc POS Total 0 $565.84 $0.00 $0.00

$0.00

$565.84

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$86.40

$565.84

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$287.02

$6,541.12

$86.40

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$6,254.10

$287.02

$0.00

$39.19

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$1,280.40

$6,200.80

$14.11

$120.00

$158.00

$0.00

$1,280.40

$47,519.20

$74.40

$67.00

$861.00

$5,587.60

$76.00

$47,519.20

$12,013.10
Bid 1605-083Williamson County, Texas

7/21/2016 7:45 AM p. 72



Pharmacy 11/01/2015 0 $88.27 $0.00 $0.00

12/01/2015 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

01/01/2016 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

02/01/2016 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

03/01/2016 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

04/01/2016 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Pharmacy Total 0 $88.27 $0.00 $0.00

Control - SFX - ACCT Total 0 $740.51 $0.00 $0.00

866349 - 022 - 603 Indemnity Vision 11/01/2015 0 $708.51 $0.00 $0.00

12/01/2015 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

01/01/2016 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

02/01/2016 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

03/01/2016 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

04/01/2016 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Indemnity Vision Total 0 $708.51 $0.00 $0.00

Open Acc POS 11/01/2015 0 $1,089.00 $0.00 $0.00

12/01/2015 0 $7.44 $0.00 $0.00

01/01/2016 0 $157.86 $0.00 $0.00

02/01/2016 0 -$62.00 $0.00 $0.00

03/01/2016 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

04/01/2016 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Open Acc POS Total 0 $1,192.30 $0.00 $0.00

Pharmacy 11/01/2015 0 $660.99 $0.00 $0.00

12/01/2015 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

01/01/2016 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

02/01/2016 0 $26.82 $0.00 $0.00

03/01/2016 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

04/01/2016 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Pharmacy Total 0 $687.81 $0.00 $0.00

Control - SFX - ACCT Total 0 $2,588.62 $0.00 $0.00

Grand Total $7,932,048.61 $20,537.46 $0.00

(1) Due to timing, current month lives are NOT available and therefore the prior month's lives are used for both months.  Estimated Employee counts are unedited and exclude retroactive changes.  

Audited counts will be used for accounting results.

(2) If applicable, claims displayed include charges for the National Advantage Program, Value-Based Pricing and/or specific buy-up program fees/ad hoc service charges that are billed through the 

claim wire. The monthly Claim Detail Report is available to identify specific claim wire billed fees/charges.

(3), (4) Stop Loss claim values (including 0.00) display only if applicable. Absence of values in a Stop Loss column indicates that arrangement is not in effect. Stop Loss claims may be greater 

than displayed if subject to a year end reconciliation.

(5) Managed Behavioral Health lives are assumed to equal the medical on the same account.  This may or may not be representative of your plan.

$2,588.62

$7,952,586.07

$0.00

$0.00

$687.81

$660.99

$0.00

$0.00

$26.82

$0.00

$0.00

$1,192.30

$1,089.00

$7.44

$157.86

-$62.00

$0.00

$0.00

$708.51

$708.51

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$88.27

$740.51

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$88.27
Bid 1605-083Williamson County, Texas

7/21/2016 7:45 AM p. 73



55

66

Question and Answers for Bid #1605-083 - Specific & Aggregate Stop Loss Insurance 

Overall Bid Questions

There are no questions associated with this bid.   

Bid 1605-083Williamson County, Texas

7/21/2016 7:45 AM p. 74



   

Commissioners Court - Special Session   55.           
Meeting Date: 07/28/2016  

Payroll Services for Existing Temporary Labor for the Election Administration
Submitted By: Kerstin Hancock, Purchasing
Department: Purchasing
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on authorizing Purchasing Agent to advertise and receive proposals
for RFP#1606-093, Payroll Services for Existing Temporary Labor for the Election Administration.

Background

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
RFP package

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Wendy Coco 07/21/2016 10:28 AM
Form Started By: Kerstin Hancock Started On: 07/21/2016 08:59 AM
Final Approval Date: 07/21/2016 



5

6

PUBLIC ANNOUNCEMENT AND GENERAL INFORMATION

WILLIAMSON COUNTY PURCHASING DEPARTMENT

SOLICITATION

Payroll Services for existing Temporary Labor for the Elections 
Administration 

PROPOSALS MUST BE RECEIVED ON OR 
BEFORE:

Aug 16, 2016 3:00:00 PM CDT
PROPOSALS WILL BE PUBLICLY 

OPENED: 
Aug 16, 2016 3:00:00 PM CDT

Notice is hereby given that sealed Proposals for the above-mentioned goods and/or services will be accepted by
the Williamson County Purchasing Department. Williamson County uses BidSync to distribute and receive 
proposals.  Specifications for this RFP may be obtained by registering at www.bidsync.com .

Williamson County prefers and requests electronic submittal of this 
proposal.

All electronic proposals must be submitted via:  www.bidsync.com

All interested Respondents are invited to submit a Proposal in accordance with the Instructions and General 
Requirements, Proposal Format, Proposal Specifications, and Definit ions, Terms and Condit ions stated in this
RFP. 

Respondents are strongly encouraged to carefully read this entire 
RFP.

Electronic proposals are requested, however paper proposals will currently still be 

received, until further notice and may be mailed or delivered to the address listed below.

Please note that a complete package must be submitted choosing one of the above two methods. 
Split packages submitted will be considered “unresponsive” and will not be accepted or evaluated.

ü If mailed or delivered in person, Proposals and Proposal addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on 
or before the submittal deadline, as noted in the ‘Public Announcement and General Information ’ listed 
above for this RFP, to:

Williamson County Purchasing Department
Attn: PROPOSAL NAME AND NUMBER
901 South Austin Avenue 
Georgetown, Texas 78626

ü Respondents should list the Proposal Number, Proposal Name, Name and Address of 
Respondent, and the Date of the Proposal opening on the outside of the box or envelope and
note “Sealed Proposal Enclosed. ”

ü Respondent should submit one (1) original; AND one (1) CD OR (1) USB copy of the Proposal.

ü Williamson County will not accept any Proposals received after the submittal deadline,
and shall return such Proposals unopened to the Respondent.

ü Williamson County will not accept any responsibility for Proposals being delivered by third party
carriers.

ü Facsimile transmittals will NOT be accepted.

ü Proposals will be publicly opened in a manner to avoid public disclosure of contents; however, 
names of Respondents will be read aloud.

ü All submitted questions with their answers will be posted and updated on www.bidsync.com.

ü It is the Respondent ’s responsibi l ity to review all documents in BidSync including any addenda that may have been 
added after the document packet was originally released and posted.

ü Any addenda and/or other information relevant to the RFP will be posted on www.bidsync.com. 

ü The Williamson County Purchasing Department takes no responsibility to ensure any interested
Respondent has obtained any outstanding addenda or additional information. 

ü Williamson County will NOT be responsible for unmarked or improperly marked envelopes. 

Bid 1606-093Williamson County, Texas

7/21/2016 8:59 AM p. 1



5

6

PUBLIC ANNOUNCEMENT AND GENERAL INFORMATION

WILLIAMSON COUNTY PURCHASING DEPARTMENT

SOLICITATION

Payroll Services for existing Temporary Labor for the Elections 
Administration 

PROPOSALS MUST BE RECEIVED ON OR 
BEFORE:

Aug 16, 2016 3:00:00 PM CDT
PROPOSALS WILL BE PUBLICLY 

OPENED: 
Aug 16, 2016 3:00:00 PM CDT

Notice is hereby given that sealed Proposals for the above-mentioned goods and/or services will be accepted by
the Williamson County Purchasing Department. Williamson County uses BidSync to distribute and receive 
proposals.  Specifications for this RFP may be obtained by registering at www.bidsync.com .

Williamson County prefers and requests electronic submittal of this 
proposal.

All electronic proposals must be submitted via:  www.bidsync.com

All interested Respondents are invited to submit a Proposal in accordance with the Instructions and General 
Requirements, Proposal Format, Proposal Specifications, and Definit ions, Terms and Condit ions stated in this
RFP. 

Respondents are strongly encouraged to carefully read this entire 
RFP.

Electronic proposals are requested, however paper proposals will currently still be 

received, until further notice and may be mailed or delivered to the address listed below.

Please note that a complete package must be submitted choosing one of the above two methods. 
Split packages submitted will be considered “unresponsive” and will not be accepted or evaluated.

ü If mailed or delivered in person, Proposals and Proposal addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on 
or before the submittal deadline, as noted in the ‘Public Announcement and General Information ’ listed 
above for this RFP, to:

Williamson County Purchasing Department
Attn: PROPOSAL NAME AND NUMBER
901 South Austin Avenue 
Georgetown, Texas 78626

ü Respondents should list the Proposal Number, Proposal Name, Name and Address of 
Respondent, and the Date of the Proposal opening on the outside of the box or envelope and
note “Sealed Proposal Enclosed. ”

ü Respondent should submit one (1) original; AND one (1) CD OR (1) USB copy of the Proposal.

ü Williamson County will not accept any Proposals received after the submittal deadline,
and shall return such Proposals unopened to the Respondent.

ü Williamson County will not accept any responsibility for Proposals being delivered by third party
carriers.

ü Facsimile transmittals will NOT be accepted.

ü Proposals will be publicly opened in a manner to avoid public disclosure of contents; however, 
names of Respondents will be read aloud.

ü All submitted questions with their answers will be posted and updated on www.bidsync.com.

ü It is the Respondent ’s responsibi l ity to review all documents in BidSync including any addenda that may have been 
added after the document packet was originally released and posted.

ü Any addenda and/or other information relevant to the RFP will be posted on www.bidsync.com. 

ü The Williamson County Purchasing Department takes no responsibility to ensure any interested
Respondent has obtained any outstanding addenda or additional information. 

ü Williamson County will NOT be responsible for unmarked or improperly marked envelopes. 

Bid 1606-093Williamson County, Texas

7/21/2016 8:59 AM p. 2



55

66

Bid 1606-093
Payroll Services for existing Temporary Labor for the Elections Administration 

Bid Number     1606 -093 

Bid Title     Payroll Services for existing Temporary Labor for the Elections Administration  

Bid Start Date  In Held

Bid End Date  Aug 16, 2016 3:00:00 PM CDT

Question & Answer 
End Date

 Aug 10, 2016 5:00:00 PM CDT

Bid Contact     Kerstin N Hancock 

 512 -943-1546 

 khancock@wilco.org 

Contract Duration    3 years 

Contract Renewal    4 annual renewals   

Prices Good for    30 days 

Pre-Bid Conference   Aug 3, 2016 2:00:00 PM CDT
Attendance is optional
Location: Williamson County Purchasing Department 
901 S. Austin Ave. 
Georgetown, TX 78626

Bid Comments Williamson County is seeking proposals for Payroll services for existing Temporary Labor for the Williamson 
County Election Administration for early voting and Election Day positions.
All required documents must be submitted with proposal:
-Proposal Cost sheet Appendix A
-Conflict of Interest Statement
-RFP Affidavit
-Bid References
-Sample of all required new employee paperwork

Item Response Form

Item     1606-093--01-01 -  Please attach all required proposal documents to this line item

Quantity    1 each

Prices are not requested for this item. 

Delivery Location          Williamson County, Texas

No Location Specified

Qty  1 

Description
Please attach all required proposal documents to this line item:
Proposal cost sheet Appendix A
Conflict of Interest Statement
RFP Affidavit
Bid References
Sample of all required new employee paperwork 

Bid 1606-093Williamson County, Texas

7/21/2016 8:59 AM p. 3



1. PROPOSAL SPECIFICATIONS 
 
1.1 Background Information 

 
Williamson County is seeking proposals for Payroll Services for existing Temporary Labor for the Elections 
Administration for early voting and Election Day positions. The Williamson County Elections Administrator will 
provide a list of requirements and a list of qualified, experienced workers and assignment locations for these 
positions to the successful respondent.  This is an annual estimated contract. Respondent must provide payroll 
processing for the positions and assignments listed in Appendix B.  
 
 
1.2. Requirements 
 
 

1.2.1 Respondents must include the following documentation with their proposal: 
 
1.2.1.1  Actual and markup cost  percentage for each position cost per hour (please enter on cost  

proposal sheet Appendix A)  
 
1.2.1.2 Sample of all new employee paperwork to be completed on each temporary worker 

 
 

1.2.2 Minimum Requirements (Pass/Fail Requirements). Please elaborate on each item on how it 
will be facilitated/processed by your company: 
Respondent must: 
 
 
1.2.2.1 Allow and accept employee documentation within 24 hours of hire. 
 
1.2.2.2 Maintain paperwork for all employees whether assigned or not as they may be utilized at 

any time (time sheets, new hire, paperwork etc.) 
 
1.2.2.3 Physically be present at designated County locations to assist new hires with questions 

and the hiring process during training hours and central counting operations on Election 
night. 

 
1.2.2.4 Provide ability to submit and receive new hire paperwork both electronically and in paper 

form. 
 
1.2.2.5 Provide the ability to have customized payroll items, such as 

• itemized paychecks 
• list line items on pay stub as provided on a customized timesheet 
• ability to process payroll based on multiple project id’s (i.e. multiple elections 

worked) during same pay period 
 
1.2.2.6 Provide options for both direct deposit and check submittal of payment 
 
1.2.2.7 Provide reports regarding payroll information 
 
1.2.2.8 Provide the ability to verify check has or has not been cashed 
 
1.2.2.9 Provide the ability for Elections Administrator or designated representative to view/verify 

payment processing status 
 
1.2.2.10 Provide Payroll services including processing of Federal Payroll Taxes, Unemployment 

Insurance, Workers’ Compensation Insurance, (criminal background checks as 

Bid 1606-093Williamson County, Texas

7/21/2016 8:59 AM p. 4



requested) and quarter/annual tax reporting, and W2 reporting under Respondent’s tax 
id 

 
1.2.2.11 Include post payroll reports that include the actual markup cost for each position, to 

include FICA  
 

1.2.3 Preferred Requirements 
 

1.2.3.1 Verify mailing addresses on time sheets of employees prior to mailing paychecks. 
 

1.2.3.2 Respondent to receive list of approved workers/pay rates from the Elections Administrator 
or a designated representative.  

 
1.2.3.3 Employees must submit timesheets to the Elections Administrator or designated 

representative. Timesheets will be reviewed and processed by the Respondent and 
submitted for approval to the Elections Administrator or designated representative. Any 
corrections will be issued after approval by the Elections Administrator or designated 
representative. 

 
1.2.7.1 Provide ability for web-based, remote accessible portal for Elections to submit time sheets 

and payroll information to successful vendor. Within the system the Elections 
Administrator or designated representative should: 
 
• Have the ability to run reports regarding payroll information 
• Have the ability to verify check has or has not been cashed 
• Have the ability to view/verify payment processing status 

 
 
1.2.7.2 Provide representatives who are bilingual (English and Spanish) 
 
1.2.7.3 Provide comprehensive payroll services to include accumulations, tabulations and 

payment for services of completed weekly pay period. Accounting for all applicable state 
and federal taxes, to include annual required tax documents 

 
1.2.7.4 Provide existing Government references with contracts of similar size and scope. 
 
1.2.7.5 Provide all terminated clients within the past 12 months. 

 
 

1.3 Questionnaire 
 

1.3.1  What is your pay week/pay period?  
 
1.3.2  Once successful Respondent receives payroll documentation approved by Elections, how long is 

the processing period before workers are paid? 
 
1.3.2  Do you have an office within Williamson County? If not, where is your closest location? 
 
1.3.3  Elaborate on what kind of customized payroll report including gross salary and markup cost per 

project id (Election event) you can provide? 
 
1.3.4  How many years have you been in business? 
 
1.3.6 Does your company have experience with Government or Elections workers? If so, provide any 

references, contracts of similar size and scope. 
 

Bid 1606-093Williamson County, Texas

7/21/2016 8:59 AM p. 5



 
 

 

2.0   Additional Provisions 
2.1 Introduction 

The Proposal evaluation and selection process is detailed in this section, as are other factors, 
and the format in which the Price Proposal of each Proposal should be submitted. 
 

2.2 Price Proposal 
The Respondent must utilize the price sheet form provided in the Appendix A which will be attached 
to this RFP. The Price Proposal should be included in each copy of the Proposal if submitted 
in paper form. Any reworked version of the Appendix that is intended to be a substitute and that is 
provided by a Respondent may be determined as non-responsive, and may, at Williamson 
County’s sole discretion, result in the Respondent’s disqualification. 

 
2.3 Proposal Evaluation and Selection 
 

2.3.1 Evaluation/Selection Criteria 
All Proposals received by the designated date and time will be evaluated based on the 
Respondent’s Proposal. Other information may be taken into consideration when that 
information potentially provides an additional benefit to Williamson County, and further helps 
Williamson County in receiving the services listed in the RFP. 

2.3.2 Evaluation Committee and Selection Process 
All Proposals will be evaluated by a County appointed Evaluation Committee. The Evaluation 
Committee may be composed of County Staff that may have expertise, knowledge or 
experience with the services and/or goods being procured hereunder. Those Respondents 
meeting all requirements and deemed most qualified may receive further evaluation via 
telephone or in-person interviews with members of the Evaluation Committee. The County 
will select a Respondent determined best and most responsible Respondent meeting 
minimum specifications and qualifications. 
Respondents are advised that the Evaluation Committee, at its option, may recommend an 
award strictly on the basis of the initial RFP responses, or in addition, may have interviews 
with firms to determine its final recommendation. The Evaluation Committee will present 
its recommendation to the Williamson County Commissioners’ Court for approval and award 
of contract. 
Finalist shall be determined by the Respondent receiving the most points in relation to 
the following Evaluation Criteria and any further scoring that may be conducted based upon 
Respondent’s presentation during the interview process: 

Respondents’ Proposals must meet all mandatory requirements in order to be scored 
according to the criteria following the mandatory requirements. Scoring may also be 
based on total information gathered by Williamson County at its discretion, including 
but not limited to respondent’s ability to perform “without delay or interference”; 
respondent’s “character, responsibility, integrity, and experience or demonstrated 
capability; quality of prior work; compliance with laws; and noncompliance with 
requirements as to submission of relevant information.”.  

 

 

Bid 1606-093Williamson County, Texas

7/21/2016 8:59 AM p. 6



 
2.3.3 Minimum Requirements  

Minimum Requirements as set forth in section 1.2.2 of the Proposal Specifications must be 
passed in order to be considered for scoring as described in section 2.3.4 following this section 
 

Minimum Requirements yes no 

Elaborate on why your 
company does or does 
not meet the requirement 

1.2.1.1 Allow and accept employee 
documentation within 24 hours    
1.2.1.2 Maintain paperwork for all employees 
(time sheets, new hire, paperwork etc.)    
1.2.1.3 Physical presence at designated County 
locations     
1.2.1.4 Ability to submit and receive new hire 
paperwork both electronically and in paper form    
1.2.1.5 Ability to have customized payroll items as 
referenced in section 1.2.1.5    
1.2.1.6 Options for both direct deposit and check 
submittal of payment    
1.2.1.7 Reports regarding payroll information    
1.2.1.8 Ability to verify check has or has not been 
cashed    
    
1.2.1.9 Provide the ability for Elections 
Administrator or designated representative to 
view/verify payment processing status    
    
1.2.1.10 Provide Payroll services including 
processing Federal Payroll Taxes, Unemployment 
Insurance, Worker’s Comp Insurance (criminal 
background checks as requested)    
1.2.1.11 Include post payroll reports that include 
the actual markup cost for each position, to include 
FICA     

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Bid 1606-093Williamson County, Texas

7/21/2016 8:59 AM p. 7



 
 
2.3.4  Graded Evaluation Factors 

The  following  graded  evaluation  factors  will  be  used  to  determine  how  well  a 
Respondent(s) meet(s) the desired performance.  
 

Evaluation Criteria Total Points 
Available 

 Please select a Whole Number from the list 
provided for each question. (Decimal scoring or 
unlisted rating scores are not permitted) 

Overall experience of Team 5 

5 = Significantly Exceeds Requirements                                     
4 = Marginally Exceeds Requirements                                
3 = Meets Requirements                                                       
2 = Marginally Meets Requirements                                                       
1 = Does Not Meet Requirements 

Technical Expertise w/ Elections 
Process 5 

5 = Significantly Exceeds Requirements                                     
4 = Marginally Exceeds Requirements                                
3 = Meets Requirements                                                       
2 = Marginally Meets Requirements                                                       
1 = Does Not Meet Requirements 

Local Presence/ ability to be 
present during training 5 

5 = Significantly Exceeds Requirements                                     
4 = Marginally Exceeds Requirements                                
3 = Meets Requirements                                                       
2 = Marginally Meets Requirements                                                       
1 = Does Not Meet Requirements 

Adaptability to support Williamson 
County’s needs 

5 

5 = Significantly Exceeds Requirements                                     
4 = Marginally Exceeds Requirements                                
3 = Meets Requirements                                                       
2 = Marginally Meets Requirements                                                       
1 = Does Not Meet Requirements 

Demonstrated Success in past 
projects with like scope and 
complexity 

5 5 = Significantly Exceeds Requirements                                     
4 = Marginally Exceeds Requirements                                
3 = Meets Requirements                                                       
2 = Marginally Meets Requirements                                                       
1 = Does Not Meet Requirements 

Price (RFP Cost Score): Lowest 
Respondent’s proposal/ 
Respondent’s Proposal x 10  
(points)if cost is weighted as 40% 

10 

 

Total 35 (Highest scorers = Proceed to 
Interviews) 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
2.3.4.1 Interviews 
Interview scoring (if applicable) will be provided along with invitation to interview candidates. Best 
and Final Offer will be required from all Respondents scheduled for interviews, 24 hours prior to 
interview times. 
 
 
 
 
 

Evaluation Criteria Summary Total maximum points 

Evaluation Criteria 1-5 
25 (5 points for each criteria) 

Evaluation Criteria 6 (Price) 

10 (weighted at 40% of the total maximum 
points of criteria – 40 x 40% = 10 maximum 
points) 

Bid 1606-093Williamson County, Texas

7/21/2016 8:59 AM p. 8



 
2.3.5 Additional Evaluation information 

Williamson County reserves the right to award a contract for any or all areas of this RFP. 
 

It is the responsibility of the Respondent to provide sufficient information/data in a convincing 
manner to the County to assure all of the terms, conditions and expectations for satisfactory 
performance of the services requested herein will be met. 
 
All contact during the evaluation phase shall be through the Williamson County 
Purchasing Department only.  Respondent shall neither contact nor lobby evaluators during 
the evaluation process.   Attempts by Respondent to contact and/or influence members of the 
Evaluation Committee may result in disqualification of Proposal. 

 
2.4 Technical Contact 

Christopher Davis, Elections Administrator (or successor), Williamson County,301 SE Inner Loop, 
Ste 104, Georgetown, TX shall serve as Williamson County’s Technical Contact with designated 
responsibility to ensure compliance with the requirements of the Contract and any ensuing 
agreement, such as but not limited to, acceptance, inspection and delivery, together with the 
Purchasing Department. The Technical Contact together with the Purchasing Department will serve 
as liaison between Williamson County Commissioners Court and the Successful Respondent. 

 
2.5  Initial Contract Term 

The Successful Respondent shall provide the goods and/or services described herein for an initial 
term of thirty-six (36) months beginning on January 1, 2017 through December 31, 2019 
 

2.6 Contract Extensions 
At the end of the Initial Contract Term, the Commissioners Court reserves the right to extend the 
Initial Contract Term, by mutual agreement of both parties, as it deems to be in the best interest of 
the County. The extension may be negotiated if renewal indications are provided within Williamson 
County’s timeframe which reflect renewal terms for the forthcoming policy year that are deemed by 
Williamson County to be competitive with current market conditions. However, Williamson County 
may terminate the contract at any time if funds are restricted, withdrawn, not approved, or if service 
is unsatisfactory. Any extension will be in twelve (12) month increments for up to an additional thirty-
six (36) months, with the terms and conditions remaining the same. The total period of the contract, 
including all extensions will not exceed a maximum combined period of seventy-two (72) months. 
The extension of the contract is contingent on the appropriation of necessary funds by 
Commissioners Court for the fiscal year in question.  Upon the failure of Commissioners Court to so 
appropriate in any year, the Respondent may elect to terminate the contract, with no additional 
liability to the County. The County and the Respondent agree that termination shall be the 
Respondent’s sole remedy under this circumstance.   
 

2.7 Insurance Requirements 
 

By signing its Proposal, the Successful Respondent agrees to maintain at all times during any term 
of the Contract and any ensuing Agreement at Successful Respondent's cost, insurance in 
accordance with this provision. 
Successful Respondent will be required to submit Certificates of Insurance prior to contract award. 
All certificates of insurance coverage as specified below must be provided to the following location: 
  

Williamson County Purchasing Department 
901 S Austin Ave 

Georgetown, Texas  78626 
 

Bid 1606-093Williamson County, Texas

7/21/2016 8:59 AM p. 9



Failure to comply with these Insurance Requirements may result in the termination of the Contract 
and any ensuing Agreement(s) between the Successful Respondent and County. 
 
The following coverage limits shall be required at a minimum: 
           
A. Worker's Compensation    Statutory – Texas Law 

B. Employer's Liability:   
  
 Bodily Injury by Accident $500,000 Ea. Accident 
Bodily Injury by Disease $500,000 Ea. Employee  
Bodily Injury by Disease $500,000 Policy Limit 
 
C. Comprehensive general liability including completed operations and contractual liability insurance for 
bodily injury, death, or property damages in the following amounts: 
COVERAGE  PER PERSON     PER OCCURRENCE 
Comprehensive   
General Liability  $1,000,000  $1,000,000 
    
Aggregate policy limits:    $1,000,000 
 
Successful Respondent’s property will not be covered by any insurance that may be carried by 
Williamson County.  Successful Respondent assumes the risk of loss on its contents and property 
that are situated on/in/around Williamson County property.  The Successful Respondent is strongly 
encouraged to obtain insurance on its property to the extent deemed necessary by the Successful 
Respondent.  

 
The deductible for an insurance policy required hereunder shall not exceed $100,000. Williamson 
County shall be named as an additional insured under any policy of insurance required 
hereunder. 

 
Successful Respondent shall not commence any work until it has obtained all required insurance and 
such insurance has been approved by County. Successful Respondent shall not allow any 
subcontractor(s) to commence work to be performed until all required insurance has been obtained 
by such subcontractor(s) and approved by County. Approval of the insurance by County shall not 
relieve or decrease the liability of Successful Respondent or its subcontractor(s) hereunder. 
 
The required insurance must be written by a company approved to do business in the State of Texas 
with a financial standing of at least an A- rating, as reflected in Best’s insurance ratings or by a similar 
rating system recognized within the insurance industry at the time the policy is issued. Successful 
Respondent shall furnish County with a certificate of coverage issued by the insurer. Successful 
Respondent shall not cause any insurance to be canceled nor permit any insurance to lapse. ALL 
INSURANCE CERTIFICATES SHALL INCLUDE A CLAUSE TO THE EFFECT THAT THE POLICY 
SHALL NOT BE CANCELED OR REDUCED, RESTRICTED OR LIMITED UNTIL TEN (10) 
CALENDAR DAYS AFTER COUNTY HAS RECEIVED WRITTEN NOTICE AS EVIDENCED BY 
RETURN RECEIPT OF REGISTERED OR CERTIFIED LETTER. 
 
It is the intention of the County, and agreed to and hereby acknowledged by the Successful 
Respondent, that no provision of this Contract or any ensuing Agreement shall be construed to require 
the County to submit to mandatory arbitration or mediation in the settlement of any claim, cause of 
action or dispute, except as specifically required in direct connection with an insurance claim or threat 
of claim under an insurance policy required hereunder which absolutely requires arbitration or 
mediation of such claim, or as otherwise required by law or a court of law with jurisdiction over the 

Bid 1606-093Williamson County, Texas

7/21/2016 8:59 AM p. 10



provisions of this Contract or any ensuing Agreement. 
 
 

2.8 Confidentiality 
Respondent expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that 
may be obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will 
not access unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to 
unauthorized third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times. 
 
 

2.9 Tentative Schedule 
 
 

Event                                                                                           Date 

RFP released in BidSync                                      07/26/16 

Deadline for RFP questions                                                    08/10/16 5:00PM 
RFP final responses due                                                         08/16/16 3:00PM 
Committee Evaluation of submittals                                               08/17/-09/05/16 
Best and Final Offer & Sample 
Contract                                                               

09/05/-09/12/16 

Contract awarded                                                             09/27/16 
Contract effective date                                                         01/01/17 

 
 

 

Bid 1606-093Williamson County, Texas

7/21/2016 8:59 AM p. 11



RFP Standard Documents 
 

 
 

1. RESPONSE FORMAT AND SUBMISSION  

1.1 Introduction  
 
Each Proposal submitted in response to this RFP should clearly reference those numbered sections of this RFP that require a 
response.  Failure to arrange the Proposal as requested may result in the disqualification of the Proposal. 

Though there is not a page limit for Proposals, to save natural resources including paper, and to allow Williamson County staff to 
efficiently evaluate all submitted Proposals, Williamson County requests that Proposals be orderly, concise, but comprehensive in 
providing the requested information.  Conciseness and clarity of content are emphasized and encouraged.  If   mailed   or delivered in 
person, please limit additional, non-requested   information. 

Please provide your Proposal response using: 

1. 8 ½” x 11” pages, inclusive of any cover letter or supporting materials 

2. The least amount of plastic/laminate or other non-recyclable binding materials 

3. Single-sided printing 

Vague and general Proposals will be considered non-responsive, and may, at County’s sole discretion, result in disqualification. 
Proposals must be legible and complete. Failure to provide the required information may result in the disqualification of the Proposal. All 
pages of the Proposal should be numbered and the Proposal should contain an organized, paginated table of contents   corresponding 
to the sections and pages of the Proposal. 

 

1.2 Organization of Proposal C ontents and Table of Contents  

Each Proposal should be submitted with a table of contents that clearly identifies and denotes the location of each title and subtitle of 
the Proposal. Additionally, the table of contents should  clearly  identify and denote the location of all enclosures of the Proposal. The 
table of contents should follow  the RFP’s structure as much as is practical. 

Each Proposal should be organized in the manner described below: 

1. Transmittal Letter 

2. Table of Contents 

3. Executive Summary 

4. Proposal Response to Criteria (see Specifications & Cost Proposal,  Experience and Qualifications, References, Implementation 
Strategy) 

5. Price Sheet 

6. References: Identification of three (3) references within the last 4 years for which the Respondent is providing or has provided 
the goods and services (public sector) of the type  requested, including the name, position, and telephone number of a contact 
person at each entity 

7. Conflict of Interest Questionnaire 

8. Proposal Affidavit and Addenda Acknowledgement 

9. Signature Page 

10. Attach your entities Sample Contract 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Bid 1606-093Williamson County, Texas

7/21/2016 8:59 AM p. 12



RFP Standard Documents 
 

 
 

1.3 Transmittal Letter  

The Respondent should submit a Transmittal Letter that provides the following: 

 

a) Name and address of individual or business entity submitting the Proposal; 

b) Respondent’s type of business entity (i.e., Corporation, General Partnership, Limited Partnership,   LLC, etc.); 

c) Place of incorporation or organization, if applicable; 

d) Name  and  location  of  major  offices  and  other  facilities  that  relate  to  the  Respondent’s  performance under the 
terms of this RFP; 

e) Name, address, business and fax number of the Respondent’s principal contact person regarding  all contractual matters 
relating to this RFP; 

f) The Respondent’s Federal Employer Identification Number; 

g) A commitment by the Respondent to provide the services required by Williamson County; 

h) A statement that the Proposal is valid for ninety (90) calendar days from the deadline for submittal  of Proposals to Williamson 
County (Any Proposal containing a term of less than ninety (90)  calendar days for acceptance, may at Williamson County’s 
sole discretion, be rejected as non-responsive.); 

If the Proposal being submitted will have an effect on air quality for Williamson County (as it  relates to any state, federal, or voluntary 
air quality standard), then the Respondent is encouraged to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality 
impact. 

The Transmittal Letter should be signed by a person legally authorized to bind the Respondent to the representations in the 
Transmittal Letter and Proposal.  In the case of a joint Proposal, each party must   sign the Transmittal Letter. 

 

1.4 Executive Summary  

The Respondent should provide an Executive Summary of its Proposal that asserts that the Respondent is providing in its response all 
of the requirements of this RFP. The Executive Summary must represent a full and concise summary of the contents of the Proposal 

The Executive Summary should not include any information concerning the cost of the Proposal. 

The Respondent should identify any services and/or goods that are provided beyond those specifically requested. If the Respondent is 
providing services and/or goods that do not meet  the  specific  requirements  of  this  RFP,  but  in  the  opinion  of the Respondent are 
equivalent or superior to those specifically requested, any such  differences  should  be  noted  in  the Executive Summary. However, 
the Respondent must realize that failure to provide the services specifically required may, at Williamson County’s sole discretion, result 
in disqualification of the Proposal. 

The Respondent also should indicate why it believes that it is the most qualified Respondent to provide the services described in this 
RFP. The Successful Respondent must demonstrate extensive experience in and understanding required in order to carry out the intent 
of this project. The Respondent should describe in  detail  the  current  and  historical  experience  the  Respondent and its 
subcontractors have that would be relevant to completing  the  project.  References must contain the name of key contacts and a 
telephone number. The Respondent should briefly state why it believes its proposed services and/or goods best meet Williamson 
County’s needs and RFP requirements, and the Respondent also should concisely describe any additional features, aspects, or 
advantages of its services and/or goods in any relevant area not covered elsewhere in its Proposal. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Bid 1606-093Williamson County, Texas

7/21/2016 8:59 AM p. 13



RFP Standard Documents 
 

 

1.5 Conflict of Interest  

No public official shall have interest in a contract, in accordance with Vernon's Texas Codes Annotated, Local Government Code Title 
5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended.  

 
As of January 1, 2006, Respondents are responsible for complying with Local Government Code Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 
176. Additional information may be obtained from the Williamson County website at the following link:  
 

http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/en-US/Default.aspx 

Each Respondent must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the requirements of this 
RFP. Examples of potential conflicts may include an existing business or personal relationship between the Respondent, its 
principal, or any affiliate or subcontractor, with  Williamson County or any other entity or person involved in any way in the project 
that is the subject of this RFP. Similarly, any personal or business relationship between the Respondent, the principals, or any 
affiliate or subcontractor, with any employee or official of Williamson County or its suppliers must be disclosed. Any such relationship 
that might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or reveal 
personal relationships with Williamson County  employees  or  officials  may  be  cause  for  termination.  Williamson County will 
decide if an actual  or perceived conflict should result in Proposal disqualification. 

By submitting a Proposal in response to this RFP, all Respondents affirm that they have not given, nor intend to give, at any time 
hereafter any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, trip, favor, or service to a Williamson 
County public servant or any employee, official  or representative of same, in connection with this procurement. 

Each Respondent must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement in accordance with this RFP. 
 

1.6 Certificate of Interested Parties   

As of January 1, 2016, Respondents are responsible for complying with the Texas Government Code Section 2252.908. The law states 
that Williamson County may not enter into certain contracts with a Respondent unless the Respondent submits a disclosure of 
interested parties to Williamson County at the time the Respondent submits the signed contract to Williamson County.  

The disclosure requirement applies to any contract of Williamson County entered into on or after January 1, 2016 that either: 

1. requires an action or vote by the Commissioners Court (all contracts that fall under the jurisdiction of Commissioners Court 
approval such as contracts resulting from an IFB, RFP, RFQ etc. excluding but not limited to certain Juvenile Services 
contracts, contracts funded with Sheriff’s seized funds monies etc.) before the contract may be signed 

2. has a value of at least $1 million.  

Note: Since the majority of contracts with Williamson County re quire approval by the Commissioners Court, this form will 
most likely be required to be supplied . 

On January 1, 2016, the Texas Ethics Commission made available on its website a new filing application that must be used to file Form 
1295. 

Information regarding how to use the filing application is available on the Texas Ethics Commission website at the following link: 

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm 

A Respondent must: 

1. use the online application to process the required information on Form 1295 

2. print a copy of the form which will contain a unique certification number 

3. an authorized agent of the Respondent must sign the printed copy of the form 

4. and have the form notarized 

5. the completed Form 1295 and certification of filing must be filed (scanning and emailing form is sufficient) with Williamson 
County at the time the signed contract is submitted for Commissioners Court approval. 

After Commissioners Court award of the contract, Williamson County must: 

1. notify the commission, using the commission’s filing application, of the receipt of the filed Form 1295 and certification of filing 
not later than the 30th day after the date the contract binds all parties to the contract. The commission will post the completed 
Form 1295 to its website within seven business days after receiving notice from Williamson County. 

 

Bid 1606-093Williamson County, Texas

7/21/2016 8:59 AM p. 14



RFP Standard Documents 
 

 

1.7 Ethics  

The Respondent shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement with any employee, official 
or agent of Williamson County. 

 

1.8 Delivery of Proposals  
 

Williamson County uses BidSync to distribute and receive bids and proposals Bids can be submitted electronically through BidSync or 
by hard copy. Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information. 

 

If mailed or delivered in person , Proposals and Proposal addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on or before the 
submittal deadline, as noted in the ‘Public Announcement and General Information’ listed above for this RFP, to: 

Williamson County Purchasing Department Attn: 
PROPOSAL NAME AND NUMBER  
901 South Austin Avenue Georgetown, 
Texas 78626 
 
Williamson  County  will  not  accept  any  Proposals  received  after  the  submittal  deadline,  and  shall  return   such  Proposals 
unopened to the Respondent. 

 
Williamson  County  will  not  accept  any  responsibility  for  Proposals being  delivered  by  third  party  carriers. 
Respondent should submit one (1) original, two (2) paper copies and one (1) CD or (1) USB copy of  the Proposal.  Proposals 
will be opened publicly in a manner to avoid public disclosure of contents; however , names of Respondents will be read aloud. 
Respondents should list the Proposal Number, Proposal Name, Name and Address of Respondent, and the Date of the Proposal 
opening on the outside of the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed.” 

 
 

2.1 INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS  

Read this document carefully.  Follow all instructions and requirements.   You are responsible for fulfilling   all requirements and 
specifications.  Be sure you have a clear understanding of this   RFP. 

General requirements apply to all advertised RFPs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in part, by the Proposal 
Specifications, Addenda issued as a part of this RFP and Modifications issued as a part of this RFP. Be sure your Proposal package is 
complete. 

 
 

2.2 Ambiguity, Conflict, or other Errors in the RFP  

If Respondent discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this RFP, Respondent shall immediately notify 
Williamson County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request modification or clarification of the document. 
Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Respondent fails to  notify  Williamson  County  prior to the date and time fixed for  
submission  of  Proposals  of  an  error  or  ambiguity in  the  RFP  known  to  Respondent,  or  an error or ambiguity that reasonably 
should have been known to Respondent, then Respondent shall be deemed to have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution. 

Williamson County may also modify the RFP, no later than 48 hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Proposals, by 
issuance of an Addendum. All addenda will be numbered consecutively, beginning with 1. 

 
 

2.3 Notification of Most Current Address  

Respondents in receipt of this RFP shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any address changes, contact person 
changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than 48 hours prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Proposals. 

 

2.4 Proposal Preparation Cost  
 

Cost of developing Proposals is entirely the responsibility of Respondents and shall not be charged to W i l l i a m s o n  County. 
 
 
 
 
 

Bid 1606-093Williamson County, Texas

7/21/2016 8:59 AM p. 15



RFP Standard Documents 
 

 

2.5 Signature of Respondent  

A Transmittal Letter, which shall be considered an integral part of the Proposal, shall be signed by an individual who is authorized to 
bind the Respondent contractually. 

If the Respondent is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation or   Limited  Liability  Company shall 
be  provided together  with  the  signature  of the  officer  or  officers  authorized to sign on behalf of such entity. 

If the Respondent  is  a  General  Partnership,  the  true  name  of  the  firm  shall  be  provided  with  the  signature of each partner 
authorized to sign. 

If the Respondent is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner’s General Partner shall be provided with the signature of the 
officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner. 

If the Respondent is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign. 

If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s)  or  an  officer  of  a  Corporation,  Limited  Liability  Company, General 
Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney or  equivalent  document  must  be  submitted  to the Williamson 
County Purchasing Department prior to   contract award. 

 

2.6 Assumed Business Name  

If the Respondent operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Respondent must have on file with the Williamson County 
Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same prior to contract award. 

 

2.7 Economy of Presentation  

Proposals should not contain promotional or display materials, except as they may directly answer in whole or in part questions 
contained in the RFP. Such exhibits shall be clearly  marked  with  the  applicable  reference  number  of  the question in  the  RFP.  
Proposals must address the technical requirements as specified in the RFP.  All questions posed by the RFP must be answered 
concisely and clearly. Proposals that do not address each criterion may be, at the sole discretion of Williamson   County, rejected and 
not considered. 

 

2.8 Proposal Obligation  

The contents of the RFP, Proposal and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Respondent shall become part of the 
contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the   Contract and any ensuing agreement. 

 

2.9 Compliance with RFP Specifications  

It is intended that this RFP describe the requirements and the response format in sufficient detail to secure comparable Proposals. 
Failure to comply with all provisions of the RFP may, at the sole discretion of Williamson County, result in disqualification. 

 
 

2.10 Evaluation  

Williamson County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than disclosed in the RFP 
process) that might affect Williamson County’s judgment as to the appropriateness of an award to the best evaluated Respondent. This 
information may be appended to the Proposal evaluation process results. Information on a Respondent from reliable sources, and not 
within the Respondent’s Proposal, may also be noted and made part of the evaluation file. Williamson County shall have sole discretion 
for determining the reliability of the source.  Williamson County reserves the right to conduct written and/or oral discussions/interviews 
after the Proposal opening. The purpose of such discussions/interviews is to provide clarification and/or additional information to make   
an award that is in the best interest of Williamson County. 

 

2.11 Withdrawal of Proposal  

The Respondent may withdraw its Proposal by submitting a written request over the signature of an authorized individual, as described 
herein above, to the Williamson County Purchasing Department any time prior to the submission deadline. The Respondent may 
thereafter submit a new Proposal prior to the deadline. Withdrawal of a Proposal after the deadline will be subject to written approval of 
the Williamson County Purchasing Agent. 

 

 

Bid 1606-093Williamson County, Texas

7/21/2016 8:59 AM p. 16



RFP Standard Documents 
 

 

2.12 Responsibility  

It is expected that a Respondent will be able to affirmatively demonstrate Respondent’s responsibility. Respondent should be able to 
meet the following requirements: 

 
a) have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as   required; 
b) be able to comply with the required or proposed  delivery schedule; 
c) have a satisfactory record of performance; and 
d) be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award. 

 

Williamson County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine Respondent’s ability to meet these 
minimum standards listed above. 

 
 

2.13 Purchase Orders  

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to the Successful Respondent for 
goods and/or services. If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order number must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests 
for payment. 

 

2.14 Silence of Specifications  

The apparent silence of any RFP specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a detailed description concerning 
any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are to prevail. All interpretations of these specifications shall be 
made on the basis of this statement. 

 

2.15 References  

Williamson County requires Respondent to supply a list of at least three (3) references within the last 4 years where like services and/or 
goods have been supplied by Respondent if Respondent has not done business with the County within the past five (5) years. 

 
 
 

3.1 DEFINITIONS, TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 

3.2 Definitions  

a) “Addenda” – Means any written or graphic instruments issued by Williamson County prior to the consideration of Proposals 
which modify or interpret the Proposal Documents by additions,  deletions, clarifications, or corrections. 

b) “Agreement” – The Successful Respondent may be required by Williamson County to sign an additional Agreement containing 
terms necessary to ensure compliance with the RFP and Respondent’s Proposal. Such ensuing Agreement shall contain the 
Proposal Specifications, Terms and Conditions that are derived from the RFP. 

c) “Contract” – This RFP and the Proposal of the Successful Respondent shall become a contract between the Successful 
Respondent and Williamson County once the Successful Respondent’s Proposal is properly accepted by the Williamson County 
Commissioners Court (sometimes referred to herein as the “Commissioners Court”). 

d) “Proposal Documents” – The Legal Notice, RFP including attachments, and any Addenda issued by Williamson County prior to 
the consideration of any Proposals. 

e) “Proposal” – Is a complete, properly signed Proposal submitted in accordance with this RFP which is irrevocable during the 
specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Proposals. 

f) “Respondent” – A person or entity who submits a Proposal in response to this RFP. 

g) “RFP” – Refers to this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future addenda issued by Williamson County. 

h) “Successful Respondent” – The responsible Respondent who, in Williamson County’s sole opinion, submits the Proposal which 
is in the best interest of Williamson County, taking into account factors identified herein and to whom Williamson County intends 
to award the Contract. 

 

 

Bid 1606-093Williamson County, Texas

7/21/2016 8:59 AM p. 17



RFP Standard Documents 
 

 

3.3 TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 

3.3.1 Venue and Governing Law  

Respondent hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of action arising out of or in 
connection with this RFP, the Contract and any ensuing Agreement shall lie   exclusively in either Williamson County, Texas or in the 
Austin Division of the Western Federal District of Texas, and the parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction. 
Furthermore, except to the extent that this RFP, the Contract and any ensuing Agreement is governed by the laws of the United States, 
this RFP, the  Contract  and  any  ensuing  Agreement  shall  be  governed  by  and  construed  in  accordance with the laws of the 
State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules. 

 

3.3.2 Incorporation by Reference and Precedence  

The Contract shall be derived from (1) the RFP and its Addenda; and (2) the Respondent’s Proposal. In the event of a dispute under  the  
Contract,  applicable  documents  will  be  referred  to  for  the  purpose  of   clarification  or  for  additional  detail  in  the following order 
of precedence: (1) the RFP and its Addenda;   and (2) the Respondent’s Proposal. 

In the event Williamson County requires that an ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a  dispute  arises  between terms 
and conditions of the ensuing Agreement, (2) the RFP, and its Addenda; and (3) the Respondent’s Proposal, applicable documents will 
be referred to for the purpose of Clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: (1) terms and conditions of the 
ensuing Agreement and its Addenda, (2) the RFP and its Addenda; and (3) the Respondent’s Proposal. 

 

3.3.3 Ownership of Proposal  

Each Proposal shall become the property of Williamson County upon submittal and will not be returned to Respondents unless received 
after the submittal deadline. 

 

3.3.4 Disqualification of Respondent  

Upon signing and submittal of the Proposal, a Respondent offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or equipment to Williamson 
County certifies that the Respondent has not violated the antitrust laws of this state codified in Section 15.01, et seq, Business & 
Commerce Code, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not communicated directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any 
other person engaged in such line of business. Any or all Proposals may be rejected if Williamson County believes that collusion exists 
among the Respondents. 

 

3.3.5 Funding  

County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to   finance the costs of the Contract. 
Respondents understand and agree that the County’s  payment  of  amounts under the Contract shall be contingent on the  County  
receiving  appropriations  or  other   expenditure  authority  sufficient  to  allow  the  County,  in  the  exercise  of reasonable 
administrative  discretion, to make payments under the Contract. 

 

3.3.6 Assignment, Successors and Assigns  

The Successful Respondent may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or interests obtained under the 
Contract without written permission of the Williamson County Commissioners Court. The Contract and any ensuing Agreement shall be 
binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contracting parties and their respective successors and permitted assigns. 

 
 

3.3.7 Implied Requirements  

Products and services not specifically described or required in the RFP, but which are necessary to  provide the functional capabilities 
described by the Respondent, shall be deemed to be implied and  included in the Proposal. 

 

 

 

 

 

Bid 1606-093Williamson County, Texas

7/21/2016 8:59 AM p. 18



RFP Standard Documents 
 

 

3.3.8 Termination  
 

a) Termination for Cause: Williamson County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any ensuing Agreement for 
default if the Successful Respondent breaches any of the RFP Specifications, Terms and Conditions, including warranties of 
Respondent, if any, or if the Successful Respondent becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of termination 
is in addition to and not in lieu of any other remedies Williamson County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise be 
provided herein. Default may be construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper goods and/or services within the 
proper amount of time, and/or to properly perform  any  and  all  other  requirements  to  Williamson  County’s  satisfaction, 
and/or to meet all other obligations and  requirements. 

b) Termination for Convenience: Williamson County may terminate the Contract and/or any ensuing Agreement for convenience 
and without cause or further liability, upon ninety (90) calendar day’s written notice to Successful Respondent. In the event 
Williamson County exercises its right to terminate without cause, it is  understood  and  agreed  that  only  the amounts due to the 
Successful Respondent for goods, commodities and/or services provided and expenses incurred to and including  the date of 
termination, will be due and payable.  No penalty will be assessed for Williamson County’s termination for convenience. 

 

3.2.9 Non-Performance  

It is the objective of Williamson County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements set forth herein. In addition 
to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein, failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment 
equal to the amount of the goods and/or services that were not provided and/or performed to the County’s satisfaction. In the event of 
such non-performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to complete the services itself or by others and/or 
purchase the goods from other sources. If the County elects to acquire the goods or perform the services itself or by others, pursuant to 
the foregoing, the Successful  Respondent shall reimburse the County, within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs incurred 
by the County (including, without limitation, applicable, general, and administrative expenses, and field  overhead,  and  the  cost of 
necessary equipment, materials, and field labor) in  correcting  the  nonperformance which the Successful Respondent fails to meet 
pursuant to the requirements set out  herein. In  the  event  the  Successful  Respondent  refuses  to  reimburse  the County as set out 
in  this  provision, County shall have the right to deduct  such  reimbursement  amounts from  any  amounts that  may be then owing or 
that may become owing in the future to the Successful Respondent. 

 

3.2.10 Proprietary Information a nd Texas Public Information Act  

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public Information Act upon receipt. If a 
Respondent does not desire proprietary information in the Proposal to  be disclosed, each page must be clearly identified and marked 
proprietary at time of submittal or, more   preferably, all proprietary information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly 
identified  and marked as being proprietary. The County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect   from public disclosure 
the information that has been identified and marked as proprietary. The final decision as to what information must be disclosed, 
however, lies with the Texas Attorney General.  Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set forth under 
this provision will  result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and available to the public.  For all  information that 
has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary by the Respondent, the  County may   choose  to  place  such  information  on  
the  County’s  website  and/or  a  similar  public database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Respondent. 

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this RFP or in the Respondent’s Proposal is in conflict with Tex. Gov’t Code 552.001 et seq., 
as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall be of no force or effect. Furthermore, it is expressly understood and agreed 
that Williamson County, its officers and employees may request advice, decisions and opinions of  the  Attorney General of the State of 
Texas in regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any items or  data  furnished  to Williamson County as to whether or 
not the same are available to the public. It is further understood that Williamson County’s officers and employees shall have the right to 
rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General, and that Williamson County, its officers and employees shall have no 
liability or obligation to any party hereto for the disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items  or  data  furnished  to 
Williamson  County by a  party hereto,  in  reliance  of any  advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the State of Texas. 

 

3.2.11 Right to Audit  

Successful Respondent agrees that Williamson County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until   the  expiration  of  three (3) 
years after termination or expiration of the Contract and/or the  ensuing  Agreement,  have  access  to  and  the  right  to examine and 
photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of Successful Respondent, which are directly pertinent to the services to 
be performed or goods to be  delivered  for  the  purposes  of  making  audits,  examinations, excerpts and transcriptions. Successful 
Respondent agrees that Williamson County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and shall be 
provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the provisions of this section. Williamson 
County shall give Successful Respondent reasonable advance notice of intended audits. 

 

 

 

 

Bid 1606-093Williamson County, Texas

7/21/2016 8:59 AM p. 19



RFP Standard Documents 
 

 

3.2.12 Inspections and Testing  

Williamson County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, material(s) and goods for quality and compliance with this 
RFP, and ability to meet the needs of the user.  Demonstration units must be available for review.  Should  the  goods or services  fail  
to  meet  requirements  and/or  be  unavailable for evaluation, Williamson County can deem the Respondent to be in breach and 
terminate  the Contract and/or any ensuing Agreement(s). 

 

3.2.13 Proposal Preparation Cost  

Cost of developing Proposals is entirely the responsibility of Respondents and shall not be charged to Williamson County. There is no 
expressed or implied obligation for Williamson County to reimburse Respondents for any expense incurred in preparing a Proposal in 
response to this RFP and Williamson County will not reimburse Respondents for such expenses. 

 

3.2.14 Indemnification  

SUCCESSFUL RESPONDENT SHALL INDEMNIFY, DEFEND AND SAVE HARMLESS WILLIAMSON COUNTY, ITS OFFICIALS, 
EMPLOYEES, AGENTS AND AGENTS’ EMPLOYEES FROM A ND  AGAINST ALL CLAIMS, LIABILITY, AND EXPENSES, 
INCLUDING  REASONABLE ATTORNEYS’ FEES, ARISING FROM ACTIVITIES OF RESPONDENT, ITS AGENTS, SERVANTS OR 
EMPLOYEES, PERFORMED HEREUNDER THAT RESULT FROM THE NEGLIGENT ACT, ERROR, OR OMISSION  OF 
RESPONDENT  OR ANY OF RESPONDENT’S AGENTS, SERVANTS  OR EMPLOYEES, AS WELL AS ALL CLAIMS OF LOSS OR 
DAMAGE TO THE RESPONDENT’S AND WILLIAMSON COUNTY’S PROPERTY, EQUIPMENT, AND/OR SUPPLIES. 

FURTHERMORE, WILLIAMSON COUNTY, ITS OFFICIALS, EMPL OYEES, AGENTS AND AGENTS’ EMPLOYEES SHALL NOT BE 
LIABLE FOR DAMAGES TO THE SUCCESSFUL RESPONDENT ARIS ING FROM ANY ACT OF ANY THIRD PARTY, INCLUDING, 
BUT  NOT  BEING LIMITED TO THEFT. SUCCESSFUL RESPO NDENT FURTHER AGREES TO INDEMNIFY, DEFEND AND SAVE 
HARMLESS WILLIAMSON COUNTY FROM, ITS OFFICIALS, EMPLOYEES, AGENTS AN D AGENTS’ EMPLOYEES AGAINST ALL 
CLAIMS OF WHATEVER NATURE ARISING FROM ANY ACCIDEN T, INJURY, OR DAMAGE WHATSOEVER CAUSED TO ANY 
PERSON OR TO THE PROPERTY OF ANY PERSON OCCURRING IN RELATION TO SUCCESSFUL RESPONDENT’S 
PERFORMANCE OF ANY SERVICES REQUESTED HEREUNDER DURING THE TERM OF THE CONTRACT AND/OR ANY 
ENSUING AGREEMENT. 

SUCCESSFUL RESPONDENT SHALL TIMELY  REPORT ALL CLAIMS, DEMANDS, SUITS, ACTIONS, PROCEEDINGS, LIENS OR 
JUDGMENTS TO WILLIAMSON COUNTY AND SHALL, UPON THE RECEIPT OF ANY CLAIM, DEMAND, SUIT, ACTION, 
PROCEEDING, LIEN OR JUDGMENT, NOT LATER THAN TH E FIFTEENTH (15TH) DAY OF EACH MONTH; PROVIDE 
WILLIAMSON COUNTY WITH A WRITTEN REPORT ON EACH SU CH MATTER, SETTING FORTH THE STATUS OF EACH 
MATTER, THE SCHEDULE OR PLANNED PROCEEDINGS WITH RESPECT TO EACH MATTER AND THE COOPERATION OR 
ASSISTANCE, IF ANY, OF WILLIAMSON COUNTY REQUIRED BY  SUCCESSFUL RESPONDENT IN THE DEFENSE OF EACH 
MATTER. SUCCESSFUL RESPONDENT’S DUTY TO DEFEND, INDEMNIFY AND HOLD WILLIAMSON COUNTY HARMLESS 
SHALL BE ABSOLUTE. IT SHALL NOT ABATE OR END BY REASON OF THE EXPIRATION OR TERMINATION OF THE 
CONTRACT AND/OR ANY ENSUING AGREEMENT UNLESS OTHERW ISE AGREED BY WILLIAMSON COUNTY IN WRITING. 
THE PROVISIONS OF THIS SECTION SHALL SURVIVE THE TERMINATION OF THE CONTRACT AND SHALL REMAIN IN FULL 
FORCE AND EFFECT WITH RESPECT TO ALL SU CH MATTERS NO MATTER WHEN THEY ARISE. 

IN THE EVENT OF ANY DISPUTE BETWEEN THE PARTIE S AS TO WHETHER A CLAIM, DEMAND, SUIT, ACTION, 
PROCEEDING, LIEN OR JUDGMENT APPEARS TO HAVE BEEN CA USED BY OR APPEARS TO HAVE ARISEN OUT OF OR IN 
CONNECTION WITH ACTS OR OMISSIONS OF WILLIAMSON COUNTY, RESPONDENT SHALL NEVER-THE-LESS FULLY 
DEFEND SUCH CLAIM, DEMAND, SUIT, ACTION, PROCEEDING, LIEN OR JUDGMENT UNTIL AND UNLESS 

 

THERE IS A DETERMINATION BY A COURT OF COMPETENT JURISDICTION THAT THE ACTS AND OMISSIONS 
OFRESPONDENT ARE NOT AT ISSUE IN THE MATTER. 

SUCCESSFUL RESPONDENT’S INDEMNIFICATION SHALL COVER, AND SUCCESSFUL RESPONDENT AGREES TO 
INDEMNIFY WILLIAMSON COUNTY, IN THE EVENT WILLIAMSON COUNTY IS FOUND TO HAVE BEEN NEGLIGENT FOR 
HAVING SELECTED SUCCESSFUL RESPONDENT TO PERFORM THE WORK DESCRIBED IN THIS REQUEST. THE 
PROVISION BY SUCCESSFUL RESPONDENT OF INSURANCE SHALL NOT LIMIT THE LIABILITY OF SUCCESSFUL 
RESPONDENT UNDER THE CONTRACT AND/OR ANY ENSUING AGREEMENT. 

 

3.2.15 Waiver of Subrogation  

Successful Respondent and Successful Respondent’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights whatsoever with regard to subrogation 
against Williamson County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of personal or  property  damages  resulting from the 
Respondent’s performance under this Contract   and any ensuing Agreement. 

 
 
 

Bid 1606-093Williamson County, Texas

7/21/2016 8:59 AM p. 20



RFP Standard Documents 
 

 
3.2.16 Relationship of the Parties  

The Successful Respondent shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights,  obligations,  liabilities, applicable 
to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions  herein which may appear to give County the right to direct the 
Successful Respondent as to details of doing work herein covered or to exercise a measure of control over the work shall be 
deemed to mean that the Successful Respondent shall follow the desires of County in the results of the work  only. County shall not 
retain or have the right to control the Successful Respondent’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful 
Respondent’s performance of the work. County and the Successful Respondent hereby agree and declare that the Successful 
Respondent is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications  of  an  “Independent  Contractor’ under Texas 
Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, that the Successful  Respondent  is  not  an employee of County , 
and that the Successful Respondent  and  its  employees,  agents  and  sub-  contractors  shall  not  be entitled to workers 
compensation coverage or any other type of insurance  coverage held by County. 

 

3.2.17 Sole Provider  

The Successful Respondent agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the goods and/or 
services described herein and that Williamson County may contract with other providers of such goods and/or services if 
Williamson County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same goods and/or services will serve the best 
interest of Williamson County. 

 

3.2.18 Force Majeure  

If the party obligated to perform is  prevented  from  performance  by  an  act  of  war,  order  of  legal  authority, act of God, or other 
unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other party shall grant such party relief from the 
performance. The burden of proof for the need of such relief shall rest upon the party obligated to perform. To obtain release based 
on force majeure, t he  party obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party. 

 

3.2.19 Severability  

If any provision of this RFP, the Contract or any ensuing Agreement shall be held invalid or unenforceable by any court of 
competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate  or  render  unenforceable any other provision thereof, but rather the entire 
RFP, Contract or any ensuing Agreement will be construed as if not containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or 
provisions, and the rights and obligation of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance  therewith. The parties 
acknowledge that if any provision  of  this  RFP,  the  Contract  or  any  ensuing  Agreement is determined to be invalid or 
unenforceable, it is the desire and intention of each that such provision be reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to 
the maximum extent practicable, give effect to the intent of this RFP, the Contract or any ensuing Agreement  and be deemed to 
be  validated and enforceable. 

 
3.2.20 Equal Opportunity  

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, color, religion, sex, or national 
origin. 

 

3.2.21 Notice  

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be affected by personal delivery or by registered or certified mail, return receipt 
requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address: 

 

Williamson County Purchasing Department 

Max Bricka, Purchasing Agent (or successor) 

901 S Austin Ave. 

Georgetown, Texas 78626 

Respondent: Address set out in Respondent’s Transmittal Letter 

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (i) receipt by the party to which notice is given, or (ii) on the 
third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first. 

 

 

 

Bid 1606-093Williamson County, Texas

7/21/2016 8:59 AM p. 21



RFP Standard Documents 
 

 

3.2.22 Sales and Use Tax Exemption  
 

Williamson County is a corporate and politic under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption from sales and use 
taxes under Texas Tax Code Ann. § 151.309, as amended, and the  services and/or goods subject hereof are being secured for 
use by Williamson County. 

 

3.2.23 Compliance with Laws  

Williamson County and Successful Respondent shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes, ordinances, rules 
and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or tribunals in any matter affecting the 
performance of the Contract and any ensuing Agreement, including, without limitation, Workers’ Compensation laws, salary and 
wage statutes and regulations, licensing laws and regulations. When required, the Successful Respondent shall furnish the County 
with certification of compliance with said laws, statutes, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees above specified. 

 

3.2.24 Incorporation of Exhibi ts, Appendices and Attachments  

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein be incorporated by reference as if set forth verbatim herein. 

 

3.2.25 No Waiver of Immunities  

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend  any  legal  defense  available  at  law  or  in  equity  to  Williamson County, 
its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on behalf of any third party. Williamson County 
does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of 
the State   of Texas and of the United States. 

 

3.2.26 No Waiver  

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this RFP, the Contract or any 
ensuing Agreement shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such provisions nor the right of either party to enforce each and 
every provision. Furthermore, no term or provision shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall 
be in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented. Any consent by any party to, or waiver of, a breach by the 
other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver of or excuse for any other, different or subsequent breach. 

 
3.2.27 Current Revenues  

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any ensuing Agreement do not constitute a general obligation or indebtedness for 
which County is obligated to levy, pledge, or collect any of taxation.  It is understood and agreed that Williamson County shall have the 
right to terminate the Contract and any ensuing Agreement at the end of any Williamson County fiscal year if the governing of 
Williamson County does not appropriate sufficient funds as determined by Williamson County’s budget for the fiscal year in question. 
Williamson County may affect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the Successful Respondent at the end of its 
then-current fiscal year. 

 

3.2.28 Binding Effect  

This Contract and any ensuing Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties and their respective permitted 
assigns and successors. 

 

3.2.29 Assignment  

The Successful Respondent’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party without the express 
written consent of Williamson County. 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Bid 1606-093Williamson County, Texas

7/21/2016 8:59 AM p. 22



RFP Standard Documents 
 

3.2.30 General Obligations and Reliance  

Successful Respondent shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably inferable and necessary for 
completion and provision of the services and goods required hereunder. The Successful Respondent shall keep the County 
informed of the progress and quality of the services and/or goods to be provided. Successful Respondent agrees and acknowledges 
that County is relying on Successful Respondent's represented expertise and abi l i ty  to  p r o v i d e  the goods and/or services 
desc r i bed  herein. Successful Respondent agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in 
accordance with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of County in accordance with County’s 
requirements and procedures. Successful   Respondent’s duties as set forth herein shall at no time be in any way diminished by 
reason of any approval by the County nor shall the Successful Respondent be released from any liability by reason of such 
approval by the County, it being understood that the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Respondent’s skill 
and knowledge in performing the services and providing any goods r e q u i r e d  hereunder. 

 

3.2.31 Contractual Development  

The Williamson County Commissioners Court may award the Contract  on  the  basis  of  the  initial  Proposals  received, without any 
further or  additional  discussions. Therefore, each initial Proposal should contain the Respondent’s best terms and offer. The contents 
of the RFP and the selected Proposal will become an integral part of the Contract, but may be modified, at Williamson County’s sole 
discretion, by provisions of an ensuing Agreement.  Therefore, the Respondent must agree to inclusion in an ensuing Agreement of the 
Proposal Specifications, Terms and Conditions of this RFP. Williamson County may, at its discretion, opt to conduct further discussions 
with responsible offerors and request the highest ranked firm’s Best and Final Offer. 

 

3.2.32 Entire Agreement  

The Contract and any ensuing Agreement shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral between the Successful Respondent 
and County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and understanding between the parties with respect to the services and/or 
goods to be provided. Each of the provisions herein shall be binding upon the parties and may not be waived, modified amended 
or altered except by w r i t i n g  signed by the Successful Respondent and County. 

 

3.2.33 Survivability  

All applicable agreements that were entered into between Respondent and Williamson County under the terms and conditions of the 
Contract and/or any ensuing Agreement shall survive the expiration or termination thereof for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has 
been awarded. 

 

3.2.34 Payment  

County’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by Chapter 2251 of the Texas Government Code. An invoice shall be 
deemed overdue the 31st day after the later of (1) the date County receives the goods under the Contract; (2) the date the 
performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or (3) the date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for 
the goods or services. Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by County in accordance with Texas Government 
Code Section 2251.025. More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late payment is the rate in effect on 
September 1 of County’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes due. The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to 
the sum of one percent (1%); and (2) the prime rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first day of July of the preceding 
fiscal year that does not fall on a Saturday or Sunday. 

In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by Successful Respondent, County shall notify Successful Respondent of the 
error not later than the twenty first (21st) day after the date County receives the invoice.  If the error is resolved in favor of Successful 
Respondent, Successful Respondent shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by 
Successful R e s p o n d e n t  beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue. If the error is resolved in favor 
of the County, Successful Respondent shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in accordance within the time set forth 
above. The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by 

Chapter 2251 of the Texas Government Code if the corrected invoice  is  not  paid  by  the  appropriate  date. As a minimum, invoices 
shall include: 

 Name, address, and telephone number of Successful Respondent and similar information in the event  the payment is to be 
made to a different address 

 County contract, Purchase Order, and/or delivery order number 
 Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract 
 Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices, and total amount 
 Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract 

Payment inquiries should be directed to the Williamson County Auditor's Office,  

 Accounts Payable Department: accountspayable@wilco.org, (512) 943-1500. 

Bid 1606-093Williamson County, Texas

7/21/2016 8:59 AM p. 23



RFP Standard Documents 
 

 

 
 

3.2.35 Contractual Formati on and Ensuing Agreement  

The RFP and the Respondent’s Proposal, when properly accepted by the Williamson County  Commissioners  Court,  shall constitute 
a contract equally binding between the Successful Respondent and Williamson County. The Successful Respondent may be 
required by Williamson County to sign an additional Agreement containing  terms  necessary  to  ensure  compliance with  the  
RFP  and  Respondent’s Proposal. 

 
THE RESPONDENT’S PROPOSAL SHOULD INCLUDE A SAMPLE CONTRACT, ANY  OR  ALL  ADDITIONAL AGREEMENTS 
OR TERMS AND CONDITIONS AT THE TIME THE RESPONDENT’S  PROPOSAL IS SUBMMITTED USING SEPARATE 
ATTACHED DOCUMENTS  FOR  THE  COUNTY’S  REVIEW AND CONSIDERATION.  

 
3.2.36 Legal Liability Information  

The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation or anticipated litigation that your 
firm is involved in, including but not limited to, potential or actual legal matters with private parties and any local, State, Federal or 
international governmental entities. Williamson County reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the 
recommendation of any proposed contract to the Williamson County Commissioners Court. 

 
3.2.37 Confidentiality  

Respondent expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may be obtained while working 
in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access unauthorized areas or confidential information and it 
will not disclose any information to unauthorized third parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times. 

Bid 1606-093Williamson County, Texas

7/21/2016 8:59 AM p. 24



5

6

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE
For vendor or other person doing business with local governmental entity Form CIQ

This questionnaire is being filed in accordance with chapter 176 of the Local 
Government Code by a person doing business with the governmental entity.

By law this questionnaire must be filed with the records administrator of the 
local government not later than the 7th business day after the date the person 

becomes aware of facts that require the statement to be filed. See Section 
176.006, Local Government Code.

A person commits an offense if the person violates Section 176.006, Local 
Government Code. An offense under this section is a Class C misdemeanor.

   Date Received 

OFFICE USE ONLY

1 Name of person doing business with local governmental entity.

2
Check this box if you are filing an update to a previously filed questionnaire.

(The law requires that you file an updated completed questionnaire with the appropriate filing authority not later than 

September 1 of the year for which an activity described in Section 176.006(a), Local Government Code, is pending and 

not later than the 7th business day after the date the originally filed questionnaire becomes incomplete or inaccurate.)

3
Describe each affiliation or business relationship with an employee or contractor of the local governmental entity 

who makes recommendations to a local government officer of the local governmental entity with respect to 
expenditure of money.

55

66

4
Describe each affiliation or business relationship with a person who is a local government officer and who 
appoints or employs a local government officer of the local governmental entity that is the subject of this 

questionnaire.

55

66

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE
For vendor or other person doing business with local governmental 

entity

Form CIQ
Page 2

5 Name of local government officer with whom filer has affiliation or business relationship. 
(Complete this section only if the answer to A, B, or C is YES.)

This section, item 5 including subparts A, B, C & D, must be completed for each officer with whom the filer has 
affiliation or other relationship. Attach additional pages to this Form CIQ as necessary.

A. Is the local government officer named in this section receiving or likely to receive taxable income from the filer 
of the questionnaire?

 Yes  No

B. Is the filer of the questionnaire receiving or likely to receive taxable income from or at the direction of the local 
government officer named in this section AND the taxable income is not from the local governmental entity?

 Yes  No

C. Is the filer of this questionnaire affiliated with a corporation or other business entity that the local government 
officer serves as an officer or director, or holds an ownership of 10 percent or more?

 Yes  No

D. Describe each affiliation or business relationship.

6. Describe any other affiliation or business relationship that might cause conflict of interest:

55

66

55

66

7

Signature of person doing business with the governmental entity Date

Signature not required if completing in BIDSYNC electronically.

Bid 1606-093Williamson County, Texas

7/21/2016 8:59 AM p. 25



5

6

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE
For vendor or other person doing business with local governmental entity Form CIQ

This questionnaire is being filed in accordance with chapter 176 of the Local 
Government Code by a person doing business with the governmental entity.

By law this questionnaire must be filed with the records administrator of the 
local government not later than the 7th business day after the date the person 

becomes aware of facts that require the statement to be filed. See Section 
176.006, Local Government Code.

A person commits an offense if the person violates Section 176.006, Local 
Government Code. An offense under this section is a Class C misdemeanor.

   Date Received 

OFFICE USE ONLY

1 Name of person doing business with local governmental entity.

2
Check this box if you are filing an update to a previously filed questionnaire.

(The law requires that you file an updated completed questionnaire with the appropriate filing authority not later than 

September 1 of the year for which an activity described in Section 176.006(a), Local Government Code, is pending and 

not later than the 7th business day after the date the originally filed questionnaire becomes incomplete or inaccurate.)

3
Describe each affiliation or business relationship with an employee or contractor of the local governmental entity 

who makes recommendations to a local government officer of the local governmental entity with respect to 
expenditure of money.

55

66

4
Describe each affiliation or business relationship with a person who is a local government officer and who 
appoints or employs a local government officer of the local governmental entity that is the subject of this 

questionnaire.

55

66

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE
For vendor or other person doing business with local governmental 

entity

Form CIQ
Page 2

5 Name of local government officer with whom filer has affiliation or business relationship. 
(Complete this section only if the answer to A, B, or C is YES.)

This section, item 5 including subparts A, B, C & D, must be completed for each officer with whom the filer has 
affiliation or other relationship. Attach additional pages to this Form CIQ as necessary.

A. Is the local government officer named in this section receiving or likely to receive taxable income from the filer 
of the questionnaire?

 Yes  No

B. Is the filer of the questionnaire receiving or likely to receive taxable income from or at the direction of the local 
government officer named in this section AND the taxable income is not from the local governmental entity?

 Yes  No

C. Is the filer of this questionnaire affiliated with a corporation or other business entity that the local government 
officer serves as an officer or director, or holds an ownership of 10 percent or more?

 Yes  No

D. Describe each affiliation or business relationship.

6. Describe any other affiliation or business relationship that might cause conflict of interest:

55

66

55

66

7

Signature of person doing business with the governmental entity Date

Signature not required if completing in BIDSYNC electronically.

Bid 1606-093Williamson County, Texas

7/21/2016 8:59 AM p. 26



5

6

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE
For vendor or other person doing business with local governmental entity Form CIQ

This questionnaire is being filed in accordance with chapter 176 of the Local 
Government Code by a person doing business with the governmental entity.

By law this questionnaire must be filed with the records administrator of the 
local government not later than the 7th business day after the date the person 

becomes aware of facts that require the statement to be filed. See Section 
176.006, Local Government Code.

A person commits an offense if the person violates Section 176.006, Local 
Government Code. An offense under this section is a Class C misdemeanor.

   Date Received 

OFFICE USE ONLY

1 Name of person doing business with local governmental entity.

2
Check this box if you are filing an update to a previously filed questionnaire.

(The law requires that you file an updated completed questionnaire with the appropriate filing authority not later than 

September 1 of the year for which an activity described in Section 176.006(a), Local Government Code, is pending and 

not later than the 7th business day after the date the originally filed questionnaire becomes incomplete or inaccurate.)

3
Describe each affiliation or business relationship with an employee or contractor of the local governmental entity 

who makes recommendations to a local government officer of the local governmental entity with respect to 
expenditure of money.

55

66

4
Describe each affiliation or business relationship with a person who is a local government officer and who 
appoints or employs a local government officer of the local governmental entity that is the subject of this 

questionnaire.

55

66

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE
For vendor or other person doing business with local governmental 

entity

Form CIQ
Page 2

5 Name of local government officer with whom filer has affiliation or business relationship. 
(Complete this section only if the answer to A, B, or C is YES.)

This section, item 5 including subparts A, B, C & D, must be completed for each officer with whom the filer has 
affiliation or other relationship. Attach additional pages to this Form CIQ as necessary.

A. Is the local government officer named in this section receiving or likely to receive taxable income from the filer 
of the questionnaire?

 Yes  No

B. Is the filer of the questionnaire receiving or likely to receive taxable income from or at the direction of the local 
government officer named in this section AND the taxable income is not from the local governmental entity?

 Yes  No

C. Is the filer of this questionnaire affiliated with a corporation or other business entity that the local government 
officer serves as an officer or director, or holds an ownership of 10 percent or more?

 Yes  No

D. Describe each affiliation or business relationship.

6. Describe any other affiliation or business relationship that might cause conflict of interest:

55

66

55

66

7

Signature of person doing business with the governmental entity Date

Signature not required if completing in BIDSYNC electronically.

Bid 1606-093Williamson County, Texas

7/21/2016 8:59 AM p. 27



5

6

Bidder References

List the last (3) companies or governmental agencies, where the same or similar
goods and/or services as contained in this IFB package, were recently provided
by Bidder.

Reference 1

Client Name:                                                         Location:

Contact Name:                                                      Title:

Phone:                                                                  E-mail

Contract Date To:                  Contract Date From:             Contract Value: $

Scope of Work:

Reference 2

Client Name:                                                         Location:

Contact Name:                                                      Title:

Phone:                                                                  E-mail

Contract Date To:                  Contract Date From:             Contract Value: $

Scope of Work:

Reference 3

Client Name:                                                         Location:

Contact Name:                                                      Title:

Phone:                                                                  E-mail

Contract Date To:                  Contract Date From:             Contract Value: $

Scope of Work:

55

66

55

66

55

66

Bid 1606-093Williamson County, Texas

7/21/2016 8:59 AM p. 28



5

6

Bidder References

List the last (3) companies or governmental agencies, where the same or similar
goods and/or services as contained in this IFB package, were recently provided
by Bidder.

Reference 1

Client Name:                                                         Location:

Contact Name:                                                      Title:

Phone:                                                                  E-mail

Contract Date To:                  Contract Date From:             Contract Value: $

Scope of Work:

Reference 2

Client Name:                                                         Location:

Contact Name:                                                      Title:

Phone:                                                                  E-mail

Contract Date To:                  Contract Date From:             Contract Value: $

Scope of Work:

Reference 3

Client Name:                                                         Location:

Contact Name:                                                      Title:

Phone:                                                                  E-mail

Contract Date To:                  Contract Date From:             Contract Value: $

Scope of Work:

55

66

55

66

55

66

Bid 1606-093Williamson County, Texas

7/21/2016 8:59 AM p. 29



5

6

PROPOSAL AFFIDAVIT

This form must be completed, signed, notarized and returned with Proposal package

The undersigned certi fies that the RFP and the Respondent ’s Proposal have been carefully reviewed and are 
submitted as correct and final.  Respondent further certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or 
services upon which prices are extended at the price Proposal, and upon the condit ions contained in the RFP.

STATE OF 

COUNTY OF 

BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, a Notary Public in and for the State of , on this day

personally appeared ,(Name of Signer), who after being by me duly sworn,

did depose and say: “I, , (Name of Signer) am a duly authorized officer of/agent

for (Name of Respondent) and have been duly authorized to execute the

foregoing on behalf of the said (Name of Respondent).

I hereby cert i fy that the foregoing Proposal has not been prepared in collusion with any other Respondent or
other person or persons engaged in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Proposal.
Further, I certi fy that the Respondent is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly
concerned in any pool or agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Proposal on, or
to influence any person or persons to submit a Proposal or not to submit a Proposal thereon. ”

Name of Respondent: 

Address of Respondent: 

Email:

Telephone#: 

By:

Printed Name:

Tit le:

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me by the above-named 

on this the day of  , 20 .

Notary Public in and for

The State of 

SIGNATURE AND NOTARY NOT REQUIRED IF COMPLETING IN BIDSYNC ELECTRONICALLY. 

Bid 1606-093Williamson County, Texas

7/21/2016 8:59 AM p. 30



5

6

PROPOSAL AFFIDAVIT

This form must be completed, signed, notarized and returned with Proposal package

The undersigned certi fies that the RFP and the Respondent ’s Proposal have been carefully reviewed and are 
submitted as correct and final.  Respondent further certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or 
services upon which prices are extended at the price Proposal, and upon the condit ions contained in the RFP.

STATE OF 

COUNTY OF 

BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, a Notary Public in and for the State of , on this day

personally appeared ,(Name of Signer), who after being by me duly sworn,

did depose and say: “I, , (Name of Signer) am a duly authorized officer of/agent

for (Name of Respondent) and have been duly authorized to execute the

foregoing on behalf of the said (Name of Respondent).

I hereby cert i fy that the foregoing Proposal has not been prepared in collusion with any other Respondent or
other person or persons engaged in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Proposal.
Further, I certi fy that the Respondent is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly
concerned in any pool or agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Proposal on, or
to influence any person or persons to submit a Proposal or not to submit a Proposal thereon. ”

Name of Respondent: 

Address of Respondent: 

Email:

Telephone#: 

By:

Printed Name:

Tit le:

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me by the above-named 

on this the day of  , 20 .

Notary Public in and for

The State of 

SIGNATURE AND NOTARY NOT REQUIRED IF COMPLETING IN BIDSYNC ELECTRONICALLY. 

Bid 1606-093Williamson County, Texas

7/21/2016 8:59 AM p. 31



COST PROPOSAL APPENDIX A 
 

THIS FORM MUST BE COMPLETED AND RETURNED WITH PROPOSAL 
 
The undersigned Respondent, having become familiar with this RFP agrees to furnish the services and/or goods in 
accordance with this RFP at the following rate(s). 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Name and Address of Respondent:  
 

 
 
 

Telephone, email address______________________________________ 

 

Signature:    

 

Printed Name:    
 

Title:    

 
 
 

Markup cost percentage per 
hour for each position 
provided 
 

Bid 1606-093Williamson County, Texas

7/21/2016 8:59 AM p. 32



JOB DESCRIPTIONS APPENDIX B 
 

Position Name Position Description hourly 
pay  

Supervisor, Early Voting (EV) Early Voting Supervisors are responsible for overall supervision 
and set up of the Early Voting polling location. This position 
involves the ability to lift and move voting equipment weighing 
approx. 50 lbs., sitting at a table or other workstation, working 
at a computer, and standing. Must be over 18, registered 
voters of the County and have the ability to read and write in 
English in order to fill out the required paperwork and assist 
voters. Work is generally performed for a 2-week period and 
may include days as long as 15 hours. 

$12  

Alternate Supervisor, EV Early Voting Alternate Supervisors assist the Supervisors as 
assigned and must be ready to assume the duties of the 
Supervisor if the need arises. This position involves the ability 
to lift and move voting equipment weighing approx. 50 lbs., 
sitting at a sitting at a table or other workstation, working at a 
computer, and standing.  Must be over 18, registered voters of 
the County and have the ability to read and write in English in 
order to fill out the required paperwork and assist voters. Work 
is generally performed for a 2-week period and may include 
days as long as 15 hours. 

$10  

Clerks, EV Clerks perform duties in the polling location as assigned by the 
Supervisor including checking in voters and activating ballots 
on voting equipment. This position involves sitting at a table or 
other workstation, working at a computer, and standing.  Must 
be over 18, registered voters of the County and have the ability 
to read and write in English in order to fill out the required 
paperwork and assist voters. Work is generally performed for a 
2-week period and may include days as long as 15 hours. 

$10  

Student Clerks, EV Student Clerks perform duties in the polling location as 
assigned by the Supervisor including checking in voters and 
activating ballots on voting equipment. This position involves 
sitting at a table or other workstation, working at a computer, 
and standing.  Must be between 16 but not yet 18 and have the 
ability to read and write in English in order to fill out the 
required paperwork and assist voters. Work is generally 
performed for a 2-week period and may include days as long as 
14 hours. 

$10  

Supervisor, Mobile - EV Early Voting Mobile Supervisors are responsible for overall 
supervision of the Early Voting polling location. The mobile 
position requires the set up and breakdown of a polling place 
located in multiple locations throughout the Early Voting 
period. This position involves the ability to lift and move voting 
equipment weighing approx. 50 lbs., sitting at a table or other 
workstation, working at a computer, and standing.  Must be 
over 18, registered voters of the County and have the ability to 
read and write in English in order to fill out the required 
paperwork and assist voters. Work is generally performed for a 
2-week period and may include days as long as 11 hours. 
 

$14  

Bid 1606-093Williamson County, Texas

7/21/2016 8:59 AM p. 33



Position Name Position Description hourly 
pay  

Alternate Supervisor, Mobile - EV Early Voting Alternate Supervisors assist the Supervisors as 
assigned and must be ready to assume the duties of the 
Supervisor if the need arises. The mobile position requires the 
set up and breakdown of a polling place located in multiple 
locations throughout the Early Voting period. This position 
involves the ability to lift and move voting equipment weighing 
approx. 50 lbs., sitting at a table or other workstation, working 
at a computer, and standing. Must be over 18, registered 
voters of the County and have the ability to read and write in 
English in order to fill out the required paperwork and assist 
voters. Work is generally performed for a 2-week period and 
may include days as long as 11 hours. 

$12  

Clerks, Mobile - EV Clerks perform duties in the polling location as assigned by the 
Supervisor including checking in voters and activating ballots 
on voting equipment. Clerks working on the mobile team work 
in multiple locations throughout the Early Voting period. This 
position involves sitting at a table or other workstation, 
working at a computer, and standing.  Must be over 18, 
registered voters of the County and have the ability to read and 
write in English in order to fill out the required paperwork and 
assist voters. Work is generally performed for a 2-week period 
and may include days as long as 11 hours. 

$12  

Judge, Election Day (ED) Judges are responsible for overall supervision and set up of the 
polling location. This position involves the ability to lift and 
move voting equipment weighing approx. 50 lbs., sitting at a 
table or other workstation, working at a computer, and 
standing.  Must be over 18, registered voters of the County and 
have the ability to read and write in English in order to fill out 
the required paperwork and assist voters. 

$12  

Alternate Judge, ED The Alternate Judge assists the Judge as assigned and must be 
ready to assume the duties of the Judge if the need arises. This 
position involves the ability to lift and move voting equipment 
weighing approx. 50 lbs., sitting at a table or other workstation, 
working at a computer, and standing.  Must be over 18, 
registered voters of the County and have the ability to read and 
write in English in order to fill out the required paperwork and 
assist voters. 

$10  

Clerks, ED Clerks perform duties in the polling location as assigned by the 
Judge including checking in voters and activating ballots on 
voting equipment. This position involves sitting at a table or 
other workstation, working at a computer, and standing.  Must 
be over 18, registered voters of the County and have the ability 
to read and write in English in order to fill out the required 
paperwork and assist voters. 

$10  

Student Clerks, ED Student Clerks perform duties in the polling location as 
assigned by the Judge including checking in voters and 
activating ballots on voting equipment. This position involves 
sitting at a table or other workstation, working at a computer, 
and standing.  Must be between 16 but not yet 18 and have the 
ability to read and write in English in order to fill out the 
required paperwork and assist voters. 

$10  

Bid 1606-093Williamson County, Texas

7/21/2016 8:59 AM p. 34



Position Name Position Description hourly 
pay  

Field Techs, EV and ED Field Technicians are dispatched to assigned polling locations 
to bring supplies and troubleshoot issues with voting 
equipment.  This position involves the ability to operate a 
motor vehicle, lift and move voting equipment weighing 
approx. 50 lbs., sitting, standing, walking, reaching, twisting, 
turning, kneeling, bending, squatting, and stooping in the 
performance of the job. 

$14  

Central Count, Judge The Central Count Judge maintains order at Central Counting 
Station, confers with and advises the Central Count Manager or 
Elections Administrator on activities at the Central Counting 
Station.  This position involves sitting at a desk or other 
workstation, walking, and standing 

$12  

Central Count, Alternate Judge The Central Count Alternate Judge assists the Central Count 
Judge with duties as assigned and must be ready to assume the 
duties of the Judge if the need arises. This position involves 
sitting at a desk or other workstation, walking, and standing. 

$10  

Central Count (inside) Inside Central Count workers perform clerical duties as 
assigned by the Central Count Manager. This position involves 
sitting at a desk, table, or other workstation, standing, bending, 
filing and sorting.  May require lifting of boxes up to 50lbs. 

$10  

Central Count (outside) Outside Central Count workers receive and retrieve voting 
supplies from vehicles of Judges. This position involves the 
ability to lift and move voting equipment weighing approx. 50 
lbs., sitting, standing, walking, reaching, twisting, turning, 
kneeling, bending, squatting, and stooping in the performance 
of this job and working outside. 

$10  

Central Count (Team Leader, outside) Supervises outside Central Count workers in the unloading of 
vehicles and clears Judge once all items have been received.  
This position requires attention to detail, the ability to stand 
for an extended period of time, walking, reaching, twisting, 
turning, kneeling, bending, squatting, and stooping in the 
performance of this job and working outside. 

$12  

Public Test Public Test workers input a designated number of votes into 
electronic voting equipment to test the accuracy of the 
machines. This position involves sitting for a period of time in 
front of electronic voting equipment and standing. 

$10  

Judge, Early Voting Ballot Board 
(EVBB) 

The Early Voting Ballot Board Judge maintains order at all Ballot 
Boards, observes the tabulation of Early Voting ballots and 
oversees the duplication and resolution process.  This position 
involves sitting at a desk, table, or other workstation, working 
at a computer, sorting and counting ballots, and operating mail 
opener equipment. 

$12  

Alternate Judge, EVBB The Early Voting Ballot Board Alternate Judge assists the Early 
Voting Ballot Board Judge with duties as assigned and must be 
ready to assume the duties of the Judge if the need arises. This 
position involves sitting at a desk, table, or other workstation, 
working at a computer, sorting and counting ballots, and 
operating mail opener equipment. 
 
 

$10  

Bid 1606-093Williamson County, Texas

7/21/2016 8:59 AM p. 35



Position Name Position Description hourly 
pay  

Clerks, EVBB Early Voting Ballot Board clerks meet to verify seals on some 
Early Voting supplies and to verify signatures on mail ballots.  
This position involves sitting at a desk, table, or other 
workstation, working at a computer, sorting and counting 
ballots, and operating mail opener equipment. 

$10  

Security Manages traffic at the entrance and exit to the street and 
parking lot where Judges are driving to follow the route for 
picking up or returning election supplies.  Provides security at 
the pick-up or drop-off points and in the Building and traffic 
control.  This position includes walking, standing, sitting, and 
working outside.  Must have the ability to manage physical 
restraint situations and be able to hear audible sounds such as 
normal conversations, alarms and radio transmissions. 

$40 with 
a   4 hour 
minimum 

Warehouse Warehouse workers perform duties as assigned by the 
Warehouse Manager to prepare voting equipment and supplies 
to dispatch to our polling locations and to receive items back 
into the warehouse. This position involves the ability to lift and 
move voting equipment weighing approx. 50 lbs., operate a 
motor vehicle, possibly operate a county-owned van or lift 
truck, use copy machine, attention to detail, prolonged sitting, 
counting, driving, standing, walking, reaching, twisting, turning, 
kneeling, bending, squatting, and stooping in the performance 
of the job. 

$10-
$12.50 

Data Entry/Scanning Data Entry/Scanning workers use computers to input voter 
registration applications and other voter related materials into 
our database and scan images using a batch or desktop 
scanner. This position involves prolonged sitting at a desk or 
other workstation, typing, scanning and standing. 

$12  

Phone Bank Phone Bank workers operate multi-line telephones to answer 
questions and provide information to people calling into the 
office. They may use computers to look up information in our 
database or on the internet (website) and input call 
information into support software. This position involves 
prolonged sitting at a desk or other workstation, computer use, 
typing, and standing 

$12  

 

Bid 1606-093Williamson County, Texas

7/21/2016 8:59 AM p. 36



55

66

Question and Answers for Bid #1606-093 - Payroll Services for existing Temporary Labor for 
the Elections Administration 

Overall Bid Questions

There are no questions associated with this bid.   

Bid 1606-093Williamson County, Texas

7/21/2016 8:59 AM p. 37



   

Commissioners Court - Special Session   56.           
Meeting Date: 07/28/2016  

Approve Merchant Agreement
Submitted For: Max Bricka  Submitted By: Sydney Richardson, Purchasing
Department: Purchasing
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving an Agreement between Automated Merchant Systems,
Inc. and Williamson County, for Merchant Processing Services and authorizing the County Judge to sign any
related documents.

Background
The Eagle Recording Product from Tyler Technologies has the ability to receive payments through the product's
embedded cashiering processes and through a public facing web site called Eagle Web. These payment points are
enabled with electronic payment processing when the ecommerce module is licensed. Williamson County has
contracted with Tyler Technologies for the Eagle Product which includes the payments processing module.

This module provides payments processing through Automated Merchant Systems (AMS) and gateway integration
to the Eagle Recording database through BridgePay. The service/convenience/credit card payment processing
fees are collected by the AMS Payment Processor and the County only receives from the customer what is owed to
the County Clerk's Office minus any payment processing fees.

There are no fees to the County for implementing AMS Payment Processor as part of Eagle Recording's online and
over-the-counter payment processing module.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Contract - AMS Merrick Bank
Addendum 1 - AMS Merrick Location
Addendum 2 - AMS Merrick Location
Recommendation Letter

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Wendy Coco 07/21/2016 11:52 AM
Form Started By: Sydney Richardson Started On: 07/21/2016 11:14 AM
Final Approval Date: 07/21/2016 





















AAMMSS  --  MMEERRRRIICCKK  LLOOCCAATTIIOONN  AADDDDEENNDDUUMM  
 

PRIMARY MERCHANT INFORMATION: Location No: 1   Date:       

Legal Name: Williamson County Bank Chain: 101803  

Main Contact: Nancy Rister Title: County Clerk Merchant Number: 317730288406  
   (Assigned Upon Approval)  

 

LOCATION  INFORMATION:  
DBA: Williamson Co Clerk OTC Statement DBA (23 Chr. Max): Williamson Co Clerk OTC  

   

Main Contact: Chester Holten Email: cholten@wilcon.org  

Title: Recording Manager Phone #: (512) 943-1515 Fax #: (512) 943-1616  

Location Address: 405 MLK Street City: Georgetown ST: TX Zip: 78626  

Mailing Address: 405 MLK Street City: Georgetown ST: TX Zip: 78626  

Customer Service Phone Number: (512) 943-1515 SIC: 9399 Sales Rep: Nancy Murphy 1030  

Avg Ticket: $38.19 Max: _______
 

Monthly Vol: $14,000.00 Swipe % 85 Keyed % 10 MOTO % 5 Internet % 0  

Merchant Products or Services Offered (be specific): Recorder 

Terminal / Payment Application: Eagle Recorder Version: ________ 

Does Merchant Use Independent Servicer (store, maintain, or transmits cardholder data)?  ________ (if yes, provide the following) 

Servicer / Payment App. Manufacturer: BridgePay / Tyler Technologies Phone:       

American Express (10 Digits): ________  Apply for American Express  
              
Program: Service Fees: Account Name: AMS*Service Fee MID: 730288422 Rate: 3.00% Service Fee with a $2.00 minimum per transaction  
  
SITE INFORMATION:  
Merchant Type:  Retail 

Building Type: Office Building Area Zoned: Commercial Square Footage: More Than 10000 Merchant: Owns 
  

Landlord: ________ Contact: ________ Phone: ________  

Fulfillment Co. ________ Contact:       Phone: ________  

This Location is Open for Business:      Yes       No Inspected By:       Date:        

  
MOTO – ECOMMERCE QUESTIONNAIRE Complete if Processing Less Than 70 % Card Present 

Sell To: Business: 0 %     Public: 100 % ________ Does the Merchant Own Product/Inventory? ________ 

Marketing:   ________ Are Products Stored at the Business Location? ________ 

    If No, Where? ________ 

Orders Processed by: ________ If Processing Internet Transactions (Please Complete The Following) 
Cards Processed by: ________ Internet transactions encrypted by SSL or Better? ________ 

When is the cardholder Charged? ________ Digital Certificate Utilized? ________ Exp Date: ________ 

How many days to fulfill orders?    ________ Certificate Number: ________ 

Shipped by: ________  Certificate Issuer: ________  ________ 

Products Shipped by:   ________ URL: www.wilco.org 
Delivery Receipt Requested? ________ 
  
  

DDA BANK ACCOUNT INFORMATION:  
 

This area should be completed for Added/Subsequent locations with DDA other than main location.  Please Include a Voided Check. 
If this is a "Deposit Only" account then a letter from the Financial Institution verifying Transit and Routing Number and DDA# is required. 

 

Account Type:  ACH Deposit Routing/Transit #  ACH Deposit Account Number  Bank Name: 
C K   _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _   _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _   Wells Fargo 

Account Type:  ACH Fees Routing/Transit #  ACH Fees Account Number  Contact:                                             Phone: 
C K   _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _   _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _   ________ ________ 

  

 
Merchant hereby authorizes Merrick and Automated Merchant Systems, Inc. to initiate credit and/or debit entries for amounts originating under the Merchant 
Processing Agreement (via ACH or otherwise) including any reversals or adjustments on original entries to the Merchant's Bank Account (as defined in the Merchant 
Processing Agreement).                                                                        NOTE:  Attach Voided Check 
      

The Merchant agrees to abide by the terms & conditions contained in the Merchant Processing Agreement signed on ________, provided, however, that the term of 
the Merchant Processing Agreement relating to the above-referenced Additional Location shall be for the same length of time as the initial Term (defined in the 
Merchant Processing Agreement), and such Initial Term for the Additional Location shall commence on the date signed by Officer/Owner, indicated below. 
 

                        
 Printed Officer/Owner Name  Signature  Title  Date  

 

Rev 10/2015 



 

 

Merrick Bank – Underwriting Checklist 
 

Merchant ID: 317730288406 DBA Name: Williamson Co Clerk OTC 
 
An Volume:  Avg Tkt: $ $38.19 MCC: 9399 Swipe % 85 MO/TO % 5 Internet % 0 Imprint % 10 
 

Low Volume-Low Risk      High Volume-Low Risk      Low Volume-High Risk      High Volume-High Risk 
 

Core Documentation Requirements for All Accounts: 
  Signed and Completed Merchant Application   Signed Bank Disclosure 

  Fee Schedule    Personal Guarantee 

  Preprinted Check or Bank Reference Letter   Site Survey 

  MATCH Inquiry   OFAC query 

  IRS TIN Matching  

  Credit Report(s) for Principal(s) with FICO or Beacon scores:                 Auto Approval:   Yes   No 

Additional Required Documents for High Volume- Low Risk Accounts: 

  Business Financials                  If N/A, check here   N/A (Volume less than $1 Million Monthly) 
 Business Credit Report  N/A (May be required at discretion of the Bank) 
  Personal Financial Statement   If N/A, check here   N/A (Business longevity exceeds 1 Year) 
  Processing Statements  

Additional Required Documents for Low Volume-High Risk Accounts: 

 Articles of Incorporation              If N/A, check here    N/A (Sole Proprietorship or Partnership) 
 Business Financials                      If N/A, check here    N/A (Volume less than $75,000. Monthly) 
 Business Credit Report                 If N/A, check here    N/A (Volume less than $150,000. Monthly) 
 MO/TO Questionnaire  Brochures 

Additional Required Documents for High Volume-High Risk Accounts: 
  Personal Financial Statement of Signor   3 Months’ Bank Statements (Most current) 
  2 Months Processing Statements (Most current)   Primary Supplier Reference (If applicable) 
  Executive Summary   Business Credit Report 
  Business Credit Report on ‘Fulfillment House’   N/A (No Fulfillment House is used) 

Internet Questionnaire 

Website(s): See Location Form for URL   Website requirements printed out and placed with the file.       

Secured Lock       Yes     No Privacy Policy  Yes     No     N/A 
Return Policy       Yes     No     N/A Terms and Agreement  Yes     No     N/A 
URL Re-directs    Yes     No     N/A Site is Informational Only  
3rd Party Software Name & Version:       PA or PCI DSS Compliant  Yes    No 

Gateway:            PA DSS Compliant  Yes    No 

Is Merchant PCI DSS Compliant:  Yes   No Name of QSA / ASV: Security Metrics 
  

 

Unlawful Internet Gambling Enforcement Act (UIGEA) 
Prospective merchant presents minimal risk of engaging in Internet gambling               Yes    No 
 
Comments and Signature Panel   

  

Waived Items:       

(Print Name, Sign & Date) 
 



AAMMSS  --  MMEERRRRIICCKK  LLOOCCAATTIIOONN  AADDDDEENNDDUUMM  
 

PRIMARY MERCHANT INFORMATION: Location No: 2   Date:       

Legal Name: Williamson County Bank Chain: 101803  

Main Contact: Nancy Rister Title: County Clerk Merchant Number: 317730288419  
   (Assigned Upon Approval)  

 

LOCATION  INFORMATION:  
DBA: Williamson Co Clerk WEB Statement DBA (23 Chr. Max): Williamson Co Clerk WEB  

   

Main Contact: Chester Holten Email: cholten@wilcon.org  

Title: Recording Manager Phone #: (512) 943-1515 Fax #: (512) 943-1616  

Location Address: 405 MLK Street City: Georgetown ST: TX Zip: 78626  

Mailing Address: 405 MLK Street City: Georgetown ST: TX Zip: 78626  

Customer Service Phone Number: (512) 943-1515 SIC: 9399 Sales Rep: Nancy Murphy 1030  

Avg Ticket: $38.19 Max: _______
 

Monthly Vol: $14,000.00 Swipe % 0 Keyed % 0 MOTO % 0 Internet % 100  

Merchant Products or Services Offered (be specific): Records 

Terminal / Payment Application: Eagle Recorder Version: ________ 

Does Merchant Use Independent Servicer (store, maintain, or transmits cardholder data)?  ________ (if yes, provide the following) 

Servicer / Payment App. Manufacturer: BridgePay / Tyler Technologies Phone:       

American Express (10 Digits): ________  Apply for American Express  
              
Program: Service Fees: Account Name: AMS*Service Fee MID: 730288435 Rate: 3.00% Service Fee with a $2.00 minimum per transaction  
  
SITE INFORMATION:  
Merchant Type:  Internet Website 

Building Type: Office Building Area Zoned: Commercial Square Footage: More Than 10000 Merchant: Owns 
  

Landlord: ________ Contact: ________ Phone: ________  

Fulfillment Co. ________ Contact:       Phone: ________  

This Location is Open for Business:      Yes       No Inspected By:       Date:        

  
MOTO – ECOMMERCE QUESTIONNAIRE Complete if Processing Less Than 70 % Card Present 

Sell To: Business: 0 %     Public: 100 % Locally Does the Merchant Own Product/Inventory? YES 

Marketing:   ________ Are Products Stored at the Business Location? YES 

    If No, Where? ________ 

Orders Processed by: Merchant If Processing Internet Transactions (Please Complete The Following) 
Cards Processed by: Merchant Internet transactions encrypted by SSL or Better? YES 

When is the cardholder Charged? Time of Order Digital Certificate Utilized? YES Exp Date: ________ 

How many days to fulfill orders?    1 - 7 Days Certificate Number: ________ 

Shipped by: Merchant  Certificate Issuer: ________  Individual 

Products Shipped by:   U.P.S. URL: https://www.wilco.com 
Delivery Receipt Requested? NO 
  
  

DDA BANK ACCOUNT INFORMATION:  
 

This area should be completed for Added/Subsequent locations with DDA other than main location.  Please Include a Voided Check. 
If this is a "Deposit Only" account then a letter from the Financial Institution verifying Transit and Routing Number and DDA# is required. 

 

Account Type:  ACH Deposit Routing/Transit #  ACH Deposit Account Number  Bank Name: 
C K   _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _   _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _   Wells Fargo 

Account Type:  ACH Fees Routing/Transit #  ACH Fees Account Number  Contact:                                             Phone: 
C K   _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _   _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _   ________ ________ 

  

 
Merchant hereby authorizes Merrick and Automated Merchant Systems, Inc. to initiate credit and/or debit entries for amounts originating under the Merchant 
Processing Agreement (via ACH or otherwise) including any reversals or adjustments on original entries to the Merchant's Bank Account (as defined in the Merchant 
Processing Agreement).                                                                        NOTE:  Attach Voided Check 
      

The Merchant agrees to abide by the terms & conditions contained in the Merchant Processing Agreement signed on ________, provided, however, that the term of 
the Merchant Processing Agreement relating to the above-referenced Additional Location shall be for the same length of time as the initial Term (defined in the 
Merchant Processing Agreement), and such Initial Term for the Additional Location shall commence on the date signed by Officer/Owner, indicated below. 
 

                        
 Printed Officer/Owner Name  Signature  Title  Date  

 

Rev 10/2015 



 

 

Merrick Bank – Underwriting Checklist 
 

Merchant ID: 317730288419 DBA Name: Williamson Co Clerk WEB 
 
An Volume:  Avg Tkt: $ $38.19 MCC: 9399 Swipe % 0 MO/TO % 0 Internet % 100 Imprint % 0 
 

Low Volume-Low Risk      High Volume-Low Risk      Low Volume-High Risk      High Volume-High Risk 
 

Core Documentation Requirements for All Accounts: 
  Signed and Completed Merchant Application   Signed Bank Disclosure 

  Fee Schedule    Personal Guarantee 

  Preprinted Check or Bank Reference Letter   Site Survey 

  MATCH Inquiry   OFAC query 

  IRS TIN Matching  

  Credit Report(s) for Principal(s) with FICO or Beacon scores:                 Auto Approval:   Yes   No 

Additional Required Documents for High Volume- Low Risk Accounts: 

  Business Financials                  If N/A, check here   N/A (Volume less than $1 Million Monthly) 
 Business Credit Report  N/A (May be required at discretion of the Bank) 
  Personal Financial Statement   If N/A, check here   N/A (Business longevity exceeds 1 Year) 
  Processing Statements  

Additional Required Documents for Low Volume-High Risk Accounts: 

 Articles of Incorporation              If N/A, check here    N/A (Sole Proprietorship or Partnership) 
 Business Financials                      If N/A, check here    N/A (Volume less than $75,000. Monthly) 
 Business Credit Report                 If N/A, check here    N/A (Volume less than $150,000. Monthly) 
 MO/TO Questionnaire  Brochures 

Additional Required Documents for High Volume-High Risk Accounts: 
  Personal Financial Statement of Signor   3 Months’ Bank Statements (Most current) 
  2 Months Processing Statements (Most current)   Primary Supplier Reference (If applicable) 
  Executive Summary   Business Credit Report 
  Business Credit Report on ‘Fulfillment House’   N/A (No Fulfillment House is used) 

Internet Questionnaire 

Website(s): See Location Form for URL   Website requirements printed out and placed with the file.       

Secured Lock       Yes     No Privacy Policy  Yes     No     N/A 
Return Policy       Yes     No     N/A Terms and Agreement  Yes     No     N/A 
URL Re-directs    Yes     No     N/A Site is Informational Only  
3rd Party Software Name & Version:       PA or PCI DSS Compliant  Yes    No 

Gateway:            PA DSS Compliant  Yes    No 

Is Merchant PCI DSS Compliant:  Yes   No Name of QSA / ASV: Security Metrics 
  

 

Unlawful Internet Gambling Enforcement Act (UIGEA) 
Prospective merchant presents minimal risk of engaging in Internet gambling               Yes    No 
 
Comments and Signature Panel   

  

Waived Items:       

(Print Name, Sign & Date) 
 





   

Commissioners Court - Special Session   57.           
Meeting Date: 07/28/2016  

Animal Shelter Donations BA 07-26-2016
Submitted For: Melanie Denny  Submitted By: Tomika Lynce, County Auditor
Department: County Auditor
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on an order declaring an emergency and a grave necessity due to
unforeseeable circumstances and approve a budget amendment acknowledging additional revenues for Animal
Shelter Donations:

Background
This is for donation collections from April through June 2016.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount
0546.0000.367404 Animal Shelter Donations $20,185.95

0546.0000.367440 Jane's Fund Donations $19,734.53

0546.0000.367441 ASPCA Donations $0.00

0546.0000.367442 Play Yard Donation $7,416.30

0546.0000.367443 Heart Worm Trmt Donations $6,510.61

0546.0000.367445 Sit Team Donations $0.00

0546.0000.370150 Sale of Pet Care Products $453.77

Attachments
No file(s) attached.

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Wendy Coco 07/21/2016 09:45 AM
Form Started By: Tomika Lynce Started On: 07/19/2016 09:33 AM
Final Approval Date: 07/21/2016 



   

Commissioners Court - Special Session   58.           
Meeting Date: 07/28/2016  

Animal Shelter Donations BA 07-26-2016
Submitted For: Melanie Denny  Submitted By: Tomika Lynce, County Auditor
Department: County Auditor
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on an order declaring an emergency and a grave necessity due to
unforeseeable circumstances and approve a budget amendment acknowledging additional expenditures for the
use of Animal Shelter Donations:

Background
This is a for donation collections from April through June 2016.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount
0546.0546.003510 Purchases for Resale $453.77

0546.0546.003670 Use of Donations $20,185.95

0546.0546.004100 Professional Services $19,734.53

0546.0546.004109 Special Needs $0.00

0546.0546.004232 Training $0.00

0546.0546.004509 Facility Enhancements $7,416.30

0546.0546.004975 Animal Medical Care $6,510.61

Attachments
No file(s) attached.

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Wendy Coco 07/21/2016 09:45 AM
Form Started By: Tomika Lynce Started On: 07/19/2016 09:52 AM
Final Approval Date: 07/21/2016 



   

Commissioners Court - Special Session   59.           
Meeting Date: 07/28/2016  

Parks Donations BA 07-26-2016
Submitted For: Melanie Denny  Submitted By: Tomika Lynce, County Auditor
Department: County Auditor
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on an order declaring an emergency and a grave necessity due to
unforeseeable circumstances and approve a budget amendment to acknowledge additional revenues for Park
Donations.

Background
Donations include $50.00 from the Austin Royals and $61.00 for firewood from various patrons.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount
0100.0000.367403 Park Donations $111.00

Attachments
No file(s) attached.

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Wendy Coco 07/21/2016 09:45 AM
Form Started By: Tomika Lynce Started On: 07/19/2016 10:13 AM
Final Approval Date: 07/21/2016 



   

Commissioners Court - Special Session   60.           
Meeting Date: 07/28/2016  

Park Donations BA 07-26-2016
Submitted For: Melanie Denny  Submitted By: Tomika Lynce, County Auditor
Department: County Auditor
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on an order declaring an emergency and a grave necessity due to
unforeseeable circumstances and approve a budget amendment to acknowledge additional expenditures for Park
Donations:

Background
Donations include $50.00 from the Austin Royals and $61.00 for firewood from various patrons.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount
0100.0510.003670 Park Donations $111.00

Attachments
No file(s) attached.

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Wendy Coco 07/21/2016 09:45 AM
Form Started By: Tomika Lynce Started On: 07/19/2016 10:33 AM
Final Approval Date: 07/21/2016 



   

Commissioners Court - Special Session   61.           
Meeting Date: 07/28/2016  

Economic Development
Submitted For: Charlie Crossfield  Submitted By: Charlie Crossfield, Road Bond
Department: Road Bond
Agenda Category: Executive Session

Information
Agenda Item
Discussion regarding economic development negotiations pursuant to Texas Government Code, Section 551.087:
a) Business prospect(s) that may locate or expand within Williamson County.
b) Discuss Pearson Road District.
c) Discuss North Woods Road District.
d) Discuss Kaufman Loop.
e) Discuss Project Deliver
f) Project Fiji
g) Leander Medical Center
h) Leander/Reagan TIRZ

Background

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
No file(s) attached.

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Wendy Coco 07/21/2016 10:08 AM
Form Started By: Charlie Crossfield Started On: 07/21/2016 09:47 AM
Final Approval Date: 07/21/2016 



   

Commissioners Court - Special Session   62.           
Meeting Date: 07/28/2016  

Executive Session
Submitted For: Charlie Crossfield  Submitted By: Charlie Crossfield, Road Bond
Department: Road Bond
Agenda Category: Executive Session

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss real estate matters (EXECUTIVE SESSION as per VTCA Govt. Code sec. 551.072 Deliberation Regarding
Real Estate Property if deliberation in an open meeting would have a detrimental effect on the position of the
governmental body in negotiations with third person.
A. Real Estate Owned by Third Parties
1. Preliminary discussions relating to proposed or potential purchase or lease of property owned by third parties
a) Discuss proposed acquisition of property for right-of-way for SH 195 
b) Discuss proposed acquisition of property for proposed SH 29 project.
c) Discuss proposed acquisition of property for SW 183 and SH 29 Loop. 
d) Discuss possible acquisition of property with endangered species for mitigation purposes.
e) Discuss the acquisition of real property: SW Bypass
f) Discuss the acquisition of real property: Neenah Blvd.
g) Discuss the acquisition of real property: CR 111
h) Discuss the acquisition of real property: Tradesman Park.
i) Discuss the acquisition of real property for proposed CR 110 project. (All sections)
j) Discuss the acquisition of real property: CR 258
k) Discuss the acquisition of real property: Inner Loop.
l) Discuss the acquisition of real property for County Facilities.
m) Discuss the acquisition of real property for DB Wood Rd. (Sneed Loop)
n) Discuss the acquisition of Easement interests on CR 240. 
o) Discuss the acquisition of Easement interests for the Brushy Creek Trail Project. 
p) Discuss the acquisition of real property for Bill Pickett Trail.
q) Discuss the acquisition of real property: Arterial H
r) Discuss the acquisition of easements on the Forest North project.
s) Discuss potential acquisition of property located at NEC of Toll 130 and Gattis School Rd. 
t) Discuss utilities for CR 305 at IH 35 and Reagan at IH35 projects.
u) Discuss easement acquisitions from San Gabriel River Ranch Subdivision.

B. Property or Real Estate owned by Williamson County
1). Preliminary discussions relating to proposed or potential sale or lease of property owned by the County
a) Discuss County owned real estate containing underground water rights and interests.
b) Discuss the proposed sale of portion of county property on Inner Loop opposite Maintenance Building.
c) Discuss possible sale of 183 A excess right of way
d) Discuss proposed sale of real estate of Blue Springs Blvd
e) Discuss abandonment of CR359. 
f) Discuss proposed sale of an easement to Enterprise Crude Pipeline LLC. 

C. Consider intervention in lawsuit regarding de-listing of Bone Cave harvestman. 

Background

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments



No file(s) attached.

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Wendy Coco 07/21/2016 10:08 AM
Form Started By: Charlie Crossfield Started On: 07/21/2016 09:46 AM
Final Approval Date: 07/21/2016 


	Agenda
	Line Item Transfer
	LIT for postage
	WCEMS LIT for movement of grant funds to corrected line item
	LIne Item transfer for Adult Probation
	WCEMS LIT for pharmaceuticals
	Line Item transfer
	Line Item Transfer
	Line Item Transfer
	Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on a line item transfer for Technology Services
	Asset Transfer
	ATT_Asset Transfer
	Asset Transfer
	ATT_Asset Transfer
	Constable
	ATT_Ryan P. Lloyd Bio
	Treasurer's Report June 2016
	ATT_Treasurer Report June 2016
	Justice of the Peace 4 JUNE 2016 Monthly Report
	ATT_JP4 EOM JUNE 2016
	Recognize completion of required continuing education hours for the Tax Assessor Collector
	ATT_CE Hours
	Property Tax Collections _ June 2016
	ATT_060116-063016 GWI-RFM
	ATT_060116-063016 GWI-RFM Graph
	Property Tax Refunds _ Over 2500 _ June 2016
	ATT_060116-063016 Refunds Over 2500
	G21 Car and Bike Show
	ATT___sheriff_CID_Victims Assistance_G21carshowfundraiser.pdf
	Discuss consider and take appropriate action on approval of the final plat for the Paloma Lake Section 8 subdivision - Pct 4 
	ATT_Paloma Lake Section 8
	2296_01 (002).PDF.pdf
	2296_02 (002).PDF.pdf
	2296_03 (002).PDF.pdf

	Discuss consider and take appropriate action on approval of the revised plat for Lot 30 Block P of Rancho Sienna Sec14 Phase 1 subdivision - Pct 3
	ATT_Revised Plat - Rancho Sienna Lot 30 Block P Sec 14
	Discuss consider and take appropriate action on approval of the revised plat for Lot 30 Block P of Rancho Sienna Section 15 subdivision - Pct 3
	ATT_Amended Final Plat - Rancho Sienna Sec 15 Blk P Lot 30
	Discuss consider and take appropriate action on approval of the final plat for the Sonterra West Section 8J Phase 4 subdivision - Pct 3
	ATT_Sonterra West Sec 8-J Ph 4
	2016-07-19 - Final Plat - Sonterra West Sec 8-J Ph 4001
	2016-07-19 - Final Plat - Sonterra West Sec 8-J Ph 4002
	2016-07-19 - Final Plat - Sonterra West Sec 8-J Ph 4003

	County Burn Ban
	Discuss consider and take appropriate action on the Department of Infrastructure projects and issues update
	Agreement for Architectural and Engineering Services Cedar Park Tax Office Expansion
	ATT_Mode Design AandE Agreement
	2013 Road Bond Transfer 
	ATT_Memo-Mike Weaver
	2006 Road Bond Transfers 
	ATT_2006 Rd Bond Memo
	Mays St. Right of Entry
	ATT_Temporary Right of Entry Agreement
	Early Voting polling locations and schedule for the uniform election date of 11_8_2016.
	ATT_Full Time Early Voting
	Election Day Vote Centers for the uniform election date of 11_8_2016.
	ATT_Election Day Vote Centers
	2015 Certificates of Obligations Budget Transfers
	ATT_2015 Certificates of Obligation Project Transfers
	2014 Capital Improvement Program Budget Transfers
	ATT_2014 Capital Improvement Program Transfers
	2015 Capital Improvement Program Budget Transfers
	ATT_2015 Capital Improvement Program Transfers
	2017 Capital Improvement Program Budget Allocations
	ATT_2017 Capital Improvement Program Budgets
	DWI_Drug Court Resolution for FY17
	ATT_DWI_Drug Court Resolution
	Veterans Court Resolution 
	ATT_Veterans Court Resolution 
	Capital Area Housing Finance Corporation Resolution 
	ATT_Resolution of Appointment
	Helfand - Crisp
	ATT_Eng Letter Helfand Crisp
	Helfand Belcher
	ATT_Eng Letter Helfand Belcher
	Bluebonnet Eas
	ATT_Bluebonnet Shiloh Easement
	CAMPO AG
	ATT_Fiscal Agreement
	ATT_CAMPO Resolution
	Google maps terms of use agreement with ITS
	ATT_Google Terms
	FEMA Project Number PA-06-TX-4223-PW02027 Project Title_ WIL036C Driveway Repairs
	ATT_Terms and Conditions
	ATT_WIL036C-PW02027 Subgrant Award Letter
	FEMA Project Number PA-06-TX-4223-PW02069 Project Title_ WIL035C Driveways
	ATT_WIL035C-PW02069 Subgrant Award Letter
	ATT_Terms and Conditions
	FY16 Emergency Management Performance Grant
	ATT_FY 16 Award Terms and Conditions
	ATT_FY16 Williamson County - Grant Award
	ATT_FY 16 EMPG Grant Award Letter
	Project Title_  WIL010C Damage Roads
	ATT_WIL010C-PW01698 Subgrant Award Letter
	ATT_Terms and Conditions
	Extend the Pecan Harvesting Lease at Blackland Park
	ATT_Lease Agreement - Blackland 
	Food Services for Williamson County Jail
	ATT_Evaluation Sheets
	ATT_Recommendation Letter
	ATT_HB 1295 Form for Aramark
	ATT_Aramark Contract for Food Service
	Specific and Aggregate Stop Loss Insurance
	ATT_RFP package
	Payroll Services for Existing Temporary Labor for the Election Administration
	ATT_RFP package
	Approve Merchant Agreement
	ATT_Contract - AMS Merrick Bank
	ATT_Addendum 1 - AMS Merrick Location
	ATT_Addendum 2 - AMS Merrick Location
	ATT_Recommendation Letter
	Animal Shelter Donations BA 07-26-2016
	Animal Shelter Donations BA 07-26-2016
	Parks Donations BA 07-26-2016
	Park Donations BA 07-26-2016
	Economic Development
	Executive Session

